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order at 1:30 p.m. by Chairman Bob Gill. 1 

 2 

CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN BOB GILL:  I would like to call the council to order 5 

and ask that you all take your respective seats.  Welcome the 6 

237th meeting of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council.  7 

My name is Bob Gill, Chairman of the Council.  If you have a 8 

cell phone, pager, or similar device, we ask that you keep them 9 

on silent or vibrating mode during the meeting. 10 

 11 

The Gulf Council is one of eight regional councils established 12 

in 1976 by the Fishery Conservation and Management Act, known 13 

today as the Magnuson-Stevens Act.  The council’s purpose is to 14 

serve as a deliberative body to advise the Secretary of Commerce 15 

on fishery management measures in federal waters of the Gulf of 16 

Mexico.  These measures help ensure that fishery resources in 17 

the Gulf are sustained while providing the best overall benefit 18 

to the nation. 19 

 20 

Eleven council members are appointed by the Secretary of 21 

Commerce and include individuals from a range of geographical 22 

areas in the Gulf and with experience in various aspects of 23 

fisheries. 24 

 25 

The membership also includes five state fishery managers and the 26 

Regional Administrator from NOAA Fishery Service, as well as 27 

several non-voting members.  Council staff assists the council 28 

by compiling, analyzing, and presenting fishery information, 29 

providing the council with documented management options, and 30 

organizing meetings on a variety of fisheries issues. 31 

 32 

Public input is a vital part of the council’s deliberative 33 

process and comments, both oral and written, are accepted and 34 

considered by the council throughout the process. 35 

 36 

The Sustainable Fisheries Act requires that all oral or written 37 

statements to include a brief description of the background and 38 

interest of the persons in the subject of the statement.  All 39 

written information shall include a statement of the source and 40 

date of such information.   41 

 42 

Oral or written comments provided to the council, its members or 43 

its staff, that relate to matters within the council’s purview 44 

are public in nature.  All written comments will be posted on 45 

the council’s website for viewing by council members and the 46 

public. 47 

 48 
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Knowingly and willfully submitting false information to the 1 

council is a violation of federal law.  Materials submitted to 2 

council members or staff for distribution prior to or during a 3 

council meeting will be treated as all other written comments 4 

and will be posted to the website and will be maintained by the 5 

council as part of the permanent record. 6 

 7 

A digital recording is used for the public record and therefore, 8 

for the purpose of voice identification, each member is 9 

requested to identify him or herself, starting on my left.  10 

 11 

MR. CORKY PERRET:  Corky Perret, Mississippi. 12 

 13 

LT. ROB FOOS:  Lieutenant Rob Foos, U.S. Coast Guard. 14 

 15 

MR. ROBIN RIECHERS:  Robin Riechers, Texas. 16 

 17 

MR. HARLON PEARCE:  Harlon Pearce, the great State of Louisiana. 18 

 19 

MR. MYRON FISCHER:  Myron Fischer, Louisiana. 20 

 21 

DR. BONNIE PONWITH:  Bonnie Ponwith, NOAA Fisheries Service. 22 

 23 

MR. PHIL STEELE:  Phil Steele, NOAA Fisheries Service. 24 

 25 

DR. ROY CRABTREE:  Roy Crabtree, NOAA Fisheries Service. 26 

 27 

MS. MARA LEVY:  Mara Levy, NOAA Office of General Counsel. 28 

 29 

MR. DAVID CUPKA:  David Cupka, South Atlantic Council. 30 

 31 

MS. KAY WILLIAMS:  Kay Williams, Mississippi. 32 

 33 

DR. TOM MCILWAIN:  Tom McIlwain, Mississippi. 34 

 35 

DR. PAMELA DANA:  Pamela Dana, Florida. 36 

 37 

MS. JESSICA MCCAWLEY:  Jessica McCawley, Florida. 38 

 39 

MR. JOHNNY GREENE:  Johnny Greene, Alabama. 40 

 41 

DR. BOB SHIPP:  Bob Shipp, Alabama. 42 

 43 

MR. KEVIN ANSON:  Kevin Anson, Alabama. 44 

 45 

MR. LARRY SIMPSON:  Larry Simpson, Gulf States Marine Fisheries 46 

Commission. 47 

 48 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR STEVE BORTONE:  Steve Bortone, Gulf Council. 1 

 2 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you.  The first item on the agenda is 5 

Adoption of the Agenda, which is Tab A, Number 4.  Are there any 6 

changes, additions, or deletions to the agenda? 7 

 8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I have a couple of items, Mr. Gill.  9 

After Item III, Approval of Minutes, I would like to add 10 

Recognition of Dignitaries and under Other Business, I would 11 

like to add the Fisheries Investment and Regulatory Relief Act.  12 

I would also like to add External Affairs and Electronic 13 

Notebook. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you.  Are there any other additions or 16 

changes to the agenda? 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Under Other Business, I would like to add some 19 

discussion dealing with law enforcement and with travel.  Thank 20 

you. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s two separate subjects or the same? 23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Two separate. 25 

 26 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you.  Any other changes to the agenda?  29 

Seeing none, is there any objection to the agenda as modified?  30 

Seeing none, the agenda as modified is adopted.  The next item 31 

on the agenda is Approval of the Minutes, which is Tab A, Number 32 

5.  Are there any changes, deletions, corrections to the 33 

minutes?  Seeing none, is there any objection to approval of the 34 

minutes as written?  Seeing none, the minutes are approved as 35 

written. 36 

 37 

RECOGNITION OF DIGNITARIES 38 

 39 

The next item on the agenda is recognition of individuals that 40 

we have with us today and we have a number and so if you’ll bear 41 

with me.  First, I would like to recognize Cathy Barko, who is 42 

Chair of the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 43 

and she’s been with us most of the week, I believe.  Welcome, 44 

Cathy.  We’re glad to have you here and welcome to any other 45 

commissioners you may have coming here as well. 46 

 47 

Another person I would like to recognize is Melissa Thompson, 48 
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who is on the staff of Representative Southerland, who 1 

represents the Florida Panhandle.  Melissa, welcome, and you’ve 2 

been here all week. 3 

 4 

I would also like to recognize our South Atlantic liaison, David 5 

Cupka.  David, welcome, as always and we’re glad to have you and 6 

I guess as your term as chairman draws to a close that we’re 7 

going to get to see you less often, I’m sorry to say, and so if 8 

you have any words you would like to say, please do so. 9 

 10 

MR. CUPKA:  I have enjoyed it and I may still continue and who 11 

knows? 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Excellent.  We also have a couple of former 14 

council members in the audience.  Russ Nelson is here and has 15 

been with us all week as well as Bill Teehan.  Welcome and thank 16 

you for coming back and bearing with us as we drag on. 17 

 18 

At this time, I would like to ask if Bill Teehan would come up 19 

to the front here for receipt of a recognition of his service to 20 

the council over five years, as I recollect, and he was last 21 

with us in the October of last year meeting and so, Bill, if you 22 

would come forward. 23 

 24 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Bill, in recognition of your stint 25 

here with the council, we have this small token and it says, 26 

“Bill Teehan, Thank you for your service on the Gulf of Mexico 27 

Fishery Management Council, 2006 to 2011” and a small 28 

inscription, a Haiku, that says “A meeting drags on, awaiting 29 

the last coda, the sock monkey screams”. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Bill, if you would like to say some words, now 32 

is the time. 33 

 34 

MR. BILL TEEHAN:  I was going to save my comments until public 35 

comment, but sitting out in the audience is certainly a lot 36 

different than sitting up here and I have had a lot of fun and I 37 

don’t have a monkey with me and I have some comments later and 38 

thank you. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  As we do every year, we’re losing some members 41 

from the council whose terms are coming to a close on August 10th 42 

and so I would like to ask Tom McIlwain to come up and join us 43 

for recognition in that respect. 44 

 45 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Tom also has an inscription on this 46 

little gizmo here and it says “Tom McIlwain, Thank you for your 47 

service to the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council, 2006 48 
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through 2012” and it’s inscribed “Your five decades of 1 

professional experience and knowledge helped make our fisheries 2 

sustainable”.  Thank you, Tom. 3 

 4 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I just want to say that I have spent the last 5 

sixteen years, ten years of it as a NOAA/NMFS employee and six 6 

years as a council member, sitting here and I look forward to 7 

sitting in the audience. 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Chairman, I may have a 10 

premature -- 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I’m not done yet. 13 

 14 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  You’re not done? 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  You’re out of order. 17 

 18 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s still premature? 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes, I wanted to recognize Damon McKnight, who 21 

is also leaving the council, and unfortunately business 22 

constraints did not permit him to be with us and so I wanted to 23 

wish him well.  I wish he were here and he is not and hopefully 24 

his future will go smooth and he can deal with things as they 25 

come.  Thank you and now you’re in order, Dr. Bortone. 26 

 27 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Now I’m on?  Okay.  We have, again, 28 

possibly a premature award for Mr. Gill.  I’ve been fortunate to 29 

serve with three chairs, two of which are leaving today.  We can 30 

get rid of Bob Shipp too if you would like to kind of resign 31 

here, but we have our crown to anoint the king.  32 

 33 

Here we have a similar award for Bob Gill.  It says “Thank you 34 

for your service on the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 35 

Council, 2006 to 2012”.  Carmen DeGeorge helped me inscribe 36 

this.  It’s from a poem called “The Watch” and you may be 37 

familiar with it. 38 

 39 

It says, “Shipmate, the watch stands relieved, relieved by those 40 

you have led, guided, and trained.  Shipmate, you stand 41 

relieved, we have the watch.” 42 

 43 

REVIEW OF ACTION SCHEDULE 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I know it well and thank you.  Thank you very 46 

much.  I will save my remarks for after Other Business, but 47 

thank you.  Next on the agenda is Tab A, Number 6, which is 48 



9 

 

Review of the Action Schedule, which is something we do briefly 1 

at the start of every council meeting.  Are there any comments 2 

by any council member regarding the priorities, the scheduling 3 

in the future for the actions we have on our plate? 4 

 5 

I’m not seeing any and I have two questions, I believe.  On Item 6 

11, which is the Generic Amendment for Dealer Permits and 7 

Electronic Reporting, there’s nothing scheduled for after this 8 

meeting and if you could shed some light on why that’s written 9 

that way in the action schedule, Dr. Bortone? 10 

 11 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I will turn this over to my 12 

official action schedule person, Trish. 13 

 14 

MS. TRISH KENNEDY:  As I understand it, it wasn’t confirmed that 15 

you were going to have this ready for public hearings or that 16 

you might take it back to staff and come back the next meeting 17 

and so we didn’t assume that you were going to have public 18 

hearings and put it on there. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you.  The next question I’ve got for 21 

discussion -- Since nobody else is talking, I guess I have to, 22 

once again, fill the void and it’s the Line Item 14.  It’s 23 

currently sitting at a Priority B and I would like to ask the 24 

council’s consideration of making that a Priority C.  Is there 25 

discussion on that comment? 26 

 27 

DR. SHIPP:  If anything, I would make a motion to make it an A.  28 

For one thing, this particular issue of platform removal is time 29 

sensitive.  As you know, we’re losing two or three or four 30 

platforms a week and I think it behooves us and is incumbent on 31 

us to move as quickly as possible on this.  If you’ve made it in 32 

the form of a motion, I’m going to make it as an alternative 33 

motion. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Of course, the whole point of the priorities are 36 

to direct staff as to where they should first spend their 37 

attention and then proceed from there and obviously there’s a 38 

lot of A’s on this list and who knows what may crop up and so 39 

what’s the pleasure of the council? 40 

 41 

MR. RIECHERS:  I know you’re not going to like this, but I have 42 

to concur with Dr. Shipp.  That’s a pretty important item for my 43 

part of the world right now and it’s not that that item -- I 44 

think we saw a pretty good document this morning and we’ve asked 45 

them to go back and add some things to that and some rationale 46 

and so I don’t think that should be something that is really 47 

going to keep them from working on the other key activities for 48 



10 

 

the next meeting as well. 1 

 2 

I know everything takes time, but I think I would like to see it 3 

stay at least as the classification it’s at now and if it’s not, 4 

make it even a higher priority. 5 

 6 

DR. SHIPP:  I would just like to follow up with compliments to 7 

John.  He’s done a super job on this first draft and I don’t see 8 

that there’s a whole lot more to do on this and, again, this is 9 

of vital interest to everybody from Alabama to Texas and so I 10 

would prefer to see it go to an A. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion by the council?  Seeing none, 13 

we will move on to the next item on the agenda and that’s Review 14 

of Exempted Fishing Permits, EFPs, and Dr. Crabtree.  This is 15 

Tab J. 16 

 17 

REVIEW OF EXEMPTED FISHING PERMITS 18 

 19 

MR. PHIL STEELE:  Mr. Chairman, as I reminded you yesterday, you 20 

had two for consideration and one is nearly complete, the EFP 21 

from Sea Grant.  The comment period ends on that tomorrow and 22 

the RA will make a determination on that forthwith.   23 

 24 

The other one was the exempted fishing permit application from 25 

Dr. Stallings and Dr. Koenig for the nonlethal take examination 26 

of population dynamics for goliath grouper.  I think the 27 

recommendation yesterday was to go forth with that, but that’s 28 

the only two under consideration right now, sir, and I would be 29 

glad to discuss those further if you need more details. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I believe they were in the Reef Fish Committee 32 

and they should be as part of that committee report and we’ll 33 

vote on them then, unless there’s further discussion by the 34 

council.   35 

 36 

For the public, we will be discussing that after public 37 

testimony, so that if anyone has comments that are made relative 38 

to those EFPs, public testimony would be the time to do that.  39 

Is there further discussion on that item on the agenda of 40 

Exempted Fishing Permits?  Seeing none, we will move into public 41 

comment. 42 

 43 

How we’re going to handle public comment today is if you put in 44 

cards, and I do have a number of them here currently, we’ll have 45 

one card and you’ll have three minutes per and we’ll go through 46 

the cards sequentially and whatever issues you wish to address 47 

during your time at the podium, that would be the time to 48 
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address it. 1 

 2 

For those of you unfamiliar with the podium system, there’s a 3 

switch on the mic and so you need to turn it on and there’s a 4 

light on the end of the mic and so that way you can tell it’s on 5 

and the system is the green light will go on at the start of 6 

your testimony and the yellow light will come on at two minutes 7 

and the red light is when your three minutes are up and you need 8 

to wrap up your testimony so that others can testify and I would 9 

ask that the audience be respectful of those who are at the 10 

podium so they may have their voices heard like you would like 11 

yours. 12 

 13 

DR. DANA:  Just a point of order, in that our agenda says that 14 

public comment starts at 2:15 and is that problematic? 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I don’t see it as problematic, but I will defer 17 

to NOAA GC. 18 

 19 

MS. LEVY:  I don’t think it’s problematic as long as everyone 20 

who submitted a card gets to comment and we go past 2:15, which 21 

I’m assuming we will. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We do have a bunch of cards here and we can 24 

start off and latecomers will be entered into the queue as they 25 

arrive and so I don’t see a problem, but thank you for bringing 26 

that up. 27 

 28 

For council members, it has been commented on numerous times 29 

that folks are looking at their laptops instead of paying 30 

attention at public testimony and so I would ask that you close 31 

your machines so that we do not give the perception of not 32 

paying attention, because I believe we all do pay attention, but 33 

we want also the public to understand that we are. 34 

 35 

With that in mind, we will start off and what I will do is put 36 

the first person and then ask the second person in line, whoever 37 

that is, to come up to stand behind the lectern, so that we can 38 

promptly dispense with the testimony and we can get full 39 

testimony from everybody without making it unduly long.  The 40 

first testimony is from Ken Haddad and next up will by Jack 41 

Hexter. 42 

 43 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY 44 

 45 

MR. KEN HADDAD:  Ken Haddad, American Sportfishing Association.  46 

It’s a pleasure to be here and it’s good to see everybody.  I’m 47 

going to talk on three or four topics and so I’ll squeeze them 48 
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into three minutes.   1 

 2 

The first is allocation.  We believe a methodology for 3 

allocation that resolves and maximizes economic values, 4 

benefits, economic impacts, and societal benefits and needs is 5 

paramount. 6 

 7 

NOAA provides guidelines for developing a methodology and I 8 

haven’t really seen the council address those guidelines that 9 

they have put forth and we would like to see that happen.  We 10 

need a true methodology that can be somewhat understandable, 11 

gives the council grounding on how it will approach allocation 12 

in the future, and is reasonably quantifiable. 13 

 14 

We appreciate you moving off with the shallow-water groupers.  15 

I’m not exactly sure what happened yesterday at this point, but 16 

hopefully that will clear up before end of tomorrow, but on 17 

where you’re headed with allocation.  We ask that you not delay 18 

tackling this issue. 19 

 20 

In sector separation, we continue to remain opposed to sector 21 

separation.  Importantly, we feel the issue of allocation must 22 

be resolved before sector separation is addressed and not 23 

dissimilar to where you were headed yesterday by putting things 24 

together, but we still think there is a bit of a sequence that’s 25 

needed. 26 

 27 

Of course, what may seem so simple on the surface is simply not.  28 

There are too many unresolved issues in sector separation that 29 

we believe could put a kind of a struggling industry in further 30 

jeopardy, just by putting them in an unpredictable business 31 

climate and not understanding what the results will be of sector 32 

separation on the recreational folks. 33 

 34 

First, an acceptable allocation process must be developed and 35 

applied.  The social impacts leading to economic impacts are 36 

unexplored and unknown and we would like to see them understood 37 

first. 38 

 39 

The states may not be able to deal with sector separation.  We 40 

are seeing state separation discussions going on at this meeting 41 

from a management perspective and we can expect that to continue 42 

and then so we may have conflict between states and we may have 43 

conflict between states and the federal side of the equation and 44 

that’s just very unclear at this point and so we would like to 45 

see allocation and these issues addressed. 46 

 47 

We think it has the potential of changing some of the dynamics 48 
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of the fishery in this and thus, the industry.  Is that three 1 

minutes?  Wow. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It goes fast, doesn’t it? 4 

 5 

MR. HADDAD:  I will keep going with barotrauma and hopefully 6 

that will come up again tomorrow and we strongly support the 7 

rigs to reefs efforts and hope you will proceed with the EFH 8 

discussions quickly. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Ken.  Next up is Jack Hexter, to be 11 

followed by Robert Bryant. 12 

 13 

MR. JACK HEXTER:  My name is Jack Hexter and I’m a recreational 14 

fisherman in the Gulf.  I wanted to say that I am completely 15 

opposed to sector separation.  There’s no way that I as a 16 

recreational fisherman want to pay a charter captain to take me 17 

out to catch a fish that was originally allotted to me.  At this 18 

point, I would like to basically give the rest of my time to Bob 19 

Bryant, who is following me. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  No, we won’t be doing that, but thank you for 22 

your comments.  Bob Bryant has three minutes. 23 

 24 

MR. ROBERT BRYANT:  Good afternoon.  My name is Robert Bryant, 25 

but most know me as Captain Bob.  I’m a true recreational angler 26 

and in my spare time, I’m an actuarial and data analyst.  I 27 

appreciate this opportunity to address this body and pray that 28 

you will hear my words and give all due consideration to what 29 

I’m about to say. 30 

 31 

First, I want to make it clear that I am against any attempt to 32 

further divide the fishing community.  Whether someone hires a 33 

boat and a captain, rents a boat, owns a boat, or rides a bus or 34 

a taxi to a seawall, they are all recreational fishermen on that 35 

vessel. 36 

 37 

The captains and the crew are not the recreational fishermen, 38 

but it is the clients who are hiring that captain who are the 39 

recreational fishermen and as such, should be bound by the laws 40 

and regulations that govern all recreational anglers. 41 

 42 

A for-hire operation is simply a conveyance for the recreational 43 

angler to access the recreational fishery.  The owners and 44 

captains and crews are not the anglers, but it is their clients. 45 

 46 

In fact, the Constitution addresses this in Article 4, Section 47 

2, which provides that the citizens of each state shall be 48 
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entitled to all privileges and immunities of the citizens of the 1 

several states.  What this basically means is that you or anyone 2 

else cannot single out a single group or individual and treat 3 

them any differently than the entire group or defined 4 

population. 5 

 6 

If we begin to divide up the recreational fishery into the 7 

various sectors, where does it stop?  Do we create a special 8 

sector for the guy who owns rental boats and rents boats to 9 

fishermen?  Does the bus driver or the taxi driver who drives 10 

the guy to the seawall to fish, does he deserve his own sector? 11 

 12 

The point of all this is just as in the above example, when 13 

under contract a recreational fisherman that hires a charter or 14 

headboat, that charter or headboat is little more than a taxi or 15 

a bus to give them a ride to the opportunity to fish and they 16 

should be bound by the same rules, the same quotas, all the 17 

regulations that apply to the recreational fishery population at 18 

large. 19 

 20 

This is a bad idea.  It is not wanted by most recreational 21 

anglers and it is certainly not wanted by the majority of the 22 

for-hire anglers in this state and in the Gulf of Mexico region.  23 

I am very concerned, however, that there is an effort to 24 

circumvent public input on this matter. 25 

 26 

The President of the Charter Fishermen’s Association has 27 

apparently sent a letter asking the council to basically close 28 

down the workshop sessions and just create an amendment.  I 29 

would ask this council to reject that request and have scoping 30 

go forward as proposed and allow the public to have input into 31 

this very important issue.  I have much more to say and it’s 32 

written and I will submit it to you for on the record, but my 33 

time is almost up and so I will close.   34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bob, for your comments.  Bob, we have 36 

some questions for you. 37 

 38 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I appreciate you coming today and giving us your 39 

opinion, but I do have a question for you, because I feel like 40 

it’s a little more than what has been discussed.  Do you think 41 

jobs are important? 42 

 43 

MR. BRYANT:  Do I think jobs are important?  I think jobs for 44 

everyone are important, unless you’re independently wealthy and 45 

have no need for such a thing. 46 

 47 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay and so would you say that jobs are more 48 
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important than recreation? 1 

 2 

MR. BRYANT:  I would say that in order to have recreation that 3 

it pretty much requires a job. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Right and so as you contemplate some of the 6 

things that you said, I would like for you to think about that 7 

these vessels that’s carrying the recreational fishermen out to 8 

fish, it’s also their jobs.  They don’t have another job. 9 

 10 

MR. BRYANT:  That’s correct.  I was a charterboat captain for 11 

many, many years and their job is important and the service they 12 

provide to the recreational sector is important, but we need to 13 

remember their job is to provide conveyance for recreational 14 

anglers.  How you guys decide the regulations and the quotas and 15 

the days at sea should apply to every recreational angler, 16 

whether he has the ability or desire to hire someone to do it or 17 

whether he goes out on his own. 18 

 19 

My purchase of a boat, my purchase of bait, my purchase of fuel 20 

provides just as many, if not more, jobs than the 1,322 permits 21 

and let’s be realistic here.  When we look at the data, the for-22 

hire sector provides only about 10 percent of all the 23 

recreational trips in the Gulf of Mexico. 24 

 25 

They cater to about 320,000 people, where there is almost six-26 

million people from Brownsville, Texas to Key West that are 27 

active recreational anglers and so there is an issue about what 28 

is fair.  Jobs are important, but fairness and letting a sector 29 

basically receive special privilege is not fair and they must 30 

learn to compete and they must learn to work within the systems 31 

and the frameworks that this body develops for everybody. 32 

 33 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you for your comment and I really want to try 34 

to work towards some closure on this whole situation about the 35 

for-hire and the private recreational, because they are both 36 

private recreational.  What do you consider the general 37 

population?  What’s the general population you keep talking 38 

about? 39 

 40 

MR. BRYANT:  Unfortunately, it’s very hard to define, because if 41 

I go to the Keys, I don’t drag my boat down there.  I go find a 42 

captain and have them take me out and so in that point, I’m a 43 

recreational angler who hired someone to take me out to access 44 

the fishery. 45 

 46 

When I’m home, here in the Tampa/St. Pete area, I’ll take my 47 

boat out and so I have a dual role.  I can hire someone to take 48 
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me out or I can use my own boat, just as every other angler in 1 

the entire population of anglers. 2 

 3 

MR. PEARCE:  I agree, but to me, the entire population is 311 4 

million people in this country that own that fishery in the Gulf 5 

and deserve access, but that’s a story for another day. 6 

 7 

MR. BRYANT:  You’re absolutely right that there are 312 million, 8 

but we know from the data that roughly 12.5 percent of the 9 

population participates in recreational fishing and about 8 10 

percent participate in saltwater angling and that comes from the 11 

Census Bureau’s report in 2006 and we’re waiting for the 2011 12 

report. 13 

 14 

MR. PEARCE:  Every citizen owns that fish and should have 15 

access.  The second thing is all I ask from you is to help us 16 

help the for-hire sector create a business plan from which they 17 

can work.  I don’t like the words “sector separation” and I 18 

never did.  I want to make sure that these guys survive into the 19 

future, so they can give access to those 311 million people and 20 

that they can live, just like anybody else. 21 

 22 

Help me find a way to create a business plan and I don’t want to 23 

call it sector separation, but that will help these guys survive 24 

into the future and not come to this panel and all of a sudden 25 

say oh, by the way, Friday amberjack is closed and he’s booked 26 

for months after that, but just work with us to help solve their 27 

problems, okay? 28 

 29 

MR. BRYANT:  The best thing this body can do is develop 30 

rational, reasonable fishery management plans that are workable 31 

and that help to establish and increase and expand the habitat 32 

that use proper means in developing stock assessments and that 33 

build the fisheries and stop trying to tear us apart.  That’s 34 

what this body can do to help these guys keep their jobs and to 35 

build the fisheries up and help everybody.  Dividing us and 36 

separating us and pitting us against each other is not going to 37 

do the trick. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bob.  Next up is Bill Tucker, to be 40 

followed by Don Harper, Jr. 41 

 42 

MR. BILL TUCKER:  I’m Bill Tucker, a commercial fisherman.  My 43 

comments are going to be kind of short here.  I like the idea of 44 

combining the two amendments, the Amendment 28 and 29, together.  45 

I think it makes sense and I think the sector separation 46 

discussion is about allocation. 47 

 48 
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Allocation is always a difficult issue and I think by looking at 1 

this whole thing comprehensively, I think we may come up with 2 

some synergies that are not available if we look at it in two 3 

different parts. 4 

 5 

I’m not saying the allocation issue -- I’m trying to be open 6 

minded on the whole thing.  I enjoyed Dr. Holliman’s discussion 7 

and I really thought that there was some -- There was an 8 

interesting point where you didn’t have the loss and the loser 9 

scenario as much when you only looked at reallocating on the 10 

increases in TAC. 11 

 12 

To that point, I think we ought to be looking at these increases 13 

and they ought to be after a baseline and so when we’re 14 

rebuilding fisheries and when we get to a rebuilt status, we 15 

should be looking at things, different allocation scenarios, 16 

that exceed that.  17 

 18 

That way, we get back to a baseline and we provide an incentive 19 

to get back to a baseline and an incentive to expand the stock 20 

beyond that and that’s what I would like to see.  I would like 21 

to see alternatives in this reallocation document that look at 22 

reallocation after we hit a baseline. 23 

 24 

I don’t see that in there and I would like to see a section that 25 

covers that.  I think you will find and I’m tickled to find that 26 

in the red snapper commercial fishery that there’s broad support 27 

for considering different allocation scenarios after the 9.12-28 

million-pound TAC is reached once again, because that’s where we 29 

started.  I have some ideas on how that might be done.  I think 30 

I’m going to stop right there. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bill.  Harlon, did you have a 33 

question? 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  Bill, real quick, but in the presentations you saw, 36 

do you think that the willingness to pay for red grouper is 37 

fifty-one cents? 38 

 39 

MR. TUCKER:  In the commercial fishery?  No. 40 

 41 

MR. PEARCE:  As a fisherman, I’m asking that. 42 

 43 

MR. TUCKER:  No.  No.  Well, I think people would be willing to 44 

pay that. 45 

 46 

MR. PEARCE:  No, no, but they’re basing your -- 47 

 48 



18 

 

MR. TUCKER:  Do I think that’s the maximum willingness to pay?  1 

No.  I think the market is a dollar up right now and above that.  2 

I will say that on that willingness to pay number, we’ve been 3 

looking at the marginal willingness to pay for one additional 4 

fish and you’ve seen the recreational allocation, that there’s a 5 

willingness to pay on the number one fish and it’s a little bit 6 

less on number two and it declines as you start adding fish. 7 

 8 

I will comment that if you want to use that type of analysis, 9 

that we need to consider that most of the commercial willingness 10 

to pay, as represented by actual payment, is not on one fish, 11 

but it’s on a thousand pounds of fish and 2,000 pounds of fish. 12 

 13 

This fifty-cent number that comes up is not on the next fish.  14 

It’s probably on a bulk of fish that encompasses anywhere from a 15 

hundred to 500 head of fish and so I think the comparison is -- 16 

I think the baseline on that comparison is off. 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  When you were talking about the 19 

baseline and increases, were you talking about taking a baseline 20 

both -- We already have a TAC and a split on commercial and 21 

recreational, but were you talking about as the red snapper 22 

population increases from a certain baseline to take that 23 

increase, perhaps, from the commercial industry and give it to 24 

those who perhaps did not qualify in the beginning and take that 25 

increase on the recreational side to help compensate the charter 26 

for-hire, so that they can continue or come up with some type of 27 

a business plan?  Is that what you were talking about a 28 

baseline? 29 

 30 

MR. TUCKER:  I think all of the above there need to come in.  I 31 

think we need to consider a bunch of alternatives, but I don’t 32 

think that we need to be looking -- Like in gag grouper, we had 33 

a motion passed in committee yesterday that said we’re going to 34 

-- The motion was to reallocate all the increases in the quota 35 

to the recreational sector between 2012 and 2015. 36 

 37 

We cut this quota by some huge number, 75 percent, and we cut it 38 

down and now you want to take all the growth to get back to that 39 

baseline and give that away?  That’s like taking a guy and 40 

holding his head under the water and then making the rule that 41 

only people with dry hair can breathe.  I don’t think we should 42 

be doing it that way. 43 

 44 

I think we need to get back to a baseline that’s a norm and I 45 

think there would be a lot of discussion as to what that norm is 46 

and then once we get over that norm, then there’s a lot of 47 

openness to exploring alternative distribution scenarios after 48 
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that. 1 

 2 

I think that the incentives that that provides is that we get 3 

back to a baseline and then because there are expanded 4 

opportunities, there’s an incentive to grow the stock and I 5 

think that that’s what we ought to be doing, is developing rules 6 

and regulations that provide incentives to enhance the health of 7 

the stocks. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bill.  Next up is Don Harper, Jr., to 10 

be followed by Dan Harper. 11 

 12 

MR. DON HARPER, JR:  I’m Don Harper, Jr., from Panama City, 13 

Florida.  I own the Fishing Vessel the Miss Stacy and I’m 14 

against the IFQs.  It will put me out of business.  Thank you. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Don.  I think there’s a question from 17 

Kay. 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I heard you were a vermilion snapper fisherman.  20 

Is that true and if so, can you tell me what your catch is from 21 

let’s say two or three years ago compared to this year, as far 22 

as if it’s increased or dropped off?  I’m trying to find out 23 

about the stock of vermilion is why I’m asking. 24 

 25 

MR. DON HARPER, JR:  My catch is about the same.  I just bought 26 

my vessel three-and-a-half years ago.  I’ve been fishing for my 27 

family all my life and I finally got to where I could buy my own 28 

vessel and so that’s how long I’ve got and so my catch has been 29 

about the same. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Don.  Next up is Dan Harper, to be 32 

followed by Mike Whitfield. 33 

 34 

MR. DAN HARPER:  I run and own the Evelyn Irene and I’m against 35 

the IFQ 100 percent.  Everybody is saying that we catch b-liners 36 

over because of the oil spill, but in 2009, I caught 75,000 37 

pounds of vermilion snapper to go along with my other fishery 38 

and so I don’t see there’s a whole lot of shortage up here when 39 

we’ve got quotas and IFQs and this ain’t fair for everybody. 40 

 41 

If you do go to IFQs, you need to put the new years with the old 42 

years, so to make it fair to everybody that’s just started 43 

fishing along with the people that’s fished many years ago. 44 

 45 

MS. WILLIAMS:  One quick question, if I may.  You have been 46 

fishing for vermilion for some time and you haven’t seen 47 

vermilion drop off? 48 
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 1 

MR. DAN HARPER:  No, ma’am, and I’m doing all right this year, 2 

too.  The last couple of trips have slowed down because of the 3 

weather, but a couple of trips ago, I got like 9,200 for one 4 

week and 8,700 the week before that of b-liners to go along with 5 

my other fishery, but I’ve been doing fine myself. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Dan.  Next up is Mike Whitfield and 8 

he’ll be followed by Gary Poyssick. 9 

 10 

MR. MIKE WHITFIELD:  I’m Mike Whitfield and I’m a commercial 11 

fisherman from Panama City, Florida for over forty years.  I 12 

don’t think we need to have this taking fish from one fishery 13 

and giving it to another just to put a band-aid on something 14 

that eventually we’ve got to cure the problem of. 15 

 16 

After you get a problem cured, then if you need something to 17 

work with, that’s better, but the way it is, if you take fish 18 

from one sector and giving it to another sector, you’re just 19 

putting a band-aid on a problem that eventually is going to have 20 

to be fixed. 21 

 22 

I have a problem with the Amendment 19 on the mackerel and it’s 23 

on page 20, where you voted this morning to take permits away 24 

from guys that didn’t have any catch history.  I think it was 25 

September 30 of 2010 back. 26 

 27 

I just bought a permit in the last say three to four weeks and 28 

my problem is it -- It doesn’t have any catch history, because 29 

since the IFQs have come along, they’ve been strictly snapper 30 

and grouper fishing and they didn’t have kingfish anymore. 31 

 32 

Anyway, it doesn’t have any catch history in this time period, 33 

but it’s a big investment for me and I know I’m not the only one 34 

that’s done that and that’s the way I read it.  It seems like it 35 

will probably go out and most other people it will be the same 36 

way to them as it goes to them. 37 

 38 

You’re taking a permit away from somebody that eventually that 39 

in any kind of fishery that might want to buy in to start his 40 

own little fishing business and that takes that away from him, I 41 

think. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a question from Pam. 44 

 45 

DR. DANA:  Thank you for your comments, first of all.  I do sit 46 

on that Mackerel Committee and we did not vote on that 47 

particular item.  That is an option that could be voted on, but 48 
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at this point, it’s just an option, but I appreciate your 1 

comment there. 2 

 3 

MR. WHITFIELD:  I understand that, but it needs to be worded to 4 

where people who are going to be looking at it -- There’s a lot 5 

of people that bought permits that don’t have any catch history 6 

in that time period and they don’t know what they’ve got and 7 

somebody is going to spend a lot of money for something that’s 8 

just a piece of paper. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Gary Poyssick, to 11 

be followed by Don Harper, Sr. 12 

 13 

MR. GARY POYSSICK:  My name is Gary Poyssick and first of all, 14 

Dr. Bob, thanks a lot for all those great books all those years.  15 

My name is Gary Poyssick and I’m the communications director for 16 

an IRS-registered 501(c)(4) called the Recreational Fishing 17 

Alliance. 18 

 19 

I also publish a magazine that this month will have 200,000 page 20 

turns and they’re all fishermen.  If I had the time, I would ask 21 

how many people from here forward have been on the water in the 22 

last thirty days and I would estimate not a lot of arms would 23 

raise. 24 

 25 

We’re opposed to sector separation in all forms.  For over 26 

thirty years, these councils have been populated by political 27 

appointees, academia, and people, for the most part, with rare 28 

exception, that do not spend any time in our world.  They are 29 

backed by puppet masters surrounding the room in the form of the 30 

environmental left. 31 

 32 

I don’t know how many people in this room know that, but as of 33 

three months ago, catch and release fishing in the nation of 34 

Germany is illegal.  Do you know how they started?  They started 35 

with marine spatial zones to protect the fish and then they made 36 

captains special. 37 

 38 

Those of you supporting sector separation, they said you’re 39 

special and only people can fish with you and then they turned 40 

you off.  Fishing is illegal in Germany and they’re saying that 41 

Germany is the cure for the Eurodollar.  These people that are 42 

trying to separate us, to split and divide us, so that we are 43 

fighting each other as recreational fishermen as we now fight 44 

commercial fishing. 45 

 46 

Their endgame is getting us all off the water.  As of this week, 47 

one-quarter of Australia can’t be fished.  You, young lady, who 48 
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asked what recreational means compared to jobs, $55 billion in 1 

Florida.  Make recreational fishing illegal here like it is in 2 

the savior nation of Europe and tell me how many jobs it will 3 

cost. 4 

 5 

You, sir, there is nothing in the Magnuson, and I could quote it 6 

page-by-page, that gives you the authority to design our 7 

business models.  Government, government, sir, government -- My 8 

light is not flashing.  Government, sir, is a very dangerous 9 

servant, but it is an even more fearful master.  That’s in the 10 

words of George Washington.  God bless America. 11 

 12 

Southerland’s office, thank God, is going to be among the 13 

Recreational Fishing Alliance this September and there are going 14 

to be hearings on Magnuson.  There are people in this room that 15 

do not want to know what we’re going to show the House of 16 

Representatives.  Thank you. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Gary.  Gary, we have a question for 19 

you. 20 

 21 

MR. POYSSICK:  Questions?  I would be more than happy to answer 22 

any questions. 23 

 24 

MR. PEARCE:  First off, I live on a boat house and so I’m on the 25 

water. 26 

 27 

MR. POYSSICK:  Do you fish? 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes, I do. 30 

 31 

MR. POYSSICK:  Thank you very much.  I’m so impressed.  I am not 32 

really.  That was sarcasm, based on your first snippy comment to 33 

us. 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  No, it wasn’t snippy. 36 

 37 

MR. POYSSICK:  I perceived it as snippy, but I apologize and go 38 

on, sir. 39 

 40 

MR. PEARCE:  Can you let me talk, please? 41 

 42 

MR. POYSSICK:  Sure.  You have three minutes. 43 

 44 

MR. PEARCE:  I don’t need but thirty seconds, guy, because I’m 45 

pretty quick. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Poyssick, we are going to have a civil 48 



23 

 

discussion here or I will ask you to step back, please.  You had 1 

your moment and he can have his. 2 

 3 

MR. PEARCE:  I want everyone in this audience to help develop 4 

that business plan and not us.  We need the comments from you 5 

and that’s why you’re here talking to us, so we can hear what 6 

you need us to do.  All I want to do is help all recreational 7 

fishermen, charterboats and private alike, to be able to fish 8 

and do what they do all the time and so help me do that.  I’m 9 

not asking to do it, but I’m asking for help from you. 10 

 11 

MR. POYSSICK:  Special but equal doesn’t work.  It didn’t work 12 

for black people in this country and it won’t work for 13 

commercial anglers or for people that I pay to take me fishing.  14 

They’re not special.  I have 200,000 people reading my magazine 15 

and sixty of them are guides that report and what makes them 16 

special?  Because they have a Coast Guard license?  What are you 17 

kidding me? 18 

 19 

Separate sectors and you are splitting us to divide us.  I am 20 

opposed to sector separation.  Why do you think we all are?  Is 21 

it just because you’re so much smarter than us?  The people that 22 

are so pro-sector separation just are reading something we’re 23 

not reading? 24 

 25 

I am studying fishery management under Dr. Ray Hilborn and he 26 

contends that fish aren’t overfished at all and I come to these 27 

meetings and fish are overfished and we’re down to forty days 28 

for red snapper this year and do you know how many days we’ve 29 

been able to fish, sir? 30 

 31 

I know you don’t take your houseboat there, but three.  The 32 

weather has let us fish three days for American red snapper and 33 

who are you protecting? 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  You’ve answered my questions and we don’t need any 36 

more rhetoric, but thank you. 37 

 38 

MR. POYSSICK:  No sector separation and you can help us by 39 

getting out of our lives. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Poyssick, thank you very much.  Next up is 42 

Don Harper, Sr., to be followed by William Teehan. 43 

 44 

MR. DON HARPER, SR:  My name is Don Harper and we have 45 

commercial fishing boats in Panama City.  We’re totally against 46 

IFQs and what they’ve done to the fishery by putting a lot of 47 

fishermen out of business and giving the big part of the 48 
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fisheries on the red snapper to the chosen few and we just need 1 

to stop any more IFQs. 2 

 3 

Trip limits do the same thing.  There’s not many fishermen left 4 

out there.  You’ve got IFQs on reef fish and there’s not going 5 

to be none left out there, not hardly any bandit boats.  Now, 6 

you all can do what you want to do, but I hope to God you don’t 7 

go to no more IFQs on reef fish.  It’s ridiculous what you all 8 

are doing to people. 9 

 10 

Just to give a chosen few a bunch of money in their pockets by 11 

having the IFQs and going out and fishing them themselves, a lot 12 

of these guys go out there red snapper fishing and don’t even 13 

fish for anything else at all and just the red snapper, because 14 

they make so much money off of it. 15 

 16 

Was that designed like that, just to give it to a chosen few in 17 

the Gulf instead of all of us?  There’s not many left.  You all 18 

think there’s a lot of commercial guys out there and there’s not 19 

and if you go to IFQs on the rest of the reef fish, there won’t 20 

be hardly any left and I applaud that guy that just come up here 21 

and talked. 22 

 23 

I know he talked real fast and everything, but he’s right on 24 

target.  You guys are getting into our lives too much and 25 

putting way too many people out of business and me and my sons 26 

are tired of it. 27 

 28 

I’m fourth-generation fisherman and they’re fifth-generation.  29 

My great-grandfather named Flamingo where Everglades National 30 

Park is in 1892 and it would be a terrible injustice if me and 31 

my sons are put out of business because you go to IFQs and we 32 

don’t get enough to be able to go out there and make trips. 33 

 34 

Right now, fuel costs so much money and ice costs so much money 35 

and bait costs so much money and then you’ve got to pay your men 36 

and you’ve got to go out there and catch some fish to try to 37 

make the ends meet on that and these other guys with all these 38 

IFQs on red snapper and red grouper, they’re just having a big 39 

time. 40 

 41 

I see a lot of them coming to these meetings and walking around 42 

with drinks in their hands just a smiling.  I would be smiling 43 

too if I had 200,000 pounds of red snapper IFQ or even 100,000.  44 

I wouldn’t have to do nothing else and so you guys need to look 45 

at that before you go to any more IFQs on our reef fish. 46 

 47 

We’ve got to have every one of our reef fish to be able to make 48 
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it, triggerfish, porgies, b-liners, all of it that’s left.  We 1 

need it all to make our trips and we can make a living doing 2 

that, if you just stop this stuff on the IFQs.  It’s ridiculous 3 

and it really is. 4 

 5 

I hope you don’t put us out of business, because if you do, I’m 6 

going to come to every meeting here in front of everybody and 7 

try to get you all to take back the IFQs and stop longlining and 8 

what’s this?  The Environmental Defense Fund gets in bed with 9 

longliners, when they always hated longliners for tearing up our 10 

bottom?  That’s crazy. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  You need to wrap it up, Don.  Your time is up. 13 

 14 

MR. DON HARPER, SR:  Thank you very much. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you very much.  Don, there is a question 17 

for you, if you would come back to the lectern. 18 

 19 

DR. DANA:  Captain Harper, Mr. Harper, first of all, I want to 20 

thank you, because you have taken a lot of time, personal time, 21 

to write this council letters and emails to just voice your 22 

viewpoint and it really does matter for every perspective to be 23 

heard. 24 

 25 

We do hear from the other side of commercial folks that are in 26 

favor, of course, of having the IFQs with reef fish and such and 27 

so there’s two sides to every story and your input helps us 28 

understand the other side of the story and I appreciate that 29 

your two sons -- I understand this may be their first council 30 

meeting. 31 

 32 

MR. DON HARPER, SR:  It is their first time. 33 

 34 

DR. DANA:  I appreciate them taking the time. 35 

 36 

MR. DON HARPER, SR:  Can I say one thing to you, ma’am, on that 37 

same question?  The reason you never see people like us is 38 

because we’re hard workers and we’re making a living.  We 39 

shouldn’t have to be here in front of these people. 40 

 41 

Our fishery should have been there always, like it has been 42 

always.  It shouldn’t have been picked out and given to a few 43 

people, but that’s what you’ve done.  Most of the people like us 44 

don’t think it’s ever going to be gone, but slowly you’ve been 45 

picking away and picking away until it’s almost all gone and if 46 

you do the reef fish, it’s going to be gone and you’re going to 47 

see a collapse in this fishery. 48 
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 1 

When there’s not enough fish going up to that Fulton Fish Market 2 

and the other markets in Canada, they’ll go elsewhere, just like 3 

when you made the moratorium on amberjack.  When you put the 4 

amberjack back where you were catching them, nobody wanted them, 5 

because they went to Central America and bought mahi.   6 

 7 

They never again went back to amberjack buying.  You bring in a 8 

few loads of amberjack and they say no more, no more, because I 9 

can’t sell them.  That’s because of that and so when you do it 10 

on the IFQs on reef fish if you do, and I hope to God you don’t, 11 

there won’t be enough fish coming in, because you’re going to 12 

put so many other boats out of business and a lot of fish 13 

houses, too.   14 

 15 

Greg will have to shut his doors down there.  There won’t be 16 

enough small boats coming in to keep him going, but you’ll make 17 

a lot of guys happy, because they had the money to go buy some 18 

reef permits that had history on them and they will have a lot 19 

of IFQs that they can lease out and sit back and make more money 20 

with their red snapper IFQs and so that’s what you’ve done with 21 

this thing and it ain’t right. 22 

 23 

I know a lot about it.  I’ve been here and I’m fourth-generation 24 

and my great-grandfather settled where Everglades National Park 25 

is now in 1885.  I don’t even like to be here talking, but I 26 

figured we had better and I better bring my sons before it’s too 27 

late.  Thank you. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Kay, do you have a question? 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Actually, I have three or four questions for him, 32 

because I heard he was a great vermilion snapper fisherman and 33 

your sons and I’ve been reading all of your emails and I 34 

appreciate you sending them to us.  Have you seen any decline in 35 

the vermilion snapper fishery? 36 

 37 

MR. DON HARPER, SR:  Yes, you know we had an increase after the 38 

oil spill and after you all let us go back to fishing.  That had 39 

to be, because we never caught the big b-liners like we caught 40 

then at that time off of Panama City.  They were pushed over 41 

from the oil, but then those slowed way down and then we had -- 42 

We’re running further to catch our fish and that’s just the 43 

truth. 44 

 45 

We’re having to come around past Apalachicola and on down to get 46 

away from the areas where that oil hit and you all think that 47 

oil is over with and it’s not.  It’s destructed a lot of stuff 48 
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out there and it’s going to hurt us in the long run and 1 

everybody is trying to get out of that too because BP has paid 2 

everybody off, but it’s not -- My sons are real good and I’ve 3 

been teaching them since they were this high on those boats and 4 

they know how to catch fish and they’ll find them somewhere. 5 

 6 

They will find them and they’ll go as far and as hard as it 7 

takes, but we’re burning more fuel and taking more time to catch 8 

them, but a lot of the boats aren’t catching much.  If you go to 9 

Greg Abrams seafood, like I’m down there all the time and watch, 10 

there’s not many boats coming in with many b-liners now.  It’s 11 

really slowed down on a lot of boats. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Another question is -- I realize that you’ve been 14 

fishing for quite a few years and did you just not have any red 15 

snapper landings because they weren’t plentiful or how did you 16 

get left out? 17 

 18 

MR. DON HARPER, SR:  I fished out of the Florida Keys for years 19 

and I stone crabbed and fished out of there and then I got hurt 20 

real bad and had to get out of it for a while and by the time I 21 

got back in it, you had to have a reef permit.  I think that’s 22 

when they first started and it was around I think 1989 or 1990 23 

and so I got a permit. 24 

 25 

We fished in Cedar Key for a long time and then I was going to 26 

go to Costa Rica and I didn’t.  I’m just telling you the truth 27 

and I moved around to Panama City and we started fishing out of 28 

here and so weren’t in the big derbies and had the big permits 29 

to get all that history at the time that you all did it and so 30 

that’s the reason we didn’t get many snapper IFQ. 31 

 32 

Then if you didn’t have multiple boats to get enough history, to 33 

get enough IFQs, to stay fishing, a lot of them didn’t and the 34 

same thing in the grouper IFQs.  A lot of them boats didn’t have 35 

enough history to stay in the business and they had to sell them 36 

and that’s what is happening. 37 

 38 

Now, if you’re a fish house and you’ve got a lot of history that 39 

you bought from buying permits, then when it goes to them, 40 

they’ll have plenty, but we just didn’t have much history on red 41 

snapper and so that was the reason and that’s the thing on b-42 

liners. 43 

 44 

We always targeted gag grouper and about eight years ago when 45 

all those hurricanes came through the Gulf, it pushed a lot of 46 

the gag grouper out of here and so when they slowed way down, my 47 

boys went to fishing for b-liners and that was probably about 48 
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seven or eight years that we started targeted them, but then you 1 

made a target date of 2008 on b-liners, reef fish. 2 

 3 

If it does go, we didn’t have enough caught in that time, I 4 

don’t think, that we would be able to stay in business, unless 5 

you went to the newest years, which would be fair for all of us 6 

if you did go.  I don’t want you to, but if you did -- If you 7 

went to the newest years back to the oldest years, at least give 8 

us that.   9 

 10 

At least give us that much, instead of just giving it to these 11 

chosen few guys that bought up a lot of old history, but that’s 12 

the reason we didn’t have any red snapper IFQs and now I heard 13 

that they’re up to thirty-five-dollars a pound and I sure can’t 14 

afford to buy any, if you can even find them. 15 

 16 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We’re looking at trying to help those that were 17 

left out, for whatever reasons, whatever their circumstances 18 

were, with some of the increase as the populations rebuild and 19 

hopefully that could help. 20 

 21 

MR. DON HARPER, SR:  That would be good. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Don.  Next up is Bill Teehan, to be 24 

followed by Trip Aukeman.  Bill, welcome to that side of the 25 

podium, young man. 26 

 27 

MR. WILLIAM TEEHAN:  It’s a whole different world over here, Mr. 28 

Chairman, and thank you very much.  I’m not going to be as -- 29 

I’m going to try and be a little bit more light-hearted.  I just 30 

want the record to show that I am speaking strictly for myself 31 

and not for any organization or government entity or anybody 32 

else.  I am now a retired citizen.  33 

 34 

I wanted to throw a thought out to you that I’ve been kind of 35 

developing over the last few years, but kind of keeping to 36 

myself, and that is that if you want to look at bony fish, and 37 

just bony fish, since you’re fisheries managers, is a taxonomic 38 

group presently of about 29,000 species and it goes back in time 39 

about 420 million years. 40 

 41 

If you look at Homo sapiens, there is one extant species and 42 

that’s us and we go back about 200,000 years, depending upon 43 

which scientist you’re talking about, and it’s a general human 44 

concept that some cosmic entity has put these fish and 45 

everything else on the face of the Earth here exclusively for 46 

human consumption and human exploitation. 47 

 48 
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Human arrogance is a cause of most of this and some day the 1 

Earth will be rid of us and I think it will probably be a better 2 

place.  However, even though I submit that this is wrong 3 

thinking that everything is here for us, it is the way that we 4 

do business and it is reality and we live under this reality and 5 

therefore, we need to become more responsible stewards of the 6 

resources that are available to us. 7 

 8 

We now find ourselves competing by user groups for what is 9 

called our fish and that is apparently defined as these, blank, 10 

and put whatever you want in there, were put here for us, 11 

whatever blank user group you want, and not you, the other 12 

blank. 13 

 14 

That’s where you all find ourselves now and it’s coming to a 15 

head.  Historically, at least in the last hundred years, it’s 16 

been basically commercial versus recreational in all of these 17 

resource exploitation issues. 18 

 19 

However, things are becoming a little bit more fine-tuned and it 20 

has now, at least in the Gulf of Mexico, become more subdivided 21 

and you’re looking at some potential subdivisions between users 22 

in the recreational and the council has embarked on a project to 23 

analyze allocation of species by sector.  Good luck with that. 24 

 25 

I can tell you that I am very pleased and happy in my retirement 26 

and I’m glad that I don’t have to deal with some of the issues 27 

that are facing you. 28 

 29 

Because we operate under a system of federal waters and state 30 

waters and this is everywhere and it’s not just here in the Gulf 31 

and I’m not trying to say that this is just a Gulf issue and 32 

some of the more economically-important species occur in both 33 

state and federal waters, there really needs to be cooperative 34 

management and that’s the key component to making most of these 35 

issues work and certainly the allocation and sector separation 36 

issues that you have before you are going to need state 37 

cooperation and federal cooperation. 38 

 39 

They’re all in the same body of water and we’re all fishing for 40 

the same fish and in order to make these plans work, you have to 41 

have some sort of uniformity. 42 

 43 

It’s not always been the case anywhere and it seems to be the 44 

public -- I will wrap this up, Mr. Chairman, but it seems to be 45 

everything, in politics everywhere, and so it’s not just in 46 

fisheries management, but we need to really kind of come 47 

together as states and federal agencies and work out these 48 
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problems and make sure that they’re successful because we 1 

cooperate. 2 

 3 

However, as -- I kind of got frustrated with the system and I 4 

lost my optimistic view of how it works and decided that it 5 

might be time to just move on and that’s what I’ve done and like 6 

I say, I’m very happy and as a philosophical king that I know 7 

once said, it is what it is. 8 

 9 

I have enjoyed working with the council members and staff and I 10 

have compiled a substantial memory bank of stories, and Mr. 11 

Perret will never be forgotten over the last, I thought it was 12 

seven years, but apparently it’s five years.   13 

 14 

Since I’m now a civilian, I did not bring a screaming monkey and 15 

so you are now left to your own devices.  Apparently your 16 

battery wore out, Mr. Gill. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  In more ways than one. 19 

 20 

MR. TEEHAN:  I will conclude my remarks and I would like to 21 

thank you for enduring my final rambles.  I have sat out there 22 

for the last two days and endured yours and it’s quite a 23 

different scene and thank you very much. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bill.  Next up is Trip Aukeman, to be 26 

followed by Bill Kelly. 27 

 28 

MR. TRIP AUKEMAN:  My name is Trip Aukeman and I’m from CCA 29 

Florida and while we are against sector separation, I am going 30 

to talk on something else today.  Since you, the Gulf Council, 31 

voted in April to start a process of classifying real and vital 32 

artificial reefs as essential fish habitat, CCA has been working 33 

closely with congressional members in Washington to reverse the 34 

federal government’s idle iron policy. 35 

 36 

The removal of the offshore platforms will harm fish and other 37 

ocean life now calling these platforms home.  CCA and others 38 

have called for a moratorium on the removal of these rigs until 39 

a process can be put in place to determine the most effective 40 

method to dismantle platforms not serving as marine habitat and 41 

to protect those structures that are thriving ecosystems. 42 

 43 

CCA hopes for a fast-track approval once the document returns 44 

from the staff in August.  We appreciate your willingness to 45 

work on designating artificial reefs and rigs as essential fish 46 

habitats and we thank you for moving this issue up to a priority 47 

item.  Thank you. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Trip.  Next up is Bill Kelly, to be 2 

followed by Mike Jennings. 3 

 4 

MR. BILL KELLY:  Mr. Chairman and members of the council, I’m 5 

Bill Kelly with Florida Keys Commercial Fishermen.  I would like 6 

to talk to you about Mackerel Amendments 19 and 20.  I would 7 

just like to echo what Mr. Gill said earlier today in committee 8 

and that is as you develop these amendments, and they’re joint 9 

amendments, we would hope that you would maintain consistency, 10 

where practicable, so that we don’t have two diverse sets of 11 

rules, one for the Gulf and one for the South Atlantic, as we 12 

fish both sides of the Keys and under both jurisdictions. 13 

 14 

We talked to you and I had submitted written documentation 15 

opposing the retirement of latent hook and line permits.  For 16 

the past two-and-a-half years, I’ve been here stressing the 17 

point that at 1,250 pounds for our Keys fishermen, it’s totally 18 

unacceptable. 19 

 20 

That was an archaic plan that was developed appropriately at the 21 

time, but many years ago and at the cost of fuel and the 22 

distances that our men and women have to travel to catch fish, 23 

we would like you to increase that trip limit to 3,000 pounds 24 

per day with no step-down at 75 percent of quota. 25 

 26 

Also, we supported the retirement of latent gillnet permits 27 

based on accountability measures that we had submitted to you 28 

two years ago and I’m pleased actually that you supported a no 29 

action effort on this earlier today, because in discussions with 30 

Ms. Gerhart and Dr. Branstetter, I think that improved 31 

communications and reporting will resolve that issue. 32 

 33 

The last thing that we really want to do is give up permits, 34 

because once they’re gone, we will never get them back and so 35 

I’m very optimistic that we’ll develop plans to resolve those 36 

problems. 37 

 38 

With regard to kingfish, we absolutely are opposed to a catch 39 

shares program in the kingfish fishery.  If in fact you opt to 40 

use those as a tool, we want them based on satisfactory stock 41 

assessments and the valuations as to the impacts in fleet 42 

reduction, job loss, and economic impacts on coastal 43 

communities. 44 

 45 

Finally, I had a couple of things and I would just like to 46 

acknowledge Ms. Barko and say thank you very much for attending 47 

this federal meeting and many others to protect states rights.  48 
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We think that’s very vital in learning what’s going on between 1 

the federal government and state actions. 2 

 3 

Then, finally, I would like to say to Mr. Gill, Mr. Teehan, Dr. 4 

McIlwain, and Dr. Shipp, thank you so very much for your service 5 

to the industry.  Florida Keys Commercial Fishermen’s 6 

Association, we think you’ve done a splendid job in representing 7 

everyone’s best interests and thank you. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bill.  Next up is Mike Jennings, to 10 

be followed by Pam Anderson. 11 

 12 

MR. MIKE JENNINGS:  I am Captain Mike Jennings with Jennings 13 

Outdoors out of Freeport, Texas.  I own a hunting and fishing 14 

operation and I own two federally-permitted charterboats and I 15 

operate a third out of Freeport and I’m also the Vice President 16 

of the Charter Fishermen’s Association. 17 

 18 

From an association standpoint, we would like to just -- I’m 19 

going to make it real short.  We would like to just ask the 20 

council to continue to explore the options that you’re working 21 

on now for the charter for-hire industry and we would like to 22 

see the council continue to move forward with the EFP pilot for 23 

the headboats.  We think that one shows a lot of potential for 24 

the future and it would give us an opportunity to see whether 25 

the industry really can manage themselves from that standpoint. 26 

 27 

We would like to see the council continue to move forward with 28 

the sector allocation issues and we know that there’s been turn 29 

of events with some combining of some amendments and some other 30 

language added that I think was unexpected on our end and it 31 

seemed like, from listening to it, it might have been somewhat 32 

unexpected from the council standpoint, too. 33 

 34 

We would just like to remind the council on that kind of stuff 35 

that we understand that it’s a very complex issue and that it 36 

involves all three sectors or more or less all the user groups 37 

and just ask that as we move forward with this kind of work, if 38 

we make some of those changes, that we continue to work together 39 

to get it right the first time and do what’s fair and correct by 40 

each sector. 41 

 42 

There is no special sector out there, but there is some 43 

differences in the way that each one of these sectors are 44 

managed and that it’s not a level playing field.  We can’t all 45 

just hug and go chase a fish on the same playing field. 46 

 47 

The regulations and the laws and the requirements affect each 48 
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one of these groups differently and we have shown, through the 1 

point on the red snapper fishery, that we’re down to a forty-day 2 

derby season.  Now, that derby season has never worked in any 3 

fishery, ever, and it’s not working for ours currently and other 4 

than that, I appreciate the time and thank you. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Pam Anderson, to be 7 

followed by Scott Childress. 8 

 9 

MS. PAM ANDERSON:  Hi, Mr. Chairman and Dr. Crabtree and council 10 

members.  I am Pam Anderson, Operations Manager of Captain 11 

Anderson’s Marina in Panama City and First Vice President of 12 

Panama City Boatmen’s Association and fisheries rep for the Bay 13 

County Chamber of Commerce’s Governmental Affairs Committee. 14 

 15 

I have several items to speak to you about today.  With respect 16 

to the restoration efforts, enhancing our artificial reef 17 

systems across the Gulf and increased stock assessments are key 18 

to offsetting damages done by the BP spill. 19 

 20 

I would submit that collaborative efforts made between all 21 

entities that are doing research should give you unprecedented 22 

knowledge of our ecosystems and I’m hoping that there are a lot 23 

of collaborative efforts ongoing. 24 

 25 

In the discussion on the risk of overfishing, statements were 26 

made, such as quoted as it’s impossible to know why MSY is at a 27 

certain place at any one time and for a given harvest level, we 28 

are going to estimate what the MSY is and what the probability 29 

of OFL is for that species, unquote. 30 

 31 

This reveals lack of sufficient data and the data you’re using, 32 

we know, is the harvest data to determine MSY and OFL.  My 33 

question is are all the reductions in the fishing effort due to 34 

the stringent regulations and increased fuel costs and other 35 

economic factors that reduce effort factored into the modeling? 36 

 37 

Harvest levels are not only impacted by the health or status of 38 

the fishery, but does P* have economic indicators factored into 39 

it? 40 

 41 

With respect to sustainable fisheries, National Standard 1, and 42 

I quote, requires that conservation and management measures 43 

shall prevent overfishing while achieving, on a continuing 44 

basis, the optimum yield from each fishery for the United States 45 

fishing industry. 46 

 47 

In taking a second look at the standard, I submit that while 48 
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accountability measures and annual catch limits may be important 1 

to control those who do not care about the conservation, the 2 

emphasis should be that fishery managers are to achieve the 3 

optimum yield for the U.S. fishing industry.  What better way to 4 

accomplish this than to enhance the fishery with artificial 5 

reefs and grow the fishery?   6 

 7 

For the proposed regional management pilot for Louisiana, 8 

management of the fisheries by the states will be an excellent 9 

step toward better management.  The states are in tune with the 10 

needs of their stakeholders, their economies, and the status of 11 

their fisheries.  They are right there with us. 12 

 13 

Our FWC has a constant presence in the waterways in and around 14 

Florida and excellent research facilities.  I wanted to thank 15 

you for delaying the scoping for sector separation.  I agree 16 

with comments made that the public needs to fully understand the 17 

concept and what it will mean to their fishery before making a 18 

decision on the subject.  We are still emphatically against 19 

sector separation. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Pam, you need to wrap it up.  Your time is up. 22 

 23 

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  I have several things, but I will go ahead 24 

and stop. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you very much.  Next up is Scott 27 

Childress, to be followed by Chad Haggert. 28 

 29 

MR. SCOTT CHILDRESS:  Hello.  My name is Scott Childress and 30 

thank you, first, for allowing me to come up here and talk.  31 

It’s definitely not my first time.  I am a commercial spear 32 

fisherman out of Hudson, Florida and I’m also a public 33 

fisherman.  I’m fishing for that 97 percent of people that don’t 34 

have their own boat that can’t get out there. 35 

 36 

Saying that, I am definitely against any kind of allocation or 37 

reallocation right now.  At some point, when we reach that 38 

benchmark, whatever it may be, like Bill Tucker had said, then 39 

yes, we could talk about giving more fish to another sector. 40 

 41 

Right now, I think we’ve got to get everything back to the 42 

levels of whatever they used to be or whatever they need to be 43 

before we do any splitting of anything and, again, there’s 97 44 

percent of this country that can’t get out there on the water 45 

and can’t fish. 46 

 47 

They rely on that charterboat fleet to get them fishing or on 48 
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commercial fishermen like myself to get that fish to the table 1 

for them to partake in.  As far as the sector separation, I 2 

agree with it.   3 

 4 

I applaud the fact that there’s another group of fishermen out 5 

here in the Gulf that is trying to work with the government and 6 

trying to make their fishery accountable.  That’s a hard word 7 

for a lot of people to deal with. 8 

 9 

I’ve been in this fight for ten or twelve years and was with a 10 

big organization that you’re going to hear several people speak 11 

from today.  Our motto back then was fairness in fisheries 12 

management and it kind of got away from that, in my opinion, and 13 

I’m no longer part of that group. 14 

 15 

I disagree with a lot of the things that are being done there.  16 

There’s no fairness when you’re just rah, rah and let’s scream 17 

and yell and I need my fish back and you know what?  I need all 18 

my fish back, but I really don’t want to do anything to try to 19 

make it better.  That’s the problem I have with it. 20 

 21 

You’ve got to want to try to do something.  The commercial 22 

fishermen have done that.  We’ve made ourselves accountable.  A 23 

select group of charterboat captains are trying to do that and 24 

meeting great opposition and I can’t see why.  That would be 25 

another big part of our fishery that would be accountable.  It 26 

could only make fishing better, in my opinion. 27 

 28 

That’s about all and I know my clock started late and there’s no 29 

need to take up any more time than that and, again, just thank 30 

you for allowing me to be here to speak on the behalf of 31 

everybody that can’t be. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Scott.  Next up is Chad Haggert.  34 

Chad, are you in the room?  If Chad isn’t here, next up is Randy 35 

Boggs, followed by Jim Zurbrick. 36 

 37 

MR. RANDY BOGGS:  I am Randy Boggs from Real Surprise Charters 38 

in Orange Beach, Alabama.  I am going to speak on a few 39 

different things here.  The triggerfish are coming around again 40 

and we need to go with a one fish per person per day bag limit 41 

on triggerfish.  We would like to see the concurrent closure 42 

with red snapper season.  That way, when we’re fishing for 43 

snapper, we can lay off the triggerfish and we’ll have them 44 

later in the year. 45 

 46 

We understand that next year we may get an even longer snapper 47 

season and just go ahead and run the triggerfish a little bit 48 
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longer to stay concurrent with the snapper season and if it 1 

increases a little bit and keeps us in compliance, we would 2 

rather leave a few fish in the water and have us fish before and 3 

after snapper season.  It would be a whole lot better for the 4 

charter industry. 5 

 6 

The vermilion snapper where I fish, and it may be a localized 7 

thing, but we’re seeing a marked decrease in the number of 8 

vermilion snapper.  That’s 90 percent of my fishery right now, 9 

what I do, is the vermilions and the white snapper.  We’re not 10 

seeing the numbers. 11 

 12 

In Florida and Alabama, the bag limit on the books still remains 13 

at ten and as you know, we’re held to the most restrictive of 14 

the two bag limits and I would like to see the Gulf Council move 15 

forward and make the bag limit ten fish per person on the whole 16 

recreational fishery in the Gulf. 17 

 18 

I would love to see the Gulf Council come forward and be 19 

proactive on the red porgies, what we call the white snappers.  20 

There’s an effort shift taking place right now.  We don’t have 21 

the other fish and the vermilions are down and we’re going to 22 

shift to the white snapper. 23 

 24 

I know it’s not even a fish that’s really managed on a stock 25 

assessment, but it would certainly be proactive to put a bag 26 

limit of ten fish per person.  Ten white snappers is enough 27 

mixed in with the other fish.  We can sit out there and catch 28 

them unlimited right now and there’s no sense in that and a ten 29 

fish bag limit would be great for us. 30 

 31 

I would love to see the grouper season open at the end of red 32 

snapper season.  I know it’s slated for a bump this year and get 33 

a little bit longer season.  Let it run from January 31 to the 34 

end of the year if it is or whenever the ACL is reached. 35 

 36 

I was listening to the debate on essential fish habitat and any 37 

structure in the Gulf is essential fish habitat, especially the 38 

oil rigs.  I heard some talk about the coral that grows on the 39 

rigs.  We fish off of Alabama, where there’s a lot of artificial 40 

reefs.  All the artificial reefs around the oil rigs are 41 

populated with a lot of fish. 42 

 43 

If you fish on the bottom around the rigs, you catch a lot of 44 

juvenile snapper and so over the years, it has kind of led me to 45 

believe that the fish are spawning around these rigs.  Anytime 46 

you get that many fish together, they’re going to make baby fish 47 

and that’s just kind of what fish do. 48 
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 1 

The coral that grows on the rigs, I heard them talking about it 2 

being damaged by the cleaning and the working of the rigs and 3 

that coral, at least it had a place to grow.  If it releases 4 

spores one time, that puts more spores in the Gulf and I hate to 5 

see it cleaned off the rigs and I hate to see them when they 6 

blow the rigs and I hate to lose that coral.  I know it’s a 7 

protected species, but at least the coral got to produce one 8 

time and make spores and make more coral.  Thank you. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Randy.  We have a question from Kay. 11 

 12 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Randy, on the vermilion, when you’re out fishing 13 

them, and it’s my understanding that vermilion really aren’t 14 

aggressive like red snapper and sometimes they just don’t bite 15 

and you’re on top of them, but is there any way or have you seen 16 

where maybe perhaps that’s the case or is your machine just not 17 

marking any fish? 18 

 19 

MR. BOGGS:  Before red snapper season opened, I started fishing, 20 

and a lot of the guys here will know where I’m talking about, 21 

but I started fishing on the east end of Rusty’s Ridge, which is 22 

a lot of the boats out of Destin can almost get there, the west 23 

end of the Timber Holes, which is off of Pensacola, in 160 or 24 

180 feet. 25 

 26 

I started fishing the rocks there and those rocks normally hold 27 

two to three to four-pound fish consistently, the bigger size 28 

vermilions, in the 160-foot range.  This year, we caught four or 29 

five sixty-inch fish, but we caught a lot of juvenile fish, but 30 

we did not catch the bigger ones. 31 

 32 

We went on down south of there and tried to fish in 240 and we 33 

still didn’t catch the size fish we need.  I worked my way all 34 

the way back down toward Mobile and off of Dauphin Island and 35 

that’s predominantly a snapper area in there and there’s a few 36 

of the larger wrecks and reefs in there that do hold the 37 

vermilion snapper and we caught a few down in there, but the 38 

catch of snapper to vermilion was so high that I had to leave 39 

that area. 40 

 41 

Just overall, from listening to some of the guys talk, the 42 

commercial guys generally fish a lot further south and a lot 43 

deeper than what we do and so they may not be seeing the 44 

deepwater reductions, but localized reduction on anything that 45 

we can get to on day trips on the charters -- We’re seeing a 46 

marked decline in the fish and with a marked decline in the 47 

vermilion snapper, then we target something else to put in the 48 
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box and so that goes to the red porgies. 1 

 2 

I know it’s not a managed species, but it certainly wouldn’t 3 

hurt to put a ten fish limit on them.  It’s not going to hurt 4 

what the people take off the charterboats and take home. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Randy.  Next up is Jim Zurbrick, to 7 

be followed by Brent Casey. 8 

 9 

MR. JIM ZURBRICK:  Hello.  I’m Jim Zurbrick and I also am a 10 

public fisherman.  It’s a word we’re starting to use because it 11 

seems that people can’t get their arms around that people that 12 

don’t fish still have a right to that resource.  They have the 13 

same exact right as a guy that spends $100 million and buys a 14 

fleet of boats to go out recreationally and take out everybody 15 

that he knows. 16 

 17 

That eighty-four-year-old woman and that four-year-old kid and 18 

the guy on death row who wants a grouper sandwich before they 19 

fry him has a right to that resource.  Why is it that some 20 

council members and legislators seem to think that that 3 21 

percent has a greater right to those fish than everybody else?  22 

Where does that come from? 23 

 24 

Is it because they spend more money, which is arguable?  I don’t 25 

know that when we get done with the economic data, but by 26 

itself, everyone is entitled to that resource equally. 27 

 28 

In Corpus Christi, I heard -- I wasn’t there and I attend many 29 

of the meetings, but I heard that the council was pretty much 30 

read the riot act that Congress was upset with you all.  They 31 

have a 13 percent approval rating and I wouldn’t put much 32 

credence in that.  33 

 34 

You folks have over a 50 percent approval rating and I feel 35 

comfortable in saying that and I think that’s pretty good in 36 

today’s climate, where you can make very few people happy. 37 

 38 

The allocation issue, how could you go forward?  I heard that 39 

there was a motion where somebody actually said to take 10 40 

percent of the commercial quota and everything else for the 41 

increases.  I thought to myself that that couldn’t be happening 42 

from somebody that could be put on this panel, because that’s 43 

scary.  That’s not where we’re at here. 44 

 45 

Let’s look at it logically and we’ll work it out and just 46 

remember that 3 percent and that’s 3.  I can’t even hold ninety-47 

seven fingers up over here and that’s the difference is in the 48 
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public and also, sector separation. 1 

 2 

You’ve got to applaud the guys.  I was involved and I was in the 3 

charter business for years and that’s how I used to come up here 4 

in front of you, up until four years ago when I went commercial 5 

fishing full time.  I have two boats and I employ two full-time 6 

crews and I’m one of them. 7 

 8 

If you get a close-up look at these hands, it’s a rough business 9 

and we have full-time jobs and that’s why when a gentleman comes 10 

up and talks about he didn’t get any fish, everybody got what 11 

they historically caught and it was the fairest system.  You 12 

couldn’t have thought of a better system. 13 

 14 

Did we think we wanted it?  No, we all were against it, the VMS 15 

and increased law enforcement, but as we’re into the system now, 16 

we’re bringing the fish to market and we’re going to catch that 17 

quota now that the oil is gone or the bulk of it. 18 

 19 

With closing, sector separation, let’s let these guys who want 20 

to be accountable and the data -- Think of the data you’re going 21 

to get from the recreational sector with the VMS reporting and 22 

dockside enforcement being there.  You’re going to get some 23 

great data. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Jim, you need to wrap it up.  Thank you very 26 

much.  Next up is Brent Casey, to be followed by Russell Nelson. 27 

 28 

MR. BRENT CASEY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  With your 29 

permission, could I --  30 

 31 

(There is a break in the audio recording.) 32 

 33 

MR. CASEY:  You just seen how many people stood up and shook 34 

hands and we got a laugh and it proves one thing.  Even though 35 

we have differences, we’re all here for the same purpose.  We’re 36 

united in fixing our Gulf and fixing the problems in our Gulf. 37 

 38 

My main concern is the pulling and the removal of the platforms 39 

in our Gulf.  These platforms now are artificial reefs, these 40 

depleted platforms.  I can’t stand to hear the term that they’re 41 

an oil rig.  I’ve heard the term that they’re leftover junk from 42 

the oil companies, but I’ve got one thing to say.  One man’s 43 

junk is another man’s treasure and these platforms have turned 44 

into our treasure. 45 

 46 

Yesterday, the Charter Fishermen’s Association, and I’m one of 47 

the advisors for the rigs to reef for the Charter Fishermen’s 48 
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Association, but we had a meeting, a conference call, with the 1 

National Advisory of Fisheries and BOEMRE and BSEE and NOAA. 2 

 3 

I want to share with you all the confusion that’s going on.  4 

From one agency to the other, getting to the top, no one could 5 

set and tell exactly how many platforms are being pulled.  We 6 

were told in the Port Aransas area, where I live at, I’m losing 7 

everything. 8 

 9 

In the next nine months, there will be no platforms left.  We 10 

have a mud sand bottom and we don’t have any habitat and that’s 11 

all we have to work with. 12 

 13 

They tried to tell us that there’s only eleven of these 14 

permitted to be pulled and five of them to be reefed and we know 15 

for a fact that we’ve got twenty-seven of them being pulled as 16 

I’m talking right now.  They are out there pulling these 17 

platforms and they tried to argue with me that no, they’re not 18 

and we haven’t issued any permits. 19 

 20 

We have got to work together, just like everybody has stood up.  21 

We have got to send a message that hey, guys, back off and let’s 22 

take a look at this and if you have this much confusion and not 23 

knowing what’s going on in our Gulf, then how can you know that 24 

these platforms are not a reliable source for breeding habitat?  25 

I know I’m out of time and thank you very much for your time and 26 

may God bless. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Brent.  Next up is Russell Nelson, to 29 

be followed by Jeff Miller. 30 

 31 

DR. RUSSELL NELSON:  I am Russell Nelson and I am a fisheries 32 

scientist here representing the Coastal Conservation 33 

Association.  I am not going to take up a great deal of your 34 

time this morning.  We applaud you for moving ahead and we hope 35 

you keep the EFH designation for rigs and reefs on the fast 36 

track.  I think it deserves it and I think it’s an easy thing 37 

that you can accomplish. 38 

 39 

You understand that we did not support sector separation and we 40 

really don’t even see why this council keeps -- Why it keeps 41 

sticking on.  You’ve had it on your agenda for three or four 42 

years now and moved back and moved away and came back. 43 

 44 

There’s broad-spread opposition to the idea.  It’s not going to 45 

make it any easier to count fish.  If the sectors were separated 46 

right now, MRIP would be counting the fish and that’s not going 47 

to change. 48 
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 1 

Many of the people who are looking at sector separation are 2 

those who are both commercial and recreational or charter 3 

fishermen and they have been looking to see how they can utilize 4 

their IFQ red snapper shares to enhance the charter side of 5 

their business and that, in and of itself, is probably a good 6 

statement as to the relative economic value of the two sectors, 7 

commercial versus recreational, but you have got a five-year 8 

review of red snapper coming up. 9 

 10 

One of the things that we have been asking you to look at is 11 

look at ways to transfer between sectors.  That might be a lot 12 

easier way to go about solving this problem than to keep pushing 13 

down the sector separation road. 14 

 15 

We are appreciative that after you agreed in 2008 to take up 16 

grouper allocation that it is actually moving forward and on the 17 

agenda and we are seeing some efforts at putting together the 18 

science that’s available to give you an understanding of the 19 

economic value. 20 

 21 

Those options, we think you should see one option that says the 22 

commercial sector gets 100 percent of the allocation and another 23 

that says the recreational sector gets 100 percent and get the 24 

basic value to the nation of both of those outliers and then 25 

start working your way to the middle, to where you think it 26 

makes sense. 27 

 28 

As for the specific grouper deal, I think that you passed the 29 

motion to have an option to look at incremental increases based 30 

on changes in ACL and you did that for gag and I think it 31 

certainly makes sense to include it as an option for the red and 32 

black grouper as well.  I’m not saying that CCA endorses that 33 

approach, but I think all the tools that you could have at your 34 

hands, you should have at your hands.  That’s about it, unless 35 

you have any questions.  Thanks. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Russell.  Next up is Jeff Miller, to 38 

be followed by Donny Waters. 39 

 40 

MR. JEFF MILLER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and council.  Good 41 

afternoon.  My name is Jeff Miller and my family has a boat 42 

dealership in Ocala and I’m currently the state chairman of CCA 43 

Florida.  I will make my comments as brief as possible, but I 44 

have a few topics that I would like to offer our position and my 45 

position on. 46 

 47 

In regards to sector separation, I am sure that all of you are 48 
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aware that CCA opposes this issue.  We view the charterboat 1 

captains as our friends and partners and have no desire to cause 2 

them any harm.  I personally see them as providing another 3 

avenue that allows recreational fishermen the opportunity to 4 

enjoy this outdoor activity. 5 

 6 

I liken it to the fact that I can drive my vehicle to the store 7 

or I have the option of renting a taxi to go to the store.  If I 8 

choose to hire a charter captain, I am renting his vessel and 9 

hiring him to drive that vessel and give me the expertise, but I 10 

am still a recreational angler with the same limitations or bag 11 

limit as if I’m on my own boat or a friend’s boat. 12 

 13 

We do not see any benefit to dividing private boats and for-hire 14 

boats and causing competition due to sector separation and the 15 

possibility of being able to use one means of transportation 16 

while the other is closed. 17 

 18 

We do understand their concern in regards to federal permits and 19 

state regulations and would like to see the council address this 20 

issue and eliminate this problem that they face. 21 

 22 

The topic of allocation has been discussed mainly in regards to 23 

red snapper and gag grouper and we know that there will be some 24 

heated arguments on this issue.  We ask that the council use the 25 

economic data that you have and base all future allocations on 26 

economic value, social, and conservation effects. 27 

 28 

I personally would like to see the commercial allocation left 29 

where it is in regards to pounds of fish in regards to gag 30 

grouper and red snapper and all of the additional TAC added to 31 

the recreational allocation, as this would result in the largest 32 

increase in economic benefit and get us to a longer open season, 33 

but CCA urges the council to consider maximizing the economic 34 

benefits of these resources to this nation. 35 

 36 

In regards to the gas and oil platforms, I urge the council to 37 

do the right thing and protect these valuable habitat structures 38 

and the many fish that populate them.  This council should find 39 

a way to fast track this issue and work to minimize the loss of 40 

habitat and the unnecessary loss of many fish. 41 

 42 

CCA is working with our partners in the Center for Coastal 43 

Conservation to obtain a moratorium and stop the senseless 44 

destruction of habitat and the loss of a large amount of 45 

assorted fish. 46 

 47 

I hear a lot of discussions regarding regulations, rules, 48 
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classifications, quotas, and it seems like there are acronyms 1 

for some of the acronyms, but all of these can get in the way of 2 

common sense. 3 

 4 

In all aspects of life, we need structure and boundaries, but 5 

all of these have to be kept in balance using common sense.  I 6 

would like to see this council apply some of this when dealing 7 

with these very important issues and not get caught up in 8 

paralysis by analysis.  Thank you. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:   Thank you, Jeff.  We have a question for you 11 

from Kay. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Jeff, in your discussions with your organization, 14 

have you discussed ways to extend the season for your private 15 

recreational fishermen so that perhaps those that fish all week 16 

can fish on the weekend or vice versa or whatever those 17 

mechanisms may be? 18 

 19 

MR. MILLER:  We have discussed many different options and I 20 

don’t know of anything that we have taken off the table and let 21 

me put it that way.  We have been in favor of increasing the 22 

minimum size limit. 23 

 24 

However, by doing that, if you increase mortality discards, then 25 

you have wasted fish and so that isn’t always the answer.  We 26 

have, in many cases, been in favor of reducing the bag limit.  27 

We’re trying to get more days on the water, whether it’s for one 28 

fish, two fish, or five fish.  I think that’s what provides the 29 

economic benefit, is gassing up the boat and putting the family 30 

together and going out and having the opportunity to keep 31 

whatever number of fish is feasible without hurting the species. 32 

 33 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Have you discussed fish tags? 34 

 35 

MR. MILLER:  We have had some discussions with them.  Again, I’m 36 

not going to say that we have taken them off the table by any 37 

means.  It would depend on how it’s laid out and the complexity 38 

of it, but in our private discussions, we have not taken those 39 

off the table.   40 

 41 

We would be interested in seeing it thought out and see the 42 

final outcome and maybe have some ideas to tweak it a little 43 

bit, but, again, we’re looking for the most days on the water so 44 

that kids and grandkids can enjoy it and so that the economy can 45 

benefit from it. 46 

 47 

MR. PERRET:  Jeff, thank you and I think one of the things I 48 
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understood you to say was we need to improve cooperation and 1 

coordination between the federal system and the state fishery 2 

management system and have you got any suggestions on how we 3 

might accomplish that? 4 

 5 

MR. MILLER:  If I could come up with that, I could get out of 6 

the boat business, I could promise you. 7 

 8 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you. 9 

 10 

MR. MILLER:  The thing there is that we see sector separation 11 

being requested by some of these headboat captains as a way to 12 

guarantee their future because they’re concerned about these 13 

conflicts with permits and regulations and I understand that, 14 

but maybe we need to look at fixing the problems with 15 

regulations and permits instead of imposing a sector separation 16 

and splitting us up.  We’re all recreational anglers and we 17 

don’t see a future in splitting us up and dividing it. 18 

 19 

MR. PEARCE:  One more quick comment.  First of all, I want to 20 

thank CCA for all the hard work you guys put in and the thought 21 

process you put into the fisheries.  I really appreciate that.  22 

We’ll agree to disagree on some items, but that’s the way it is.  23 

Do you have any comments on how we can handle regulatory 24 

discards? 25 

 26 

MR. MILLER:  We’ve had a lot of discussion on that outside in 27 

the hallway and everything, because those discards, 28 

unfortunately, are being counted and it’s considered in the 29 

quotas, but they’re just being wasted and turned into fish food, 30 

which is a shame. 31 

 32 

The South Atlantic did make a move last week that we were in 33 

favor of in dropping the minimum size to keep those fish, red 34 

snapper, from being thrown over and wasted.  I’m not saying that 35 

that’s a fix-all in every case, but we agree that that is a 36 

huge, huge chunk. 37 

 38 

If we can get them to quit blowing up reefs and killing the fish 39 

there and we can get some of these fish put to use that are 40 

being discarded, I think it would be an awful lot easier to get 41 

that total allowable catch increased every year and improve our 42 

fishery instead of having the situations that we have. 43 

 44 

MR. PEARCE:  I agree and let’s work together to get that solved. 45 

 46 

MR. MILLER:  Thank you and we appreciate your time.  Thank you, 47 

everybody. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Jeff.  Next up is Donny Waters, to be 2 

followed by Scott Hickman. 3 

 4 

MR. DONALD WATERS:  My name is Donald Waters, a fisherman from 5 

Pensacola, Florida.  I want to give congratulations to Mr. 6 

Teehan, Mr. McIlwain, Mr. McKnight, and Mr. Shipp.  I hope you 7 

all enjoy your retirements. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  For the record, Dr. Shipp is not leaving the 10 

council, as far as I know. 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  Maybe you know something we don’t.  13 

 14 

MR. WATERS:  I need to use my minutes wisely here.  I have a lot 15 

to say.  When we bring in new members to this council, I hear 16 

arguments that were argued and settled eight or nine or ten 17 

years ago.  I think that these new members should bring some 18 

kind of education. 19 

 20 

The vermilion things that I heard argued was in a document 21 

published by this council and put out by this council in 2004.  22 

Most of these council members wasn’t here in 2004 and they turn 23 

around and ask these questions and people come to this table or 24 

this podium and they argue about things that we talked about and 25 

dealt with and beat in the head and buried and hoped they would 26 

grow daisies in Amendment 1 and it’s sad, but it’s true. 27 

 28 

Again, I’m going to have to look at this council and say I see 29 

no representation for the commercial reef fish fishermen on this 30 

council, none.  There has never been one and I don’t see one on 31 

the way and where is he at?   32 

 33 

This council spends half of its time dealing with reef fish and 34 

commercial reef fish on top of that.  An active reef fish 35 

fisherman on this council I would say would bring some character 36 

to this thing. 37 

 38 

I appreciate you all bringing in some of the permit ladies in 39 

this.  It’s nice to put a face to some of the people that you’ve 40 

spent hours talking to on the phone, but you’ve never known. 41 

 42 

I also heard, in the economic value presentation yesterday, that 43 

the economic money for gas, the trailers, the boats, the 44 

whatever, add -- Take a fish from the commercial and it wouldn’t 45 

add any more money to the economic benefit of this country, 46 

because there’s X number of dollars to be spent in recreational, 47 

whether it’s recreational camping, recreational fishing, or 48 
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other recreational activities. 1 

 2 

I think the recreational has a lot more access to a lot of other 3 

fish, such as red drum and speckled trout, that is not on the 4 

table for the commercial fishery and if you was to sit here and 5 

to listen to what’s at this public testimony, if it wasn’t for 6 

one more red snapper or half a red snapper or one more red 7 

grouper that the recreational fishery would fall to the bottom 8 

of the ocean.  This is not true. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Donny, you need to wrap it up.  Your time is up. 11 

 12 

MR. WATERS:  I didn’t make the last meeting and can I have three 13 

more? 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The answer to that is no. 16 

 17 

MR. WATERS:  Okay, but I do have one more thing that I would 18 

like to say, Mr. Gill. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Very quickly, sir. 21 

 22 

MR. WATERS:  On reallocation, we’ve made some deals and we’ve 23 

made our deal that 2.1 million -- Everybody asks me, what if we 24 

get past 2.1 million?  I would consider some other options, but 25 

I’ve got another question.  What if we fall back down below 2.1 26 

million? 27 

 28 

My other statement is that I heard at the roundtable yesterday 29 

was the recreational didn’t overfish and I have to agree with 30 

that man.  They was given the time and they obeyed by the law 31 

and it is NMFS that is not doing their job by enforcing the laws 32 

that they are given to deal with.  I would be happy to answer 33 

any questions. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Donny. 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The red snapper review, you heard this council 38 

talk about combining some amendments and doing scoping and 39 

looking at allocations, reallocations.  Not a whole lot was said 40 

about the red snapper review and do you think the red snapper 41 

review should be put in with all of this mix to address all of 42 

the issues at one time? 43 

 44 

MR. WATERS:  I don’t agree with the combination of the two 45 

amendments.  It creates controversy and it creates basically -- 46 

It just creates havoc.  The red snapper review, my idea of it 47 

was to look at it and is it working and is it bringing fish back 48 
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and yes. 1 

 2 

Allocations, I got into this at 9.12 million pounds and a man 3 

upset me a little bit when he said I was given my allocation.  4 

My allocation was cut in half after I made the deal and I bought 5 

back -- I bought two other fishing boats out and all of this was 6 

addressed in the original plan. 7 

 8 

It says we’re going to reduce the fleet and we’re going to do 9 

these things and all of this has been published in papers that’s 10 

been put out by this council.  Read some of the papers that the 11 

organizations that you are representing has put out.   12 

 13 

Go back to 2003 and go back to 2005 and do some homework, 14 

please, because a lot of this has been addressed and we’ve done 15 

and kicked this dog from one end of the table to another and now 16 

we bring new members in and we need fresh blood and we need 17 

fresh ideas and I’m not criticizing any new member, but these 18 

are things that we’re just beating again and again and again. 19 

 20 

I know that I’m an old man and I’ve been beating at this council 21 

since 1985, but when we reallocated the first time, there was 22 

another man named Johnny Greene sitting at the table and he took 23 

it from 66/34 to 51/49 in this same town and so I remember these 24 

things. 25 

 26 

DR. SHIPP:  Donny, what’s your take on the value of the 27 

platforms in your particular case? 28 

 29 

MR. WATERS:  Mr. Shipp, I think any -- I think there’s ups and 30 

downs and I look at opinions of yours, about our fisheries, and 31 

I consider a platform an artificial reef and then we also know 32 

what Mr. Cowen says and I don’t agree with either one of you on 33 

it. 34 

 35 

I’m somewhere in between.  I think the fish are counted through 36 

groundfish surveys and larvae -- Trawl and larvae samples and 37 

stuff like that and so the fish that do spawn on the platforms 38 

are accounted for in some way or the other, but I agree. 39 

 40 

The more habitat that you can -- If you could make -- I know 41 

this would be like death to shrimpers, but if you could make 42 

that and spread those fish out so far, it would make it look 43 

like there wasn’t a lot of fish out there if you could spread it 44 

like peanut butter across the thing and make it harder for 45 

everybody to catch a fish. 46 

 47 

It would take you longer to catch your quota and everybody would 48 
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be happy and it’s just that there’s a lot of fish out there and 1 

our plans are working.  We’re catching fish at a faster rate, 2 

but if you go down to someplace where there’s no fish and you 3 

can fish all day and hope you catch a fish, but you’re not 4 

filling the quota, everybody is happy. 5 

 6 

It’s a damned-if-you-do-and-damned-if-you-don’t situation, but I 7 

do agree that the artificial reef habitat -- You know that I 8 

participated in the Alabama artificial reefs and I’ve built a 9 

lot of them and I think they’re good and they spread out the 10 

fish and I think it gives juvenile fish a place to live and a 11 

place for habitat. 12 

 13 

I would love to see a lot more very low relief artificial reefs 14 

to protect the zero to one-year-old fish, such as oyster shells 15 

and crushed brick, because I think these are some of the fish 16 

that we really, really need to protect. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Donny.  Next up is Scott Hickman, to 19 

be followed by David Walker. 20 

 21 

MR. SCOTT HICKMAN:  Mr. Chairman and council, thank you for 22 

hearing me today.  I’m Captain Scott Hickman from Galveston, 23 

Texas.  I’m a twenty-five-plus-year professional taxi boat 24 

driver, as some have said here today, and the current taxi boat 25 

driver business plan that we’re operating underneath doesn’t 26 

work.  It’s not working for the fleet. 27 

 28 

I hear things from people who said they used to be charterboat 29 

captains, but I can tell you that the charterboat captains in my 30 

hometown, where there’s about seventy permitted boats, are not 31 

happy with the current system. 32 

 33 

This council has put up some great ideas and have worked with 34 

the fishermen to look at new business plans and new data 35 

collection methods, like iSnapper.  Our fleet wants to have an 36 

accountable, flexible, sustainable business plan so we can 37 

continue to provide access for the millions and millions of non-38 

boating owning -- Many of them are boat owning. 39 

 40 

I hear the CCA here today saying some things and the majority of 41 

the guys who fish on my boat are guys with bay boats.  They 42 

don’t own these big boats that can run fifty or sixty miles 43 

offshore.  The majority of my guys are CCA members and they need 44 

me to get that access to these fish out in that deepwater and 45 

that’s what I provide, but the current business plan doesn’t 46 

work for me or my fellow captains in my home port. 47 

 48 
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Let’s move forward with this Amendment 39 and let’s flesh out 1 

all these ideas and let’s look at these pilot programs and let’s 2 

push forward with a good data collection logbook program for the 3 

charterboats as soon as possible and let’s get something done. 4 

 5 

I greatly appreciate the work that you all have done in the last 6 

five years on the red snapper rebuilding plan.  The guys at home 7 

are thrilled and we’re catching more and bigger red snapper than 8 

anybody can ever remember.  You all are doing a great job and 9 

keep it up and let’s find a business plan for the charter fleet.  10 

Thank you. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Scott.  Next up is David Walker, to 13 

be followed by Bart Niquet. 14 

 15 

MR. DAVID WALKER:  This is David Walker, a commercial fisherman 16 

from Alabama.  IFQs as a management tool have been enormously 17 

successful at achieving our management goals.  I think that we 18 

need to continue exploring options to develop other successful 19 

IFQ management plans for vermilion, triggerfish, and amberjack. 20 

 21 

I think you can just let the fishermen develop it.  Let them 22 

decide on it, if that’s what they want.  If they don’t want it, 23 

then the vote will demonstrate that. 24 

 25 

In order to sustain the livelihood of historical dependent 26 

fishermen, I do advocate IFQs with all of the remaining reef 27 

fish.  I think it will help maintain the ecological balance.  I 28 

think those who are substantially dependent and who have 29 

historically targeted vermilion snapper will support a good IFQ 30 

plan. 31 

 32 

I talked with an opponent who was for the short term opposed to 33 

vermilion IFQ and the feedback was, he said, David, I don’t want 34 

any vermilion snapper IFQ at this time, but once I build up some 35 

catch history, I will support them. 36 

 37 

If you remember, it was the same position of those non-38 

supporters of the red snapper IFQ, the groupers, and the 39 

tilefish.  The causation remains the same.  The concern is 40 

historical stakeholders will be diluted by means of persistently 41 

allowing overcapitalization to bloom. 42 

 43 

Some of the objectives of the 2008 control date were to avoid 44 

vessels redirecting effort, fishing efforts, and intensify 45 

fishing efforts.  They enhance fishing mortality, they overfish 46 

stocks, they create derbies, safety at sea issues, regulatory 47 

discards, user conflicts, devastate ecological balance, 48 
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overcapitalization, market gluts, financial damages, and 1 

increase restrictive regulations. 2 

 3 

As a result of continuing to delay sustainable regulations, it’s 4 

inevitable that fishermen will inherit a detrimental outcome.  5 

Depletion in the face of uncertainty is going to create setbacks 6 

in optimum yield and circumvent economic benefits. 7 

 8 

I’m alarmed about the present and future uncertainty.  Since the 9 

2010 oil disaster, vermilion snapper have been temporarily 10 

displaced, elevating my concerns further.  The data 11 

demonstrating the change in CPUE tells me that overharvesting 12 

has already begun to manifest. 13 

 14 

I would exercise caution on the best available scientific data 15 

on vermilion snapper at this time, until the benchmark study is 16 

complete.  The burden of proof will be available at that time. 17 

 18 

On reallocation, I want to make sure that the commercial fishing 19 

industry gets a more comprehensive economic study and then the 20 

last thing I would like to touch on is aboard my fishing vessel, 21 

a National Marine Fisheries observer made the comment at the 22 

galley table that she would like to combine all the GPS readings 23 

she collected and make a book to sell to pay off her student 24 

loans. 25 

 26 

I disagreed with that statement and I don’t appreciate it 27 

either.  Possibly they could keep it to degrees and minutes and 28 

I support sector separation. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you very much.  Your time is up and thank 31 

you, sir.  Next up is Bart Niquet, to be followed by Kerry 32 

Hurst. 33 

 34 

MR. BART NIQUET:  I’m Bart Niquet and I own two fishing vessels.  35 

One is a longliner and the other one is a bandit boat.  I’m glad 36 

to be here to talk to you.  When it comes down to it, I’m 37 

against what you’re proposing for the gag grouper.  The 38 

commercial fishing took a hell of a lick and we deserve to have 39 

equal raise when it’s raised and we don’t need to give any quota 40 

to any entity that’s overfishing and is not accountable. 41 

 42 

When it comes to the IFQ program, it’s worked and the way it’s 43 

set up, it works real well.  The leasing program part of it, if 44 

you don’t believe it’s working, you should go to that restaurant 45 

we went to last night and he leased every one of those poundage 46 

for those fish.  It was a hell of a meal and it was a good meal 47 

and he said he couldn’t operate without it. 48 
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 1 

He’s got six restaurants, I understand, and boats at each one of 2 

them that he furnishes the IFQ for, so they can catch fish for 3 

his restaurants.  It’s working and it’s working well so don’t 4 

mess with it. 5 

 6 

When I got out of the Navy in 1946, you could come from Mobile 7 

Bay and go west of the river and you couldn’t find any place to 8 

fish until you got to the Texas coast.  If you look on your 9 

charts, you’ll see there’s very little natural bottom off of 10 

Louisiana until you get to thirty or forty fathoms. 11 

 12 

Now, you can get west of the river and you can’t run two miles 13 

without running into some kind of bottom and it may be trash 14 

that’s been jettisoned or it may be an old oil rig that nobody 15 

is fishing with or it may be stuff that fell off of a boat 16 

that’s going that way, but there’s plenty of fishing there now 17 

off the coast of Louisiana. 18 

 19 

We need to save those artificial reefs, whether you call them 20 

oil rigs or whether you call them boxcars or bunches of tires 21 

that somebody puts down.  Off of Panama City, there are a lot of 22 

chicken coops and when we pick that stuff up, you’re really 23 

going to hurt the fishing.  Thank you. 24 

 25 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you, Bart.  Any questions?  Next up is Steve 26 

Tomeny.  Excuse me.  It’s Kerry Hurst, followed by Steve Tomeny. 27 

 28 

MR. KERRY HURST:  Good afternoon.  My name is Kerry Hurst and 29 

I’ve been in the fishing industry for over twenty-five years out 30 

of Destin, Florida.  I’m currently the captain of the Fishing 31 

Vessel Hallelujah and I have been fishing for Ariel Seafoods for 32 

the last twelve years. 33 

 34 

I would like to talk to you today about my concerns and hopes 35 

for the present and future of the vermilion fishery.  My 36 

concerns are that this year I’m not catching the vermilions that 37 

I normally catch. 38 

 39 

I fish from Apalachicola all the way to the Mississippi River 40 

and they’re just not there this year and I don’t know if that’s 41 

because of the oil spill or the cycle that the fish are in or 42 

overfishing.  I am not sure, but I am very concerned about that.  43 

Our production is way down. 44 

 45 

My next concern is that if we remain an open-access fishery and 46 

we go to a rebuilding program for the vermilions that if the 47 

quota is lowered that it might create a derby-style fishery and 48 
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I’m very much against going to a derby-style fishery for the 1 

vermilions.  If we have two or three months where we catch that 2 

quota and then we’ve got to discard the fish the rest of the 3 

year, that’s not good also. 4 

 5 

My hopes are for an IFQ fishery, a sustainable fishery, one that 6 

we will see rapid rebuilding with effort reduction.  I don’t 7 

like to talk about effort reduction, but when you talk about a 8 

sustainable fishery plan, effort reduction is very important, 9 

just as much important as the size of the quota and the size 10 

limit of the fish. 11 

 12 

The next thing that I would like to talk about is the IFQ 13 

fishery would also bring a sustainable market to the fishery.  I 14 

would much rather catch a vermilion for $3.50 a pound than $2.50 15 

or $2.00 a pound anytime. 16 

 17 

I just want to make the most of what we have and I am for the 18 

IFQ fishery.  The saying that we have on our boat this year is 19 

let’s fish smarter and not harder and thank you for your time. 20 

 21 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you, Kerry.  Any questions?  Thank you.  Next 22 

is Steve Tomeny, followed by Mark Tryon. 23 

 24 

MR. STEVE TOMENY:  I’m Steve Tomeny and I’ve been charter 25 

fishing for about thirty years, mostly out of Port Fourchon, 26 

Louisiana.  I am running two large headboat/charterboats.  We’re 27 

in the headboat program, mostly running private charters these 28 

days. 29 

 30 

I would like to say that I’ve never been a taxi driver or a bus 31 

driver and if I was, the forty-day bus driver season is a really 32 

tough way to make a living.  We’re losing trips and right now, 33 

I’ve cancelled -- I think this Friday I’ve got all my customers 34 

about on the cancel list.  They’re watching the weather and you 35 

never make up a day of a charter that you lose, but in the red 36 

snapper season this short, you don’t get that guy back next 37 

month or next -- It’s next year, if you’re lucky. 38 

 39 

We’re looking for some flexibility and we’ve talked about it and 40 

I’ve talked about it before.  We’ve worked on the headboat pilot 41 

programs and things and we think some of that will give us some 42 

flexibility to offer people another day that they can catch 43 

snapper further down the line. 44 

 45 

I would like to see sector separation progress.  I’ve been a 46 

pretty strong advocate for that type of a system.  I think we’ve 47 

been separated and I think we need to be -- We’re asking to be 48 
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accountable and put some good electronic accountability measures 1 

on our boats.  We want to count our fish and we also think that 2 

the future will -- We will reap some benefits from it and so 3 

we’re trying to cooperate, at least the group of guys that I’ve 4 

been working with, and we want to continue doing that. 5 

 6 

The accountability changes is complicated and it’s tough and 7 

it’s thorny.  I do think that in the red snapper especially -- 8 

I’m with a lot of the guys and I’m a red snapper shareholder 9 

also and I would like to see the level that this thing started 10 

at, at the 9.l2, be reached, and I think you’re going to find 11 

some very agreeable allocation splits being able to be made.  12 

That was the gist of most of my stuff today and thank you. 13 

 14 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you, Steve.  Any questions for Steve?  Mark, 15 

you’re up, followed by Chris Niquet. 16 

 17 

MR. MARK TRYON:  My name is Mark Tryon and I’m from Gulf Breeze, 18 

Florida.  I run a small twenty-five-and-a-half-foot commercial 19 

rod and reel vessel, the No Nonsense 3.  I participate in the 20 

red snapper IFQ fishery and to a lesser extent, the grouper and 21 

tilefish IFQ fishery.  I’ve got nineteen years commercial 22 

fishing experience, twelve years with blue crab and fifteen 23 

years also in the charter industry and so I’ve got a fairly 24 

diverse background. 25 

 26 

Initially, I was allocated 2,100 pounds, back at the inception 27 

of the program, for red snapper, which wasn’t enough for me to 28 

be a viable business.  Over time, I purchased the equivalent of, 29 

in today’s poundage, about 19,000 additional pounds in 30 

increments anywhere from sixty-seven pounds to 7,400 pounds. 31 

 32 

To do this, I utilized my home equity line of credit and I’ve 33 

invested over $200,000 in the fishery and presently, my balance 34 

due at the bank is over $100,000 related to this.  My 35 

expectation of buying into the fishery was I was going to follow 36 

the rules that were set by the government, which would help us 37 

rebuild the fishery. 38 

 39 

The fishery has been rebuilt and not fully rebuilt, but in 40 

return, I expected to be treated fairly for the sacrifices that 41 

I’ve made regarding matters of allocation and so some of the 42 

things that came up yesterday, I had heard they were coming down 43 

the pipe and to be quite frank, I was quite disturbed at some of 44 

the things that I heard yesterday.  It was like worse than 45 

expected. 46 

 47 

My position is that I don’t think there should be any 48 
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reallocation efforts made without better data and certainly no 1 

reallocation in favor of the recreational sector until the 2 

recreational sector takes serious, tangible steps towards 3 

accountability. 4 

 5 

One last thing I want to make a point of, which there’s been 6 

some good points made about the 3 percent and the 97 percent and 7 

I’m not going to go into that.  Those guys expressed that well, 8 

but one of the things that we should consider is imported 9 

seafood versus domestic and we’ve made some strides in clawing 10 

back that market share from the imports. 11 

 12 

That’s a consequence if we start taking allocation and moving it 13 

into the recreational sector.  We’re going to be forcing the 14 

consumer to substitute imported products for domestic and I 15 

think everyone would agree that our domestic -- I think everyone 16 

here would like to see people have more opportunities to buy a 17 

domestic product in terms of seafood and in a lot of other areas 18 

as well and so that’s just one final point I wanted to make.  19 

Thank you. 20 

 21 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you, Mark.  Any questions for Mark?  Thank you, 22 

Mark.  Next is Chris Niquet, followed by Jerry Cummings. 23 

 24 

MR. CHRIS NIQUET:  I’m Chris Niquet from Panama City, Florida.  25 

First, I would like to thank all of the sponsors for the dinner 26 

that we had over at the Salt Rock Restaurant.  It was real nice 27 

and we got to take a little tour of the restaurant.  The owner 28 

was very gracious and showed me everything in the kitchen and 29 

everything. 30 

 31 

He employs about sixty-five people there and he serves 100 32 

percent of all his snapper and all his grouper that are leased 33 

IFQ fish.  He’s got six restaurants and he employs over 360 34 

people and he’s got seventeen boats that fish for him.  He 35 

supplies them all with IFQ shares. 36 

 37 

I don’t know how many people he employs on the boats, but 38 

gentlemen, that’s an absolute example of the IFQ program putting 39 

people to work and not putting them out of business, but putting 40 

them to work. 41 

 42 

On the subject of the recreational people going over their limit 43 

every year, I’m sort of like a fellow I heard over in the hall 44 

the other day.  He said they give us a date of forty days or 45 

thirty days or fifty-two days and they give us a bag limit and 46 

we go fishing and we observe our bag limit and because we don’t 47 

have any real-time data for when we get close to our TAC, we go 48 



55 

 

over. 1 

 2 

That’s not our fault and we’re observing the rules and it’s up 3 

to people right here.  Get your scientists and get them some 4 

kind of real-time data to when they’re getting close, you can 5 

say okay, four days from now your season is over or a week from 6 

now your season is over. 7 

 8 

That way, they stay within their TAC and the TAC builds up and 9 

the available fish build up and the available fish for everybody 10 

builds up, both the commercial and recreational side.  Thank you 11 

for your time and if you’ve got any questions, I would be glad 12 

to answer them. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Chris.  Next up is Jerry Cummings, to 15 

be followed by Dean Cox. 16 

 17 

MR. JERRY CUMMINGS:  Hello, everyone.  My name is Jerry Cummings 18 

and I’m a recreational fisherman from Tampa, Florida.  I 19 

listened to everything everybody has said so far and I want to 20 

say that I think that the sector separation is a very bad idea. 21 

 22 

I was at the workshop in November of 2010 and it wasn’t flying 23 

then and everybody I’ve spoke with since then is against it.  24 

Not one single person have I spoken with that thought it was a 25 

good idea and that’s not just recreational anglers, but that’s 26 

recreational, charter for-hire.  Even one of our prominent area 27 

headboat operators is against it. 28 

 29 

I think that this is going to further divide the fishermen of 30 

the Gulf.  I think it’s a very bad idea.  There’s already 31 

tension between commercial and recreational now and what you’re 32 

going to end up doing is dividing the fishermen even further 33 

amongst themselves and making things worse instead of making it 34 

better.  Thank you for your time. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a question for you, Jerry, from Kay. 37 

 38 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Can you tell me how it’s possible to increase our 39 

private recreational or charter for-hire allocation when the 40 

allocations are gone over every year and there’s no control -- 41 

There’s not enough control out there, no matter what science 42 

we’re going to come up with, to be able to count all of those 43 

fish. 44 

 45 

We need a solution and do you have a solution that will allow us 46 

to keep both of those entities, charter for-hire and private 47 

recreational, so that they can go fish when it’s a good time for 48 
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them to go fish and fish hopefully all year long under the 1 

present TAC?  How do we do that? 2 

 3 

MR. CUMMINGS:  Yes, I have an answer.  Quit spending the money 4 

on frivolous stuff like sector separation and how about spending 5 

it on trying to get real-time data for us from us?  We’re 6 

willing to do it, but it’s up to you all to come up with a way 7 

to get it done. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Jerry.  Next up is Dean Cox, to be 10 

followed by Russell Underwood. 11 

 12 

MR. DEAN COX:  Members of council, my name is Dean Cox, owner of 13 

Cox Fisheries Incorporated, which consists of two commercial 14 

fishing bandit boats.  Currently, both are for sale.  I am a 15 

twenty-five-year veteran of reef fish fishing from the port of 16 

Destin, Florida in both the commercial as well as the charter 17 

for-hire sector. 18 

 19 

I am the yet-to-be-adopted foster child of the Gulf of Mexico 20 

Reef Fish Shareholder’s Alliance.  During my seven-hour drive 21 

from Destin to Tampa, I searched my mind for the best way to 22 

deliver the optimum three-minute speech. 23 

 24 

Should I start with the fact that even though I commercially 25 

fished federally-permitted boats during derby-style fisheries 26 

and helped some boat owners qualify for red snapper shares that 27 

I received no shares of my own? 28 

 29 

Perhaps I should point out that I was one of the innovators of 30 

harvesting vermilion snapper with greater technical efficiency 31 

than previously known and in doing so, introduced a fishery not 32 

previously utilized? 33 

 34 

Should I make the council aware that, contrary to what science 35 

is telling them, the vermilion snapper fishery is in collapse?  36 

Oh, yes, I definitely need to let them know that, I recall 37 

myself thinking. 38 

 39 

Should I point out that my CPUE is at an all-time low?  Should I 40 

express to the council that when I lease red snapper, after 41 

paying my crew, I am netting seventy-five cents per pound?  42 

Most, if not all, of this is consumed by maintaining my boats, 43 

leaving nothing to pay myself. 44 

 45 

Should I point out that the only tool I felt I had left to 46 

survive, the only leverage in the commercial industry that could 47 

possibly have saved my business, was a catch share for vermilion 48 
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snapper and now, from what I’m seeing, it’s too late for that? 1 

 2 

Maybe I should ask the council why the emails that I went to 3 

great lengths to compose, express my concerns, and search for 4 

some answers went unanswered.  Surely one or more of these 5 

diligent council members read my letters and replied, I thought, 6 

and it clearly must have been that the email man was attacked by 7 

a dog the day they all responded. 8 

 9 

My mind raced trying to make sure I would include in my 10 

testimony all the thoughts that consumed me on a daily basis, 11 

thoughts like where do I go from here and will I be able to 12 

continue fishing for a living or has the oil spill and 13 

regulation affected me so I won’t be able to? 14 

 15 

Perhaps the council can help me cipher that, but no, I thought 16 

to myself, I’ll just keep it short and sweet and thank the 17 

council for doing the best they can with the science they have 18 

to work with and ask that they continue to do so.  However, I do 19 

think I need to point out that other than the lovely Emily, who 20 

I banter back and forth with on Facebook, their public outreach 21 

lacks quite a bit to be desired. 22 

 23 

Yes, that’s it, that’s what the council needs.  They need to 24 

subsidize a handsome, six-foot, blond-haired, blue-eyed, soon-25 

to-be-bankrupt fisherman as a public outreach assistant, one 26 

with an amazing sense of humor, of course, one who is 27 

objectionable and can convey in more layman’s terms the need for 28 

all the regulations, so that misinformed, disgruntled fishermen 29 

of all contingencies can make informed business as well as 30 

recreational fishing decisions that they can live with. 31 

 32 

Now the only problem is where to find a six-foot, blond-haired, 33 

blue-eyed, soon-to-be-bankrupt fisherman with an amazing sense 34 

of humor?  Thank you all. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Dean.  We have a question for you 37 

from Pam. 38 

 39 

DR. DANA:  Dean, you’re not blond.  Dean, you and I have had a 40 

number of discussions about your fishery and your situation and 41 

particularly your history in the vermilion species, that 42 

fishery.  You heard a little bit from Captain Harper about his 43 

situation and his sons also fishing the vermilions, but not 44 

having that history, as you do, and that’s kind of why I brought 45 

it up with him. 46 

 47 

We hear both sides of the story and I certainly feel for you and 48 
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the situation you’re faced with, having not had that IFQ for the 1 

red snapper.  I’m just kind of making a statement to illustrate 2 

the fact that there’s very much two passionate sides to the 3 

issue. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Kay, do you have a question for Dean? 6 

 7 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Dean, I believe I heard you say that if this 8 

council does not go with vermilion ITQs that it’s going to 9 

impact you dramatically on your income and can you tell me how 10 

so? 11 

 12 

MR. COX:  It’s already impacted me.  I’m not seeing the 13 

vermilions there were and there’s increased effort in the 14 

vermilion fishery that I’ve not seen as a historical fisherman.  15 

I don’t have snapper and so I can’t offset catching them.  I 16 

didn’t qualify for them. 17 

 18 

I understand that it’s tough if you don’t have landings and you 19 

were in another fishery or something like that.  There’s got to 20 

be a way that we can work something out. 21 

 22 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Your need for wanting the vermilion is because 23 

you’re seeing more and more effort concentrating on them, 24 

because there’s nothing else for the guys to fish for? 25 

 26 

MR. COX:  Not only that, but I’m seeing, I guess, devastation 27 

from either the oil spill or from maybe mismanagement of other 28 

species.   29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Dean.  Next up is Russell Underwood, 31 

to be followed by Mike Jackson. 32 

 33 

MR. RUSSELL UNDERWOOD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I’m Russell 34 

Underwood from Panama City, Florida.  I’ve been fishing for 35 

about forty years, a commercial fisherman.  I’ve been coming to 36 

these meetings since 1985 and I’ve been part of the process and 37 

I appreciate the time to be able to speak. 38 

 39 

Today, I would like to talk about allocation on grouper or 40 

better than that, reallocation.  I sat back in the audience 41 

yesterday and heard about the recommendations from the committee 42 

and we’re only in the second year of an IFQ and we’re in the 43 

rebuilding plan on the gag grouper. 44 

 45 

The first year, we were cut by 80 percent on the gag grouper.  I 46 

didn’t get very many grouper on the grouper allocation and what 47 

fish I’ve got, I had to mostly buy and on very few gag grouper.  48 
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I don’t think anybody owns a whole lot of gag grouper, but the 1 

bottom line is now we’re six months into the second year of the 2 

grouper IFQ and we’re talking about giving up to maybe 12 3 

percent to the recreational side. 4 

 5 

I’ve got a problem with that.  I think at the roundtable 6 

yesterday I spoke my opinion that we need to take this thing 7 

slow and rethink. 8 

 9 

We just had our second economic evaluation of both of the 10 

fisheries and with all due respect, because I’m a working man 11 

and I know other people are too, but with the first economic 12 

plan, we could not understand and it was over the telephone and 13 

I’m proud they came back with another plan. 14 

 15 

I think that second evaluation of the economic value was worse 16 

than the first one and some of the council members spoke of that 17 

yesterday evening and last night about that.  We need some 18 

papers.  19 

 20 

Some people are not that educated or not that smart and some 21 

people are better looking than others and I’m one of these type 22 

of fellows that need to be showed something.  Show me some 23 

paperwork and show me some figures that I can sit down and look 24 

and figure out what numbers we’ve got. 25 

 26 

We need to take this reallocation real slow, because like a 27 

fisherman spoke a while ago about he don’t have no red snapper 28 

and well, the way it goes, he’s going to have a lot less grouper 29 

and the only thing is if he ain’t got no red snapper, b-liners 30 

are not no IFQ and so the only thing he’s got is a few grouper 31 

and you all are fixing to give these groupers away to some other 32 

sector and so let’s give it a little bit of time and think about 33 

that. 34 

 35 

Another thing is I’ve got some good friends and I take a lot of 36 

things personally.  I’ve got a friend in Panama City and I hate 37 

to speak names, but I will today.  I’ve got Grover Davis and he 38 

owns half of Captain Anderson’s Marina and he’s a dear friend of 39 

mine. 40 

 41 

I’ve got Mike Miller who owns Miller Marine in Southport that 42 

hauls all the boats in Panama City and I’ve got Jerry Anderson 43 

that owns partyboats at Captain Anderson’s Marina and what 44 

they’re all looking for is maybe more time to fish. 45 

 46 

I came from the headboat fishery and I’m in the commercial 47 

sector, but I want to help these guys.  These guys need to 48 
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figure out how and come up with some kind of plan like I did. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Russell, you need to wrap it up.  Your time is 3 

up. 4 

 5 

MR. UNDERWOOD:  What I’m asking you all is just to hear these 6 

people and think about it, that there’s a lot more people 7 

involved than just one or two people and they need to come to 8 

this table and make some good management plans.  The 9 

recreational needs more fish and what I’m not willing to do is 10 

give all my fish to everybody else.  I’ve got to make a living, 11 

too. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Russell, your time is up.  Thank you very much.  14 

Next up is Mike Jackson, to be followed by Brad Gorst. 15 

 16 

MR. MIKE JACKSON:  Good afternoon.  I’m Mike Jackson and I’m a 17 

recreational angler from Clearwater, Florida.  I have to reduce 18 

my time from the five minutes I thought to three and so if it 19 

sounds choppy, it will be. 20 

 21 

I will start by saying I am vehemently opposed to sector 22 

separation.  The proposed recipients of this preferential 23 

treatment are a very small minority who have benefited from 24 

their strong alliance with Environmental Defense and the gifting 25 

of our public trust resource to this select few for their 26 

personal profit to me is unacceptable and inexcusable. 27 

 28 

Preventing overfishing and sound fisheries management is 29 

accomplished by a number of things, not the least of which is 30 

scientifically setting the level of total allowable catch using 31 

up-to-date assessments and following the mandate of Congress in 32 

the Reauthorized MSA to include a viable data collection 33 

methodology for the recreational sector. 34 

 35 

Years past its deadline, the state of recreational data 36 

collection should serve as an embarrassment to those charged 37 

with seeing it through.  Labeling current data collection 38 

methodologies as best available science is tantamount to masking 39 

junk science with white lab coats. 40 

 41 

For today’s testimony, I was reviewing a scoping document that I 42 

prepared for the council to review on sector separation and I 43 

was struck by a couple of issues and I will have to pick through 44 

these a bit, but the first one was the purpose and need for 45 

Amendment 39. 46 

 47 

The stated need in Amendment 39 will enable the for-hire sector 48 
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to improve management of their business, reduce management 1 

uncertainty, and prevent overfishing.  While I disagree with the 2 

latter, I tend to agree with the first statement, because I can 3 

tell you this, that any business, any business, would do very 4 

well having received the unfair gifting of our public trust 5 

resource for their personal gain. 6 

 7 

Also of interest was in the final concerns raised in the scoping 8 

document, it brought up the statement that it’s impossible to 9 

determine the allocations assigned to the for-hire and private 10 

vessel subsectors and associated season lengths that the sector 11 

would enjoy should sector separation become implemented. 12 

 13 

It goes on to say that it would require the council to make the 14 

policy decisions and apportion resources for the for-hire and 15 

private recreational sector in order to determine what’s 16 

actually going to happen after the fact and my concern here is 17 

the last time I heard a similar comment like that was when a 18 

prominent member of Congress made the now famous statement of we 19 

have to pass the bill so you can find out what’s in it. 20 

 21 

This should be cause for concern for every American who is 22 

facing another potential loss of their freedom and rights to the 23 

public resource. 24 

 25 

The scoping document also points to reference material and there 26 

are five references there, four of which were self-generated by 27 

the council, the GMFMC.  The fifth stood out to me, because it 28 

was the only outside paper that the council referenced and it 29 

was titled “Angling Management Organizations: Integrating the 30 

Recreational Sector into Fishery Management” and it was authored 31 

by Jon G Sutinena and Robert Johnson. 32 

 33 

I did my due diligence and I bought a copy of that and read the 34 

data and it goes quite a bit into the AMOs, stating that they 35 

should be non-governmental organizations that take the form of 36 

conventional businesses for profit, such as a corporation, 37 

limited liability, or limited partnership. 38 

 39 

It also talks about rights-based fishing, that an AMO would have 40 

the power to use or manage the property, the power to dispose of 41 

the property by sale or grant, and the power to receive the 42 

stream of benefits yielded by the property. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mike, you need to wrap it up.  Your time is up. 45 

 46 

MR. JACKSON:  All right and so I will continue on and I have one 47 

last request for the council, because I’m conflicted on the 48 
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public testimony actually and if after this event you folks 1 

could look at this, I would appreciate this. 2 

 3 

On the one hand, the council, from what I’ve heard in the past, 4 

does not want individuals to speak for others when we’re 5 

speaking, but on the other hand, the council asks that if one 6 

speaker opposes a certain item that they ask the next speaker 7 

not to oppose that certain item and my conflict is trying to 8 

apply rational thought to these opposing points. 9 

 10 

I’m really wondering the formula the council uses to extrapolate 11 

my position or my opposition to sector separation to the many, 12 

many people who could not be here today, not because they didn’t 13 

want to, but because of the midday time slot allotted, which 14 

naturally prevents them from leaving work to be here. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mike, you do need to wrap it up.  Your time has 17 

expired. 18 

 19 

MR. JACKSON:  Okay, but lastly, I urge the council to reject 20 

sector separation in total as a viable management tool and go 21 

back about its business of seeking sound science, including long 22 

overdue data collection for the recreational sector that will 23 

solve any uncertainties and attempts to restore the trust of 24 

taxpayers. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mike, one last time, your time is expired.  If 27 

you have written comments that you would like to give staff over 28 

at the table, please do so, so that they can distribute them. 29 

 30 

MR. JACKSON:  I will do that and I thank you and I thank the 31 

council for your time. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I do have a question for you from Kay. 34 

 35 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Hi, Mike, and thank you for coming and if you 36 

will leave copies of your testimony, we will be more than happy 37 

to read them, because some of them I didn’t understand where you 38 

were getting the information from. 39 

 40 

As far as myself on this sector separation, and I hate that 41 

word, because I don’t think that that’s -- I don’t even know 42 

where the word came from, because that’s not what it started off 43 

to be, nor has it ever started off to be a catch share, but what 44 

I have heard, in listening, is that these charter for-hire folks 45 

will be getting 30 percent of what they’re probably catching 46 

now. 47 

 48 
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If you do the math, that’s going to leave more fish for the 1 

private recreational, plus it would have a season open, once 2 

those private recreational catches their quota, so that they 3 

could charter a fishery when the private recreational season is 4 

closed as far as fishing off a pier or your own vessel or 5 

something. 6 

 7 

I don’t see all of this lose/lose situation.  I’m still not sold 8 

on any of it.  I still think the private recreational industry 9 

has got to come up with something and so when you do those kind 10 

of math and stuff, what is your suggestion?  Is it a fish tag 11 

for everybody, in order to extend the season, because what we’ve 12 

got now is not working. 13 

 14 

MR. JACKSON:  It definitely is not working and while I don’t 15 

have the magic answer, I, like you, don’t agree with the title 16 

of “sector separation”.  I think that has been said here today 17 

and for some time.  Charter captains and headboats and private 18 

anglers like -- My boat is behind my house and I can jump in it 19 

and go anytime I want, but I have not been fishing one time this 20 

year, mostly because of scheduling and such, but in the red 21 

snapper season, it’s weather and -- I don’t think I’m unlike 22 

anybody else, plus it’s $700 or $800 to put diesel fuel in my 23 

boat to go to the snapper grounds and so there’s some financial 24 

implications there as well. 25 

 26 

I have heard issues of doing split seasons and we would like 27 

that, certainly in the grouper fishery and perhaps in the red 28 

snapper fishery.  If you look at the time of year it is now and 29 

the weather so far, I don’t know how many people have really 30 

been out, at least in our neck of the woods, enjoying their 31 

forty-day opportunity to catch red snapper. 32 

 33 

I think that if the plan with sector separation is to allow the 34 

charter for-hire to fish the entire year, as long as they’re 35 

staying within their allocation, then how do you then deal with 36 

the recreational anglers that have spent nearly the same money 37 

that the charter for-hire have? 38 

 39 

I have my hundred-ton master’s license and I just did it for 40 

personal gain.  I didn’t do it for anything else and I had the 41 

hours and I had the -- I have the same qualifications and could 42 

take people, but I just don’t want to. 43 

 44 

How do you then separate and delegate between the various 45 

factors?  We consider recreational fishing recreational fishing 46 

and commercial fishing is commercial fishing and so, like I 47 

said, I don’t have the magic answer, but I think that 48 
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segregating an allotment fish, whether it’s 30 percent of what 1 

they may be catching today or not, I think it sets a very bad 2 

precedent, because it’s very difficult to take that back in the 3 

end. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Brad Gorst, to be 6 

followed by Cliff Cox. 7 

 8 

MR. BRAD GORST:  My name is Brad Gorst and I represent the Gulf 9 

Stream Charters in Clearwater.  We have three federally-10 

permitted boats.  The sector separation issue is kind of -- It’s 11 

always contentious with everybody, but yet, if you think about 12 

it, we’re kind of already separated in the way it is, because 13 

it’s just the way we fish. 14 

 15 

We fish for a living and that’s it.  We’re not getting rich by 16 

doing this, but we’re just trying to put our kids through 17 

school.  I’ve got three kids and one is going to college this 18 

year and so it’s tough. 19 

 20 

We haven’t been given preferential treatment over the years.  We 21 

just want to be able to catch what we’ve historically caught for 22 

our customers and it’s not us that’s getting it.  We all have 23 

jobs to do and this is our job of choice, like everybody else 24 

has their job of choice.  If you’re a doctor or a lawyer, that’s 25 

your choice.  I choose to fish.  I shouldn’t be denied that 26 

right. 27 

 28 

We’re like dogs.  Everybody has got a dog.  If your dog craps on 29 

the floor, you scold him and you take him to the door and he 30 

runs out.  The dog goes outside and you praise him.  Well, I’m a 31 

dog that’s standing at the door and wanting to go out so I don’t 32 

get beat. 33 

 34 

That’s the reason why we’re here today, is because of the 35 

overfishing.  If it wasn’t overfished, we all wouldn’t be here 36 

having this conversation. 37 

 38 

The commercial fishing side, they’ve been rewarded for their 39 

participation by not going over on their quotas and so it shows 40 

that the IFQs work and we want that.  We want to be accountable 41 

and we don’t want to have to be shut down.  I still want to put 42 

my kids through school and so by the sector separation or what I 43 

like to call it is industry identification.  I want to be 44 

identified as an industry.  We’ll get more data collection and 45 

it will work via iPads or VMS, et cetera.   46 

 47 

I’m not so sure about the reallocation at this time.  I think 48 
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that should be shelved until the five-year review and so I also 1 

represent quite a few of the charter fishermen out of Clearwater 2 

that couldn’t be here because they’re out making a living. 3 

 4 

I think the time has come to pass and we’ve been beating this 5 

horse for a long time and let’s press forward with Amendment 39 6 

and thank you. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Brad.  We have a question for you 9 

from Pam. 10 

 11 

DR. DANA:  I don’t know this and that’s why I’m asking, but what 12 

is the stance of the charter fleet in St. Pete on sector 13 

separation versus -- I know Clearwater has probably a number of 14 

-- 15 

 16 

MR. GORST:  I don’t any of the guys down there.  Everybody is 17 

kind of in their own little thing in our area.  There’s a couple 18 

of guys down there and I know one partyboat down there and he’s 19 

not for it and why, I don’t know.  It can do nothing but help. 20 

 21 

It’s the data collection part of it that’s going to be the 22 

important part, because we’re going to have to show what we’re 23 

catching and once we show that we’re not overfishing and we know 24 

that the commercial side is not overfishing -- I think there’s a 25 

lot of fear with the other organizations that the truth is going 26 

to come out where the overfishing is taking place.  I think that 27 

fear is the biggest thing. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Brad.  Next up is Cliff Cox, to be 30 

followed by Dennis O’Hern. 31 

 32 

MR. CLIFF COX:  My name is Captain Cliff Cox and I own and 33 

operate a headboat in Destin, Florida.  I’m a member of the 34 

Charter Fishermen’s Association, the Destin Charterboat 35 

Association, and also the Vice President of the Destin 36 

Fishermen’s Cooperative. 37 

 38 

I support the headboat and pilot programs.  I think they’re 39 

going to give us a good look at some new management tools for 40 

our industry, but no matter what you call it -- Sector 41 

separation seems to be kind of a hot-button word, but I don’t 42 

care what we call it, but we just need our own fishery 43 

management plan, something that we can use to enable us to stay 44 

in business. 45 

 46 

Red snapper is a perfect example.  Right now, we’ve got a forty-47 

day season, the shortest ever.  I’ve got a ten-month season and 48 
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so I’ve got forty days that I can give access to customers to 1 

red snapper.  I personally would like more flexibility than that 2 

and we need to come up with something that will allow us to do 3 

that. 4 

 5 

The weather this year has been terrible.  A lot of the guys my 6 

way have already lost a lot of days of fishing.  You don’t get 7 

those days back or those trips back, like one other person said. 8 

 9 

The other thing is we want to be totally accountable in our 10 

fishery.  If we can get electronic logbooks or iSnapper or VMS, 11 

I’m willing to do whatever it takes.  We want our fishery 12 

accountable, like the commercial guys are, and the only way 13 

we’re going to ever get this fishery under control is to get 14 

more accountability within the fishery. 15 

 16 

As far as -- I don’t understand why the CCA guys -- I don’t 17 

understand why they don’t want this to happen, especially if, 18 

like Ms. Kay said, we get 30 percent.  They’re in a growing 19 

section.  Our section is not growing.  We just need an 20 

allocation of fish that we can live with and maintain our 21 

businesses. 22 

 23 

They would have the same flexibility to come up with a fishery 24 

management plan.  They don’t seem to want to support ours, but 25 

they don’t seem to come up with any ideas of how they’re going 26 

to manage their section and it would give them the same 27 

flexibility that we have, but they just need to come up with an 28 

idea that will work for them. 29 

 30 

Real quickly on the gray triggerfish, I think we need to leave 31 

the size limit the same and go with probably a June or maybe 32 

part of July closure, whatever it takes to stay within the ACL, 33 

and a one or two fish bag limit.   34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Cliff.  The next speaker is Dennis 36 

O’Hern, to be followed by Bob Spaeth. 37 

 38 

MR. DENNIS O’HERN:  Now there’s a winning combo, Dennis O’Hern 39 

and Bob Spaeth.  For the record, Dennis O’Hern, Executive 40 

Director of the Fishing Rights Alliance.  I’m a recreational 41 

angler.  I fish for fun and I don’t make any money off it and I 42 

spend a lot of money on it. 43 

 44 

As far as I’m concerned, there’s only two sectors.  There is the 45 

recreational sector and there is the commercial sector.  I can 46 

choose one of these fine gentlemen who know way more about 47 

fishing than I do to go out with them, but to give anybody who 48 
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happens to convey recreational fishermen to their fishing sites 1 

any special treatment over that recreational fisherman 2 

themselves just does not seem fair. 3 

 4 

I am going to take you all back and some of you weren’t around 5 

for this and some of you were, but to 2000.  Some of you have 6 

heard of the National Research Council.  This is even before the 7 

guy who presented it called MRFSS fatally flawed. 8 

 9 

In 2000, there was a blueprint laid out for recreational data 10 

collection.  In 2006, the NRC did another study and said, God, 11 

what have you guys been doing and you didn’t do anything we told 12 

you to do and now it’s a real mess and here’s what you need to 13 

do, so much so that it was mandated by Congress and somehow the 14 

slick lawyers at NMFS weaseled their way around it and convinced 15 

Congress or a judge, I believe it was, that the recreational 16 

registry was in place when it was supposed to be, but low and 17 

behold, a year-and-a-half ago, I listened to Dr. Hogarth, right 18 

up in the Capital Building itself, look right down at Eric 19 

Schwaab and say I must say that I’m very disappointed in NMFS 20 

lack of ability to implement the recreational registry. 21 

 22 

This was well after the time and so even one of your old leaders 23 

fesses up and instead, what it seems like is a squeeze play and 24 

the recreational sector is out of control and we’ve got to close 25 

the fisheries down and then you’ve got the guys who try and make 26 

a living off of taking us fishing, and God bless them for it and 27 

I don’t have any bones with that, but they’re desperate. 28 

 29 

Then you’ve got the big plan and it’s about the money.  It’s all 30 

about the money and anybody who doesn’t think it is, all you 31 

need to do is have a listen to the Milliken Investment Institute 32 

recording that we made available a couple of years ago, where 33 

Josh Reichert tells institutional investors that all you need to 34 

do to rationalize a fishery is get a little government help to 35 

level the playing field. 36 

 37 

That means so that Wal-Mart and Cisco Foods can own catch 38 

shares, which when you guys started talking about it, that was 39 

absolutely forbidden and that was never going to happen and as I 40 

understand it, I can buy them right now if I want and I don’t 41 

have a commercial permit.  I shouldn’t be able to buy them. 42 

 43 

If that’s how that sector wants to be managed, that’s fine, but 44 

to take recreational fish away from recreational anglers and 45 

give it to a certain part of the population just is not fair and 46 

that goes to my comment about fairness in fisheries management. 47 

 48 
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The FRA has never jumped up and down and said take it away from 1 

the commercial sector and give it to us.  We’ve never done that.  2 

We’ve always been about fair management and what’s fair is 3 

holding somebody accountable for not doing their job at the 4 

Office of Science and Technology. 5 

 6 

I know it’s a tough thing, but I sat in on it and I’ve been part 7 

of that process of the rebuilding MRFSS, the new MRIP.  I even 8 

developed a camera project to collect data better, which is what 9 

we need, but instead, we’re just going to say it’s a mess and 10 

it’s going to just be a mess and here’s the only way out and 11 

let’s give somebody a special privilege and take it away from 12 

the fifteen-million anglers that fish in saltwater.  By the way, 13 

statistically, 3 percent of fishing trips in saltwater are on 14 

for-hire vessels. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Dennis, your time is up.  Thank you very much.  17 

Next up is Bob Spaeth, to be followed by David Krebs. 18 

 19 

MR. BOB SPAETH:  Thank you, council members, for giving me the 20 

opportunity to talk to you today.  My name is Bob Spaeth and I’m 21 

Executive Director of the Southern Offshore Fishing Association. 22 

 23 

The first thing I would like to talk about is this reallocation.  24 

Man, what a bucket of worms you guys are opening, a big bucket 25 

of worms, and I’m going to tell you what I think.  I think I’m 26 

going to read you some allocation, where they are, and then I 27 

can see this on the front page of the St. Pete Times with 98 28 

percent of the consumers wondering what the heck is going on. 29 

 30 

Available allocation to recreational anglers and commercial, 31 

commercial will be second, and blue marlin is 100 percent 32 

recreational and zero commercial.  White marlin in 100 percent 33 

recreational and zero commercial.  Sailfish is 100 percent and 34 

zero commercial. 35 

 36 

Redfish is 100 percent and zero commercial.  Amberjack, 73 37 

percent and 27 percent commercial.  King mackerel, which we 38 

don’t have the latest and there may be a problem, but 70 percent 39 

recreational and 30 percent commercial. 40 

 41 

Finally, gag grouper, 65 percent recreational and 35 percent 42 

commercial.  Red snapper is 49 percent recreational and 51 43 

commercial and red grouper is 24 percent recreational and 74 44 

commercial. 45 

 46 

In our state waters, the recreational has 100 percent of the 47 

billfish, 100 percent of the snook, 100 percent of the redfish 48 
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and 98 percent of the trout.  How much more can you take from a 1 

group? 2 

 3 

They pencil whipped us back in I forget what year, when they 4 

took 3 or 4 percent of the red grouper when we did some 5 

allocation in one of the amendments.  I’m just hoping that you 6 

think about the consumer and the people who eat fish.  I know 7 

all of you do and they have a right to this fish at the table 8 

and we need to help provide for that. 9 

 10 

The second thing I would like to talk about is that on your 11 

server is catch shares and we don’t think there should be any 12 

more catch shares right now.  You have to go back to your five-13 

year grouper review and you’ve got a snapper review going on and 14 

why would we rush into anything before we get all the data on 15 

what these are doing and I’ve talked about it before and on your 16 

server, there’s a four-page thing and we’ll give it to you the 17 

next thing.  Thank you. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bob.  Next up is David Krebs, to be 20 

followed by Jeff Warner. 21 

 22 

MR. DAVID KREBS:  Good afternoon, council.  I’m David Krebs, 23 

owner of Ariel Seafoods, commercial fishing boats, in Destin, 24 

Florida and the President of the Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish 25 

Shareholder’s Alliance. 26 

 27 

I want to echo some of the words that Donny said and it’s 28 

important.  I have forwarded some of the documents already to 29 

some of the council members, but I hope everybody else will take 30 

a look at them. 31 

 32 

The Vermilion Final Amendment 23 to the Reef Fish Fishery 33 

Management Plan was released in October of 2004, eight years 34 

ago.  We had concerns about what was happening in the vermilion 35 

fishery and we forgot about it. 36 

 37 

The Red Snapper IFQ Final Amendment 26 was released in March of 38 

2006.  It addresses privatization of the fishery.  You can go 39 

through the index and it’s got everything that you haven’t heard 40 

about, except at the podium where people are saying I can’t 41 

believe this happened, but yet it was discussed for six years. 42 

 43 

It’s hard to believe that we’re here and we talk about the year 44 

2000 being a long time ago.  As you heard from the rest of these 45 

commercial fishermen here, 2000 was just nothing for us.  We’ve 46 

been doing this, trying to find a way to survive, since the late 47 

1980s, because we could survive in the 1970s because we didn’t 48 
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know what we were doing to ourselves as we chased the last fish 1 

across that Gulf. 2 

 3 

One of the other things that we’ve lost sight of is we talked 4 

years ago about a federal loan program to help new entrants into 5 

an IFQ fishery that is expensive.  We had to cut effort.  We 6 

were told throughout the 1990s that you’re overcapitalized and 7 

you’ve got too many commercial boats chasing too small of a 8 

quota and we want you to slow the growth of your fleet and stop 9 

the growth and go backwards. 10 

 11 

Now we need a way for people that want to be in this fishery to 12 

replace the people that are ready to get out of the fishery.  13 

Finally, commercial fishermen have something of value rather 14 

than a worn-out boat when they’re seventy-eight years old.  15 

There’s nothing wrong with that. 16 

 17 

On king mackerel, I don’t have a problem with the boundary line 18 

on the subzones of the west coast of Florida, moving it.  19 

There’s a little bit of angst about where that 2 percent, if 20 

they ever did want to give some extra quota.  The northern 21 

subzone certainly only has 170,000 pounds of fish, plus or 22 

minus, and they could use a little help up there and maybe split 23 

that 2 percent.  1 percent on each side of that boundary line 24 

might be nice. 25 

 26 

The western zone opening needs to remain in July.  The reason 27 

for that is if we move it to September -- I know it benefits the 28 

Louisiana shrimp boats after the shrimp season is over, but it 29 

will decimate the price of these fish and I’ve brought that to 30 

you all in the past. 31 

 32 

The east coast starts ramping up in October and the fishery off 33 

the Louisiana Delta gets bigger, which there’s only one market 34 

in California for those fish.  It will not be an economically-35 

viable fishery. 36 

 37 

I would encourage you to look at the triggerfish regulations on 38 

the commercial side.  It will have discard mortality and I know 39 

you’ve heard contrary talks about that, but in the commercial 40 

industry, coming up on a bandit reel and a fifty-pound limit, 41 

you may be having a lot of discards associated with that.  We 42 

obviously support rigs to reefs and that’s my time and thank you 43 

very much. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, David.  I have a question for you, 46 

David, being that you’re a king mackerel expert.  What’s your 47 

thoughts about the trip limit in the western zone for king 48 
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mackerel? 1 

 2 

MR. KREBS:  It needs to remain at 3,000 pounds and it’s for the 3 

same reasons that Bill Kelly said.  The amount of distance that 4 

these boats are running, we could support a small boat fleet 5 

that raced in and out with a shorter trip limit, but all you’re 6 

doing is burning fuel.  The reason we went to 3,000 pounds years 7 

ago was to make it more economically viable. 8 

 9 

MS. WILLIAMS:  David, last night at the roundtable, I was 10 

hearing you speak of you did not feel like you were given 11 

anything free in this fishery, because very often we hear people 12 

come up to the podium and say that.  Have you ever actually done 13 

the math? 14 

 15 

I know you were talking about your vessels landed X amount of 16 

pounds of fish, but yet when they went under this ITQ system, 17 

your vessels actually probably only got one-third of what they 18 

were originally catching, because of the percentages and the way 19 

that they were worked out and had you continued on prior to the 20 

IFQ, how much you actually lost in revenue by going with the ITQ 21 

system and trying to rebuild this fishery in staying within your 22 

allocation over the years, to see how much you actually lost in 23 

revenue? 24 

 25 

MR. KREBS:  I have not done the exact math, but it is true that 26 

for everybody that participated, because of the allocation years 27 

that we chose -- We did it on purpose.  We used ten out of 28 

fourteen years and that was to benefit the true historical 29 

fisherman that made his living, year in and year out, off of a 30 

permit. 31 

 32 

In my case, I bought a permit the last three years before the 33 

cutoff and actually Kerry, Kerry Hurst that spoke to you 34 

earlier, was catching 78,000 pounds the last three years on that 35 

permit a year.  It allocated 7,000 pounds of fish, because of 36 

all the zeros in front of it. 37 

 38 

We did what we were supposed to do.  We had 136 permits, Class 1 39 

licenses, 2,000-pound licenses, that existed from 1993 to 2007 40 

and we took and we came up with a formula and we shrunk our 41 

fleet and we all took the hits on the frontend and we agreed to 42 

the quota cut to rebuild this fishery, to fast track it, and now 43 

to sit back and say, Krebs or Waters, you’re an exception 44 

because you’re one of the few that have over 2 percent, when the 45 

majority of your red snapper IFQ holders are under 1 percent and 46 

they’re dependent upon this fishery to make a living, especially 47 

in light of what’s happening with vermilion. 48 
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 1 

These guys weren’t gifted.  They’re catching substantially less.  2 

1 percent today is 40,000 pounds and there is hardly a boat left 3 

out there -- What is the math, six people that have over 2 4 

percent or seven, out of all these permits that are out there?  5 

There was no gifting.  They are catching substantially less than 6 

they ever did back in the derby. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, David.  Next up is Jeff Warner, to be 9 

followed by Joseph Abdo.  Is Jeff Warner in the audience?  I 10 

will hold his card and put it in the back.  Joseph Abdo, to be 11 

followed by John Schmidt.   12 

 13 

MR. JOSEPH ABDO:  Good afternoon, members of the council.  I 14 

just wanted to share a little bit about my story.  I’m a twenty-15 

nine-year-old father of two.  I bought into this fishery late in 16 

2009 and I got a boat, a forty-five-foot small grouper operation 17 

out of Tarpon Springs, Florida. 18 

 19 

I don’t have much to say, other than I really appreciate the 20 

system and what it’s done for my family and I.  The fishing is 21 

viable and the fishery is sustainable and it’s showing progress 22 

in leaps and bounds and I just want to thank you guys for your 23 

efforts and also I don’t support reallocation at all to the 24 

recreational sector at this time.  Thanks for having me up here. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Joseph.  Next up is John Schmidt, to 27 

be followed by Wayne Werner. 28 

 29 

MR. JOHN SCHMIDT:  My name is John Schmidt and I’ve got somebody 30 

else’s notes to follow here, but I want to thank the council for 31 

this opportunity to make my comments and more than anything 32 

else, I want to thank the council for getting it right. 33 

 34 

The issues that we’re talking about today are mainly sector 35 

separation, or whatever you want to call it, and reallocation, 36 

whatever you want to call it, but I have a lot of confidence 37 

that the council is going to get it right. 38 

 39 

The reason I have the confidence is that looking back over 40 

history, over say, for example, since 2006, when one option to 41 

improve the commercial grouper fishery was to issue endorsements 42 

and eliminate half of the fishermen.  We didn’t do that and 43 

instead, we implemented what now is the gold standard in fishery 44 

management systems in the eastern United States in both the 45 

grouper and red snapper fisheries. 46 

 47 

Because of that, 550 more fishermen can go catch grouper today 48 
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and so we improved our fishery management systems, plus we let 1 

the maximum number of fishermen stay in business. 2 

 3 

Some other things that you guys have done that are pretty really 4 

incredible is the red snapper rebuilding program.  We can 5 

actually see the light at the end of the tunnel with the red 6 

snapper rebuilding process.  That’s an amazing accomplishment, 7 

because when I started fishing over twenty-five years ago, we 8 

weren’t worried about red snapper.  We didn’t catch them. 9 

 10 

The gag grouper rebuilding program, which had all kinds of 11 

controversy for a long time, eventually you guys implemented a 12 

sorely needed gag grouper rebuilding program and in my opinion, 13 

that program was implemented just in the nick of time, before we 14 

reached the point where it would be really difficult to rebuild 15 

that fishery. 16 

 17 

You have a history of getting it right and I want to thank all 18 

of the people, you guys, that listened to all of this stuff and 19 

look at all the data and eventually get it right and I want to 20 

thank Bob Gill for his service on the council.  I really 21 

honestly have seen that you guys don’t get the kind of 22 

appreciation that you deserve for getting it right and I want to 23 

thank you in public for doing that and so that’s my comments and 24 

thanks. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you for your comments, John.  Next up is 27 

Wayne Werner, to be followed by Vance Tice. 28 

 29 

MR. WAYNE WERNER:  Wayne Werner, owner and operator of the 30 

Fishing Vessel Sea Quest.  As far as the king mackerels go, I 31 

want to bring that up first and any talk about taking idle 32 

permits I disagree with, because you’ve got a lot of shrimpers 33 

in the area where I fish, off of Louisiana, that need these fish 34 

and they’re going to need them real bad with the amount of 35 

shrimp they’re catching now because of the oil spill. 36 

 37 

The zone would be the best way.  Donny brought it up, but let 38 

everybody pick a zone and if they want to buy out each other’s 39 

zones, let them do that. 40 

 41 

As far as -- I heard a lot about the IFQ, about the way it was 42 

done, here today and my point of view is we gave a fourteen-year 43 

period and we tried to get everybody into this system that 44 

deserved a shot at it and it was a long, hard-fought battle, 45 

because we had thirteen people on the panel and fourteen options 46 

and we had to whittle it down to one, if that tells you anything 47 

about it. 48 
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 1 

As far as the reallocation issue, the economist that brought it 2 

up, and this is not to hurt anybody, because I feel there should 3 

be a fishing industry, but as far as economic benefits, he made 4 

two statements that were fact and a lot of hypothetical. 5 

 6 

The two facts that he brought up were that if that money wasn’t 7 

spent fishing, it would be spent recreationally another way and 8 

to add a fish wouldn’t add any income. 9 

 10 

For me, that kind of hit home, because we’ve done a lot and 11 

we’ve been accountable.  We’ve tried to be accountable and we’ve 12 

stayed accountable in this fishery and we keep trying to improve 13 

things as time goes and I think this council wants improvements. 14 

 15 

I heard it said that it would be a band-aid and that’s about 16 

what it would be.  Roy has made the statement that if the 17 

fishery was totally rebuilt, it probably wouldn’t be much longer 18 

of a season.  We’ve got to come up with better ideas.  Maybe I’m 19 

not the smartest guy here to say that or to be involved with 20 

that, but I hope you guys can. 21 

 22 

I want to say one thing about what Donny said and that is 23 

there’s never been a reef fish fisherman on this council and 24 

we’re being taxed.  That’s almost like taxation without 25 

representation, because we’re paying a 3 percent tax and we’re 26 

paying taxes.  Thank you. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Wayne.  Next up is Vance Tice, to be 29 

followed by Bryan Fluech. 30 

 31 

MR. VANCE TICE:  How are you all today?  The first thing is I 32 

would like to thank Roy and all my commercial friends I made 33 

last night for the warm welcome.  I really didn’t mean to 34 

alienate them like I did.  I think they misunderstood what I was 35 

saying and I tried to clear that up later.  I always try to look 36 

at the other side. 37 

 38 

I’ve been coming to these meetings for nine years now and that’s 39 

probably a short time for a lot of people.  I’ve been in the 40 

fishing industry twenty-five years and I owned a tackle shop 41 

until last March for eleven years that I had to close mainly 42 

because of the regulations that were just strangling my 43 

business. 44 

 45 

60 percent of my business was offshore fishing.  I fought it and 46 

I had to fight the economy and I had to fight the oil spill, yet 47 

the last straw was the regulations we have and I would ask 48 
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customers and say I haven’t seen you in a couple of years and 1 

they would say I haven’t been fishing and what’s the use?  I own 2 

a big boat and it costs so much money to gear up and gas up and 3 

then I can go out and keep a couple of fish. 4 

 5 

Believe it or not, I feel recreational fishing means a lot to 6 

our state and to our country and when I come up here, I don’t 7 

come up here just representing myself and thinking just of my 8 

own self interests, but I come up here representing my friends 9 

that are fishermen and my neighbors that aren’t fishermen that 10 

pay the ultimate price, because our state and our counties have 11 

to get their money to run their state and county. 12 

 13 

When you destroy the fishery, the recreational fishery, in the 14 

communities and all that income doesn’t come to the state 15 

anymore, whether you fish or not, you’re going to pay for it and 16 

so I’m not just speaking for a few fishermen.  I try not to.  I 17 

try to always look at the other guy’s side. 18 

 19 

I’ve got a lot of friends that are charter captains and I’m 20 

personally not for sector separation and I think it’s mainly 21 

because, from what I understand, that’s a predecessor for catch 22 

shares recreationally, which I’m totally against. 23 

 24 

Roy assured me that that’s not on the agenda, but everything I 25 

read and the EDF mantra is that’s what’s coming down the pipe 26 

and so hopefully he’ll correct me again there.  I just wish he 27 

wouldn’t roll his eyes at me so many times. 28 

 29 

I’ve tried to offer real-time data to him.  When I see that 30 

we’re told that the effort was up this much and I show him seven 31 

shops that do all the major business in this area and we were 32 

all 30 percent down.  Bobby Ellsworth, the bait sales was 30 33 

percent down, yet you all say we’re up 118 percent and I just 34 

don’t understand how that math works. 35 

 36 

I know back in the red grouper fiasco five or six or seven years 37 

ago, and I can’t even remember anymore, but we had two months 38 

where the data said for years we caught about 35,000 pounds in 39 

March and April and the next year, we caught 535,0000 pounds and 40 

the next year, we went back to 45,000 pounds. 41 

 42 

That didn’t happen.  Common sense tells you that was an anomaly 43 

that never happened, but it was used to set regulations and you 44 

don’t understand why we’re so frustrated with the science. 45 

 46 

We want real science.  We go out there and fish and we dive.  I 47 

had a diver today at the store I work at tell me that if they 48 
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could just see the gag grouper that I see and not just the small 1 

ones -- He was concerned because he said for a while he wasn’t 2 

seeing the twelve-inch fish. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Vance, you need to wrap it up.  Your time is up. 5 

 6 

MR. TICE:  All right, sir.  Thank you for your time. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, sir.  Next up is Bryan Fluech, to be 9 

followed by Jim Johns. 10 

 11 

MR. BRYAN FLUECH:  My name is Bryan Fluech and I’m with Florida 12 

Sea Grant Extension down in Collier County and I just wanted to 13 

comment on the EFP that Sea Grant has submitted to look at using 14 

recompression gear as an alternative possibly for reef fish. 15 

 16 

Most of you obviously are very familiar with the issue of 17 

barotrauma and release mortality.  In the past year or so, 18 

there’s been several workshops, both at the national level and 19 

most recently we’ve had one in St. Pete and one out in Portland, 20 

Oregon through the Fish Smart Initiative. 21 

 22 

Something that has repeatedly come up is looking at 23 

recompression gear as ways of increasing survival rates and 24 

obviously there’s been a lot of research, some done here in the 25 

Gulf and a lot done out in the rockfish fishery out west, which 26 

is obviously completely different from what we have here, but 27 

one of the things mentioned at these workshops was the 28 

importance of outreach and education. 29 

 30 

This is really what we’re looking to do with this project, is, 31 

for one, get the recompression gear in the hands of the 32 

Extension agents that we have around the Gulf coast and for them 33 

to be able to test it out, but more importantly, get it in the 34 

hands of our stakeholders, our advisory committees, to get their 35 

feedback on the practical use of it. 36 

 37 

Obviously there continues to be research on these as well, but 38 

the way we’re looking at this is an opportunity for us to share 39 

what we find out with our colleagues, whether that be Florida 40 

Fish and Wildlife, the council, or other opportunities, so that 41 

if there are policy changes, we do have an education and 42 

outreach framework in place.  I just want to say thank you for 43 

your consideration and thank you for what you guys do. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bryan.  Next up is Jim Johns, to be 46 

followed by Kurt Theodore. 47 

 48 
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MR. JIM JOHNS:  My name is Jim Johns and I’m a third-generation 1 

commercial fisherman.  I would like to speak to you a little bit 2 

about catch shares.  I’m against any additional catch shares.  3 

It doesn’t make any sense to me when the current program isn’t 4 

working well that until you fix that that you’re thinking about 5 

doing additional catch share programs on additional species. 6 

 7 

It makes more sense to fix the current program before you step 8 

and start managing, on a catch-share-basis, some of these other 9 

species. 10 

 11 

An example of why it’s not working, there’s a -- A lot of people 12 

that are caught in the fact that they are having to lease catch 13 

shares.  They weren’t issued enough and they were sometimes 14 

fishermen that had their permit they had bought from someone 15 

that didn’t have an extensive landing history, even though they 16 

had captained a boat for fishing for several years and had a lot 17 

of catch shares.  There was no provisions made to pick up those 18 

type of individuals. 19 

 20 

The economics of it, when you have to pay $3.50 or $3.25 to 21 

lease a red snapper catch share means that the boat -- That’s 22 

only a dollar that he makes on that fish and a dollar doesn’t go 23 

very far when you have to split it between the captain and the 24 

crew and maybe the owner. 25 

 26 

It also creates -- From a business model, it’s not a very 27 

practical way to do it.  It does solve one problem.  Too many 28 

guys are caught in the dead discard problem.  They’re catching 29 

fish and they’re having to throw them back because they don’t 30 

have any catch shares to justify bringing them in. 31 

 32 

If they can lease it, at least they’re bringing them ashore and 33 

landing them instead of probably killing them, depending on how 34 

far offshore you’re fishing.  If you’re fishing inshore, there’s 35 

not that much of a problem, but if you’re fishing beyond 200 36 

feet, there’s a tremendous problem in dead discards.  Thank you. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Jim.  Next up is Thomas Seims, to be 39 

followed by T.J. Marshall. 40 

 41 

MR. THOMAS SEIMS:  My name is Thomas Seims with Jerry’s Fishing 42 

in Madeira Beach and thank you for letting me speak to the board 43 

there.  I am a small fishing business out of Madeira Beach and I 44 

started probably right after the IFQ quota and I bought a boat 45 

and rebuilt it for my retirement business.  With everything 46 

that’s happened, it’s not working very good and so I’m just 47 

going to read a thing that I wrote and hopefully I can do it in 48 
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my time. 1 

 2 

The IFQ program setup served a fishing industry and when I went 3 

to the startup meeting at the Madeira Beach Library in late 4 

2009, we were told we would be distributed so many IFQ shares 5 

that would not be reduced at all for any time and that’s what I 6 

was told at the meeting and everybody else. 7 

 8 

They were wrong.  I guess they lied to us, but that’s besides 9 

the point at this time.  I have and all fishermen were reduced 10 

several times in only 2010 and 2011.  The small owners are being 11 

bought out by the large owners at a rate that is not imaginable. 12 

 13 

When they started IFQs, the government also closed large areas 14 

in the Gulf.  That hurt us as well.  The fish are coming back at 15 

a good rate.  I don’t think it’s a result of the IFQ program, 16 

but I think it’s due to the closed areas, which I feel very 17 

strongly about, as they are coming back very strong. 18 

 19 

My small business alone spent over $25,000 on IFQs last year and 20 

that is unimaginable for a small business.  Let’s just make a 21 

little thing here and if this man has so many IFQs he can sell 22 

me, what does he have them for?  Why don’t they go back into the 23 

pool and be redistributed to the people that don’t have them? 24 

 25 

If they can afford to sell these damned things and put that 26 

money in their pocket, they can afford to put them back and 27 

redistribute them, so the small guys can have them like they 28 

should be done.  If the fish are still there, why shouldn’t the 29 

small guy have them?  All you’re doing is lining the people’s 30 

pockets there. 31 

 32 

Who has the right to sell over-caught fish?  Nobody.  These fish 33 

were put there by God and not by the lawyers or IFQ owners in 34 

which they have no right to be theirs.  These fish don’t belong 35 

to you or you or you or you or nobody in here.  They are the 36 

people’s fish and that’s everybody’s. 37 

 38 

Who has the right to own more fish than the next guy?  Nobody, 39 

unless you believe in God and I think he’s the only one that has 40 

that right.  I think he threw a net and caught more than 41 

anybody. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thomas, your time is up and you will have to 44 

wrap it up, please. 45 

 46 

MR. SEIMS:  Let me just finish this page here then.  Large money 47 

bought boats after 1999 just for the IFQs and they were in 48 
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business and they bought these permits after the fact.  They 1 

knew that these, and a lot of people didn’t know, that they 2 

would be sold and had inside information to buy these IFQs. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thomas, your time is up. 5 

 6 

MR. SEIMS:  Everybody knows where I’m going at and so does 7 

anybody want to ask me any questions before I leave?  I can go 8 

on and finish my thing if you would like me to. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thomas, thank you very much for your testimony.  11 

Next up is T.J. Marshall, to be followed by Buddy Guindon. 12 

 13 

MR. T.J. MARSHALL:  Mr. Chairman and council members, thank you 14 

for your time.  Normally Libby Fetherston or Claudia Friess from 15 

Ocean Conservancy gives comments and Libby is at home with her 16 

brand-new baby boy, Miles.  He is about eight pounds and we got 17 

to see him the other day and so congratulations to Libby and 18 

Claudia had a flight to catch and so I will try to stumble 19 

through this and hopefully you guys don’t grill me too hard 20 

afterwards. 21 

 22 

Ocean Conservancy has 110,000 members and we plant our flag on 23 

science-based management and so a lot of our members are 24 

fishermen.  I’m a recreational fisherman and a lot of people are 25 

attracted to our organization because they have that fishermen 26 

ethic of wanting to follow the science.  They appreciate what 27 

our organization brings to the table and so hopefully those 28 

comments kind of fit in that regard.   29 

 30 

On the risk policy that you’re considering under the ABC control 31 

rule, we support you continuing working with the Science Center 32 

and the SSC and the Regional Office. 33 

 34 

One thing we want to add in there is that you’re already looking 35 

at productivity, susceptibility, and stock status 36 

considerations, but I think -- What we feel you should add to 37 

that is the time between assessments.  If you’re going to have 38 

frequent assessments, you can have a fishery that’s at a little 39 

bit higher risk, but as we’re seeing where there’s a timeline of 40 

how you can do assessments and how often we can get around to 41 

them, if it’s going to be several years between assessments, 42 

you’ve got to lower that risk level down, because that’s some of 43 

the problems that we’re seeing and that kind of leads to the 44 

point with vermilion snapper. 45 

 46 

We suggest to use caution with setting ACLs and ACTs for 47 

vermilion.  You’ve heard from several commercial fishermen today 48 
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talking about what they see as the condition of that stock. 1 

 2 

Looking at the last stock assessment, there was no fishery-3 

independent abundance indices and then the fishery-dependent 4 

commercial indices were showing decline. 5 

 6 

Then the final point is Amendment 33.  We encourage you to move 7 

forward with Amendment 33.  When you move forward with an 8 

amendment like this, it’s assisting you in setting good 9 

biological goals, good hard caps on fishing, economic goals, and 10 

you also start to tread into that area of the social management 11 

goals that need to be addressed for fairness between 12 

participants. 13 

 14 

On one final note, I just wanted to say that we don’t get into 15 

the allocation fight.  We don’t see ourselves as having a dog in 16 

that fight, but we do kind of plant the flag on the issue of 17 

considering moving allocation into fisheries that are 18 

accountable and fisheries that are unaccountable and so with 19 

that, my time is up and I appreciate your time. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, T.J.  Next up is Buddy Guindon and 22 

the only person behind Buddy is the cards of folks that have not 23 

been in the room.  Is Buddy in the room?  I don’t see him and I 24 

don’t hear him.  I will repeat these three cards that I called 25 

out before: Chad Haggert, Jeff Warner, Kurt Theodore.  Are any 26 

of you folks available in the room?  I don’t see any response.  27 

That concludes all the cards that we have.  Is there anyone in 28 

the room that hasn’t spoken that would like to do so and has not 29 

put in a card?  Sir, if you would come to the podium and then 30 

fill out a card for me, I would appreciate it.  State your name 31 

and your affiliation when you do so, if you would. 32 

 33 

MR. BILL VANDEMAN:  I signed up in the back, but I didn’t 34 

realize there was a card as well.  My name is Bill VanDeman and 35 

I’m a recreational fisherman from here in Tampa Bay and I just 36 

had a couple of comments. 37 

 38 

I’m going to try to be brief, because I want to hit about four 39 

or five different points here.  The first thing is as a 40 

recreational fisherman, I don’t see the need for sector 41 

separation.  If I want to go out on a charterboat or if want to 42 

go out by myself, I would still have the same access to fish. 43 

 44 

To be put in a situation where I could possibly not be able to 45 

catch fish as a citizen, but I would have to pay to catch a 46 

fish, I don’t think that would be beneficial to the public or 47 

the fishery at large. 48 
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 1 

As far as allocation, I’m not really looking to take anything 2 

away from the commercial, but at the same time, I’ve always 3 

heard the argument about commercial fishing and it’s for Aunt 4 

Betty in Omaha who can’t go get a fish, but what I do have is a 5 

problem with this.  6 

 7 

The last six months of last year, as a free-dive spear 8 

fisherman, up where I’m seeing schools and schools of gag 9 

grouper that I can’t touch that are in the fifteen to twenty-10 

pound range, and yet I know commercial fishermen have access 11 

through the bycatch allocation of like 800,000 to a million 12 

pounds.  I think there’s room for everybody, but at the same 13 

time, the private citizen, that right needs to be looked at 14 

before paying entities. 15 

 16 

As far as one of the biggest things that I had an issue with is 17 

I’ve been following some of these meetings and some of the 18 

public comment that have led to this discussion with sector 19 

separation and one of the biggest issues that I’ve seen as a 20 

recreational fisherman is that we’re completely underrepresented 21 

at these meetings. 22 

 23 

I believe one of the issues at stake is I’ve heard from 24 

commercial after commercial after charter after charter 25 

fishermen and very few recreational fishermen, who are the 26 

biggest part of our population.  They haven’t been able to make 27 

these meetings and it’s because financially some of these other 28 

parties have an interest and they have to be here and that’s 29 

their livelihood, but someone like me, I’ve got to take time off 30 

of my work and I’ve got to bring my -- Fortunately, I have got a 31 

great four-year-old who will watch Tom and Jerry for two hours 32 

while I wait to have a comment, but just as a matter of 33 

consideration, it would be very helpful for public feedback from 34 

the recreational sector if you all might consider having some 35 

evening sessions. 36 

 37 

I know like with the zoning variances or something like that, 38 

there’s ample time in the evening where most recreational 39 

fishermen would be able to do that. 40 

 41 

Then, finally, on the matter of IFQs, I’m against that, from the 42 

standpoint that I’m really against basically privatizing a 43 

common resource, a public resource, in a way that -- I know it 44 

eliminates the derby and it kind of eliminates the free-for-all 45 

of everybody going after fish, but it doesn’t really address the 46 

oversupply. 47 

 48 
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It doesn’t address the fact that there’s a higher demand for 1 

fish than what our fishery can produce and it doesn’t address 2 

the bycatch, which the issue I see is as these shares get bought 3 

by bigger and bigger parties, that bycatch is going to go up, 4 

versus right now you have these artisan fishermen and these 5 

commercial spear fishermen, the man gear types. 6 

 7 

The farther we get away from that little guy with his man gear, 8 

I think the potential for bycatch goes up and then coming from a 9 

banking background, what I’ve seen in big business is when you 10 

commoditize anything, I don’t think your self-regulation 11 

actually gets better.  I think the potential for abuse gets even 12 

higher. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Bill, your time is expired and so please wrap it 15 

up and thank you very much and please, if you would, fill out a 16 

card and give it to staff on your right wall over here.  Thank 17 

you.  Are there any others in the audience who haven’t spoken 18 

and would like to?  Have you put in a card, sir? 19 

 20 

MR. TRAVIS PALLADINO:  Not yet. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If you would go ahead and give your testimony 23 

and then likewise fill out a card and provide it to staff on 24 

your right.  Please give your name and affiliation if you would, 25 

sir. 26 

 27 

MR. PALLADINO:  Good evening, Mr. Chair and council people.  My 28 

name is Travis Palladino and I’m the Mayor of the City of 29 

Madeira Beach and the owner of Live Wire Fishing Charters in the 30 

City of Madeira Beach and up until a month ago, I was also a 31 

commercial fishing boat owner. 32 

 33 

I’ve listened to a little bit of comment today on some of the 34 

charter people and I can tell you as a charterboat owner the 35 

number of red snapper days does not make a difference in my 36 

business and I don’t see how it makes a difference and where 37 

sector separation matters. 38 

 39 

You should not be separating the charterboat industry from the 40 

recreational fishing industry and also, on the commercial 41 

industry, definitely no more IFQs.  That definitely had put me 42 

out of business. 43 

 44 

I probably owned, at one time, a thousand red snapper IFQs and 45 

probably 700 gag grouper IFQs.  It didn’t make sense for me to 46 

fish them and the industry just seems to be kind of slowly 47 

falling apart. 48 
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 1 

I haven’t seen any increases when we started doing the IFQ 2 

system.  I was told fish prices would go up and the cream of the 3 

crop out there running these boats will go up and I can tell you 4 

as the mayor of the city that what I’ve seen happen is with 5 

IFQs, the owners of these boats sit there and take a part of 6 

their share from what they’re getting from their crew. 7 

 8 

You’re seeing less qualified people running these vessels and so 9 

what I’m seeing in my city is I’ve got more drugs on the streets 10 

around these fish houses and it’s costing us more in law 11 

enforcement to keep the fisheries around our city and so I don’t 12 

understand why you want to go to more IFQs and costing, where it 13 

doesn’t seem like it’s helping the average fisherman make money. 14 

 15 

Back to the charterboat industry once again, sector separation, 16 

it just doesn’t make sense.  I heard the gentleman say I’m 17 

willing to put a VMS on my vessel and what I have to say to him 18 

is I’ve ran with a VMS on my vessel and I had a couple of days 19 

where I was going to go do charters where I could not leave to 20 

go do charters because my VMS was not working and I could not 21 

leave port until my VMS was actually functioning. 22 

 23 

If you’re talking about losing fishing days, putting a VMS on a 24 

charterboat, how is that going to work?  When you look at the 25 

average charterboat maybe being a thirty-foot center-console 26 

fishing vessel, it doesn’t work. 27 

 28 

Basically, that’s all I really wanted to say.  I know that the 29 

groups I’ve heard speak today -- Hopefully you all will consider 30 

not doing sector separation and, Mr. Chair and council people, 31 

thank you very much. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you very much, Travis.  If you would fill 34 

that card out and provide it to staff, I would appreciate it.  35 

Young lady, would you also like to give testimony and have you 36 

filled out a card? 37 

 38 

MS. LIZ HITTOS:  My name is Liz Hittos and I’m with Congressman 39 

Gus Bilirakis’s office and I’m glad to see Mayor Palladino here 40 

as an elected official and I’m wondering if I could ask the 41 

audience if any other elected officials are represented here.  I 42 

know certainly Steve Southerland’s office, Congressman 43 

Southerland from northern Florida, his Deputy Director, Melissa 44 

Thompson, is here and anybody else?  Was there anybody here, if 45 

the council could tell me, earlier this week, during the course 46 

of meetings, from any elected official offices? 47 

 48 
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That’s too bad, because I just want to note for the record, just 1 

really quickly, in thirty seconds, that Congressman Bilirakis 2 

does not support the catch share program and he will continue to 3 

defund that program, along with Representative Southerland and 4 

his efforts, because we believe it’s an unfair program.  It’s a 5 

job killer and during austere times with a down economy, we 6 

can’t afford it.  That’s all I have to say. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you for coming and your testimony.  Would 9 

you check with Emily and make sure that the card and that 10 

information is transpired?  Thank you very much. 11 

 12 

MS. HITTOS:  Is there also a public transcript of this public 13 

input meeting? 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  There is a transcript that is posted to the 16 

website after the meeting.  About two weeks after this meeting 17 

it will be posted to the website.  Are there any other folks in 18 

the audience who have not spoken and who would like to do so at 19 

this time?  I see none and so we will close public testimony. 20 

 21 

It’s now about eight to five, if this clock is correct, and my 22 

thinking is that we take a short recess and then proceed on 23 

doing committee reports for some period of time.  The original 24 

agenda has us going to until 5:30 and I guess that’s the 25 

pleasure of the council and so if there’s no violent 26 

disagreement, we’ll take a ten-minute recess and then come back 27 

and start in on committee reports. 28 

 29 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Attention on deck.  The Admiral is here.  Folks, 32 

wind up your conversations.  I suspect some council members 33 

would like to get on with business and conclude the day, but 34 

first we’ve got to get them back to the table. 35 

 36 

It’s currently close to ten after five and my thinking is that 37 

we proceed on committee reports for some period.  Originally, 38 

the agenda was scheduled to end at 5:30 and I’m suggesting a 39 

target of like 5:45, if that’s agreeable with the council.  If I 40 

don’t hear loud yelps, that’s the plan of action.   41 

 42 

I don’t hear loud yelps and I hear some weak yelps, but we’re 43 

going to target 5:45 and go over the committee reports that we 44 

can and Exempted Fishing Permits, I believe, we have a motion in 45 

the Reef Fish Committee and so we will not deal with Item VIII 46 

under this portion of the agenda and we’ll wait until the Reef 47 

Fish Committee Report. 48 
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 1 

I am going to proceed down the list in the agenda of the 2 

committee reports as listed, in the same priority, and if it’s 3 

not ready, we will move on to the next one and then pick up the 4 

next one later.  The first one is the Administrative Policy 5 

Committee Report and Chairman Riechers. 6 

 7 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 8 

 9 

MR. RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The Administrative 10 

Policy Committee was convened at one o’clock P.M. on June 18 and 11 

members present were myself, Dr. Abele, Mr. Boyd, Dr. Crabtree, 12 

Dr. Dana, Mr. Gill, Ms. McCawley, and Ms. Williams.  The minutes 13 

of the October 24, 2011 meeting held in New Orleans, Louisiana 14 

were approved as written along with the agenda. 15 

 16 

We had a Report on the Inspector General from Dr. Bortone.  He 17 

explained that staff from the office of the Inspector General 18 

visited the council office April 24 to 26, in conjunction with 19 

meeting with the NMFS SERO staff.   20 

 21 

The OIG staff spoke with Dr. Bortone, other staff members, the 22 

Vice-Chairman, and Chairman of the council.  Their questions 23 

were geared towards National Standard 8 and council flow, 24 

process, structure, contracts, memorandums of understandings, 25 

flow chart of process of organization, and interactions with 26 

NMFS and NGOs and private fishing groups and clubs.  After the 27 

OIG meeting, Dr. Bortone conferred with other councils and the 28 

line of questioning seemed to be the same. 29 

 30 

The OIG sent a survey to the council members to be completed 31 

this week and the questions were very similar to those asked 32 

when they met with the council staff and chairs.  Interim 33 

reports of the progress of the OIG study will be provided 34 

periodically and the project should be finished in early 2013.   35 

 36 

Dr. Bortone noted that the OIG staff stated that all 37 

correspondence relative to the council and council issues were 38 

to be retained. 39 

 40 

Under Other Business of the committee, Ms. Williams requested 41 

that the Administrative Policy/Personnel Committee review the 42 

SOPPs and Administrative handbook at the next council meeting.  43 

She had concern that there may be errors in the documents and 44 

that the documents may not fit the required template provided in 45 

the Federal Register. 46 

 47 

Dr. Bortone stated that the template for the SOPPs was provided 48 
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by National Marine Fisheries Service after the council reviewed 1 

the SOPPs.  He stressed that there were no changes in the 2 

language and rather that staff was merely cutting and pasting 3 

the language into the new template.  The modified SOPPs would be 4 

provided to NMFS at the end of the month, before the deadline. 5 

 6 

Ms. Williams made a motion to have a review of the SOPPs and 7 

Administrative Handbook at the August 2012 council meeting.  The 8 

motion failed for lack of a second. 9 

 10 

Dr. Bortone noted that he could provide the old and new 11 

documents for the council member’s information, but cautioned 12 

that if they began having discussions by email it could be 13 

construed as a council meeting. 14 

 15 

Mr. Riechers agreed that some time after this council meeting he 16 

would discuss with Ms. Williams her concerns and review the old 17 

and new sections with her.  If there were deviations in the 18 

language, those particular sections would be provided to the 19 

council for re-review.  Mr. Chairman this concludes my report. 20 

 21 

I might add that that last sentence says that we would just 22 

review it, but I think it was also really intended that we would 23 

determine some of the review areas and bring it forward to the 24 

next meeting. 25 

 26 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That wasn’t my understanding, Mr. Chairman.  It 27 

was my understanding that Robin and I was going to talk after 28 

the committee meeting and then for the report of the full 29 

council, we would agree upon which areas we felt needed to be 30 

reviewed.  That was my understanding. 31 

 32 

MR. RIECHERS:  Ms. Williams, I just said that I don’t think the 33 

last paragraph actually reflected that quite as the way we said 34 

it and I agree with you that your explanation and what I tried 35 

to just explain was exactly that, that we’re going to come to 36 

some agreement on which ones to bring at the next Administrative 37 

Policy meeting and then if it takes more than one, subsequent 38 

ones as well. 39 

 40 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We will have an Administrative Policy meeting at 41 

the next council meeting and is that what you’re saying? 42 

 43 

MR. RIECHERS:  I am not under the purview of making that agenda.  44 

The Chairman and Vice Chairman are, along with Dr. Bortone, but 45 

we will certainly tee it up at the next available time, whatever 46 

that is, and we will put into them a request and that always 47 

gets shuffled based on scheduling and so forth. 48 
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 1 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I realize it gets shuffled, but I also want to 2 

say that I feel that there’s several areas that needs 3 

addressing.  We have staff members that are not even treated 4 

equally and I want to make sure that they are. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  My comment would be, Kay, that the intent is 7 

that you and the committee chair are going to get together and 8 

discuss those issues and hopefully come to some agreement as to 9 

what the agenda ought to be and then the plan is to try and 10 

agenda it for the August meeting and at this point, that’s all 11 

we know. 12 

 13 

The next committee report is Reef Fish, but we’re going to 14 

postpone that until tomorrow.  That’s going to be lengthy and so 15 

the one after that is the Ad Hoc Restoration and Chairman 16 

Simpson. 17 

 18 

AD HOC RESTORATION COMMITTEE REPORT 19 

 20 

MR. SIMPSON:   Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  This was our first 21 

inaugural and we were the second committee out of the box on 22 

Monday.  All members were present.  This is a committee that’s 23 

an ad hoc committee and it’s convened for the purpose of 24 

addressing the restoration funds resulting from the BP oil 25 

disaster. 26 

 27 

I characterized it as being a foundational-type meeting, a 28 

beginning-type meeting, and while we did design it to be for 29 

broader input, some conflicts of scheduling and so forth limited 30 

it to review of the state programs at this time.  All of the 31 

state directors were able to provide some general narrative of 32 

what’s going on in their particular states. 33 

 34 

Mississippi has gotten a total of $136 million and they utilized 35 

those monies for pre-spill activities, seafood testing and 36 

marketing.  The DEQ, Department of Environmental Quality, is 37 

getting some funds and they’re doing restoration of oyster and 38 

artificial reefs and biological sampling and they’re doing some 39 

fisheries enhancement and hydrological monitoring and beach 40 

renourishment. 41 

 42 

In Louisiana, they’re doing inshore and offshore and oceanic 43 

monitoring.  They’re doing seafood testing and quality assurance 44 

of seafood products and some $30 million has been provided to 45 

them for three years for marketing purposes. 46 

 47 

A wonderful thing that they’re participated, as well as the 48 
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other states, is development of this Gulf Coast Seafood 1 

Marketing Coalition, which gives us an entity, a region-wide 2 

entity, to address some marketing strategies so that we can be 3 

on the same playing level field as the west coast and other 4 

places. 5 

 6 

In Florida, Florida was given $100 million and they’re doing 7 

some dune restoration and boat ramp enhancement as well as 8 

seafood testing and marketing activities.   9 

 10 

In Alabama, they are doing marsh island restoration, dune 11 

restoration, and tissue testing, as well as some seafood 12 

marketing, among other things.  Texas has a variety of projects 13 

they are underway with. 14 

 15 

The next meeting, we will continue to try to broaden it to go to 16 

federal restoration reports that will describe that program as 17 

well as other entities of salient importance, so that we can get 18 

an idea of what’s going on around the Gulf dealing with these 19 

particular monies.  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report, 20 

unless you’ve got anything, Johnny, to add. 21 

 22 

MR. GREENE:  I would like to add one thing.  I would really like 23 

to get Dr. Hogarth here to make a presentation on the results of 24 

the Florida Institute of Oceanography’s April 2012 Marine 25 

Restoration Workshop.  I don’t know if you need that in the form 26 

of a motion or not.  It kind of goes along with what we were 27 

talking about, but I would really like to have that happen. 28 

 29 

MR. SIMPSON:  I don’t think so, but we’ll do that and work with 30 

the Chairman and Dr. Bortone and Dr. Hogarth and Restoration and 31 

some of the other entities. 32 

 33 

MR. PERRET:  Larry, if I said -- Whatever that hundred-plus 34 

million I referenced -- I think your report says that we 35 

received that total amount and we received -- I don’t have my 36 

notes in front of me, but we didn’t receive it all yet.  Forty-37 

something of it, I think, if I remember right, is applied for, 38 

which we’re hoping to get, but the rest was received. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Is there any objection to Johnny’s suggestion to 41 

ask Dr. Hogarth to appear at the next meeting of the Restoration 42 

Committee? 43 

 44 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We’ll ask Dr. Hogarth’s office.  I 45 

think he has got some people that are probably really up on a 46 

presentation. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think that satisfies Johnny’s intent.  Any 1 

other further discussion under Ad Hoc Restoration Committee? 2 

 3 

MR. SIMPSON:  That concludes my report. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Next up is Mr. Pearce 6 

and the Data Collection Committee. 7 

 8 

MS. KENNEDY:  It’s not ready.  You’re looking at a draft and we 9 

don’t have the motions ready. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have been updated and Mr. Pearce is not 12 

ready.  We will go to the Shrimp Committee and, Mr. Perret, are 13 

you ready? 14 

 15 

SHRIMP MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 16 

 17 

MR. PERRET:  I hope I’m ready.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The 18 

agenda was adopted and we had one additional discussion item 19 

offered on Turtle Excluder Devices.  The minutes of the January 20 

Mobile January meeting were approved as written. 21 

 22 

Dr. Leard gave a brief overview and presented a report on the 23 

shrimp stock assessment workshop and the SSC Committee meeting 24 

held in early June.  How and why the NMFS and SSC have been 25 

working to potentially change the type of models used to assess 26 

the penaeid shrimp stocks.   27 

 28 

Dr. Barbieri stated that the SSC has been reviewing the 29 

application of the Stock Synthesis 3 model runs to each of these 30 

stocks.  He noted the difficulties encountered in this 31 

particular model was intended to look at stocks based on fishing 32 

mortality by year.  However, because shrimp are an annual stock, 33 

the models had to be modified to look at mortality by month for 34 

each of the species.   35 

 36 

The SSC felt that the SS3 models were more thorough and the SSC 37 

accepted them as best available science.  He also stated that 38 

the SSC has conducted their review, several model runs were 39 

developed for each stock, and the SSC selected a single model 40 

run for each that they felt was most appropriate.   41 

 42 

Dr. Barbieri stated that although the SSC believed that the SS3 43 

approach represented the best available science, the SSC did not 44 

think that at this time it provides any more useful advice for 45 

management.  Consequently, the SSC recommended that MSY be 46 

retained as the highest catch observed from the 1990 to 2000 for 47 

brown and pink shrimp.   48 
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 1 

Since white shrimp catches reached their maximum level after 2 

2000, the SSC recommended that MSY for white shrimp be set at 3 

the highest level for the 1990 to 2010 period.  The SSC did not 4 

believe that catches at MSY would result in overfishing and 5 

thus, was an acceptable biological catch.  Consequently, they 6 

recommended that OFL equal MSY equal ABC.  The SSC did not 7 

address OY.  However, the current definition is OY equals MSY.   8 

 9 

Dr. Leard stated that the current assessments were based on 10 

catches for the 1984 to 2010 period.  He stated that a new 11 

assessment adding 2011 catches would be done this fall and the 12 

SSC recommended that a SEDAR-like terms of reference be 13 

developed for that review.  He noted that staff was developing 14 

those terms of reference.   15 

 16 

He stated that following the SSC’s review, the council may wish 17 

to revise its NS 1 definitions to include OFL, an ABC control 18 

rule, and any other changes to MSY, OY, overfishing, and 19 

overfished definitions.   20 

 21 

Discussion of Electronic Logbook Program Funding, this council 22 

in the past has written a couple of letters to headquarters on 23 

the importance of this program and the need for funding and so 24 

on and this program, like many others, in tough budget times, 25 

we’re having a problem trying to find funds to continue this 26 

important program.   27 

 28 

The Committee discussed a letter from Sam Rauch, noting that the 29 

continuation of the ELB program will likely require some shared 30 

funding by the agency and industry.  Dr. Ponwith gave a 31 

presentation on the ELB program and funding.  She described 32 

different methods and associated costs for various alternatives.   33 

 34 

Following discussion, the committee recommends, and I so move, 35 

to direct staff to begin preparation of an amendment to look at 36 

cost alternatives in the shrimp fishery for funding of 37 

electronic logbooks. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 40 

on the committee motion? 41 

 42 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to make a substitute 43 

motion and the substitute motion would be that staff be 44 

requested to prepare a white paper to evaluate a broad range of 45 

options for funding an electronic logbook program.  If I get a 46 

second, I will explain. 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  I’ll second it. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a motion and it’s seconded.   3 

 4 

MR. PEARCE:  I just think that we don’t need to be looking 5 

within the shrimp industry just for the funding.  I think 6 

there’s other options, such as the Global Settlement Grant.  7 

There’s so many things we might be able to look at and I would 8 

rather the staff develop a broad-ranging report for us, so we 9 

can continue with this valuable program, but not necessarily put 10 

all the burden on the shrimp industry. 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t have any problem with looking at other 13 

avenues of funding, but, Harlon, we don’t have any control over 14 

those other avenues and if we don’t get moving on a plan 15 

amendment for this and those other avenues don’t come in and 16 

pick up the tab, then we’re going to be sitting here without 17 

electronic logbooks for an extended period of time and so we 18 

could start preparing this amendment. 19 

 20 

It will probably take us a year to get there and if by the time 21 

we get it done we’ve found some other way to pay for the 22 

program, then we could elect not to do it, but I’m worried if we 23 

don’t start down this road and we can’t come up with anything 24 

then we’ll find ourselves minimally a year or more towards 25 

getting there. 26 

 27 

MR. PERRET:  Roy, would not a white paper do what we need, 28 

rather than the full-blown amendment process, until we get some 29 

options and alternatives? 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  It just seems to me to delay the process.  I’m 32 

not sure what the benefit from it is.  Right now, we need to 33 

look at things we can control to make this happen.  What’s the 34 

benefit of the white paper? 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  To come up with options that we can consider 37 

besides just the government pay for it or industry pay for it or 38 

a combination of both.  I’m sure with five states involved and 39 

Gulf States involved that there are potential other avenues that 40 

we may be able to find. 41 

 42 

Working together, cooperating together, we probably could come 43 

up with something.  I would assume the states -- The importance 44 

of it, the states have found money to fund this Kemps Ridley 45 

assessment, for example.  State budgets are being cut as we 46 

speak also, but it seems to me there are other avenues than just 47 

A or B.  There’s certain other ones that I think are available. 48 
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 1 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m somewhat in agreement with Roy and not that 2 

I’m in disagreement with you, Corky.  If any state or anyone 3 

knows of a benefactor who wants to come forward and pay for it, 4 

let’s tell them where to deposit the money and be done with it 5 

and then we don’t have to go forward, but short of that, we need 6 

to go ahead and prepare the paper as if we’re going to move 7 

forward with some sort of combination of industry and/or 8 

whatever supportive funding we can control. 9 

 10 

An options paper that just talks about go find grant funding 11 

isn’t going to be helping us here move it down the road and so I 12 

think we need to go ahead and -- I’m not opposed to having some 13 

sections in there that talks about here’s what the cost is and 14 

if we can find additional sources, go do that, but that’s really 15 

about all you’ve got to say.  I don’t know where that leaves us, 16 

but I think we really ought to go back to the first motion, 17 

because I think you’re just going to slow things with this. 18 

 19 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Chairman, I think we’re working on other 20 

options as we speak, but we just can’t really talk about them 21 

just yet.  I would love to have -- Like you said, the states are 22 

all interested in making this happen and if we do an amendment, 23 

we’re a year down the road.  This thing is over in October and 24 

I’m hoping that we can find some solutions quickly to keep this 25 

program moving. 26 

 27 

I’m not against down the road looking at something, but I want 28 

to try to find some quicker solutions than an amendment that 29 

we’re working towards.  I would love to see some broader options 30 

and I would love for the states to step up to the table, because 31 

this is very important to everything we do, from turtles to you 32 

name it, to get this done.  I really want to look at more 33 

options rather than start the amendment now. 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would just point out that the original motion 36 

was to look at cost alternatives in the shrimp fishery for 37 

funding electronic logbooks.  It’s not necessarily limited to 38 

just the industry pays for it.  It could look at a whole diverse 39 

range of things, I guess. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion by the council?  Seeing none, 42 

we’ll vote on the motion.  The substitute motion is that staff 43 

be requested to prepare a white paper to evaluate a broad range 44 

of options for funding the electronic logbook program.  All 45 

those in favor please raise your right hand; all those opposed 46 

please raise your right hand.  The motion carries ten to three.  47 

Back to you, Mr. Perret.   48 
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 1 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Perret gave a brief report on the Kemp’s Ridley 2 

Assessment Workshop Report, the first workshop held in Texas.  I 3 

think all but one of the states were represented and Gulf States 4 

Marine Fisheries Commission and NMFS and NGOs were there to look 5 

at beginning the process to develop an assessment of the status 6 

of Kemps in the Gulf.  A report will be prepared following a 7 

number of meetings and so on of the technical team and should be 8 

available late summer or early fall of 2013. 9 

 10 

 11 

Next, we had a  Status of NMFS Biological Opinion and Proposed 12 

TED Requirement.  Ms. Lee with the Service reviewed the history 13 

of bi-ops for shrimp in the Gulf and noted that the current bi-14 

op would withdraw the tow-time allowances for skimmer nets, wing 15 

nets, and push trawls and require the use of TEDs.   16 

 17 

She reviewed the species that would likely be affected, namely 18 

sea turtles, sawfish, and sturgeon.  She also reviewed and 19 

described the analyses and efforts by NMFS to produce the new 20 

bi-op.  She also reviewed the take authorized and noted that a 21 

determination of jeopardy was not likely.  Finally, she stated 22 

that comments on the Draft Environmental Impact Statement were 23 

due July 2, 2012. 24 

 25 

Under Other Business, the committee discussed a proposal 26 

developed by industry for submission to NRDA to equip the 27 

industry with new TEDs, which the estimated cost  would be 28 

approximately $10.8 million.  This was Gulf as well as South 29 

Atlantic, if I recall.  Following discussion, the committee 30 

recommends and I so move, to send a letter to Eric Schwaab with 31 

copy to Sam Rauch endorsing the Southern Shrimp Association’s 32 

TED proposal. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We have a committee 35 

motion.  Is there discussion on the motion?  Seeing no 36 

discussion, is there any objection to the motion?  Seeing no 37 

objection, the motion carries. 38 

 39 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Chairman, I would have thought that would have 40 

concluded my report, but I’ve got an email here asking that I 41 

ask Mr. Riechers to tell us about the proposal of the large 42 

offshore wind farms off of Texas which could impact prime 43 

traditional shrimp fishing grounds and so on and so forth and so 44 

if the group would like to hear about it, Mr. Riechers is 45 

supposedly the one that knows about it. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess I would ask if Mr. Riechers is prepared 48 
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to do that. 1 

 2 

MR. RIECHERS:  Only at a very high level, because the person who 3 

went to represent TPWD at the TSA meeting not too long ago had 4 

kind of versed themselves up on that, but I don’t have that 5 

briefing with me that would help me answer it in more detail. 6 

 7 

Basically, there are some wind farm proposals in south Texas off 8 

in the Gulf of Mexico.  Obviously, like oil rigs or anything 9 

else, those wind farm or wind turbines will have a footprint if 10 

they were to be sited there. 11 

 12 

As I understand it, I’m not even certain, and this is where I 13 

can’t really speak for certain, where we are in that permitting 14 

process at this point in time.   15 

 16 

Obviously as a commenter on any of those permits, Parks and 17 

Wildlife will discuss the issues regarding how it might impact 18 

any of the fisheries that we would have and we would, of course, 19 

send those comments to the appropriate permitting authority and 20 

hopefully work with them for any resolution that they seek to 21 

work with us on, but that’s basically where it stands.  I know, 22 

as far as I know, unless it has happened in the last little bit, 23 

that permit has not been issued as of this time. 24 

 25 

MR. PERRET:  Robin, and I don’t know whether you would know this 26 

or not, but if indeed these structures are put in, do you know 27 

if there are any plans at this time, during the permitting 28 

process, that would prohibit fishing activity within a certain 29 

buffer around these structures? 30 

 31 

MR. RIECHERS:  I don’t know. 32 

 33 

MR. PERRET:  If they go in, that could also -- That’s artificial 34 

habitat, I assume, and granted it would remove certain trawlable 35 

bottom, that’s for sure, but it could have impacts on a lot of 36 

our resources that we manage.  Thank you, Robin, for that. 37 

 38 

MR. RIECHERS:  I will just say that in the context of what I’ve 39 

heard about them, that has not been brought up, but I think 40 

we’re early in that whole process at this moment. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I plead guilty to not listening, but was that in 43 

federal waters, that proposal, or state waters or both? 44 

 45 

MR. RIECHERS:  My  belief is that it’s going to be in federal 46 

waters. 47 

 48 
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MR. ANSON:  I was just wondering, Robin, if you might know the 1 

numbers of those areas and then the size, acres or anything?  Do 2 

you know? 3 

 4 

MR. RIECHERS:  Here’s how I will put it to you all.  If you all 5 

would like for me to brief you on this at the next meeting, I 6 

will get fully briefed and get what we’ve compiled so far on 7 

this issue and bring it back to you. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think that’s an excellent idea. 10 

 11 

DR. PONWITH:  This is unrelated to wind farms, Mr. Chairman, but 12 

a request for consideration of a slight modification to the 13 

report.  In reading the report, there’s a statement attributed 14 

to Dr. Barbieri that we believed is not a perfect reflection of 15 

his intent. 16 

 17 

The statement is “Dr. Barbieri stated that although the SSC 18 

believes that the SS3 approach represented the best available 19 

science, the SSC did not think at this time it provides any more 20 

useful advice for management” and in our concern, we consulted 21 

with Dr. Barbieri this afternoon and made a modified statement 22 

that he confirmed more adequately represents what his intent 23 

was. 24 

 25 

That statement is that “Dr. Barbieri stated that although the 26 

SSC believed that the SS3 approach represented the best 27 

available science, the SSC needs to develop meaningful summaries 28 

from the SS3 outputs that can provide useful advice for 29 

management”. 30 

 31 

The issue in this case, the context for this, is that SS3 32 

generates monthly reports and ultimately, what we need is 33 

something that takes those monthly reports and combines them in 34 

a way that enables the SSC to look at them as annual cumulative 35 

and that is what Dr. Barbieri meant by the outputs.  It’s no 36 

reflection on the quality of the science for management more 37 

than the form of the science. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bonnie, and, Steven, do you see any 40 

difficulty in modifying the report to reflect the accurate 41 

intent? 42 

 43 

MR. ATRAN:  No and in fact, the SSC summary is provided to the 44 

SSC for final approval at the next SSC meeting and so I’ll need 45 

to get in touch with Dr. Barbieri and get that language and the 46 

correction will be made at the next SSC meeting. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  Very good and thank you.  Mr. Pearce has got his 1 

act together and does have a Data Collection Committee Report. 2 

 3 

MR. PEARCE:  If Trish will let me go, I’ll try.  Is it okay, 4 

Trish? 5 

 6 

MS. KENNEDY:  No, not yet. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  In that case, we’ll move on to Joint Artificial 9 

Reef and Habitat Committee Report and Mr. Anson. 10 

 11 

JOINT ARTIFICIAL REEF/HABITAT COMMITTEE REPORT 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  A summary of the Joint 14 

Artificial Reef and Habitat Protection Committee is submitted.  15 

The Artificial Reef members that were present during this 16 

committee meeting were myself, Mr. Greene, Mr. Riechers, Mr. 17 

Simpson, Dr. Shipp, and Ms. McCawley.  Habitat Protection 18 

Committee members consisted of Mr. Boyd, Mr. Pearce, and Mr. 19 

Perret. 20 

 21 

The agenda was amended to remove Tab F, Number 2, as no minutes 22 

were available, as this meeting was the first joint meeting of 23 

these committees.  The amended agenda was adopted.   24 

 25 

The Joint Artificial Reef/Habitat Protection Committee met to 26 

consider the process that would be required to modify Essential 27 

Fish Habitat designation to include artificial substrate.  Mr. 28 

David Dale gave an overview presentation about how Essential 29 

Fish Habitat and Habitat Areas of Particular Concern are 30 

evaluated and designated in the Gulf of Mexico. 31 

 32 

Mr. Dale indicated that a similar process would be necessary to 33 

evaluate artificial substrates as EFH or EFH HAPC, habitat areas 34 

of particular concern, and would include a review of all 35 

federally managed species by life stage.    36 

 37 

Dr. Froeschke reviewed the Fixed Petroleum Platforms and 38 

Artificial Reefs as Essential Fish Habitat Options Paper.  The 39 

committee reviewed two actions.  Number 1 was Habitat Type 40 

Designation of Artificial Substrate and Fixed Petroleum 41 

Platforms and Number 2 was consideration of additional 42 

protective measures through habitat designation of artificial 43 

substrate in the Gulf of Mexico as Essential Fish Habitat or 44 

Essential Fish Habitat-Habitat Areas of Particular Concern.   45 

 46 

The committee considered both actions and recommended continued 47 

development along with recommendations of the IPT for the next 48 
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draft to be presented at the August 2012 council meeting.  The 1 

committee discussed what substrate these actions should include, 2 

for example fixed petroleum structures or all artificial 3 

substrate, but did not make a recommendation at this time.  Mr. 4 

Chairman, this concludes my report. 5 

 6 

DR. SHIPP:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to make a motion that we 7 

move the priority of this amendment to A rather than B.  If I 8 

can get a second, I will give the rationale. 9 

 10 

We heard testimony probably from a third to a half of the public 11 

today as to how important this is.  It’s a very simple and short 12 

amendment and John has done a really good job and there’s not 13 

that much more to do and so I think we need to move it to the A 14 

priority. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Is there further discussion on the motion? 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  To the comment that there’s not much more to do, 19 

there’s a great deal more to do with this.  The amendment right 20 

now, I think, has two pages for the alternatives and so there’s 21 

no analysis whatsoever in the amendment right now and so we’re a 22 

long way from getting this done and I just want to correct the 23 

impression that somehow this is close to being finished, because 24 

it’s not. 25 

 26 

DR. SHIPP:  I don’t totally disagree, but compared to some of 27 

our other amendments, this is much shorter and your comments 28 

make the arguments for moving this to A.  If we have that much 29 

more to do and this is of such importance to so many of the 30 

stakeholders, I think that’s an argument for the motion. 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think it depends on comments and if we move 33 

this to A, do we need to drop something that’s A now off to B 34 

and so what is it that we’re going to slow down on?  It’s easy 35 

to say everything is a high priority, but that’s -- 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Dr. Crabtree, you’re preempting the office of 38 

the chair and so I was going to ask that question.  Dr. Bortone, 39 

since this is a workload issue, I think that needs to get 40 

fleshed out before we get too far down this discussion. 41 

 42 

I know it’s off the cuff, Dr. Bortone, but can you give us some 43 

insight as to the ramifications that if this motion passed, what 44 

impact might it have that we ought to take under consideration? 45 

 46 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The major thing that John is 47 

working on here, as I look at it, is the Generic Amendment for 48 
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Dealer Permits.  I would then ask John, what about your 1 

scheduling and are you going to be able to fit this in with some 2 

of the other things that are happening? 3 

 4 

DR. JOHN FROESCHKE:  I can do.  If that’s the will, I’ll do it. 5 

 6 

MR. PHIL STEELE:  Let’s just remember that John is not the only 7 

one working on this amendment.  This amendment may involve 8 

development of a full blown EIS and so there’s a lot of other 9 

staff workloads and would you give us a little time to talk 10 

between ourselves and maybe come back tomorrow to you with some 11 

resolution on this? 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Do you think that you can provide additional 14 

guidance by tomorrow? 15 

 16 

MR. STEELE:  We can discuss it, myself and Dr. Bortone, and give 17 

you some guidance, yes, to see where we stand with this thing. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  With that in mind, I would ask if you would 20 

table this motion until tomorrow. 21 

 22 

DR. SHIPP:  I agree to table the motion until tomorrow. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Any disagreement amongst the council?  Very good 25 

and thank you very much.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Given the 26 

hour and given the reports that we have left, by my tally, it 27 

seems advisable to me that we recess today until tomorrow at 28 

8:30, where we are ahead of schedule, but we do have some heavy 29 

hauling to do tomorrow. 30 

 31 

I would like to mention to all present, in the audience and at 32 

the table, that across the hall they will be having a cocktail 33 

reception at six o’clock in which we are not involved and so I 34 

would ask that you would respect their cocktail reception and no 35 

purloining of the beverages, Dr. Crabtree. 36 

 37 

Thank you very much and we’ll stand in recess until tomorrow 38 

morning at 8:30 and we will commence precisely then with the 39 

Reef Fish Committee.  We stand in recess. 40 

 41 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 5:45 p.m., June 20, 2012.) 42 

 43 

- - - 44 

 45 

June 21, 2012 46 

 47 

THURSDAY MORNING SESSION 48 
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 1 

- - - 2 

 3 

 4 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 5 

Council reconvened at the Hilton Tampa Airport Hotel, Tampa, 6 

Florida, Thursday morning, June 21, 2012, and was called to 7 

order at 8:30 a.m. by Chairman Bob Gill. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will get started this morning.  We are going 10 

to jump around a little bit on committee reports today, but 11 

before we get started, I wanted to apologize, because I did not 12 

recognize our Coast Guard contingent to my port side.  13 

Lieutenant Rob Foos is going to be leaving us.  This is his last 14 

meeting and I failed to recognize it and, Rob, I appreciate you 15 

being here and we appreciate your counsel and wish you well in 16 

the future and Godspeed. 17 

 18 

The first thing I think we ought to do this morning is go back 19 

to Artificial Reef/Habitat to clean up the motion raised by Dr. 20 

Shipp and so I will recognize Dr. Shipp.  A better way to do 21 

that would be to recognize Dr. Bortone, since the charge was to 22 

get together with the agency to determine workload and ability 23 

to accomplish the motion that was proffered. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Thank you, Mr. Gill.  John 26 

Froeschke, Phil Steele, and I met this morning and went over the 27 

issue at hand.  We had some discussion about that.  Our concern 28 

is that we feel this could be a potentially extraordinarily 29 

complex problem and then hopefully it isn’t. 30 

 31 

When we looked at the action sheet and John’s responsibilities 32 

and also Phil’s group, because it’s going to involve the IPT, we 33 

felt like at the next council meeting we should be able to 34 

present a scoping document regarding this particular issue. 35 

 36 

That would have given us the opportunity to examine all the 37 

consequences of this and what might be involved with it and then 38 

the suggestion was also made, and we can concur later about what 39 

we should do, would be to have a presentation of that at the 40 

next council meeting and also a presentation from 41 

representatives of BSEE or BOEMRE or whatever their name is now 42 

at the same time, to see the consequences that they see of this, 43 

and then from there, make a longer term plan of what the project 44 

should be and also, of course, raising that to the rank level of 45 

A, which is high priority. 46 

 47 

However, there’s a caveat with that.  Of raising that to the 48 
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high priority that it is, John is also -- We believe we’ll be 1 

tasked with running a Data AP and that probably won’t be able to 2 

happen before the next council meeting if we move this up and 3 

put all our energy into that and so that is the suggestion, that 4 

we report back to you with a scoping document, or at least the 5 

outline of a scoping document, and present that along with the 6 

input from the Minerals Management Service people, the old 7 

Minerals Management Service, and with the suggestion that the 8 

Data AP be moved to not be held before the next council meeting. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  With that, I guess to move forward, we either 11 

need a new motion or untable this motion. 12 

 13 

DR. SHIPP:  I would like to untable this motion and I would like 14 

to vote on it and I have a couple of comments. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We’ve got a motion to untable and is there a 17 

second?  It’s been seconded.  All those in favor of untabling 18 

the motion say aye; all opposed like sign.  The motion passes 19 

and the motion is back on the table. 20 

 21 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I appreciate what Dr. 22 

Bortone said.  I don’t think that really influences the motion 23 

one way or the other though.  We still would like to see it 24 

moved as rapidly as possible and he has outlined what is 25 

possible and I would also like to comment on the BOEMRE 26 

contribution. 27 

 28 

I don’t think we as a council ought to be concerned with non-29 

fishery issues.  What we’re concerned about is EFH as a fishery 30 

issue and as far as liability concerns and other aspects, I just 31 

don’t think that’s anything for us to worry about.   32 

 33 

Now, I would appreciate their comments and there may be some 34 

other aspects of it that involve fisheries that we’re not aware 35 

of and so I welcome them taking part in a presentation, but, 36 

again, I think our role is not liability and not any other 37 

issues other than fisheries and so I support the motion, 38 

obviously. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  I don’t think 41 

Mr. Pearce was awake, but did you hear that part of it was the 42 

Data AP will be deferred if the motion passes? 43 

 44 

MR. RIECHERS:  Just to add to that, and I can’t even remember 45 

where in Texas -- It wasn’t the last Texas meeting, but the 46 

meeting before that, we had -- I saw we, but Texas Parks and 47 

Wildlife and the Artificial Reef Program got one of the 48 



101 

 

representatives to come. 1 

 2 

They met with a bunch of the fishing organizations from Texas in 3 

a meeting away from our meeting, so that they could have that 4 

conversation and put a face on this problem.  Having them come 5 

and talk to us about their concerns, at this point I don’t think 6 

their concerns are the same concerns we have and I kind of agree 7 

with Dr. Shipp. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion? 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think it would be valuable to have them come 12 

in.  If we do establish these structures as essential fish 13 

habitat, they will then be the consulting agency that will have 14 

to consult with us on essential fish habitat and so we’re going 15 

to hear their concerns and the quicker we hear their concerns, 16 

the better we can deal with them, but if we don’t have them come 17 

in and listen to their concerns now, then they’re going to come 18 

in much later in the process and that may slow the whole thing 19 

down, trying to deal with their concerns. 20 

 21 

If you really want this to move quickly, you would be much 22 

better off to hear them out very early on, so that we could deal 23 

with those sooner rather than later. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Our rationale was that we felt that 26 

if there were those concerns, as Roy just mentioned, we would 27 

like to know those while we are preparing the scoping document 28 

and that would help make this process go faster. 29 

 30 

DR. SHIPP:  I don’t disagree and I’m welcoming them coming, but 31 

I’m just saying that we need to focus on our role, which is the 32 

impact on other fisheries, and not other legal aspects, but I 33 

don’t have any problem with them coming at all. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion? 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  The issue here is the impact not on fisheries, 38 

but it’s the impact on essential fish habitat and that’s much 39 

broader and more complicated and so they’re not going to come in 40 

and consult necessarily that this may impact the fishery, but 41 

they’re going to come in and have to consult on the impacts on 42 

the habitat and that’s a much broader context of the entire 43 

ecosystem and a whole lot of things.  I think it’s broader than 44 

you’re laying it out, Bob. 45 

 46 

MR. PERRET:  I’m just wondering -- We’re scheduled to meet 47 

again, when, in August?  Is that right?  What’s a two-month 48 
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delay?  I’m with Roy and I would rather get as much information 1 

as we can, but saying that, Gulf States has sent -- Larry, 2 

correct me if I’m wrong, but we’ve sent two letters expressing 3 

our concern about this and we’ve had representatives of whatever 4 

the agency is now come to Gulf States and we’ve expressed our 5 

concerns about this program and we’ve gone on record and -- 6 

Larry, did we even get a response from the agency on the letters 7 

we sent?  We got one response and thank you for your input and 8 

that sort of thing and I guess that’s what we got. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will vote on the motion.  The motion is to 11 

change the priority of the Fixed Petroleum Platforms and 12 

Artificial Reefs as Essential Fish Habitat amendment from 13 

Priority B to Priority A on the Council Action Schedule. 14 

 15 

MR. PERRET:  I have a question.  If we do this, what are we 16 

pushing back?  What gets impacted? 17 

 18 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  In anticipation of the request to 19 

have a Data AP before the next council meeting, it would 20 

probably have to be moved after the next council meeting. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I read the motion and all those in favor of the 23 

motion say aye; all those opposed like sign.  The motion passes.  24 

Before we go on to the next committee report, a little 25 

scheduling is in order. 26 

 27 

My read is that we’re likely to go until one or two o’clock 28 

anyway and so my thinking is that we will probably take a lunch 29 

break, but we will reassess it in the late morning and consider 30 

the option of working through lunch if that’s the pleasure of 31 

the council, but we’ll have to see at that point in time.  The 32 

next committee report, the long-delayed Data Collection 33 

Committee and Chairman Pearce. 34 

 35 

DATA COLLECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 36 

 37 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  As I begin this report 38 

too, in lieu of what we just did with the Data Committee meeting 39 

before the next council meeting, I sure would like to entertain 40 

a motion that we push it until after the next council meeting, 41 

but I sure would like to keep it going and so if anybody would 42 

do that, it would be great. 43 

 44 

First off, the Data Collection Committee met and all members 45 

were present.  The agenda was adopted as written and the minutes 46 

of the April 18, 2012 meeting were approved with no 47 

modifications.   48 
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 1 

Dr. Froeschke provided a summary report of the Ad Hoc Private 2 

Recreational Advisory Panel meeting held May 17, 2012 in Tampa, 3 

Florida to discuss private recreational fisheries data 4 

collection in the Gulf of Mexico.   5 

 6 

The committee reviewed the panel recommendations and recognized 7 

that additional meeting time is required to refine 8 

recommendations to the council regarding web-based phone 9 

applications and other means to improve data collection and 10 

outreach in private recreational fisheries.   11 

 12 

The committee recommends, and I so move, to request that the 13 

council reconvene the Ad Hoc Private Recreational Data 14 

Collection Advisory Panel to pursue and make additional 15 

recommendations to the council on the subjects of web-based 16 

phone apps and other means of public outreach to improve the 17 

fishing public’s understanding of the MRIP process.  In 18 

addition, to further explore boat permits and electronic-based 19 

reporting programs to characterize catch. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 22 

on the motion?  Seeing none, is there any objection to the 23 

motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries. 24 

 25 

MR. PEARCE:  I would think that we would need to make it clear 26 

that that meeting won’t be until after the next meeting, if you 27 

think that that’s germane, or should we just wait and just do 28 

it? 29 

 30 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s not necessary.  We’ll do it as 31 

soon as possible. 32 

 33 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you.  The committee reviewed the 34 

modifications to the Federally-Permitted Seafood Dealer 35 

Reporting Requirements and discussed the purpose  36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Harlon, one moment, please. 38 

 39 

DR. MCILWAIN:  In that data group, the Ad Hoc Private 40 

Recreational Data, one of their charges was to look at some type 41 

of tag system and that wasn’t accomplished.  In fact, I think 42 

they passed a motion that they wouldn’t even consider that. 43 

 44 

I would like to make a motion that we add to that ad hoc 45 

committee additional members who have expertise in data 46 

collection to assist them in furthering some of these concepts, 47 

if I can get a second. 48 
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 1 

MR. PEARCE:  We have a motion on the table and do we have a 2 

second?  We have a second.  Any discussion on the motion? 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Let’s get the motion on the board. 5 

 6 

DR. FROESCHKE:  Just to provide a little feedback from the AP, 7 

since I sat on it as staff support, I think one of the stumbling 8 

blocks for the tag program is they couldn’t remove themselves 9 

from the -- They felt that an allocation issue was inextricably 10 

tied to any sort of tagging program if there were a finite 11 

number of tags distributed and I think that was more the 12 

sticking point with the tagging program than tags themselves. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I will add to that.  I was there and I think Dr. 15 

Froeschke is correct.  It’s not so much expertise as it was a 16 

philosophical objection to the concept of a tagging system. 17 

 18 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I think the charge of the committee though was to 19 

look at that and they didn’t accomplish that. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  They rejected it and so they looked at it and 22 

rejected it and it’s kind of like us moving it to considered but 23 

rejected. 24 

 25 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I wasn’t there and I received a little bit of 26 

feedback and it’s kind of like what you’re hearing.  They 27 

rejected it and they really didn’t want to talk about it that 28 

much, but the thing is that was their charge. 29 

 30 

We asked them to give us, to help us, with these ideas of the 31 

data collection and different things and the way that we’re 32 

going to do that.  Maybe we need to add some more people to the 33 

panel or maybe we need to further discuss with this panel about 34 

their fears, so that they don’t think that we’re trying to pull 35 

something over on them and that we’re trying to help them.  36 

There’s definitely some disconnect there. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  In my mind, it’s no different than us taking an 39 

idea and moving it to considered but rejected.  They did 40 

consider it and they rejected it.  Now, I think what you all are 41 

saying is that you want them to go back and reconsider it and 42 

that’s kind of different, but they did accept -- They did 43 

discuss it and they decided they wanted no part of it. 44 

 45 

Whether I agree with it or disagree with it isn’t the point, but 46 

they do what we asked them to do and that was the only thing 47 

they did.  The rest of the charges they didn’t address and that 48 
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was kind of what I addressed in committee was my heartburn, but 1 

they did address it. 2 

 3 

DR. ABELE:  It was a close vote, according to the -- I wasn’t 4 

there, but the minutes report seven yes and five no and I don’t 5 

think that’s such an overwhelming vote that it would be 6 

inappropriate to ask them to take a second look. 7 

 8 

MR. ANSON:  I just wanted to echo Mr. Gill’s and Dr. Froeschke’s 9 

comments.  I was there also at the meeting and although it was a 10 

close vote, the winning side -- That was their reasoning, was 11 

that they felt it touched or came too close to catch shares. 12 

 13 

I think if it’s the council’s wishes to actually direct them 14 

with looking at tags, then they need to give them some direction 15 

as to what the bounds are for a tag program and whether it’s 16 

just an open access tag program or if it’s more restrictive in 17 

nature.  That might help them to kind of get them all on the 18 

same page and come up with a product that the council is looking 19 

for. 20 

 21 

MR. BOYD:  Mr. Gill has passed the gavel and I will recognize 22 

Mr. Gill. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  It seems to me that 25 

what you all are asking really is that they relook at the 26 

program, but I’m not convinced that we need to go back out and 27 

advertise and go through the duration to find additional 28 

members. 29 

 30 

What you really want them to do is take the item, the charge, 31 

and reconsider it and consider all the ramifications of that 32 

decision and come back to the council with their answer, which, 33 

again, may be another rejection. 34 

 35 

I’m going to offer a substitute motion, because I think the more 36 

expedient way to go is have them regroup and meet again and 37 

reconsider the question, but if we go through this, they won’t 38 

meet until 2013 sometime and so all we’re doing is introducing a 39 

substantial delay.  40 

 41 

My substitute motion is that we request the Ad Hoc Private 42 

Recreational Data Collection Advisory Panel to reconsider a 43 

potential fish tag system in the Gulf of Mexico. 44 

 45 

MR. BOYD:  We have a substitute motion on the board.  We need a 46 

second.  Do I have a second?  Harlon.  Any discussion? 47 

 48 
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MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Mr. Chair, and I think I would like to 1 

amend this motion and it could be a friendly amendment, if the 2 

maker so chooses, but I think I would like to see some other 3 

language in there. 4 

 5 

The potential fish tag system, it’s not defined and so give a 6 

loose bound.  It could be a hard number fish tag or it could be 7 

a virtual tag.  We’ve talked about virtual tags in Louisiana and 8 

it could be any of the accounting systems.  I think what we want 9 

to see is an accounting system that works. 10 

 11 

They may just have an issue with the hard tag, but have this 12 

great system that mirrors it, but it’s not covered under here 13 

and so I would like the language to reflect a counting system, 14 

whether it’s hard tags or virtual tags, but let them discuss the 15 

whole gamut. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  To that point, Myron, I understand where you’re 18 

going and I would agree with that, but they had -- Help me, 19 

Kevin, but they had two other charges that I think did some of 20 

that and the charge for a fish tag system was quite specific, I 21 

think, and if that’s correct, then I think trying to morph it 22 

into the other two charges makes it tougher and not easier.  If 23 

I am incorrect, then please correct me. 24 

 25 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s fine and I would like to see their view on 26 

this in particular.  I’m just trying to loosen it up to make it 27 

more palatable for them to get a discussion out, but this is 28 

fine. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It is to the motion and it’s also to the meeting, 31 

because I heard Bob say we couldn’t do this until 2013, which 32 

I’m still having a little difficulty with, because we’re in June 33 

and I thought you said we’ve got to wait until 2013 to have -- 34 

To that point, if he wants to go ahead and clear it up. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  What I was addressing was the additional motion 37 

that was proposed that wanted to appoint additional members.  38 

That means we’ve got to go out and advertise and then go through 39 

selection and all that and so by the time you got that done, you 40 

wouldn’t get anything until 2013, in my estimation. 41 

 42 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay, because I was just thinking you would 43 

advertise and do it in August and you could have a meeting in 44 

August or the next month is all, because this is an important 45 

issue that we need to get moving on. 46 

 47 

Also, I think as they discuss this motion, kind of like Myron, 48 
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that they can -- They need to explore all of the avenues and 1 

even help us how we would do it or who could help us do it and 2 

how they would envision something like this and hopefully then 3 

something would come out of there, but what would be even more 4 

helpful if we had before us is verbatim minutes of that meeting, 5 

so that we could all read what took place and what happened. 6 

 7 

Surely it can’t be that difficult on the meetings that are this 8 

important or maybe have some contentious issues if we could 9 

start doing -- Go back to doing some verbatim minutes.  That 10 

would help us all out, because all of us aren’t there to hear. 11 

 12 

DR. ABELE:  If I was on the committee, I’m not sure how I would 13 

respond after voting something down to say look at it again.  14 

Perhaps -- We heard from Louisiana that they are, quote, 15 

establish offshore landing permits, quote, establish harvest 16 

tracking and reporting requirements. 17 

 18 

Would it be worthwhile if that information or however they’re 19 

setting it up could be transmitted to the Data Collection?  If 20 

some group has already worked on it and outlined it and as I 21 

heard it, it sounded very much like a tag system to me, even if 22 

it’s after the fact, and so that might be something that -- I 23 

don’t think that they were aware of it when they met, but now 24 

that they are, perhaps that could be transmitted. 25 

 26 

MR. ANSON:  I support Myron if he’s successful in getting a 27 

friendly amendment to the motion, because I do not support the 28 

motion as it is written right now, Mr. Gill, because it is not -29 

- Although it could be interpreted as being very broad, I think 30 

that they would take this as just like they did the first time 31 

around and have a hard time trying to wrap their minds around 32 

it, whereas Myron was trying to be a little bit more open and 33 

give them the flexibility to expand and as far as adding 34 

additional members, I think the group was very engaged. 35 

 36 

The members, I was very impressed with, to be honest with you.  37 

They were very open-minded and I don’t think -- It would slow 38 

the process down and I don’t think it’s really necessary to add 39 

additional folks. 40 

 41 

It may be necessary to add or bring in some more people maybe 42 

from Louisiana or some other folks that have expertise on 43 

tagging systems that we could have a review, but it would add to 44 

the complexity of the charge and it just may take a little 45 

longer for them to actually come up with the deliverables that 46 

the council has requested and just keep that in mind. 47 

 48 
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MR. GREENE:  I was going to kind of go along the same lines of 1 

what Myron had mentioned and Kevin as well.  It sounds like the 2 

panel is very engaged and willing to consider this type of 3 

stuff, but I’m just wondering if potentially maybe someone from 4 

the agency could come in and maybe -- I know they had a big 5 

presentation about the MRIP stuff. 6 

 7 

I don’t know if maybe a little more guidance on what a tagging 8 

program could be or couldn’t be and it kind of goes back to the 9 

original thoughts of Mr. Fischer. 10 

 11 

DR. FROESCHKE:  One thing that might help their deliberations is 12 

if perhaps you all could provide a bit of guidance on how you 13 

envision this tagging system.  The thing that they struggled 14 

with was if this would be intended as a broad-based data 15 

collection system with a finite number of tags or it was more of 16 

a management tool or a -- Excuse me, but a data collection with 17 

an unlimited number of tags, perhaps, or more of a management 18 

tool, with a finite number of tags. 19 

 20 

That’s where they really began to get into trouble, because if 21 

they were considering a finite number of tags and then it was 22 

inextricably linked -- That it was linked to some sort of 23 

allocation or catch shares or something like that.  If that’s 24 

not the intent and it’s more of a broad-based data collection 25 

tool, perhaps that guidance would inform them as to your intent. 26 

 27 

MR. RIECHERS:  I just share some concerns that we’ve asked this 28 

group to give us an answer and they gave us an answer and now 29 

we’re asking them to give us an answer again.   30 

 31 

I shared some concerns when we put this group together that if 32 

you really want a tagging system developed, this group can 33 

certainly say we want a tagging system developed, but if you’re 34 

going to develop a tagging system, it’s going to have to either 35 

be some of the folks in MRIP or some of the folks in the states 36 

who are going to work through all the issues that the states 37 

would have to go through to develop a tagging system or how it 38 

would intertwine with MRIP. 39 

 40 

I certainly don’t mind these folks going back and reviewing that 41 

again, but at best I think they’re going to say that yes, we 42 

would like some notion of a tagging system or no, we wouldn’t 43 

like some notion of a tagging system and they’ve given us that 44 

answer.  I’m a little concerned we’re searching for an answer 45 

here. 46 

 47 

DR. PONWITH:  Again, I think what’s happening here is -- For me, 48 
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what helps is to go back to the original purpose for having this 1 

group created and that was to provide a recreational 2 

perspective, a recreational fisher’s perspective, on ways to 3 

enhance data collection and to me, it’s an important 4 

perspective, because that is one of our most difficult 5 

components of the harvesting public to get a grasp on. 6 

 7 

I think that perspective is very, very valuable, but in a vacuum 8 

it’s problematic, because they’re experts on recreational 9 

fishing and not necessarily the data collection. 10 

 11 

To me, the real value of having this group is the synergy you 12 

would get when you put your experts on data collection and on 13 

sample design together with your experts on recreational fishing 14 

to get more than the sum of the parts and so I wonder if the 15 

problems that the group had was that they were missing that 16 

synergy. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chair, I would like to make a substitute 19 

motion to request the Ad Hoc Private Recreational Data 20 

Collection Advisory Panel to create a range of alternatives for 21 

monitoring and counting the recreational harvest.   22 

 23 

That would be the motion.  The gist would be that we would have 24 

staff give them an example of ranges, from anything possible 25 

that’s known in the country that works, from wildlife, 26 

waterfowl, fisheries, try to marry in all these different ideas 27 

and how it could possibly work in fish and let them look at the 28 

whole gamut and prioritize and rank them.  Anyone who wants to 29 

reword or amend it, go for it. 30 

 31 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion on the board and do we have a 32 

second?  We have a second.  Is there discussion?   33 

 34 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have two comments.  One is, Myron, since you 35 

said you wouldn’t mind a friendly amendment, we have an Ad Hoc 36 

Recreational Red Snapper AP or we did in 2008.  I’m reading from 37 

that meeting and it said that they recommended regional 38 

management along state boundaries and their proposal was on 39 

pages 1 and 2 of the attached summary. 40 

 41 

A white paper that I had prepared for the AP used on regional 42 

management is on pages 8 and 9.  The AP meeting apparently 43 

occurred after the April 2008 interim report to the council in 44 

which the AP simply recommended appropriate regional management 45 

strategies. 46 

 47 

At that meeting, they discussed fish tags, I believe.  Myron was 48 
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on that panel and there may be something even in that report and 1 

would it be useful maybe to have those same individuals that was 2 

on that AP and that way you wouldn’t be going out and having to 3 

advertise and maybe putting those two groups together to come 4 

back and meet and help us with this and give us some 5 

suggestions?  How do you feel about that, Myron, accepting a 6 

friendly amendment to have the two APs meet? 7 

 8 

MR. FISCHER:  That’s not the germane part of the motion.  I 9 

think that AP -- The problem was that AP was dysfunctional, 10 

because of the different user groups and the different people 11 

present.  Things came to a head and the AP was abandoned. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t know what you’re talking about.  It did 14 

not come to a head and we got a lot of information out of there.  15 

Where there was some conflict is I was there and Bobbi Walker 16 

was there, from what I’m recalling, and there was some people 17 

who came in with some ideas that was different and that was the 18 

conflict, was some people in the audience and Ms. Walker.  I’m 19 

sorry, but they did their job and they reported. 20 

 21 

MR. BOYD:  Let me get us back to this motion. 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think if you pass this motion that you need to 24 

make sure that you have appropriate staff there with expertise 25 

in surveys and data collection and those kinds of things, 26 

because I’m afraid if they don’t have those types of experts 27 

there, they may come up with some things that sound good, but 28 

simply aren’t workable or aren’t scientifically defensible and 29 

then they submit all those to us and then when we don’t follow 30 

through with them, it just creates the frustration. 31 

 32 

I think it’s important to have the scientific expertise there so 33 

when they come up with these that they can have a detailed 34 

discussion of what the problems are, so that everyone there 35 

understands it and I think that has a real outreach function, 36 

which, in my view, is a large part of what we’re trying to do 37 

here, is education and outreach. 38 

 39 

I’m not sure exactly who those people are, Steve, but I think 40 

it’s critical that we have them and I know we did have them at 41 

the first meeting, but I think we need to try to do that again. 42 

 43 

MR. SIMPSON:  I think Roy just about said everything I wanted to 44 

say.  I wanted to agree with what Bonnie said and I wanted to 45 

agree with what Roy is saying.  The main purpose of these 46 

meetings, as I see it, is an outreach function. 47 

 48 
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If you’re trying to design a data collection system, then you 1 

want to talk to those users and constituents about how to 2 

implement it and problems associated with it and not how to 3 

design it.  A minute ago, I wanted to say something about what 4 

do you want out of a tagging system, because you were just going 5 

all over the map.  Do you want to be able to have a definitive 6 

number at the end of the game or do you just want some survey 7 

information that you can get other ways?  You’ve got to decide 8 

what you want to begin with. 9 

 10 

I think the main function is kind of an outreach and get their 11 

practical application of how these things would work in their 12 

business and I don’t think you want them designing data 13 

collection systems. 14 

 15 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I just have to agree with Dr. Crabtree.  It gets 16 

back to my original motion that we have the expertise available 17 

to that group, so that they can evaluate these. 18 

 19 

DR. DANA:  Larry may have just answered this and I’m not quite 20 

sure, but, Bonnie, in a tag system, what kind of information 21 

would you need for your Center or for the Center? 22 

 23 

DR. PONWITH:  That depends upon what the purpose of the tag 24 

system is and so if you as a management body set forth a 25 

management objective and the tool you wanted to use to achieve 26 

that objective was tags, that kind of information would drive 27 

how you would set up the tag program. 28 

 29 

Again, it gets right back to part of the earlier conversation of 30 

why this may not have gone any farther, is kind of a lack of 31 

understanding of what the primary objective of that system is, 32 

which is I think a pretty important starting point. 33 

 34 

DR. DANA:  I was not at that meeting, but were not MRIP staff at 35 

that meeting and would they not be considered experts on some of 36 

these things?  I don’t know. 37 

 38 

MR. ANSON:  This is, I don’t know, but a minor detail, I guess.  39 

Certainly they would have the minutes to feel the mood of the 40 

council, but they were given a specific task relative to tagging 41 

and they came back with a product and this just does not mention 42 

tags and that’s why we’re discussing this very issue, is tags, 43 

and I was just wondering if it needs to specifically state a 44 

tagging program in the substitute motion. 45 

 46 

MR. BOYD:  I have Dr. Crabtree and then we’re going to vote on 47 

the issue. 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think a lot of the problem comes back to us.  2 

We’re too vague and ill-defined on what we’re asking of people.  3 

If we want to do a tag system and have them look at it, then 4 

let’s talk about what is it we’re trying to do with a tag 5 

system. 6 

 7 

To me, if it’s just a data collection program, I don’t regard it 8 

as having much value, but if it’s to try and control the harvest 9 

and make sure we don’t have overruns and things, then we ought 10 

to lay out those parameters and think it through and make some 11 

decisions. 12 

 13 

No one is satisfied with where we are now, but we don’t seem 14 

capable of breaking out of where we are and actually deciding to 15 

do anything.  We get stuck with it’s controversial and tag 16 

systems will get identified as catch shares and everybody is 17 

going to yell and scream and so we just sit where we are.  I 18 

think a lot of it is just that we’re not defining what it is we 19 

want people to look at very clearly. 20 

 21 

MR. BOYD:  Ms. Williams and then we’re going to vote. 22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Steve, would you please email that paper that you 24 

emailed me that took place from the Red Snapper Recreational?  25 

They actually discussed and passed motions, back in 2008, on 26 

catch cards and fish tag systems. 27 

 28 

MR. STEVEN ATRAN:  Kay, do you want me to send both files that I 29 

sent to you?  One was a file that was called “Interim Report” 30 

that was presented to the council and the other was just a 31 

summary of the meeting. 32 

 33 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I am reading the one where they actually passed 34 

the motions and it was a hand vote that carried and it’s the 35 

“Summary of the Ad Hoc Recreational Red Snapper Advisory Panel 36 

Meeting” in Kenner, Louisiana on October 20 through the 22. 37 

 38 

MR. ATRAN:  Okay.  I know what you’re talking about. 39 

 40 

MR. BOYD:  We have two substitute motions on the board.  The 41 

last motion was made by Myron and the second substitute motion 42 

is to request that the Ad Hoc Private Recreational Data 43 

Collection Advisory Panel create a range of alternatives for 44 

monitoring and counting the recreational harvest.  All in favor 45 

show of hands; all opposed.  The motion is defeated. 46 

 47 

We go back to the previous substitute motion and that is to 48 
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request the Ad Hoc Private Recreational Data Collection Advisory 1 

Panel to reconsider a potential fish tag system in the Gulf of 2 

Mexico. 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  Again, I think if you’re going to pass this 5 

motion that you need to lay out some specifics about what is it 6 

you want them to look at and what’s the purpose of it and what 7 

are you trying to accomplish?  Otherwise, I think we’re just 8 

going to go back to them and ask them to redo what they just did 9 

and I doubt they will get any further. 10 

 11 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Roy, what we can do, and we’ve done 12 

this in the past, is try to give some direction.  With this 13 

motion, I believe John can create a series of alternatives.  You 14 

can work on there if you would like, but we know where you’re 15 

going with this and it would be useful for us to sit down and 16 

put down a series of those and have them -- We want them to come 17 

away with a useful product as well and so it’s up to you if you 18 

want to muscle that out now, but we can do that. 19 

 20 

DR. CRABTREE:  In my opinion, this is more than just a data 21 

collection system.  If we’re going to do a fish tag system, it’s 22 

more of a management program for the recreational fishery is how 23 

I see it. 24 

 25 

MR. PERRET:  We’re off to a great start.  If I were on the Ad 26 

Hoc Private Recreational Data Collection Advisory Panel and I 27 

received a request as a panel member to reconsider something 28 

that we just supplied, I think I would send you the same 29 

information we’ve already provided you, unless we have further 30 

guidance and that’s where we seem to be getting hung up, on the 31 

further guidance thing, but the motion there, as is, to just to 32 

reconsider what they’ve already looked at and I don’t think 33 

that’s appropriate.  We’ve asked them once and they gave us 34 

something. 35 

 36 

MR. BOYD:  Let’s vote this one up or down.  The substitute 37 

motion is to request the Ad Hoc Private Recreational Data 38 

Collection Advisory Panel to reconsider a potential fish tag 39 

system in the Gulf of Mexico.  All in favor say aye; all 40 

opposed.  The motion fails.  What’s your pleasure?  We’re back 41 

to the original motion. 42 

 43 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Someone remind me what the words “some of these 44 

concepts” were.  I see what was in the original motion, but I’m 45 

just not sure what we’re referring to. 46 

 47 

MR. BOYD:  Dr. McIlwain, can you clarify? 48 
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 1 

DR. MCILWAIN:  The fish tag is the issue that I was concerned 2 

about and I would like -- We either give them the instructions 3 

or we put people on the committee that can provide that 4 

information. 5 

 6 

MR. BOYD:  We’re back to the original motion by Dr. McIlwain 7 

and, Larry, go ahead. 8 

 9 

MR. SIMPSON:  Tom, I think a better politic way of doing this is 10 

just at the next meeting, say there seemed to be a little 11 

confusion and the council was concerned that you all might have 12 

gotten off on the wrong foot and then have John and whoever they 13 

need to give them a presentation again, rather than go through 14 

the process of putting more people on. 15 

 16 

I’m like Corky and it seems to me that if I was on that 17 

committee, I would say, okay, they’ve got a predetermined idea 18 

of what they want to do and they’re forcing us into it.  I 19 

really don’t think you need a motion.  I think you can handle it 20 

administratively, personally. 21 

 22 

MS. WILLIAMS:  If the council members would take a look at that 23 

thirty-eight-page report that the private recreational fishermen 24 

-- Bob Zales was on it and they gave us the ideas from A to Z of 25 

how to do it, top, bottom, sideways.   26 

 27 

You’ve already got your answers in that report.  Everything that 28 

you could possibly ask them and want an answer to is in that 29 

report and so we would just actually -- It’s about data 30 

collection and so if you would read it, you would find out we’ve 31 

already asked a group that we got together and it was all 32 

private recreational fishermen. 33 

 34 

There was one commercial person on there, but everybody else was 35 

private recreational.  You had some charter and you had just 36 

your private recreational and so we’ve already done this.  37 

 38 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you.  Mr. Pearce and then we’re going to vote 39 

this one up or down. 40 

 41 

MR. PEARCE:  I agree.  I agree with what Tom is saying, but I 42 

also agree with Larry.  I think we’ve got a whole meeting ahead 43 

of us that we can really flesh this out.  This isn’t going to 44 

happen until after our August meeting and so I think that we’re 45 

all kind of floundering here about the direction we want to go 46 

and I think that we wait until the next meeting and have it on 47 

the agenda, on the Data Collection agenda, to try and flesh out 48 
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something or add new members, whatever we want to do, but I 1 

don’t think we’re ready to do that here today and so I’m going 2 

to be voting against this motion. 3 

 4 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion on the board to add additional 5 

members to the Ad Hoc Private Recreational Data Collection 6 

Advisory Panel who have expertise in data collection to assist 7 

them in furthering some of these concepts.  All in favor say 8 

aye; all opposed.  The motion fails.   9 

 10 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Since all these motions failed, does that mean 11 

that we’re not giving direction at all, because Larry brought up 12 

us just giving the committee some direction and not adding 13 

additional members and just asking them to talk about this in a 14 

different way and not add additional experts, but is that dead 15 

now that we voted all those motions down or are we going to be 16 

giving them some direction?  I am just confused. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  My impression of where we stand right now is the 19 

AP has given us, relative to one of their charges, the fish 20 

tags, they’ve voted that down.  There’s two other charges that 21 

we gave them and they’ve requested the ability to go back and 22 

look at those two. 23 

 24 

Barring any further action by the council, they will go back and 25 

address those two, if the council approves that motion, and I 26 

think we already did, to do so, but they won’t readdress tag 27 

systems.  That’s where we sit as I see it. 28 

 29 

MR. BOYD:  Mr. Gill, the committee motion, was that passed 30 

before you gave me the gavel? 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes, that motion is passed.   33 

 34 

MR. PEARCE:  I agree they need direction, but I think we have a 35 

whole other meeting ahead of us to where we can sit back and 36 

really figure out what we want to tell them to do and I don’t 37 

think it’s urgent that we do it at this meeting today.   38 

 39 

I think that we take all of Tom’s suggestions and everybody 40 

else’s suggestions and let Roy think about how we address this 41 

and come up with something that really tells them the direction 42 

we want to go.  I don’t think we really need to beat this horse 43 

up today.  I think we’ve got other meetings we can do that and 44 

let’s put it on the Data Collection agenda for the next meeting 45 

and let’s all come back with our ideas and have something worked 46 

out by that time. 47 

 48 
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MR. BOYD:  Would you work with Dr. Bortone on that? 1 

 2 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 3 

 4 

MR. BOYD:  Go ahead. 5 

 6 

MR. PEARCE:  Where am I now?  Maybe I should start again.  No.  7 

The committee reviewed the modifications to the Federally 8 

Permitted Seafood Dealer Reporting Requirements and discussed 9 

the purpose and need statement.   10 

 11 

The committee recommends, and I so move, to request that the 12 

council accept the new Purpose for Action and the Need for 13 

Action as reflected in the Summary of the South Atlantic Fishery 14 

Management Council Data Collection Committee from June 13, 2012. 15 

 16 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  We’ll 17 

vote on this motion and all in favor say aye; all opposed.  The 18 

motion carries. 19 

 20 

MR. PEARCE:  The committee considered Action 1, what dealer 21 

permits would be required and  for which species?  The committee 22 

discussed whether to create a universal dealer permit or 23 

separate Gulf and South Atlantic permits.   24 

 25 

The committee recommends, and I so move, to request to the 26 

council that in Action 1 that the preferred alternative be 27 

Alternative 3, Option 3b.  Alternative 3 is establish separate 28 

Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic Federal dealer permits.  29 

Option 3b is require dealer permits to purchase all federally-30 

managed species, except South Atlantic coral, South Atlantic 31 

Sargassum, and shrimp species.  Dealer permits would be required 32 

to purchase species in the following fishery management plans: 33 

Atlantic Dolphin-Wahoo; Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish; South Atlantic 34 

Golden Crab; South Atlantic Rock Shrimp; South Atlantic Snapper 35 

Grouper, including wreckfish; Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic 36 

Coastal Migratory Pelagics; Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic 37 

Spiny Lobster; Gulf of Mexico Coral and Coral Reefs; Gulf of 38 

Mexico Red Drum. 39 

 40 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion on the board, a committee motion. 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  Harlon, it seems like we may have a little minor 43 

issue here.  Option 3b has an exception for shrimp species and 44 

then below, it says rock shrimp and so it seems to me the shrimp 45 

species should be “and penaeid shrimp species”, because we are 46 

including rock shrimp for the South Atlantic.  Staff or 47 

somebody, Rick, do you agree or disagree? 48 
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 1 

DR. RICHARD LEARD:  I’m sorry, but what was your question, 2 

Corky? 3 

 4 

MR. PERRET:  Option 3b says an exception is coral, sargassum, 5 

and shrimp, but then listed below, species in the following 6 

fishery management plans and one of the plans listed below is 7 

the South Atlantic rock shrimp and so to not have any confusion, 8 

it seems to me we should put “penaeid” in front of “shrimp 9 

species” in Option 3b or am I being overly cautious or 10 

concerned? 11 

 12 

DR. LEARD:  Our Shrimp FMP includes royal reds, which aren’t 13 

penaeid in respect, but I think people basically know the 14 

distinction between penaeids, royal reds, and rock shrimp. 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  Royal red is excluded.  The only one included, 17 

according to what’s written, is South Atlantic rock shrimp. 18 

 19 

DR. LEARD:  That’s correct, because we don’t manage rock shrimp 20 

in the Gulf. 21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think it’s a South Atlantic Council issue, 23 

primarily, and, David, I don’t recall, but did we create a 24 

dealer permit for rock shrimp?  Do you remember?  I know we had 25 

vessel permits for rock shrimp and one type is limited entry. 26 

 27 

MR. CUPKA:  I believe we do, but the discussion on this really 28 

was meant just to refer to penaeid shrimp, because there are so 29 

many dealers in penaeid shrimp.  If you were to add that word 30 

just to further clarify it, it might be useful. 31 

 32 

MR. BOYD:  Do I hear a motion? 33 

 34 

MR. PERRET:  I move that we put “penaeid” in front of “shrimp 35 

species”, to avoid confusion. 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  Would that then include royal reds or are they 38 

not a penaeid shrimp?  I don’t think they are a penaeid shrimp.  39 

Then the problem is, is every shrimp dealer in the Gulf going to 40 

come in and apply for a permit because they might process a 41 

royal red shrimp or would we get just a very few dealers who 42 

would come in to get a dealer permit, do you think? 43 

 44 

MR. PERRET:  Roy, the language now says shrimp species are out 45 

of it, are out of the dealer permit, but then listed below, 46 

we’re saying a fishery management plan for rock shrimp only.  47 

Rick brought up royal reds and that’s another species, but this 48 
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could lead to some confusion, when we say “shrimp species”, 1 

because there are a number of shrimp species involved. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m just trying to figure out how many dealers in 4 

the Gulf would likely come in -- This is strictly a Gulf issue 5 

for royal red.  We don’t manage royal red in the South Atlantic 6 

and so I’m trying to estimate how many dealers would we have 7 

come in for a dealer permit if we required it for royal red 8 

shrimp?  Do you think it would just be a small number? 9 

 10 

MR. PERRET:  Kevin, there’s just a handful, isn’t there, in your 11 

area? 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  That is correct. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  Okay.  I think I’m okay with your modification. 16 

 17 

MR. PERRET:   That’s my motion, just to add “penaeid” in front 18 

of “shrimp species”.  Phyllis, the amendment would be in Option 19 

3b, to add “penaeid” between -- Include “penaeid” in front of 20 

“shrimp”. 21 

 22 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I think it needs to be in 2b also.  It’s in the 23 

document.  It needs to be 2b and 3b. 24 

 25 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Chairman, I think you’re going to see a motion 26 

to, or at least a substitute motion, to add 2b and 2 instead of 27 

3 and 3b. 28 

 29 

DR. FROESCHKE:  Perhaps we could just get guidance or something 30 

to change it to penaeid shrimp throughout the document whenever 31 

we’re referring to shrimp, because this may be in the discussion 32 

in other parts of the document. 33 

 34 

MR. BOYD:  Would you like to change your motion? 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  I would change it, I sure would.  Let Dr. Froeschke 37 

handle it for us and is that all right?  Thank you. 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  That means we’re back to the committee motion 40 

now, I assume.  I think when we went with Alternative -- The 41 

difference between Alternative 2 and 3 is that Alternative 3 42 

sets up separate dealer permits for the Gulf and South Atlantic 43 

and Alternative 2 sets up a single dealer permit. 44 

 45 

I think the reason we were going with separate was because we 46 

had a difference in the frequency or the type of reporting.  47 

Originally, the Gulf was going to allow fax or computer 48 
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reporting and the South Atlantic wanted to go straight to 1 

computer reporting. 2 

 3 

We then changed that later and now I think both councils have 4 

the same reporting frequency and the same type of reporting and 5 

so I don’t see that there’s a reason to have separate permits 6 

now and it does seem to me that it is administratively more 7 

efficient and less burdensome, both on the Fisheries Service, 8 

but also on dealers, particularly in south Florida, who, under 9 

this alternative, would be required to have two permits, but 10 

under the universal would have a single permit.  I am going to 11 

move a substitute motion that the preferred alternative be 12 

Alternative 2, Option 2b. 13 

 14 

MR. PEARCE:  Do we have a second? 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  Second. 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  As this develops and we get to the joint 19 

committee and if we decide that we are going to go separate 20 

ways, then we could modify it, but it seems to me, unless 21 

somebody has some benefit from being more burdensome and 22 

administratively less efficient, I think this is the way we 23 

should go. 24 

 25 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I agree this would definitely be helpful for 26 

people in Florida. 27 

 28 

DR. ABELE:  I hate to complicate it, but strictly speaking, 29 

taxonomically, royal red is a penaeid.  It’s in the superfamily 30 

Penaeoidea and the family of -- 31 

 32 

MR. BOYD:  We have a substitute motion on the board. 33 

 34 

MS. LEVY:  This isn’t really related to the fact that it’s 35 

Alternative 2 instead of 3, but just having to do with the 36 

Option b part of it, I’m going to assume, but don’t know, that 37 

the South Atlantic discussed the rationale for accepting South 38 

Atlantic coral and South Atlantic sargassum. 39 

 40 

It would be nice if there was some discussion or at least some 41 

direction or that staff would put in a discussion for all of 42 

these things about the rationale for accepting the particular 43 

species that you are excluding from the dealer permit 44 

requirement. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  In those cases, the purpose and need here is to 47 

track annual catch limits and those species or groups have 48 
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annual catch limits of zero and so there’s nothing to track. 1 

 2 

MS. LEVY:  Right and I think that’s implicit, but I think that 3 

it would be helpful if it was actually stated in the document. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  Just from an editorial perspective, I would point 6 

out that there is no South Atlantic Rock Shrimp Fishery 7 

Management Plan.  It is part of the Shrimp Fishery Management 8 

Plan and so that wording probably needs to be tweaked by staff. 9 

 10 

MR. BOYD:  We’re to the substitute motion.  I am not going to 11 

read the whole motion again.  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  12 

The motion carries. 13 

 14 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The committee reviewed 15 

which fishery management plans would be included in Action 1.  16 

They discussed that coral and coral reef harvest is prohibited 17 

and therefore, it does not require a dealer permit.  The 18 

committee recommends, and I so move, to request that the council 19 

remove Gulf of Mexico Coral and Coral Reefs from the list of 20 

FMPs for which reporting is required in Action 1. 21 

 22 

MR. BOYD:  You have a committee motion in front of you.  All in 23 

favor say aye; all opposed.  So ordered and the motion carries. 24 

 25 

MR. PEARCE:  The committee reviewed the reporting requirements 26 

and requested to change reporting deadlines from Thursday to 27 

Tuesday throughout the document for consistency.  The committee 28 

recommends, and I so move, to request to change “Thursday” to 29 

“Tuesday” throughout the entire document. 30 

 31 

MR. BOYD:  It’s a committee motion.  Any discussion?  All in 32 

favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 33 

 34 

MR. PEARCE:  The committee reviewed the updated language from 35 

the South Atlantic Council in Alternatives 2, 3, and 4 in Action 36 

2.  The committee recommends, and I so move, to request to 37 

include the language that was updated by the South Atlantic 38 

Fishery Management Council as follows and that staff make the 39 

changes to Alternatives 2, 3, and 4 throughout the document, 40 

Alternative 3 is to require forms be submitted electronically, 41 

via computer or internet. 42 

 43 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion and is there any 44 

discussion? 45 

 46 

MR. PERRET:  I’ve got a question.  Can we make a dealer who is a 47 

citizen of the United States of America have to do something a 48 
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certain way?  Remember I’m the guy that lives on the river that 1 

you all won’t come check me because I’ve got a locked gate and 2 

so can we make a dealer have to submit a form a certain way, 3 

compared to mandatory healthcare? 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  Let me first say this there is no similarity to 6 

mandatory healthcare, since the dealer makes a choice to have a 7 

federal dealer permit and he’s not compelled to have it.  We, 8 

for all of our permits, require certain conditions and 9 

requirements on them. 10 

 11 

We require reef fish vessels to have VMS and so we have a lot of 12 

requirements that are a condition of the permit and I would say 13 

yes, we can do that. 14 

 15 

MR. SIMPSON:  You fill out 1099s, don’t you? 16 

 17 

MR. PERRET:  Has any of that ever been legally challenged and 18 

how have we made out if it has been challenged? 19 

 20 

DR. CRABTREE:  My recollection, Corky, is that they did have an 21 

issue with this in I think the Mid-Atlantic requiring computer 22 

reporting and it was challenged, but I’m not sure what came of 23 

all that, but I’m sure Mara could check into that if you would 24 

like to hear at the next meeting. 25 

 26 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion in front of you.  Any more 27 

discussion?  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion 28 

carries. 29 

 30 

MR. PEARCE:  The committee recommends, and I so move, to request  31 

that in Action 2 that the preferred alternative be Alternative 32 

3, Option 3b, to coincide with that chosen by the South Atlantic 33 

Fishery Management Council.  Alternative 3 is require forms be 34 

submitted electronically and Option 3b is weekly.  Forms from 35 

trips landing between Sunday and Saturday must be submitted to 36 

the SRD by 11:59 P.M. on the following Tuesday. 37 

 38 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?   39 

 40 

MR. PERRET:  I know we have an alternative further down on 41 

catastrophic conditions, but do we need to have a clause in this 42 

one that would say that if indeed catastrophic conditions have 43 

occurred that they would be exempt from this during that period 44 

of time, Roy, or are you satisfied with it the way it is? 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think that’s the purpose of the other 47 

alternative that deals with catastrophic conditions and as I 48 
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read it, that would allow the Regional Administrator to change 1 

the frequencies and the type of reporting required and 2 

presumably allow us to have some type of paper reporting. 3 

 4 

MR. BOYD:  Any more discussion?  We have a committee motion 5 

before us.  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion 6 

carries. 7 

 8 

MR. PEARCE:  The committee discussed that the gillnet sector in 9 

the Gulf West Coast Florida Southern Subzone is a unique fishery 10 

with a short season.  To prevent exceeding the ACL, The 11 

committee recommends, and I so move, to request to keep the 12 

following wording: Note:  Any selected Preferred Alternative 13 

will include “Dealers reporting purchases of king mackerel 14 

landed by the gillnet sector for the Gulf West Coast Florida 15 

Southern Sub Zone must submit forms daily by 6:00 A.M.” 16 

 17 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  All in 18 

favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 19 

 20 

MR. PEARCE:  Despite the advantages of electronic reporting, the 21 

committee recognized that catastrophic conditions may occur, for 22 

example hurricanes, that prevent electronic reporting for some 23 

dealers.  Therefore, the committee recommends, and I so move, to 24 

request in Action 2 that the preferred alternative be 25 

Alternative 5.  Alternative 5 is during catastrophic conditions 26 

only, the ACL monitoring program provides for use of paper-based 27 

components for basic required functions as a backup.  The 28 

Regional Administrator will determine when catastrophic 29 

conditions exist, the duration of the catastrophic conditions, 30 

and which participants or geographic areas are deemed affected 31 

by the catastrophic conditions.  The RA will provide timely 32 

notice to affected participants via publication of notification 33 

in the Federal Register, NOAA weather radio, fishery bulletins, 34 

and other appropriate means and will authorize the affected 35 

participants’ use of paper-based components for the duration of 36 

the catastrophic conditions.  The paper forms will be available 37 

from National Marine Fisheries Service. 38 

 39 

MR. BOYD:  That’s a committee motion and any discussion? 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  This gets to Corky and so my read on this is this 42 

allows the RA to change the method of reporting, but not the 43 

frequency and so it would still be weekly, but you could do it 44 

through paper and the regular mail.  If you want it to be 45 

allowed to change the frequency, I think it would need to be 46 

modified. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  That, Dr. Crabtree, is the point I wanted to 1 

raise.  We have the back half of this alternative that has 2 

you’re providing timely notice and here we are on catastrophic 3 

conditions and just exactly what might that be and if you’re 4 

talking a weekly reporting, I’m not sure you could even get the 5 

notice out to the individuals in time to do that. 6 

 7 

Secondly, the paper forms will be available from NMFS and you’ve 8 

got a catastrophe on your hands and how the heck are you going 9 

to get paper out to them? 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  We will email them.  I think those are good 12 

points, Bob, and if you want to add in here that the RA has 13 

authority to alter the frequency of reporting requirements, I 14 

think you need to add that in here, but as it’s written right 15 

now, it doesn’t allow that. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I agree and it seems to me that what we’ve set 18 

up is a good idea, but the execution of it ain’t going to happen 19 

the way we’re thinking, because we can’t predict the duration.  20 

If you have a Katrina, you’re not doing anything in a week and 21 

so I agree and I would be interested in some proper wording 22 

relative to that, sir. 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  It would allow -- We could do this quickly, I 25 

think, but it would allow the RA to publish a notice in the 26 

Federal Register suspending the weekly reporting requirement and 27 

accepting paper reports and some flexible things and that would 28 

mean as soon as that went in that nobody is in violation of 29 

anything and so fishermen don’t have to worry about that. 30 

 31 

Now, I think in those conditions that nobody is likely to get a 32 

ticket, because nobody is going to be checking to see who is 33 

reporting and those kinds of things, but it would allow that. 34 

 35 

I guess if you allowed the RA to deal with the frequency, then 36 

the RA could say we’re going to go to monthly reporting and it’s 37 

going to be through paper and obviously I think under 38 

catastrophic conditions that the catches are going to go down 39 

and we saw that in Katrina and the need for that, but beyond 40 

that, Bob, I don’t know.  We could ask staff to look at it a 41 

little more thoroughly, but I do think probably we ought to 42 

broaden this a little to allow modification of the timing of 43 

reporting as well as the method. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I agree, but I’m looking at it from the 46 

perspective of the guy that’s at the other end of the 47 

catastrophe.  He’s not going to get the word and he’s not going 48 
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to know what to do and he certainly isn’t concerned about 1 

whether he’s reporting. 2 

 3 

You’ve covered the point where he’s not in jeopardy, but he has 4 

no idea, and there’s no way for you to get a hold of this guy, 5 

on what to do next for some extended period of time, perhaps, 6 

and so I think you’re right.  I think it needs to be fleshed 7 

around a little bit and some time constrain permission given to 8 

the RA. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes and my understanding is we have such a 11 

provision in the IFQ fishery and my understanding in that 12 

fishery is we provide, upfront, the forms that would be used 13 

under these circumstances to the dealers or to the fishermen and 14 

so they already have it and they know this provision exists and 15 

will be used. 16 

 17 

I would say we could do the same thing with these dealers.  When 18 

we create the dealer forms, we could provide them at the 19 

beginning of the year, paper forms that would be used under 20 

these circumstances, and we could provide them a description of 21 

the type of flexibility that exists and that we would put these 22 

things out on NOAA Weather Radio or whatever other sorts of 23 

avenues we had to get it out to them. 24 

 25 

At least then they would know that this exists and know what the 26 

forms were and how we exactly get the words to folks, I don’t 27 

know.  Corky and Larry and others have lived through this more 28 

directly than me and may have ideas about how we do those sorts 29 

of things. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I agree with that and I would urge you to 32 

consider that and recognize that even though they have the 33 

forms, you’re in a catastrophe and those forms may not be 34 

usable.  In No Name Storm, I had the forms in the office and the 35 

waters came up and they would have been of no use whatever and 36 

so recognize that just because you think they’re preplanned, 37 

that doesn’t mean that they’re going to help you out of the 38 

thing and so with that recognition, I’m fine with what you say, 39 

but I think we do need to reword this and have some timely 40 

capability in the hands of the RA to accommodate this kind of 41 

thing. 42 

 43 

DR. CRABTREE:  I will say that during Katrina that busting 44 

fishermen for reporting violations was not on our radar screen 45 

and not something we were interested in doing at that point and 46 

we would show a great deal of flexibility and discretion in 47 

terms of how we deal with this, understanding that there are 48 
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much bigger issues and higher priorities. 1 

 2 

MR. PERRET:  I totally agree with Dr. Crabtree and Mr. Gill, 3 

but, Dr. Crabtree, you’ve got to remember and like Mr. Gill 4 

referenced, his place went under.  I had records in three 5 

different places and they were lost in all three and so while 6 

you’re going to make every attempt to accommodate people in 7 

these situations and granted, fishing effort will be reduced and 8 

product coming in will probably be greatly reduced, but there 9 

will be some activity going on and the chance of them being able 10 

to report during times like that is very slim. 11 

 12 

MR. BOYD:  I haven’t heard a motion. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I was going to do that, Mr. Chairman.  I would 15 

like to proffer an amendment that under Alternative 5 that it be 16 

added that that RA has the authority to waive reporting time 17 

requirements. 18 

 19 

MR. PERRET:  Second. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Does that do it, Dr. Crabtree? 22 

 23 

MR. BOYD:  It’s been moved and seconded and does everybody 24 

understand the amendment?  Let’s vote on it. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would offer that you add “waive” or “modify”. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That works. 29 

 30 

MR. BOYD:  Are we clear?  Mr. Gill, is that your motion? 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess let me discuss -- Mr. Simpson proffered 33 

removing the word “time” and I am concerned that the intent gets 34 

a little lost.  On the other hand, there may be some value to 35 

that and I would value your advice. 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would say, and Mara could comment, but that 38 

would offer very broad authority to the RA to change essentially 39 

any aspect of the dealer reporting requirement.  If that’s what 40 

you want to do, then -- 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s my motion, Mr. Chairman. 43 

 44 

MR. BOYD:  The motion stands and we’ll vote the motion up or 45 

down.  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries.  46 

We still have the motion on the board.  We amended it and so now 47 

we have to go back to the motion.  Is everybody clear on the 48 
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motion?  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries.  1 

Go ahead, Mr. Pearce. 2 

 3 

MR. PEARCE:  Next, the committee considered Action 3, 4 

requirements for maintaining a dealer permit.  The committee 5 

discussed concerns about whether the council has authority to 6 

levy penalties for non-reporting and reviewed the wording 7 

suggested by the IPT subgroup.   8 

 9 

Based on the recommendation of the IPT subgroup and committee 10 

discussion, the committee recommends, and I so move, to request 11 

in Action 3, to move Alternatives 2, 3, and 4 to the considered 12 

but rejected section. 13 

 14 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  All in 15 

favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  A point of order, Mr. Chairman.  Didn’t we just 18 

pass over the motion above that, the big long one that involves 19 

wreckfish, et cetera, Mr. Chairman? 20 

 21 

MR. PEARCE:  Can you say that again, Bob?  I didn’t hear you. 22 

 23 

MR. BOYD:  Mr. Pearce, can you go back up? 24 

 25 

DR. FROESCHKE:  I think there might be a bit of confusion.  26 

Phyllis sent out an amended committee report this morning that 27 

didn’t have that in there.  That was from my notes and it 28 

shouldn’t have been in there, because it wasn’t passed in the 29 

committee.  That’s the only change though. 30 

 31 

MR. BOYD:  Okay, Mr. Pearce, we can continue. 32 

 33 

MR. PEARCE:  We’re okay with this? 34 

 35 

MR. BOYD:  I think so, based on Dr. Froeschke’s comment. 36 

 37 

MR. PEARCE:  The committee also recommends, and I so move, to 38 

request in Action 3 to remove 2, 3, and 4 to the considered but 39 

rejected section. 40 

 41 

MR. BOYD:  I believe we just did that one, didn’t we? 42 

 43 

MR. PEARCE:  We did?  I thought that’s the one we were talking 44 

about.  The committee also recommends, and I so move, to request 45 

to accept Action 3 and the modified alternatives consistent with 46 

the action of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council. 47 

 48 
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MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion? 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I’m not sure I understand what the motion is 3 

for.  What does it mean to accept Action 3?  Are we adding it to 4 

the document?  I don’t remember the discussion, but I don’t 5 

understand the intent of the motion, Dr. Froeschke. 6 

 7 

DR. FROESCHKE:  This reflects the changes that were made, the 8 

addition of the additional language on Alternative 1, as well as 9 

the removals of Alternatives 2, 3, and 4. The existing 10 

Alternative 5 would then become Alternative 2 and so the Action 11 

3 now just is the two alternatives, the original no action 12 

alternative as well as Alternative 5 that is just renumbered to 13 

Alternative 2.  This is just a holistic summation of all the 14 

changes that you made. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  For clarification, what this thing is really 17 

saying is that we’re accepting the Action 3 as modified, 18 

essentially? 19 

 20 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes, that’s correct.  Basically, we can’t impose 21 

penalties.  We can’t do that and so pretty much we took that out 22 

of the action. 23 

 24 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Any further discussion?  25 

All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 26 

 27 

MR. PEARCE:  The committee recommends, and I so move, to request 28 

to approve the modified Modifications to Federally-Permitted 29 

Seafood Dealer Reporting Requirements and to send it to public 30 

hearing. 31 

 32 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion and is there any 33 

discussion?  Seeing none, all in favor say aye; all opposed.  34 

The motion carries. 35 

 36 

MR. PEARCE:  Ms. Sramek gave a presentation describing the 37 

proposed implementation procedure for generic dealer permits.  38 

Ms. Sramek suggested that we allow dealers with valid fishery-39 

specific dealer permits on the effective date of the final rule 40 

to continue to use their fishery specific dealer permits until 41 

they expire.  When dealers apply for renewal of their fishery-42 

specific dealer permits, the generic dealer permit will be 43 

issued instead of renewing the fishery-specific permits.   44 

  45 

After reviewing the plan outlined by Ms. Sramek, the committee 46 

recommends, and I so move, to adopt the permits plan to 47 

implement generic dealer permits as proposed by the SERO Permits 48 
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Office. 1 

 2 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion and is there any 3 

discussion?   4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  What’s that going forward?  I know we’re saying 6 

we like it, but what’s the practical outplay of this? 7 

 8 

MR. PEARCE:  Of the way Ms. Sramek -- 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  Harlon, there will be language added in the rule 11 

when it comes before you to deem it, but this is basically the 12 

procedures they’re going to go through with issuing these 13 

permits and how the timing is set up and presumably that 14 

language will be reflected in the final rule, unless NOAA Office 15 

of General Counsel tells us that’s just an internal matter and 16 

doesn’t need to be included in the codified text. 17 

 18 

MR. BOYD:  Any other discussion?  All in favor say aye; all 19 

opposed.  The motion carries. 20 

 21 

MR. PEARCE:  Ms. Sramek described scenarios that affect the 22 

status or validity of a federally issued license, permit, or 23 

endorsement and have implications for subsequent transaction 24 

opportunities.  Understanding the implications of these sorts of 25 

scenarios is particularly important for limited access program 26 

permits, because the failure or inability to renew these permits 27 

during the applicable time period results in the permanent loss 28 

of the permits.  After considering this issue, the committee 29 

recommends, and I so move, to request to recommend to the 30 

council to indicate our support of the Permits in Limbo issue. 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  This, again, would be language that would be 33 

included in the proposed and final rule for this amendment, as I 34 

understand it, and so you will see it. 35 

 36 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Dr. Froeschke, you had 37 

your hand up a while ago. 38 

 39 

DR. FROESCHKE:  After this.  It’s regarding the public hearings. 40 

 41 

MR. BOYD:  On the motion, the committee motion, all in favor say 42 

aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 43 

 44 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Chairman, this finally concludes my report. 45 

 46 

DR. FROESCHKE:  For the public hearings, you didn’t select any 47 

locations and do you want to do that at this time? 48 
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 1 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes, I would suggest we do that at this time. 2 

 3 

MR. BOYD:  I think so, too.  Any suggestions?  Mr. Riechers, do 4 

you want to start? 5 

 6 

MR. PEARCE:  Where are we at?  Jessica, where do you want to do 7 

it? 8 

 9 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I had a question about is this going to be paired 10 

with other hearings for say mackerel?  I’m just curious what 11 

else is going out at the same time, so we can pick the proper 12 

locations for multiple items. 13 

 14 

MR. PEARCE:  Can somebody help or let us know?  Does anybody 15 

know? 16 

 17 

MR. BOYD:  Dr. Bortone? 18 

 19 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The only one I see on the schedule 20 

is Grouper Amendment 38 public hearings in July and that’s not 21 

going to happen and so we don’t have anything, unless you want 22 

to wait, or we could do it electronically. 23 

 24 

MR. PEARCE:  What’s the pleasure of the council? 25 

 26 

MR. RIECHERS:  We know we’ve got 700 new dealers coming in 27 

supposedly with this and have we done a geographic look at 28 

those?  I suspect I’m going to have to have at least three in 29 

Texas, unless I have a geographic look that would help me 30 

understand where you expect those to be coming from. 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  We can tell you where the dealers that already 33 

have permits are, but dealers like mackerel who aren’t 34 

permitted, I’m not sure -- I think you would know better than we 35 

would. 36 

 37 

MR. RIECHERS:  If you want to get my locations, then, at least 38 

at first blush, I would say we need something in the Brownsville 39 

area, Corpus Christi, and Galveston. 40 

 41 

MR. PEARCE:  Myron? 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  I think in Louisiana, if we’re talking about 44 

seafood dealers, trying to keep one central, instead of the 45 

Kenner area, possibly the Houma area.  It has more seafood 46 

dealers. 47 

 48 
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MR. BOYD:  Jessica? 1 

 2 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I think one in the Panhandle and maybe one in 3 

Tampa and then one in Key West and is there any way to, in 4 

addition to these in-person ones, if we could have some sort of 5 

a webinar at the very end for everybody that didn’t make all the 6 

in-person ones?  Is that a possibility? 7 

 8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Yes, we’ll be able to post that. 9 

 10 

MR. BOYD:  Mr. Anson? 11 

 12 

MR. ANSON:  I think Mobile for Alabama would be a good location. 13 

 14 

MR. BOYD:  Mr. Perret?  Mississippi locations? 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  The Biloxi area. 17 

 18 

MR. BOYD:  The Biloxi area?  Okay. 19 

 20 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Jessica, could you be more specific 21 

besides the Panhandle? 22 

 23 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Panama City. 24 

 25 

MR. SIMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, I was just wondering and, Mara, this 26 

is a dealer permit amendment and is there a prohibition of 27 

sending this document out to all the permit holders 28 

electronically and requesting their comments and maybe even not 29 

holding physical meetings? 30 

 31 

MR. PEARCE:  Does anybody have that answer? 32 

 33 

MR. SIMPSON:  I’m trying to figure out what benefit it would be 34 

to have a bunch of dealers come in together.  What are they 35 

going to learn from each other?  I would think that they would 36 

probably have individual comments. 37 

 38 

MS. LEVY:  You have a lot of discretion on how many and what 39 

type of public hearings you want to have.  You could consider 40 

the council meeting public hearings and so -- 41 

 42 

MR. SIMPSON:  What I’m saying is it legal to send this document 43 

out to all the permitted holders electronically and ask for 44 

their comments? 45 

 46 

MS. LEVY:  I would have to look into that.  It raises a question 47 

about sending something out to a group of people.  It wouldn’t 48 
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necessarily be a survey if you’re not asking defined questions.  1 

It’s the type of thing you could put on your website and solicit 2 

comments for no problem, but -- 3 

 4 

MR. SIMPSON:  I understand that, but to reach out and the 5 

personal touch and here is something that affects you and you’ve 6 

got it right here on your computer and in addition, you would 7 

hold, of course, public hearings at the council meetings or 8 

whatever, but I would think you could probably get all your 9 

comments directly from the dealers. 10 

 11 

MS. LEVY:  Right and so I would have to look into the 12 

implications of that and whether it meets a survey under the 13 

Paperwork Reduction Act, meaning you can’t just send a 14 

questionnaire out to a whole bunch of people and get them to 15 

answer you. 16 

 17 

Now, you may or may not be able to send out a more general here 18 

this is and give us whatever comments, but I have to look into 19 

the more delicate question about whether that general rises to 20 

the level of a survey, but I can definitely look into it and get 21 

back to you. 22 

 23 

MR. RIECHERS:  This is certainly one of those cases where -- I 24 

should have done it before and I apologize, but if I go back and 25 

I look at trip tickets and I look at wholesale fish dealer 26 

licenses, I can narrow this list down.  I suspect I’m still 27 

going to need three, but I would hope that you all will give me 28 

the leeway to move from Corpus Christi to Aransas Pass if I need 29 

to do that kind of thing, just for the convenience of those 30 

folks.  We’ll try to put it in the closest location to the 31 

groupings of dealers that we have. 32 

 33 

MR. STEELE:  As Mara says, she’ll make a determination of 34 

whether we can email these out to dealers, but also remember 35 

that the public will have the opportunity to comment on this 36 

amendment and the proposed rule as we go along in finalizing it. 37 

 38 

MS. LEVY:  One other note that I think Roy mentioned before is 39 

you might be able to -- If you can email it legally, you could 40 

email it to the people you know, but the issue is here that 41 

there’s going to be people that aren’t current dealers that you 42 

don’t know about that then wouldn’t get it, presumably. 43 

 44 

MR. SIMPSON:  Then they would be covered by all the web notices, 45 

webpage notices, the Federal Register, council meetings, et 46 

cetera. 47 

 48 
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DR. ASSANE DIAGNE:  I just had a question to Ms. Levy.  If it is 1 

not emailed to anybody, but it is a PowerPoint but posted on our 2 

website for anybody to have access to, that would be legal and 3 

that would meet the requirement, if we don’t single out a 4 

certain group of dealers, but a PowerPoint is posted on the 5 

website and everybody can have access to it for an extended time 6 

period and submit comment if they wish.  Would that meet the 7 

requirement then? 8 

 9 

MS. LEVY:  How are you -- Are you emailing -- I presume then 10 

you’re going to email notice to the known dealers that it’s 11 

there, maybe, with like a link? 12 

 13 

DR. DIAGNE:  No, in the same way as we publicize public 14 

hearings, by sending out, I guess, a blue sheet and a public 15 

notice.  It could be in the Federal Register too, but the only 16 

difference is that the presentation will be available online 17 

with sound and for an extended time period.  It seems to me that 18 

will give more opportunity for people to see it than a specific 19 

location and a specific time. 20 

 21 

MS. LEVY:  I think a general solicitation for general public 22 

comment -- That’s what you all do anyway and that would probably 23 

be fine. 24 

 25 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion on the board for the location for 26 

the public hearings and is that correct?   27 

 28 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I had also asked about some sort of a webinar 29 

location or webinar at the end and can we add that to the list, 30 

just to be clear? 31 

 32 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We do that automatically on all of 33 

these. 34 

 35 

MR. BOYD:  We’ve got a motion that public hearings be held in 36 

following locations: Brownsville, Texas area; Corpus Christi, 37 

Texas; Galveston, Texas; Houma, Louisiana area; Panama City, 38 

Florida area; Tampa, Florida; Key West, Florida; Mobile, 39 

Alabama; and Biloxi, Mississippi area.  Any further discussion?  40 

All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 41 

 42 

We’ve got Sustainable Fisheries up next, Mr. Riechers, and if 43 

it’s okay with the group, I would like to take a five-minute 44 

break.  Let’s do a five-minute break and thank you. 45 

 46 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 47 

 48 
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MR. BOYD:  Can we have all the council members back at the 1 

table, please, and let’s make sure we have a quorum.  Dr. 2 

Bortone, are you here to do our count for us?  We need nine.  3 

Have we got it?  All right.  We’re ready to roll.  Mr. Riechers, 4 

your report, please. 5 

 6 

SUSTAINABLE FISHERIES/ECOSYSTEM COMMITTEE REPORT 7 

 8 

MR. RIECHERS:  The Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem Management 9 

Committee was held on June 18, 2012.  Members present were 10 

myself, Dr. Abele, Mr. Boyd, Dr. Crabtree, Mr. Gill, Mr. Greene, 11 

Dr. McIlwain, Dr. Shipp, and Ms. Williams. 12 

 13 

The agenda and minutes of the October 26, 2011 Sustainable 14 

Fisheries/Ecosystem Management Committee were adopted as 15 

written.  16 

 17 

Next, we took up Review of Council Policy on Risk of 18 

Overfishing.  Mr. Gill noted that the council provided the SSC 19 

with a range of probability of overfishing to consider when 20 

setting ABC.  Originally, it was 15 to 45 percent and then 21 

modified to 30 to 50 percent.   22 

 23 

However, the council has not defined what it means by risk.  He 24 

felt that now that the council was no longer under a deadline to 25 

complete the Generic ACL/AM Amendment, there was a need to go 26 

back and review the risk policy.  Several other committee 27 

members agreed. 28 

 29 

John Froeschke reviewed a discussion paper on the risk of 30 

overfishing and that’s referenced as Tab H-3(a).  He noted that 31 

there are two parts to risk.  Number 1 is how likely is it that 32 

a threshold will be exceeded and Number 2 is what is the 33 

magnitude of the impacts?   34 

 35 

For example, the probability of an oil spill occurring is low, 36 

but the consequences are high.  The current application of the 37 

P* method brackets the probability of exceeding maximum 38 

sustainable yield, but does not take into account the 39 

consequences of overfishing. 40 

 41 

Dr. Barbieri presented a slide that graphically described risk 42 

as a combination of risk assessment and risk management, with 43 

the ABC control rule taking into consideration both assessment 44 

and management.   45 

 46 

It is the SSC’s role to assess the risk, but the council’s role 47 

to establish the policy on acceptable levels of risk.  The level 48 
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of acceptable risk depends upon how highly the council values a 1 

desired outcome compared to some other outcome.  I will just 2 

note there was a graphical representation of risk analysis 3 

framework presented. 4 

 5 

Dr. Abele related that the ACL/ACT control rule in the Generic 6 

Amendment did not provide a large buffer even when a worst case 7 

scenario was analyzed.  Steven Atran explained that uncertainty 8 

was divided into two components.  The ACL/ACT control rule was 9 

only meant to reflect management uncertainty, while the ABC 10 

control rule was meant to reflect scientific uncertainty.   11 

 12 

When the buffers from the two control rules were combined, they 13 

produced a single buffer similar to recent historical buffers.  14 

However, committee members felt that the spreadsheet approach 15 

used in the current methodology was complicated and difficult to 16 

understand.  Several committee members felt that a simpler 17 

approach, such as that described by Bob Gill in Tab H-3(b), 18 

would be preferable, and that it should be looked as a starting 19 

point. 20 

 21 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 22 

move, that the council accept the recommendations as detailed in 23 

Tab H-3(b) as a starting point for further analysis. 24 

 25 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion? 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The way I interpret what the committee did is 28 

that they accepted the concept that was proposed as a way to go 29 

forward and that the next step then would be to consider what 30 

classifications, in the first six items, should be there, much 31 

less the number associated. 32 

 33 

We heard -- Maybe we didn’t, but I heard that one of the things 34 

that ought to be considered, which is what I want to put on the 35 

record, is that frequency of stock assessments is a point for 36 

consideration as inclusion.  I’m sure there’s others and I would 37 

urge this council and the committee, when they reconsider this, 38 

to flesh out and design those levels of classification that they 39 

think are appropriate and then go through and assign whatever 40 

numbers they think are appropriate probabilities and then take 41 

Dr. Crabtree up on his suggestion to request some representative 42 

species be looked at by the Center for analysis to see whether 43 

the concept achieves what you’re trying to achieve. 44 

 45 

MR. BOYD:  Any further discussion?  All in favor of the motion 46 

say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 47 

 48 
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MR. RIECHERS:  Dr. Barbieri suggested that PSA analysis could be 1 

used to evaluate resiliency of a stock to overfishing.  Roy 2 

Crabtree suggested evaluating the above approach with respect to 3 

selected species. 4 

 5 

Then we moved on to SSC Recommendations on Revising ABC Control 6 

Rule.  Dr. Barbieri reviewed the SSC’s progress on revising the 7 

ABC control rule.  The council had expressed concern about 8 

whether the narrow buffers between OFL and ABC produced by Tier 9 

1 adequately captured scientific uncertainty.   10 

 11 

Tier 1, for data rich stocks, was compared to a method used by 12 

the Pacific Fishery Management Council.  When the Pacific 13 

Council’s method was applied to several Gulf reef fish stocks by 14 

the Science Center and compared to the results from the current 15 

Tier 1, the results, though mixed, were comparable.   16 

 17 

The SSC felt that the Tier 1 approach has not been used enough 18 

to fully evaluate its effectiveness.  Given that it produced 19 

OFL-ABC buffers comparable to other methods, the SSC felt that 20 

the current Tier 1 should be retained for further evaluation.   21 

 22 

Tier 2 was originally intended to fill the gap between stocks 23 

that had full stock assessments and could use Tier 1 and stocks 24 

that had only landings data and used Tier 3.  However, as 25 

currently written Tier 2 does not provide a conditions for use 26 

or method for determining ABC that is useful.  The SSC is in 27 

agreement that Tier 2 needs to be fully revised, but did not 28 

agree on an approach and deferred further discussion of possible 29 

revisions until a future SSC meeting.   30 

 31 

The SSC reviewed the proceedings of a workshop on methods for 32 

deriving ABC for species that have only reliable catch 33 

statistics.  This workshop had been formed by representatives at 34 

the first National SSC workshop and included several possible 35 

approaches for analyzing stocks that have only catch statistics 36 

with little or no additional information about the stock.   37 

 38 

The SSC felt that a new tier for data poor species, based on the 39 

ORCS approach, should be added as a new Tier 3.  The existing 40 

Tier 3, with some modifications, would then become Tier 4.  41 

Committee members disagreed with this approach and felt that is 42 

was a bureaucratic approach that complicated the system.   43 

 44 

The committee agreed that the approach for data poor species 45 

should be revised and felt that input from a planned SEDAR 46 

workshop on methods for data poor species would be useful.  47 

However, the workshop is not scheduled until 2015.  The SSC had 48 
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recommended that the workshop be rescheduled for an earlier time 1 

period, but could not agree on what currently scheduled SEDAR 2 

activities should be postponed to make room.   3 

 4 

A motion was made to recommend that the council ask the SEDAR 5 

Steering Committee to consider moving up the workshop on methods 6 

for data-poor stocks up on the SEDAR schedule.  Dr. Ponwith 7 

asked for recommendations on what SEDAR activities to postpone 8 

in order to make room for the workshop.   9 

 10 

The committee had not yet reviewed the SEDAR schedule.  11 

Therefore, the motion was withdrawn in order to let council 12 

members have an opportunity to review the SEDAR schedule, Tab K-13 

3, in order to recommend what should be moved to make room for 14 

the workshop.  I will pause there so that we can have that 15 

discussion if someone is prepared to do that.  Just to help with 16 

that, Tab A-7 is your SEDAR-approved schedule. 17 

 18 

MR. BOYD:  Any discussion?   19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If I remember the SSC recommendation correctly, 21 

they suggested moving to 2014, because moving to 2013 is 22 

problematic.  There’s a range of currently scheduled, heavily 23 

scheduled, six assessments and it seems to me that one can 24 

readily slide, since it’s problematic to start with, would be 25 

the update on yellowedge grouper. 26 

 27 

The Steering Committee had had some discussions about whether we 28 

could move forward with that or not and the consensus, if I 29 

could phrase this correctly, was that we’re going to have 30 

problems, but we need to address what we can and move forward.  31 

If the council recommends that the data poor stock evaluation 32 

workshop is more significant, I would suggest that that be one 33 

of those considered for delay. 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  Let me just throw another monkey wrench into it.  36 

We’ve had all the concerns this week expressed with vermilion 37 

snapper, yet we don’t have anything scheduled until 2015 for 38 

vermilion snapper and I know there were a lot of opinions 39 

expressed that that was too far out in the future and that would 40 

need to be moved up. 41 

 42 

MR. BOYD:  Mr. Riechers, anything else? 43 

 44 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m assuming no one is going to make a motion on 45 

that and then I will go on to the Other Business that we 46 

covered.  Mr. Gill noted that he was currently the council 47 

representative on the ABC Control Rule Working Group.  He asked 48 
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if any committee members would be interested in replacing him 1 

when he left the council.   2 

 3 

Steven Atran noted that all of the meetings by the working group 4 

had been by webinar, and this would likely continue to be the 5 

case.  The committee deferred selection of a council 6 

representative until the full council meeting.  Mr. Chairman, 7 

this concludes my report. 8 

 9 

Can I add a side note here as well, just from a discussion 10 

standpoint?  I did talk with Dr. Barbieri and he suggested that 11 

at a time, as we move forward with this discussion of risk, that 12 

he come back with a presentation describing the ABC control 13 

rules and possibly running some species through that.  He is 14 

willing to do that and I think that would be a useful, 15 

informative presentation for us as we kind of look at this whole 16 

notion of risk as well. 17 

 18 

MR. BOYD:  Dr. Bortone? 19 

 20 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Yes? 21 

 22 

MR. BOYD:  On the report from the SSC, just to be here to give 23 

clarification, what Mr. Riechers was talking about?  Do you want 24 

to schedule that? 25 

 26 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I’m having a relapse here.  Mr. 27 

Gill was just talking to me about something and so I lost track 28 

of -- 29 

 30 

MR. BOYD:  Robin, would you repeat what you said? 31 

 32 

MR. RIECHERS:  Just that if we have this committee discussion 33 

again, and I know this is just the beginning of this discussion 34 

regarding risk and our different risk parameters, that we 35 

schedule a discussion for Luiz to come and also give us a 36 

presentation on the ABC control rule that we have and he said he 37 

could work a couple of species through that, so that we could 38 

all walk back through that again.  It’s been a while since we’ve 39 

all tried to wrap our brains around that and it would probably 40 

be useful. 41 

 42 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Yes, we will do that and Luiz is an 43 

excellent person to have that as well. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  By our silence on any sorts of opinions on when 46 

assessments should be done and what should be moved up, I assume 47 

that we’re going to defer those calls to the SEDAR Steering 48 
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Committee and accept their judgment? 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  All I would mention there is that don’t be 3 

surprised at what comes out.  There’s difference of opinion, et 4 

cetera.  I can make a motion to start that ball if you want to 5 

do it, but if you defer it to the Steering Committee, Lord help 6 

us.  We won’t know what comes out until we’re done. 7 

 8 

MS. WILLIAMS:  In looking at the schedule and from the testimony 9 

that we heard on vermilion, and I’m not certain how important 10 

one is over the other.  I was just looking at what we’ve got 11 

before us and I would think vermilion snapper would be equally, 12 

if not more so, important than scamp or -- Do you realize that 13 

we really don’t have quotas between the sectors even on 14 

vermilion?  Does anybody even realize that? 15 

 16 

There’s just -- I think we need to start doing something and 17 

addressing the vermilion snapper fishery.  We’ve heard it was 18 

good and we’ve heard it was bad and we’ve heard it’s been 19 

dropped off and if we can move that up -- How concerned are we 20 

over scamp right now? 21 

 22 

Could we realistically move that from 2015 at least to 2014?  I 23 

haven’t been at any of these meetings and so I don’t know what 24 

you all consider that we’ve got to do right away. 25 

 26 

MR. ANSON:  I was going to make the same comment that Ms. 27 

Williams just stated regarding vermilion.  I think we have heard 28 

a lot of comments from the public about vermilion and their 29 

concerns and I’m looking at the schedule and I think that, going 30 

along with Mr. Gill, possibly replacing yellowedge and moving 31 

yellowedge to 2015 and vermilion up to 2014. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s not an equal swap.  An update takes less 34 

than the vermilion does and so what you’re doing is more loading 35 

2014 than you are 2015. 36 

 37 

MR. ANSON:  I’m looking at 2013 and there’s five benchmark 38 

assessments scheduled there and so that would give them four in 39 

2014, if you move vermilion up.  You take out an update and 40 

replace two updates for a benchmark is kind of the way I was 41 

looking at it and I don’t know and I’m certainly -- If Dr. 42 

Ponwith wants to make comment to that regarding the timeline and 43 

staff time relative to that schedule, I’m certainly open to 44 

hearing that. 45 

 46 

MR. RIECHERS:  I am certainly in favor of trying to get 47 

vermilion moved up in that respect and I think we should attempt 48 
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to do that here with the motion, but I’m going to ask Bonnie and 1 

it just seems to me that -- For the data-poor stock evaluations 2 

and the methods, our discussion about methods, to do that, do we 3 

have to go through a whole SEDAR process to do that? 4 

 5 

I know that’s some of your concern, is that this would be 6 

replacing a SEDAR spot, but it seems to me that’s a workshop 7 

that almost, in the same notion of an SSC meeting where you 8 

bring scientists together who -- You might have one or two come 9 

in and present some data-poor kind of stocks and talk about 10 

methods that they may believe are appropriate and you kind of 11 

build off of that knowledge base and I don’t know that we need a 12 

full-blown SEDAR kind of notion for that. 13 

 14 

Obviously you have it on here because you believe you do, but is 15 

there another alternative where we free up a spot here and still 16 

get the work done? 17 

 18 

DR. PONWITH:  That’s a good question.  If all you’re doing is 19 

discussing methods, it’s a one-workshop event, landing on what 20 

is the methodology you want to use, but I think what’s being 21 

proposed here is well above that and that is to actually look at 22 

the stocks for which we have adequate data and conduct an 23 

analysis on a suite of data-poor stocks that represents a stock 24 

assessment on those, using these data-poor technologies. 25 

 26 

For that, it’s considerably more demanding and you would have to 27 

have the equivalent of a data workshop.  You would want the 28 

assessment workshop and you would certainly want the results 29 

peer reviewed and so the notion is to get some of those stocks 30 

that have been kicked down the freeway here for some of the 31 

other stocks over and over again and actually dedicate one of 32 

the slots to getting a bunch of those done, so we know where we 33 

are on them. 34 

 35 

MR. RIECHERS:  That was the notion, that you were going to 36 

basically take the data-poor species that we manage and try to 37 

run as many of those through that filter as you possibly could?  38 

Okay. 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think what would be useful to the Steering 41 

Committee would be some idea of how you order things and so to 42 

me, I would put vermilion snapper at a higher priority than 43 

either black grouper, yellowedge grouper, probably than scamp.  44 

I don’t see that vermilion is going to be moved up to 2013 and 45 

so the question is shifting vermilion up to 2014 and so I think 46 

it’s which one is more important to you than the other. 47 

 48 
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The Steering Committee will have to decide what you would have 1 

to give up and what it would take and then I think with the data 2 

poor, it’s really a question of are you willing to give up 3 

something in 2014 to try it move it up, I guess as the SSC 4 

suggested, or do you want to leave it where it is in 2015? 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I am going to go ahead and float a motion and 7 

we’ll see how we get on it.  I move that we move the vermilion 8 

snapper benchmark to 2014 and we move the yellowedge grouper 9 

update and gray snapper benchmark in 2014 to 2015 and beyond. 10 

 11 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion.  Do we have a second?  We have a 12 

second. 13 

 14 

DR. ABELE:  I very much want to see vermilion moved up.  15 

Everything we hear, there’s been a huge effort shift and people 16 

trying to build a record and we also hear that there’s a lot of 17 

concerns. 18 

 19 

I don’t have enough information to say what’s more important, 20 

scamp or gray snapper, but I definitely favor moving vermilion 21 

up to 2014.  The question is if someone could give me and idea 22 

about the relative need for scamp versus yellowedge and gray 23 

snapper.  That would allow me to make a more informed vote. 24 

 25 

MR. BOYD:  Do we have any comments on that? 26 

 27 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think it’s hard to judge, Larry.  We’ve never 28 

had a scamp assessment and we’ve never had a gray snapper 29 

assessment.  I don’t have a way of knowing which one may be in 30 

more trouble or if either one of them are in any trouble and so 31 

it’s difficult to know.  We’re in a tough spot that we have far 32 

more assessment needs than we can produce. 33 

 34 

One thing I would -- I don’t know how much you have to give up, 35 

but if we could give up the black grouper update and the yellow 36 

grouper update and move vermilion up that way, that would 37 

preferable to me than giving up gray snapper, but I don’t know 38 

if that would work in terms of workload or not, but I don’t see 39 

a burning need to update the black grouper assessment at this 40 

time. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The reason I didn’t mention that, Roy, was that 43 

my understanding is that’s still intended to be conducted 44 

primarily by the FWC and not by the Science Center and so the 45 

net gain is almost nil and so I left it out. 46 

 47 

DR. ABELE:  I guess I would make a substitute that we substitute 48 
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scamp in there for gray snapper. 1 

 2 

MR. BOYD:  We have a substitute motion.  Is there a second?  3 

Second by Jessica. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m okay with this.  The scamp, can somebody tell 6 

me, as far as landings, do we have more landings of scamp or 7 

gray snapper?  Can anyone tell me? 8 

 9 

MR. BOYD:  Steve? 10 

 11 

MR. ATRAN:  I can give that to you in a few minutes.  I need to 12 

look it up. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess I would ask the maker of the motion for 15 

some rationale.  I think what we’re really talking here, and 16 

anybody can correct me if I’m wrong, is we’re really talking a 17 

regional difference.  The gray snapper are mostly southern Gulf 18 

and the scamp are mostly northern Gulf.  Beyond that, I don’t 19 

know if there’s any additional rationale and so I would ask the 20 

maker of the motion to give his thoughts as to why he would make 21 

that change. 22 

 23 

DR. ABELE:  This is a terrible reason, but my observation in 24 

fish houses and on docks, is there is a lot more gray snapper 25 

than scamp and the area that I fish, you can get scamp and gray 26 

snapper together, but it just seems like such an abundant and 27 

important gray snapper fish all through the Gulf and 28 

particularly around the rigs, where you see very large gray 29 

snapper.  I just feel like it’s an intuitive thing and maybe I 30 

like gray snapper more than scamp. 31 

 32 

MR. FISCHER:  Myself, I would like to see an accelerated 33 

assessment on gray snapper with the regulations on red snapper 34 

and what they are.  Not only the charter vessels, but all the 35 

recreational have figured out the gray snapper at the platforms 36 

and with their very liberal limits, they’re bringing in eighty a 37 

day, real nice fish, and we’re talking about many hundreds of 38 

pounds and it can’t go on forever. 39 

 40 

We don’t know if these fish at the platforms are territorial or 41 

if they’re involved in any type of migration and can they be 42 

fished out?  The boats are fishing further and further and I 43 

think it’s time we do some gray snapper work. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think I tend to agree.  My thing is I think 46 

scamp -- At least it’s constrained under the IFQ program.  Gray 47 

snapper is just wide open with very high bag limits and my worry 48 
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would be that -- I think the other side of that is I suspect 1 

scamp is a lower productivity stock. 2 

 3 

They live longer and they get to be older.  I think gray snapper 4 

probably get to be in their twenties.  Scamp aggregate to spawn 5 

and I don’t know that gray snapper do that and so that’s the 6 

counter side of this.  Gray snapper is probably a more 7 

productive stock than scamp is, but I don’t think there’s any 8 

meaningful constraints on gray snapper right now and my 9 

impression is they probably are getting hammered pretty good. 10 

 11 

MR. ATRAN:  I just looked at 2008, but I think it’s 12 

representative.  In 2008, gray snapper had total landings, 13 

commercial and recreational combined, of about 1.7 million 14 

pounds and scamp had 470,000 pounds and so it’s about four times 15 

as many gray snapper landed as scamp, in pounds. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  My comment is that I made that motion to 18 

initiate discussion and it certainly did that and so I was 19 

successful, but I think we ought to keep in mind, and I’m not 20 

sure this is the right motion for where we want to be, but we 21 

ought to keep in mind that if we’re entertaining moving data-22 

poor stock evaluation up as well, that there’s other stocks with 23 

other changes in assessment. 24 

 25 

That bears on what we do with this motion and I was thinking 26 

piecing it at a time may help us start to get there, but don’t 27 

lose sight of the fact that that data-poor stock evaluation is 28 

going to require, as Dr. Ponwith said, at least a benchmark and 29 

maybe something else, but it’s going to have some significant 30 

impact in addition to what we’re doing with this motion. 31 

 32 

DR. PONWITH:  I’m checking with our folks right now and scamp, 33 

as it stands, is happening in both the Gulf and the South 34 

Atlantic and I’m double checking to see if it was their 35 

intention to collaborate on that and if that is the case, that 36 

adds a wrinkle to moving scamp in one place. 37 

 38 

MR. BOYD:  We have a substitute motion that has been moved and 39 

seconded to move vermilion snapper. 40 

 41 

MR. ANSON:  Just one last comment.  I would pick scamp or I had 42 

talked with Mr. Gill earlier and I support his motion.  Scamp is 43 

a fish that’s prosecuted primarily in federal waters.  There 44 

probably is some state catch in Florida.  Habitat-limited states 45 

probably make up about 40 percent of the recreational landings 46 

and maybe about the same comparable landings commercially and 47 

they already have size and some bag limits in some instances, 48 
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but size limits. 1 

 2 

Although I concur with Dr. Crabtree’s comments about not having 3 

an assessment and they are under some heavier prosecution, 4 

according to what Mr. Atran presented, I’m going to support this 5 

motion that’s on the board. 6 

 7 

MR. BOYD:  The motion on the board is to move the vermilion 8 

snapper benchmark to 2014 and move the 2014 yellowedge grouper 9 

update and scamp benchmark to 2015 and beyond.  Any further 10 

discussion?  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion 11 

carries. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I would like to hear some discussion, since I’m 14 

going to be on that Steering Committee call, about what the 15 

council thinks about moving the data-poor stock evaluation 16 

workshop up to 2014, which was the recommendation of the SSC, 17 

and if comments are made, then what they consider to be the 18 

tradeoff of the existing scheduled 2014 assessments. 19 

 20 

DR. ABELE:  I think that Myron’s comments are a powerful reason 21 

to do it.  As red snapper is shutting down, there’s a huge shift 22 

to mango or gray snapper and it’s only going to get more 23 

intense, given the shortness of the season and the availability 24 

of gray snapper around the rigs.  I don’t see -- I think that’s 25 

going to speed up and if you’re looking for reasons in support 26 

of the committee. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  No, my point was relative to the data-poor 29 

workshop, moving that up to 2014 and what the council’s feeling 30 

is relative to that, given that the SSC recommended that they do 31 

it and they did not recommend what should be taken out, from 32 

their point of view, but it seems to me that if we’re going to 33 

recommend that, and I haven’t heard such a motion, and if no 34 

motion is made, then the Steering Committee is going to wing it 35 

as to what the council wishes are. 36 

 37 

I am looking for some discussion and some guidance from the 38 

council as to what they think about that request by the SSC and 39 

if so, if they agree with it, then what are they looking to 40 

trade out to make it happen in the 2014 schedule? 41 

 42 

MR. BOYD:  Any further comments? 43 

 44 

DR. SHIPP:  Just in terms of council sentiment, I think -- If I 45 

recall, Dr. Crabtree indicated that there’s not a great concern 46 

about black grouper and so we could move that one and replace 47 

the data-poor or did I miss something? 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Well, two things.  One is that’s only an update 2 

and the data-poor is a benchmark plus, as explained by Dr. 3 

Ponwith, and so it’s not an even trade, number one.  Number two, 4 

the FWC is going to be doing the benchmark and so the drain on 5 

Science Center resources is small, but it’s not near the level 6 

of any assessment and so you gain absolutely nothing. 7 

 8 

MR. BOYD:  Robin, are we back to you? 9 

 10 

MR. RIECHERS:   That concludes my report. 11 

 12 

MR. BOYD:  That’s the conclusion of that report and let’s move 13 

to --  14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Chairman?  Before we leave the SEDAR 16 

schedule, one of the discussions that went on at the last 17 

Steering Committee was looking to take whatever paths seem 18 

appropriate to try and expedite the throughput of the 19 

assessments. 20 

 21 

The staff took a pretty good look at everything and one of the 22 

most valuable ways to gain some time was a reconsideration of 23 

taking the assessment workshop and turning it into a webinar.  24 

Now, we tried that once and I have forgotten which assessment it 25 

was, but we tried it once and it didn’t work very well at all. 26 

 27 

On the other hand, for those of you that have been to an 28 

assessment workshop, the efficiency at that workshop, in terms 29 

of member’s time, isn’t very high, because what you do is you 30 

meet and you discuss wherever the model is at and the results 31 

and then the modelers go back and take the recommendations and 32 

run more models and start writing reports. 33 

 34 

I think the estimate, and correct me if I’m wrong, Dr. Ponwith, 35 

is that perhaps 25 percent of your time was at the table to 36 

consider -- That’s basically saying you’re sitting 75 percent 37 

doing something else. 38 

 39 

One of the thoughts was that perhaps it would be worthwhile to 40 

retry the webinar, in this case on SEDAR-33, which I don’t know 41 

what it is, since I can’t pull it up, and try it again and see 42 

whether that would be something that might help us get through 43 

the -- We just discussed the problems with trying to deal with 44 

we would like to do this data-poor workshop, but what are we 45 

going to pay the price on?  There’s going to be a price. 46 

 47 

If we could shorten that timeframe and accomplish the same end -48 
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- Now, they recommended to go forth with that and recognizing 1 

that the first time didn’t work well and there’s certainly a lot 2 

of issues in terms of is it going to work any better this time 3 

and generally speaking, as Dr. Bortone has said, giving a 4 

presentation is one thing, but having a discussion is another 5 

and it doesn’t work as well in a webinar. 6 

 7 

On the other hand, the issue is we’ve got problems on trying to 8 

get enough information to deal with the species we’ve got and so 9 

given that and the Steering Committee decided that it was worth 10 

another try, I am going to move that the council endorses the 11 

concept of a webinar or multiple webinars for the assessment 12 

workshop in SEDAR-33. 13 

 14 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion and do we have a second?  It’s 15 

seconded by Jessica.  Is there discussion? 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have been at the assessments and one that 18 

sticks out in my mind is the red snapper and Kevin was there, I 19 

do recall too, and Mr. Teehan was there and had we not been 20 

there to ask questions as they went through the steps -- Yes, 21 

they may go and rerun something, but usually they’re going to do 22 

it because while you’re sitting there, you’re also conversing 23 

with them and you’re finding out what all is going into the 24 

model and what is their assumptions and what do they think is 25 

going on out there in the real world and when some of those 26 

things are plugged in -- They were at the red snapper and all of 27 

a sudden, guess what?  We were no longer overfished or 28 

undergoing overfishing. 29 

 30 

I don’t get the same read as perhaps you do.  I feel like there 31 

is a lot of interaction, because you don’t know what they’re 32 

doing if you’re not sitting there or asking questions and if 33 

they don’t hear some of your concerns when they come out with 34 

various things -- At first, red snapper was still overfished and 35 

undergoing overfishing, until they got some information from us. 36 

 37 

Had we not been there, they wouldn’t have known that, because 38 

they didn’t know about these ten-day fishing seasons and 39 

fifteen-day fishing seasons and that the guys weren’t going out 40 

and catching something else when they got their 2,000 pounds.  41 

That’s why it’s important to be there in person. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I apologize if I didn’t make myself clear, but 44 

the participants would still be there.  Not physically, but in 45 

multiple webinars, as I understand the intent, to do precisely 46 

that and the intent is not to exclude that dialogue. 47 

 48 
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The only difference is that folks can participate in Webinar A 1 

or however many webinars there are from wherever they’re 2 

located.  The analysts go back and rerun their model and do 3 

another webinar and come back and do the same thing webinar-wise 4 

and so the distinction here is whether they go to the physical 5 

location or not. 6 

 7 

It’s acknowledged that it’s fraught with potential problems and 8 

it may not work, but on the other hand, if we don’t try it and 9 

see if we can’t gain some of the benefits out of doing it that 10 

way, we’re mired in the same mess we are and we’ll have the same 11 

issues every time we talk about stock assessments. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Excuse me, but can you tell me what the benefit 14 

is?  It seems like you’re complaining about one or two people 15 

sitting there wasting 25 percent of their time. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  There’s a whole lot more than that. 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Unless you’re talking about staff’s time. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  There’s a whole lot more folks at assessment 22 

workshops than one or two people and the bulk of the work is 23 

done after you have that discussion.  The modelers go back and 24 

rerun the model and then you come back and reassess it, but most 25 

of the time, the folks sitting at the table are not contributing 26 

to the issue, because you’re waiting on -- It’s not productive 27 

time at all. 28 

 29 

This way, the modelers can do their thing and you regroup and 30 

you discuss it and put the input in and make changes and they go 31 

back and the participants will be doing their own thing at their 32 

own location and so it is not a panacea.  It is a different way 33 

to do it and it is probably not going to work.  It didn’t work 34 

the last time, but we need to find some way to do more with what 35 

we’ve got and that’s the whole point and that’s the benefit. 36 

 37 

DR. SHIPP:  I think this is a lose/lose situation.  I 38 

participated in a webinar and I think it was yellowedge grouper 39 

and it was a disaster.  It really was a disaster.  Again, I 40 

think both options have difficulties, but I’m going to speak 41 

against this motion, having experienced the webinar in the past. 42 

 43 

DR. PONWITH:  The thing we’re trying to fix is to improve our 44 

throughput and the angst that you had in your last motion is an 45 

illustration of how critical that is.  The demand for stock 46 

assessments is higher than our ability to chug them out and so 47 

we’re looking for ways to be more efficient. 48 
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 1 

It’s like the economic presentation that we got.  Every gain has 2 

an offset and right now, what we’re trying to do is balance 3 

those gains and offsets to actually meet that desired outcome in 4 

a way that’s tolerable and the proposal on the table is to make 5 

the data workshop a face-to-face workshop and to actually 6 

enhance that engagement so that we have the fishermen there who 7 

are able to interact with the analysts and the data folks to set 8 

us straight in terms of how that fishery is actually prosecuted, 9 

which is an absolutely critical component to a successful stock 10 

assessment. 11 

 12 

The notion of a webinar assessment is that -- Just as Mr. Gill 13 

had expressed, there’s no substitute for a face-to-face meeting.  14 

The problem is that the group deliberates.  They evaluate and 15 

they deliberate.  They debate back and forth and that scientific 16 

discussion helps them arrive at a conclusion and then the next 17 

step is to take that conclusion and plug it into the model to 18 

see what the outcome is. 19 

 20 

That’s the process that brings everybody else to a halt.  The 21 

assessment modelers are walking out of the room and sitting down 22 

at a laptop doing those runs and those runs take sometimes hours 23 

and you can’t go to the next step until you get that model 24 

output. 25 

 26 

The advantage of a webinar is you can schedule a four-hour 27 

webinar and have those deliberations and have those debates with 28 

your assessment panel, including your AP representatives, and 29 

then take the results of those debates and actually have the 30 

modelers sitting in their own offices being able to chug out the 31 

results of that so that it’s ready for the next phase of the 32 

assessment. 33 

 34 

Now, is it as good as a face-to-face?  Maybe not, but what we’re 35 

trying to do here is manage the time and manage the costs of 36 

these stock assessments so we can plow any cost savings and 37 

efficiencies we’ve got into bringing in the next stock 38 

assessment scientist so that we’ve got one more assessment we 39 

can do per year. 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  I am going to support the motion.  We’ve got to 42 

find a way to make this system more efficient so that we can get 43 

more assessments and more timely assessments and I think the 44 

downside to our fisheries is much more related to the numbers of 45 

assessments we can do. 46 

 47 

SEDAR is a very time consuming process and right now it’s 48 
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killing us, because it takes too long to do these assessments 1 

and I think we’re all going to have to accept some tradeoffs and 2 

giving some things up in order to increase the efficiency and 3 

increase the number of assessments we’re getting and this is one 4 

way to try and see if it will work to get us there. 5 

 6 

DR. ABELE:  In an effort to inform myself better, I’ve been 7 

doing the webinar for blacktip shark.  I don’t have anything to 8 

do with it other than trying to learn and at least on the data 9 

assembly and data analysis, I thought the webinar went very, 10 

very well. 11 

 12 

I was extremely impressed with the process and the 13 

thoughtfulness.  There were points in the second webinar where 14 

people would go out to do things, but at least for that portion 15 

of it I thought it worked very well. 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  When we first started off our assessments, they 18 

pretty much met for almost a week and we were down there at the 19 

Science Center and there was a lot of input and a lot of 20 

exchange. 21 

 22 

We developed this SEDAR and we developed it, it was my 23 

understanding, to make sure that we had a lot of input and a lot 24 

of interaction and people were understanding and if the modelers 25 

had a question, they came back.  Sometimes they do have 26 

questions while they’re running all these things and plugging 27 

them in, because they’ve come back and asked things at the 28 

table. 29 

 30 

I guess they could have everybody else call back up during a 31 

webinar or something, but -- When you say we’ve got to trade 32 

some things off and you might get another assessment, I don’t 33 

see -- How much are you going to save, a day?  Four hours? 34 

 35 

When you’re talking about running back and forth, I just don’t 36 

understand how you’re going to save by doing the webinars and so 37 

you save some money and what’s more important, the confidence in 38 

something because of the interaction or saving the money?  I 39 

don’t know. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  Listening to Dr. Shipp, his experience was a 42 

complete disaster with a webinar and my limited experience has 43 

been -- I don’t know if it was a disaster, but it wasn’t very 44 

good and I was pretty much convinced to go along with Dr. Shipp, 45 

but then I hear Dr. Abele say he’s had good results with it and 46 

so this is about as -- It’s like trying to set an allocation and 47 

we’ve got both extremes. 48 
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 1 

I would like to hear from other members sitting here with their 2 

experience with webinars, because right now, I’m leaning towards 3 

Dr. Shipp, but if he and I are exceptions to the basic rule, 4 

perhaps that’s the way to go. 5 

 6 

MR. ANSON:  I can provide my comments to your question, Corky.  7 

As with any new technology, you’ve got a learning curve for both 8 

the people who provide it as well as those who receive it and my 9 

personal experience has been that early on, when webinars were 10 

used, it was a disaster or dysfunctional, in that people were 11 

not familiar with the technology and they weren’t familiar with 12 

how to prepare properly for it. 13 

 14 

That was going to be my question to Dr. Shipp.  Maybe he can 15 

provide some insight as to what was actually wrong with it and 16 

if it was a technological problem, in that connections were bad 17 

on either the people giving the presentation or receiving, on 18 

his end, and so I think they’ve gotten better as people have 19 

gotten more accustomed to working out those details and I would 20 

support the motion. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  A couple of comments.  To Kay’s comment, it’s 23 

not about saving money.  It’s about time, so that we can do 24 

other assessments.  Let me back up.  I have become convinced 25 

that if we don’t change the throughput model that we’re going to 26 

be mired in this mess forever and so I happen to agree, maybe 27 

reluctantly, with Dr. Crabtree that we have to somehow, in order 28 

to obtain all the things we’re trying to do, go to a different 29 

way of doing business to get that information. 30 

 31 

Yes, we’re going to have to sacrifice something and it won’t be 32 

as convenient, perhaps, and this may not work.  This may not be 33 

the answer, but we need to be trying these things to do it, 34 

because without increased throughput, we’ll be talking about the 35 

same problem for years and years and years. 36 

 37 

To that point, there’s an item under Other Business which 38 

addresses this very question that we’ll be talking about and I 39 

think it’s called “Discussion on Stock Assessments” and part of 40 

the problem, I think, is, and it’s mired in the SSC as well, 41 

that we’ve got to change our mindset.  We’re all locked into how 42 

we’ve been doing business and that’s the way we’ve got to do 43 

business and we’ve got to change that. 44 

 45 

Everybody wants to go to we need a benchmark on this or we need 46 

a benchmark on that and we’ve got to get out of that mindset, 47 

because we can’t afford the time it takes to do it.  It’s not 48 
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the money.  If you’re going to do a benchmark, you’re 1 

sacrificing on assessments on Species X, Y, and Z because you’re 2 

doing a benchmark on Species A, B, or C. 3 

 4 

It’s time to change that, folks.  If we don’t change that, we 5 

won’t be any further along down the stream and so I put this 6 

motion up because I thought it was something the council ought 7 

to discuss and I don’t like webinars.  I don’t like conference 8 

calls either, but that’s not the issue. 9 

 10 

The issue is that throughput is more important than something 11 

that I don’t like and so I’m going to support the motion and I 12 

urge the council to support it as well. 13 

 14 

MR. SIMPSON:  Personally, going to Corky’s comment, I don’t get 15 

much out of webinars and the reason is I think I’m in that 16 

category with Corky, the stupid level.  The technical level and 17 

expertise, like Kevin was talking about, they probably have more 18 

savvy and probably can get more out of it and so there’s 19 

probably several different levels and I’m down on the bottom 20 

level. 21 

 22 

Now, time is money and so you’re saving time and you are saving 23 

money.  I used to not like conference calls, but I like 24 

conference calls.  I just don’t like webinars.  Now, having said 25 

all that, I think we ought to try it.  I think we would be 26 

remiss in not trying it.  Now, I don’t think it’s going to work, 27 

but I think we ought to try it. 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  Everything we’re doing at this council is headed 30 

towards newer and better technology.  What did we do before we 31 

had these things, before we had Blackberries and we all had to 32 

learn how to grow into these things and so I think that we need 33 

to embrace the technology and it’s just like Kevin said.  We’ve 34 

just got to learn how to use it and how to do it. 35 

 36 

We had to learn how to stop dialing the phone and grab these 37 

things and so the better we get and the more depth we get at 38 

embracing technology, the better this council is going to be and 39 

the more our data comes in and everything.  We’ve got to embrace 40 

technology and we’ve got to try it and give it a chance and so 41 

I’m all in favor of this motion. 42 

 43 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I am not in favor of it and it is about money and 44 

it’s not about time.  Some time is money, but if you’re spending 45 

your time anyway, you’re still being paid the same money and so 46 

I don’t understand that part of it. 47 

 48 
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When you say we ought to try it, we tried it and it didn’t work 1 

and how many times do you want to try it?  Let’s not try it on 2 

an assessment workshop.  Our assessments are important and 3 

that’s what determines how many fish you can catch and so we’re 4 

going to go tinker with that?  That’s not important to you?  If 5 

you want to do some webinars, do it on something else, but not 6 

on your assessments. 7 

 8 

MR. BOYD:  I would just like to make a comment that I have been 9 

on quite a few webinars with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 10 

Department of Interior and frankly, I don’t like them, but that 11 

doesn’t mean that they’re not technologically effective and that 12 

you can’t get something done. 13 

 14 

I would just prefer to talk to people and be able to look them 15 

in the eye and that’s a personal preference.  I think that 16 

Harlon is correct that we’re moving to different technology and 17 

Mr. Riechers can’t evolve, I don’t think, in looking at his 18 

phone, but we all are moving in a new direction. 19 

 20 

I would entertain an amendment to this motion to do this webinar 21 

in conjunction with the face-to-face.  Maybe that’s a way to get 22 

out of this dilemma and we could see where that goes, but let’s 23 

vote this one up or down. 24 

 25 

We have a motion to endorse the concept for multiple webinars 26 

for the SEDAR-33 assessment workshop.  All in favor raise your 27 

hand; all opposed raise your hand.  The motion carries ten to 28 

three.  All right, Mr. Riechers, we’re on to Reef Fish and let 29 

me just say this.  We’re sitting at 11:04 and we’re going to 30 

break for lunch in about an hour and I would like to suggest 31 

that we just do an hour instead of an hour-and-a-half to keep 32 

ourselves moving today.  Is everybody all right with that? 33 

 34 

DR. SHIPP:  Are we ready to start Reef Fish? 35 

 36 

MR. BOYD:  We’re ready to start Reef Fish.  I said Mr. Riechers, 37 

but -- 38 

 39 

REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 40 

 41 

DR. SHIPP:  Well, before this is over, he’s going to probably 42 

carry half of the ball anyway.  The agenda was adopted with the 43 

addition of an update from the SSC on the vermilion snapper ABC.  44 

The minutes of the April 17, 2012 Reef Fish Committee meeting 45 

were adopted as written. 46 

 47 

The Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries Proposal for 48 
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Regional Management, Mr. Joe Shepard gave a presentation on a 1 

proposal by Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries to 2 

establish a three-year pilot study for recreational red snapper 3 

regional management off Louisiana, Tab B-3.   4 

 5 

Under the proposal, Louisiana would be allocated a portion of 6 

the recreational catch allocation, preferably in numbers of 7 

fish.  Based on historical catches during 1986 to 2011, this 8 

would be about 15 percent of the catch.   9 

 10 

Louisiana’s permitted recreational fishermen and for-hire 11 

vessels would then be allowed to harvest in state or federal 12 

waters under regional management regulations.  To enforce the 13 

regional allocation, Louisiana would establish a regional 14 

recreational fishing season, which could include weekend-only 15 

openings.   16 

 17 

A recreational offshore landing permit would be created to 18 

identify participants of the regional allocation who are 19 

authorized to land red snapper in Louisiana.  This would be an 20 

extension of a permit that has already been created for 21 

yellowfin tuna.   22 

 23 

Finally, tracking and/or reporting requirements would be 24 

established, which could include apps for mobile devices or a 25 

telephone reporting system.  Size limits would continue to be 26 

set by the council.  Benefits would include more effective 27 

control of recreational harvest, elimination of derby fishing in 28 

the recreational fishery, shared management responsibility, and 29 

flexibility in management.  30 

 31 

In response to questions, Mr. Shepard stated that the regional 32 

management program would be developed with the cooperation of 33 

the industry.  Whether and how non-residents would be allowed to 34 

participate would be determined by industry.   35 

 36 

If the federal and state regulations differ, for example a 37 

continuously open season versus weekend-only openings, 38 

participants in Louisiana’s regional program would be subject to 39 

the state regulations even if fishing in federal waters.   40 

 41 

The council would need to create a waiver for Louisiana-based 42 

charter boats that are currently required to adhere to federal 43 

regulations regardless of where fishing.  Non-participants could 44 

fish in federal waters in accordance with federal regulations, 45 

but could not land their red snapper in Louisiana.  A system to 46 

validate the self-reported landings would be developed by 47 

industry.   48 
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 1 

Ms. Kay Williams noted that, a few years earlier, the Ad Hoc 2 

Recreational Red Snapper AP had recommended a regionalized 3 

management approach be considered.  However, she felt that the 4 

council should not be passing its responsibility to manage the 5 

resource over to the state.   6 

 7 

Other committee members felt that the council has been 8 

discussing regional management for several years, although it 9 

was for two or three regions, and this was an opportunity to 10 

start working on a regional approach.   11 

 12 

An initial motion was made to encourage Louisiana to proceed 13 

with further development of a regional management plan for red 14 

snapper.  However, some committee members felt that this 15 

constituted an endorsement of the Louisiana proposal and they 16 

did not want to make such an endorsement without seeing more 17 

details.  The following substitute motion was made and passed. 18 

 19 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 20 

and I so move, that the council request Louisiana to provide the 21 

council with the details of their proposed regional management 22 

plan for red snapper. 23 

 24 

MR. BOYD:  You have a committee motion in front of you.  Any 25 

discussion? 26 

 27 

MR. PERRET:  I have no problem with voting for the motion, but I 28 

now have some concerns that with what Louisiana came out with 29 

yesterday relative to management from three to 10.47 miles off 30 

of Louisiana, they’re going to, I assume, be enforcing their 31 

rules and regulations and they’re claiming now 10.34 or 10.43, 32 

whatever miles, but the confusion right now, for the fishing 33 

public, is, for example, if any of us were fishing 3.1 miles off 34 

of Louisiana without a Louisiana fishing license, are we going 35 

to be cited? 36 

 37 

I would like to ask them for details on what they’re enforcing 38 

and how they’re going to enforce it and that sort of thing.  39 

This is something that really needs to be clarified, because the 40 

fishing public is right now confused by what is going to be 41 

required to fish from that three miles to ten-point-whatever 42 

Louisiana is claiming.  Myron, do you want to answer? 43 

 44 

MR. BOYD:  Any other comments? 45 

 46 

MR. FISCHER:  I can mildly answer.  The enforcement duties are 47 

going to be the same as they were in three miles, but just moved 48 
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out to the 10.3 miles.  To get further details, we could get 1 

Jeff or one of the enforcement people or get legal to furnish 2 

documents.  I saw the press release yesterday about the same 3 

time you saw the press release. 4 

 5 

MR. PERRET:  If I understand it correctly, any shrimper, for 6 

example, shrimping four miles off of Louisiana needs a Louisiana 7 

non-resident -- Any non-resident needs a Louisiana non-resident 8 

license today? 9 

 10 

MR. FISCHER:  I’m sorry, but what was your question? 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  A non-resident shrimper fishing beyond three miles 13 

to the ten miles is going to need a Louisiana non-resident 14 

license, as an example, or a recreational fisherman fishing for 15 

trout or red drum now within that is going to need that non-16 

resident license? 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  That would be correct.  They would need the same 19 

license that they would need to be fishing in three miles or 20 

Mississippi waters or six or seven miles in Florida or Texas 21 

waters. 22 

 23 

MR. PERRET:  I was afraid that was the answer.  Do you know if 24 

they intend -- They came out with the news release yesterday and 25 

are they planning to enforce that immediately? 26 

 27 

MR. FISCHER:  I don’t speak for the enforcement division, but we 28 

can try to get through to Jeff and get statements to that 29 

effect. 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Hopefully this council is going to come up with a 32 

way to eventually manage the fishery that’s going to benefit 33 

everyone, but I’m going to speak against the motion, for all of 34 

the various things that’s already been stated. 35 

 36 

It also sounds like Louisiana is going to be making quite a bit 37 

of money, because people are going to run over there and some of 38 

them is going to have to get a license, although they don’t 39 

really want one, and to me, rather than grant them a three-year 40 

special time of when they can fish and control a certain area, 41 

let them do it when red snapper fishing is open and test their 42 

theory, if they’ve got this group or these people that wants to 43 

try it.  They can do it with red snapper open and so I’m going 44 

to speak against it. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t have any problem with the motion, but I 47 

guess I’m like Corky.  I think maybe at the next council meeting 48 
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that it would be useful to have someone from Louisiana come in 1 

and explain to us exactly what’s going on and particularly, 2 

Myron -- I’ve read the legislation that this is based on, but 3 

the legislation says there will be no shift of the boundary 4 

until it’s ratified by Congress or action of the courts and so 5 

it would be nice to have your department explain to us exactly 6 

what’s going on, because I find it very confusing. 7 

 8 

MR. FISCHER:  Right and I agree and I think that would be a very 9 

good time and place, would be at the meeting, if the council 10 

could request whether it be from enforcement or from the Office 11 

of Fisheries to have a presentation on what the intentions are. 12 

 13 

I was asked a question about the boundary and I would like to 14 

make a comment here.  Even though the title is “Regional 15 

Management”, and I think Joey did elaborate on that, it’s just 16 

managing harvest and not managing the species. 17 

 18 

The size limit stays the same and you’re managing when the 19 

harvest occurs and basically that’s it.  It’s managing when the 20 

harvest occurs and it’s not altering the amount of pounds and 21 

not altering the size limit.  All the biological stay the same, 22 

but it’s just giving choice to fishermen so they can fish at 23 

their times through the year. 24 

 25 

MR. PERRET:  Did everybody get the email I sent to staff 26 

yesterday, the public notice about what Louisiana has done, so 27 

you could review it?  Roy, I was thinking the same thing and 28 

trying to get the -- This is not Myron and the biologists, but 29 

this is the commission and the legislature and now the lawyers. 30 

 31 

I was thinking the same thing, trying to get somebody, some 32 

legal people, from Louisiana to present at the next council 33 

meeting, but that’s two months off.  We’ve got fishermen today 34 

that are going fishing off of Louisiana that doesn’t know what 35 

in the world they’re going to need and we need to try and get a 36 

handle on this. 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  This might be something, Larry, to get the 39 

commission involved in, perhaps with a call with all of the 40 

state directors and have Louisiana have some legal 41 

representation so that they can explain the legal basis of what 42 

they’re doing and that could happen much more quickly. 43 

 44 

MR. PERRET:  If I wouldn’t have let you interrupt me, some time 45 

back, some time back, we set up an Ad Hoc Legal Committee, if I 46 

remember right, for Gulf States.  John Henry, who was our 47 

attorney for the State of Mississippi, chaired that. 48 
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 1 

At the time, it was over when you guys weren’t doing something 2 

with an enforcement issue and I can’t remember what it was 3 

called, but do you, Larry?  Anyway, I was going to suggest Larry 4 

try and get the five state fish guys, enforcement guys, and the 5 

lawyers together and figure out what we can do with this thing, 6 

because it is a major issue. 7 

 8 

I’ve already got a commissioner that wants to do the same thing 9 

off of Mississippi and I suspect Alabama -- Since Florida and 10 

Texas already got theirs or constitutionally they have it and 11 

what Louisiana has done, I’m not sure it’s going to pass muster, 12 

legal muster, but we’ve got some issues for our fishermen and we 13 

need to try and get this straightened out as quickly as we can. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think I’m in agreement with Dr. Crabtree’s 16 

suggestion relative to the next meeting and I would ask that he 17 

would float a substitute motion to accommodate that.  I’m not 18 

smart enough to do it. 19 

 20 

MR. RIECHERS:  I think we would still want the details of their 21 

proposed regional management plan.  I think this is a different 22 

issue, though it obviously is intertwined in some respects, but 23 

this is a different issue dealing with their boundary shift that 24 

they’ve recently put out in a press release. 25 

 26 

I think what we want to do is go up or down with this motion and 27 

then create another motion to bring people to deal with those 28 

other issues, unless Larry suggests he’s going to do it with a 29 

call before that time. 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think I agree with Robin that we would vote 32 

this motion up or down and then another motion or direction to 33 

staff that we would like to hear from Louisiana at their 34 

meeting, but I would point out that part of constructing a 35 

regional management plan will mean we’re going to have all come 36 

to an agreement on what the jurisdictional boundaries are. 37 

 38 

MR. ANSON:  Although I know Louisiana is going to work hard to 39 

stay within any quota or within their historical fishing if a 40 

proposal is passed, but I just want a point of clarification.  41 

There will be a change in the amount of fish that will be 42 

allowed to be harvested from two to three and is that correct, 43 

Myron? 44 

 45 

MR. FISCHER:  That is under the present plan at the commission 46 

and once again, I could be mistaken on what I’m about to say, 47 

but the Secretary persuaded the commission to not carry it out 48 
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because we’re going to come up with another plan.  I think you 1 

all are governed by a commission that sometimes you have to put 2 

reins on them and try to slow them down in certain areas.  We 3 

are trying to come up with a plan palatable that can go forward 4 

amongst all the states and not be a rebel. 5 

 6 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion in front of us and I’m 7 

going to reread it just for clarification.  The motion is to 8 

request Louisiana to provide the council with the details of 9 

their proposed regional management plan for red snapper.  All in 10 

favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  For those of you that may not have seen the area 13 

we’re talking about, Steve, have you got it?  I would just like 14 

to put it on the board and we can take a look at it. 15 

 16 

MR. ATRAN:  Phyllis is working on it right now. 17 

 18 

DR. SHIPP:  The committee then voted to recommend that the 19 

council begin developing alternatives for regional management of 20 

recreational red snapper harvest.  Alternatives could include 21 

two regions, three regions, or regional by state. 22 

 23 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 24 

and I so move, that the council develop alternatives for 25 

regional management of recreational harvest of red snapper and 26 

place them in the appropriate amendment. 27 

 28 

MR. BOYD:  You have a committee motion in front of you and is 29 

there any discussion? 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ve got a couple of things.  We went through 32 

this exercise in Reef Fish and at the end, it seemed like we 33 

took everything and bundled it together and we’re going to have 34 

a scoping document. 35 

 36 

Are we going to sit here and go through the various things, 37 

options and things, that we chose and then we decided to put the 38 

amendments together and throw some more alternatives in there 39 

and go to scoping or is that even necessary for us to go through 40 

each amendment?  That’s just for some clarification, since we’ve 41 

already directed staff to do something else.  We can sit here 42 

and vote every one of them up and down, but I was just wondering 43 

what direction we were going to go. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We did discuss this issue at length in Amendment 46 

27/14 in 2007 or something like that and it didn’t go anywhere 47 

and so I guess one of the concerns I have relative to this 48 
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motion is that “appropriate amendment”. 1 

 2 

It seems to me that how staff would go about this is they would 3 

go back to 27/14 and take a lot of that stuff out and maybe 4 

update it, but it may well be a drag on whatever amendment it 5 

goes into and I think that’s perhaps appropriate consideration 6 

as to the wording of the amendment. 7 

 8 

If we’re going to drag down something else with the result of 9 

this, then I think that bears on consideration about whether 10 

this amendment is right or we should go with something entirely 11 

separately and so I would like to get if staff could perhaps 12 

address what they’re thinking of as to where this might go, so 13 

that we might flesh out whether my concerns have any validity or 14 

not. 15 

 16 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I am looking at puzzled faces and I 17 

will let Assane address this. 18 

 19 

DR. DIAGNE:  I just was close to a mic, but I’ll try.  I think 20 

the concerns expressed by Mr. Gill would definitely be relevant 21 

here.  In terms of looking at regional management, there are a 22 

host of issues to be addressed and so perhaps it deserves to be 23 

in an amendment by itself, because at the end of the day, how 24 

many regions and it will come down to one of the favorite 25 

issues, I guess, of how much to allocate to each one of those 26 

regions and that can get complicated very fast. 27 

 28 

It may be the case that we could just start and have an 29 

amendment that would take what was in 27/14, as well as other 30 

discussion, and start an amendment for this purpose. 31 

 32 

DR. SHIPP:  I think this is a little premature to pass at this 33 

time.  First of all, I think where we need to see where legal is 34 

going in Louisiana and, two, we’ve had discussions about the 35 

workload and Ms. Williams is right that we went through this 36 

once before and with all the workload that’s on the staff right 37 

now, I think I’m going to vote against this and maybe in six 38 

months or so, once we see where things are going with Louisiana, 39 

it might be more appropriate, but I think it’s premature at this 40 

point. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Dr. Shipp took the steam out of my impetus. 43 

 44 

MR. RIECHERS:  I am going to support the motion and did so in 45 

committee as well.  Obviously Louisiana came here to us showing 46 

their concerns that they need a better way to approach some of 47 

their fisheries management in their state and the people that 48 
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they are hearing from. 1 

 2 

We’ve heard that for a long time on red snapper and that’s 3 

nothing new.  We’ve passed this same motion several times, as I 4 

discussed in committee as well.  It’s going to take work and 5 

effort and it’s going to be hard, whether we stay at status quo 6 

and discuss these issues or whether we actually flesh this out 7 

and then determine there is a better way to do this. 8 

 9 

I think we need to go ahead and go forward with this, whether or 10 

not at this point it’s a stand-alone or whether we find an 11 

appropriate place to put it in later.  A lot of that work has to 12 

be done no matter how we do that and so I would at least like to 13 

get started on it, so that it comes back to us at the next 14 

available time after some of that effort has been done. 15 

 16 

I might add that there are several places that we can build on, 17 

based on 27/14 and some other options that we’ve talked about in 18 

the past in this respect. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I got my steam back up.  I would like to offer 21 

an amendment to insert, between “develop” and “alternatives” “a 22 

plan amendment with” and delete all after “red snapper”.   23 

 24 

I do share the concerns of Dr. Shipp and I agree that that’s an 25 

issue.  On the other hand, I’m also concern that if the motion 26 

as written passed, it could be even worse and so I offer this as 27 

an amendment to the motion. 28 

 29 

MR. BOYD:  Do I hear a second? 30 

 31 

MR. ANSON:  Second. 32 

 33 

MR. BOYD:  We have a second and we have an amendment to the 34 

motion to insert, between “develop” and “alternatives” “a plan 35 

amendment with” and delete all after “red snapper”. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I would just ask her to put what the new wording 38 

looks like, so it’s clear to the council. 39 

 40 

MR. BOYD:  On the amendment, all in favor say aye; all opposed.  41 

The motion carries.  Now we’ve got to do the motion and we have 42 

the amended motion in front of you. 43 

 44 

The motion is to develop a plan amendment with alternatives for 45 

regional management of recreational harvest of red snapper.  Any 46 

discussion?   47 

 48 
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MS. MCCAWLEY:  Does this mean it’s going to be a stand-alone 1 

amendment now? 2 

 3 

MR. BOYD:  Yes, that’s my understanding and is that correct, Mr. 4 

Gill?  All right. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  One of the things that I think we’ve got to deal 7 

with is whether -- If we have states that decide to make 8 

different decisions about allowing fishing in state waters, we 9 

have historically spread those lost days out across the entire 10 

Gulf. 11 

 12 

Part of this consideration of regional management needs to be if 13 

we decide we’re going to stay sort of on the path we’re on, but 14 

then do we want to change how we deal with that situation?  I 15 

think that needs to be part of this as well. 16 

 17 

MR. PERRET:  I am going to vote against this.  I agree with Dr. 18 

Shipp that we’ve got so many things going on now with reef fish 19 

and with snapper and with grouper and this just complicates the 20 

problems that we’re facing right now. 21 

 22 

We’ve got this issue with Louisiana and I’ve got a commissioner 23 

wanting to do the same thing off of Mississippi.  I don’t know 24 

what’s going to happen with state management with this thing 25 

going on, but this just complicates the problem, for me, and 26 

we’ve got far more important things to deal with at this time I 27 

think than this and so I speak against the motion. 28 

 29 

MS. WILLIAMS:  For those of you that are supporting this, it may 30 

would be beneficial to learn from those that have already done 31 

it.  You need to talk with the various state directors that have 32 

the summer flounder. 33 

 34 

They have different bag limits and different size limits and 35 

they go over their quotas and they have to pay them back the 36 

next year and it’s just a nightmare for them.  Before you want 37 

to jump into this and do it, learn from those who have already 38 

done it. 39 

 40 

MR. ANSON:  I had looked a little bit further in the report, in 41 

fact the next sentence, and it mentioned that Dr. Bortone asked 42 

the committee to prioritize this action and so I was just 43 

wondering if he can shed some light as to what the status or 44 

designation of an A or B or C would mean as far as a timeline 45 

for producing a product. 46 

 47 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I look at the action sheet, and 48 
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Assane and Steve are probably going to be headlong into a lot of 1 

this and they’re already pretty well committed on a number of 2 

things you’ve already designated as A priority. 3 

 4 

I guess if you intend to pass this, if you gave it a low 5 

priority, we could live with it and we could continue to plod 6 

along, but right now, their plates are very full with things and 7 

so I don’t know what -- If you want to give it an A priority, I 8 

would also like some suggestions as to what you would like them 9 

to drop. 10 

 11 

MR. RIECHERS:  I don’t think, frankly, no matter whose business 12 

it is that comes before this council, they should all be A 13 

priorities and we should do our best and ask our staff and ask 14 

National Marine Fisheries Service to do their best to move 15 

forward as quickly as possible on all those issues. 16 

 17 

I understand that there has to be a prioritization, but I also 18 

understand that we go forward with a lot of things and yes, they 19 

shift and change through time, but we need to do our best at 20 

bringing them all back here with movement on them as quickly as 21 

we can have that movement. 22 

 23 

It is certainly your prerogative and with your staff to try to 24 

create prioritizations and how you move that forward, but I 25 

think to tell anyone in the audience that their priority is a C 26 

priority -- We’ve got to make some of those decisions about how 27 

fast we move some of this stuff, but I think they’re all high 28 

priority. 29 

 30 

MR. BOYD:  Any further discussion? 31 

 32 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I agree with you, Robin, but the 33 

reason we gave them as priorities is so you could give us 34 

direction as to where those priorities are and I’m looking at 35 

Phil and his group as well.  It’s not just our staff that’s 36 

involved with these, but it’s a group of other people as well. 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  If the council gives no indication as to what 39 

your priorities are, then staff will decide, because at some 40 

point, staff is going to have to say what am I going to work on 41 

today and they’re going to come to me and Steve saying what do 42 

you want us to work on? 43 

 44 

If you say everything is a high priority, you are essentially 45 

delegating and letting staff decide what the priorities are and 46 

I don’t think you want to do that and I don’t think your 47 

constituents in the audience want you to do that. 48 
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 1 

MR. RIECHERS:  I would say if we pass this motion that we can 2 

create a priority, but first, we need to see whether it passes 3 

or not, number one.  Number two, I would hope that we don’t have 4 

any staff that come to each of you each morning asking what they 5 

should be doing. 6 

 7 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion before us and I’m going to read the 8 

motion again and then we’re going to vote.  It’s to develop a 9 

plan amendment with alternatives for regional management of 10 

recreational harvest of red snapper.  All in favor please raise 11 

your hand; all opposed.  The motion carries ten to four.  I am 12 

going to recognize Mr. Perret.  He had a comment a while ago. 13 

 14 

MR. PERRET:  Have we got the map up?  In line with comments 15 

earlier, I think Dr. Crabtree and I others made, I would move 16 

that we ask staff to develop a letter to Secretary Barham 17 

requesting that appropriate personnel, legal, biological, 18 

enforcement, come and explain their management, enforcement, et 19 

cetera, of this additional 7.34 or whatever it is miles that 20 

they’re claiming as state jurisdiction for fishery management 21 

purposes. 22 

 23 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion that’s been moved and seconded and 24 

are there comments? 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t want to hear a biologist come in and -- 27 

 28 

MR. PERRET:  Whatever is appropriate. 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think the real issue here is the legal basis 31 

for what they’ve done and so we need to have the appropriate 32 

person who can address those questions. 33 

 34 

MR. BOYD:  Any further discussion on the motion?  The motion is 35 

to request that staff develop a letter to Secretary Barham 36 

requesting that appropriate personnel, which is legal, 37 

biological, enforcement, come and explain their management, 38 

enforcement, et cetera, of the additional 7.3 miles for 39 

management purposes. 40 

 41 

MR. ANSON:  Should that be just -- I know we’re all talking 42 

Louisiana, but Louisiana waters, Louisiana’s request? 43 

 44 

MR. PERRET:  Yes, off of Louisiana.  Request staff to develop a 45 

letter to Secretary Barham to request that appropriate 46 

personnel, legal and others, come and explain their management 47 

and enforcement program in the -- 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  May I suggest that you might think of expansion 2 

of their jurisdiction?  I think it’s their expansion of their 3 

jurisdiction for fishery management purposes that we’re 4 

interested in. 5 

 6 

MR. PERRET:  That’s it, but it’s to three leagues, isn’t it, 7 

Myron?  Out to three marine leagues? 8 

 9 

MR. BOYD:  Is the seconder okay with that?  Mr. Gill, did you 10 

second that?  You’re nodding yes and okay.  I am going to read 11 

the motion.  The motion is to request staff develop a letter to 12 

Secretary Barham requesting that appropriate personnel, legal 13 

and others, come and explain the expansion of their jurisdiction 14 

in the total of 10.3 miles for fishery management purposes. 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  Staff has editorial license to clean it up. 17 

 18 

MR. BOYD:  Any further questions?  All in favor say aye; all 19 

opposed.  The motion carries. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Part of the report mentions that Dr. Bortone 22 

asks that we assess a priority to the regional management motion 23 

and I guess Robin and I, once again, disagree on that. 24 

 25 

I think real life says that there are Priorities A, B, and C and 26 

I think that’s real-life recognition and I think that’s the only 27 

way to do business, because everything cannot be A, as Dr. 28 

Crabtree pointed out.  I would move that for the red snapper 29 

regional management motion just passed that the priority be C. 30 

 31 

MR. BOYD:  I have a motion and I have a second by Dr. Shipp.  32 

Discussion? 33 

 34 

DR. ABELE:  I’m assuming we have a current list of Priority A, 35 

Priority B, and then Priority C and then what a Priority C would 36 

mean. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The problem, Larry, is that that list was 39 

current prior to our meeting this week.  The decisions this week 40 

have changed a lot of that and so what you’ll get in the 41 

briefing book for the next meeting will be a revised action 42 

schedule that incorporates whatever the decision on this motion 43 

might be. 44 

 45 

It’s a moving target during the meeting and you can’t tell 46 

precisely exactly what it is, but you will see it updated and 47 

that’s one of the reasons why we added it to the council agenda, 48 
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so that we could do precisely that and see whether staff is 1 

thinking this and moving it around and whether we concur and 2 

whether we ought to make changes or not.  Right now, the 3 

schedule you have does not accurately reflect what the decisions 4 

-- We haven’t even made all of the decisions yet. 5 

 6 

MR. ANSON:  I would recognize Robin’s comments that the public 7 

certainly is very in tune to this topic and don’t want to be 8 

considered C, but in light of the realization that there are 9 

limits to resources, time being one of them, and I just was 10 

curious, again, and I’ll ask the question, and I asked it 11 

earlier, Dr. Bortone, of if you have any expectations that the 12 

staff could produce a document, however much in draft form it 13 

may be, but will they have something available for the next 14 

meeting, perhaps, with a C designation? 15 

 16 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Atran has his hand up. 17 

 18 

MR. ATRAN:  I was thinking of this as a timing issue in 19 

conjunction with the amendment we’ll be producing after the 20 

current red snapper stock assessment is produced.  That will be 21 

next summer that we’ll be working on that for, I imagine, 22 

regulations in 2015. 23 

 24 

If we’re going to have options to move towards regional 25 

management, it might make a difference in what we put into that 26 

particular amendment. 27 

 28 

If we need to produce something before the Red Snapper ACL 29 

Amendment, then yes, we’ll need to start working on something 30 

right now for that.  If you want to wait until afterwards, then 31 

that ACL Amendment will not consider regional management other 32 

than the Louisiana pilot project, if that goes forward. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Of course, whatever priority we assign it today, 35 

that’s reviewable at each meeting and as the situation shifts, 36 

then the council may wish to change that and I think Mr. Atran’s 37 

recommendation is a good one.   38 

 39 

That would be a good fit and kind of reflects the C priority and 40 

it says don’t get started on it right away and then as the 41 

assessment comes through and it looks like it might be something 42 

that the council wants to do, you can assign it a different 43 

priority and tie it into whatever amendment seems appropriate 44 

and so I think that fits with the motion. 45 

 46 

MR. RIECHERS:  I don’t really mind it being a C priority at this 47 

point.  I would suggest it probably should be a B, but I would 48 
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suggest is that we don’t wait until next summer to actually 1 

start having that dialogue. 2 

 3 

I would say that we go back to Amendment 27/14 and we dig the 4 

information that we had, the analysis and alternatives that we 5 

had, in that document and we put a time slot in the agenda next 6 

time to start having that discussion regarding this issue. 7 

 8 

Our colleagues, if you remember why we made this motion, it was 9 

partly because Louisiana came to us and suggested that they 10 

would like to see this explored as they move forward with their 11 

own regional management plan and whether or not -- The issues of 12 

legality and all those kinds of things being said, we were 13 

trying to show them that we are certainly going to consider this 14 

as we move forward and so I think we do need to have it on the 15 

next agenda with at least the materials we’ve had in the past. 16 

 17 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Gill wants a C and Mr. Riechers wants a B and 18 

what about a C-plus? 19 

 20 

MR. BOYD:  The motion before you, and it has been seconded, is 21 

for the red snapper regional management motion just passed that 22 

the priority be a C.  Any further discussion?  All those in 23 

favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion passed. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I would like to call on Dr. 26 

Simmons, please. 27 

 28 

DR. SIMMONS:  The council would just envision a potential 29 

scoping document plus options at the next council meeting for 30 

the motion you just passed and is that reasonable? 31 

 32 

MR. RIECHERS:  It seems to me staff may be saying they can do 33 

more than you thought, Dr. Bortone. 34 

 35 

MR. BOYD:  Dr. Shipp and I would remind you we’ve got about 36 

fifteen minutes. 37 

 38 

DR. SHIPP:  At this pace, we should finish by ten o’clock 39 

tonight.  Options Paper for Amendment 28, Grouper Allocation, 40 

and Stephen Holliman gave a presentation on a comparison of 41 

economic impacts versus economic value when making allocation 42 

decisions.   43 

 44 

This presentation was intended to provide a background to 45 

supplement the analysis of economic efficiency in the existing 46 

grouper sector allocations presented to the council by the SEFSC 47 

staff during the April 2012 council meeting.   48 
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 1 

Economic impacts refers to a measure of how money circulates 2 

around different areas of the country.  It is a zero-sum game 3 

from a national perspective and what is gained by one area is 4 

offset by the loss in another.  An example would be when one 5 

city is awarded the Super Bowl at the expense of other candidate 6 

cities.   7 

 8 

Economic value refers to the net benefits to fishery producers 9 

and consumers.  For fishery producers, this is the producer 10 

surplus, earnings minus cost.  For fishery consumers, it is the 11 

consumer surplus, economic value to the consumer, which is the 12 

maximum a consumer is willing to pay minus the actual cost.  13 

 14 

Maximizing economic benefits to the nation from the fishery 15 

harvest is measured in terms of economic value, not economic 16 

impacts.  In order to measure the economic value of grouper 17 

allocation, marginal values were estimated using the ITQ 18 

allocation market for the commercial sector and the 2003 survey 19 

of anglers for the recreational sector.   20 

 21 

Conclusions from an evaluation of grouper allocations using 22 

these data sourced included increasing economic benefits 23 

requires consideration of economic value instead of economic 24 

impacts and with respect to grouper, the estimated marginal 25 

value for the commercial sector may be too low, non-response, 26 

underreported values, and the estimate for the recreational 27 

sector may be too high, stated values are typically higher than 28 

revealed values and the economic conditions were significantly 29 

healthier when the survey was conducted. 30 

 31 

The information provided may be sufficient to support 32 

marginal/incremental reallocation at this time.  If you 33 

reallocate current ACL, there will be winners and losers.  To 34 

limit the loss, you can reallocate in small increments.  To 35 

prevent having losers, you need a mechanism to compensate the 36 

losers, that is create a market.  If only the allocation for ACL 37 

increases is changed, both sectors may benefit.  However, don’t 38 

forget there are other considerations than just economics.   39 

 40 

Assane summarized the options paper for Reef Fish Amendment 28 41 

Tab B-4(b).  This amendment considers the reallocation of red 42 

grouper, gag, and black grouper between the commercial and 43 

recreational sectors.  Committee members discussed the 44 

alternatives provided in the document and suggested that the 45 

range of alternatives needed to be expanded. 46 

 47 

By a voice vote with one opposed, the committee recommends, and 48 
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I so move, that in Action 1 a new alternative be developed for 1 

gag grouper that the increase in ACL between 2012 and 2015 be 2 

allocated to the recreational sector. 3 

 4 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion and is there any 5 

discussion? 6 

 7 

MR. PEARCE:  I would like to offer a substitute motion that gag 8 

reallocation be deferred until the 2013 stock assessment is 9 

completed.  The reason I’m doing that is we’re kind of looking 10 

at a pig in a poke. 11 

 12 

We don’t know what’s really going to happen.  What if there’s a 13 

decrease in ACL with the recreational sector?  I don’t think 14 

they should take a decrease and I think we ought to wait to see 15 

where we really are before we jump into conclusions such as this 16 

and so I would like to wait and see us get the stock assessment 17 

done and then we can make our decisions. 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Second.  I was going back and looking at some of 20 

the reports and at our last council meeting, although it’s not 21 

highlighted in big, bold print, I would like to read that -- Ms. 22 

Lasseter reported on the Socioeconomics SSC Meeting and the 23 

SESSC heard a presentation on the economic efficiency of grouper 24 

allocations, social indicators for quantifying community well-25 

being, and an update on the status of the five-year review of 26 

the red snapper IFQ program. 27 

 28 

Without a quorum in attendance, the committee chose to make 29 

recommendations to the council as follows and the SESSC accepts 30 

the finding and conclusions in the presentations on economic 31 

evaluation of grouper allocations made by Dr. Agar and Dr. 32 

Carter, including that an effective framework presently does not 33 

exist that could be used to optimally allocate this marine 34 

resource of black, red, and gag grouper. 35 

 36 

The SESSC recommends that the council direct the committee to 37 

develop an effective framework to allocate this resource of red, 38 

black, and gag grouper and that necessary information and set of 39 

tools be identified to develop this framework. 40 

 41 

I’m not going to read all of them, but if you go through there, 42 

they listed about seven or eight and then it goes on to say that 43 

the SESSC recommends that while incremental reallocations of 44 

red, black, and gag grouper may be warranted, it is premature 45 

for the council to consider significant reallocations because 46 

both the recreational and commercial sectors are currently 47 

making adjustments to recently enacted management measures, such 48 
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as bag limits, ACLs, IFQs, and endorsement programs. 1 

 2 

That’s what we were told at our last council meeting.  Those 3 

were motions made by the SESSC and so in saying that, I’m going 4 

to support Harlon’s motion. 5 

 6 

MR. RIECHERS:  As a point of order, the substitute motion, as it 7 

stands, really basically just is Alternative 1, no action, and 8 

so I think we should go back to the previous motion.  If you’re 9 

basically against the previous motion, you vote no there and it 10 

takes you back to the no action alternative.  This was just 11 

adding an alternative to the suite and so you have your 12 

substitute already in this suite of alternatives. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I was going to comment that I thought that the 15 

substitute motion was prudent and I don’t quite understand 16 

Robin’s comment.  It seems to me that developing these 17 

techniques may well depend on what the assessment shows and so 18 

it seems appropriate that we have the assessment in 2013 and 19 

taking that and then developing what the right alternatives 20 

might be would be a smarter way to go and so I support the 21 

substitute motion and think that’s the way the council ought to 22 

go. 23 

 24 

DR. SHIPP:  Let’s remember that these are simply alternatives to 25 

be suggested.  I think the substitute motion is like Robin says.  26 

We don’t need it, but rather than replace the other alternative, 27 

if Harlon wants, just add this as another alternative, rather 28 

than removing an alternative.  I won’t support it as a 29 

substitute, but I would as another alternative.  30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  Just as a point of order, it does seem to me that 32 

the motion is out of order.  It’s not really a substitute motion 33 

for the motion at hand.  It’s a whole different issue that, 34 

based on subsequent motions we’re going to come to, would 35 

effectively delay the whole sector allocation amendment until 36 

after the gag assessment is done.  It seems to me this really 37 

isn’t a substitute for the motion that we’re discussing. 38 

 39 

MR. PEARCE:  Is it out of order or not? 40 

 41 

DR. SHIPP:  I will make a decision on that as chairman of the 42 

Reef Fish Committee, which is basically what I just said before.  43 

Yes, I do think it’s out of order, but I think it would be 44 

appropriate for Harlon to introduce it as an alternative, 45 

another alternative. 46 

 47 

MR. PEARCE:  So be it and let’s just change that to add it as an 48 
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alternative. 1 

 2 

MR. BOYD:  So it’s not a substitute motion, but it’s a motion.  3 

You’re withdrawing this? 4 

 5 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 6 

 7 

MR. BOYD:  And you’re going to make a motion?  8 

 9 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 10 

 11 

MR. BOYD:  Go ahead. 12 

 13 

MR. PEARCE:  I make a motion that we add an alternative that we 14 

-- 15 

 16 

MR. BOYD:  We’ve got a motion on the board and I’m sorry. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess we’re back to the committee motion and 19 

if I remember the numbers close to correctly, this indicates a 20 

shift of 1.1 million pounds from the commercial sector to the 21 

recreational sector. 22 

 23 

You’re talking about, percent-wise, something on the order of 25 24 

percent change and so you’re talking about a significant shift 25 

and you’re not talking about a modest or the 5 percent kind of 26 

thing, but you’re talking 25 percent. 27 

 28 

The recommendation from the economic studies was that the data 29 

were far too shaky to support that notion and that they 30 

recommended a very modest increase and so I think this motion 31 

flies in the face of that recommendation and takes you far 32 

beyond what the report recommended and I would urge that we not 33 

support this motion. 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  I can’t support this motion, because I don’t think 36 

we’re being fair and I don’t think we’re being equitable by 37 

giving any increase to any one segment.  Dr. Shipp says it’s 38 

just an alternative and my suggestion would be then that we have 39 

an alternative, which I don’t support, because it would give it 40 

all to the commercial, that the language be the same, but that 41 

any increase between 2012 and 2015 be allocated to the 42 

commercial sector, which I don’t think is fair and equitable 43 

either, but it’s an alternative. 44 

 45 

The alternative I favor would be this, that a new alternative be 46 

developed for gag grouper that the increase in ACL between 2012 47 

and 2015 be allocated equally between the recreational and 48 
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commercial sector and so I’m suggesting we add two more 1 

alternatives.  They’re just alternatives and so we’ve got all go 2 

to the recreational, all go to the commercial, and all be split 3 

equally. 4 

 5 

I don’t know how to do that.  It would take -- We need to vote 6 

this one up or down and if we -- I would just as soon leave it 7 

in, but I would like to add other alternatives and that’s what I 8 

would like to do. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think about two motions from now you come to 11 

one where we added -- The committee voted to add a larger 12 

reallocation range of up to 10 percent and that was done because 13 

we needed to address the question of what do we consider to be 14 

incremental or marginal, which is what the SSC said we ought to 15 

do with this and so we decided 10 percent. 16 

 17 

My question to you is this motion came earlier than that 18 

decision, but it does seem to me this -- I don’t know if Corky 19 

is right about the 25 percent or whoever said that, but it is, 20 

it seems to me, quite a bit more than 10 percent and so it 21 

really doesn’t seem quite consistent with the motion that’s 22 

coming up next, but somehow we’ve got to come to some terms for 23 

how we’re going to define, and it applies to all three of these 24 

grouper species, what’s incremental or what’s marginal. 25 

 26 

I would urge you not to get into these all-or-nothing kind of 27 

scenarios, where it’s going to be 100 percent this or 100 28 

percent that.  I think that’s just going to alarm people and 29 

make this discussion even more difficult than it is. 30 

 31 

We’ve got science that supports some incremental shifts and we 32 

need to decide what’s incremental and then work within that kind 33 

of world. 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  I just want to go back, because I think we need to 36 

wait for the stock assessment.  2013 is upon us and let’s get 37 

the real numbers and real data and then we’ll know where we’re 38 

at and where we’re heading and I don’t like any of those 39 

motions, even though the ones Corky was just talking about. 40 

 41 

Like Roy said, we’re going off the deep end here and let’s back 42 

it up a little bit and let’s see where we are and do this the 43 

right way. 44 

 45 

MR. PERRET:  Let me try this.  I guess it would be a substitute 46 

motion.  In Action 1, that a new alternative be developed for 47 

gag grouper that the increase in ACL between 2012 and 2015 be 48 
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allocated: a)to the recreational sector; b)to the commercial 1 

sector; c)equal distribution between both sectors.  That’s my 2 

motion. 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Second. 5 

 6 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion and it has been seconded and is 7 

there discussion? 8 

 9 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would support the motion, because we do not 10 

have any figures before us.  Our SESSC has already told us that 11 

it was premature to consider significant reallocations and I 12 

haven’t seen where the support is to even support incremental. 13 

 14 

The commercial industry, if you will go by the discussion that 15 

took place around this table, we weren’t certain if the 16 

commercial industry could go catch red grouper, because there 17 

wasn’t enough gag grouper and it was going to increase their 18 

bycatch. 19 

 20 

There was all of this concern and so all of a sudden now any 21 

increments we want to go and give it away, plus you heard 22 

testimony from fishermen saying we’re trying to hang on and 23 

we’re trying to survive and they gave a list of the percentages 24 

already that is between, on the various species, where the 25 

angler has 100 percent and the commercial has zero, 27 percent, 26 

30 percent. 27 

 28 

We provide food for the nation and get real here.  We need to do 29 

some more analysis and we’ve got to have the socioeconomic in 30 

these documents. 31 

 32 

Those statements that was made from the podium about what’s 33 

going to happen and how they’re already struggling trying to 34 

stay afloat, all that needs to be in the document and I thought 35 

that that’s what we were going to do, that we were going to come 36 

up with this suite of pretty much like what Corky just did 37 

throughout the document on everything and then go put in all of 38 

the other stuff that we talked about bundling. 39 

 40 

I would like to throw the red snapper five-year review in here 41 

too, but I mean we can go through each one of these and debate 42 

them.  In the end, it’s going to be a scoping document and so I 43 

don’t know why all of this is even necessary.  We’ve already 44 

given staff direction, but maybe we do need to give them a 45 

little more direction, because some more ideas came out at the 46 

podium yesterday that needs to go in this comprehensive document 47 

that we’re going to come up with. 48 
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 1 

DR. ABELE:  This is an options paper and we’re not making a 2 

choice and am I correct that this then goes out for public 3 

comment?  Is that correct?  We seem to be spending a lot of time 4 

on this and if we do the vote on the 10 percent, then Option c 5 

already exceeds that, given the current distribution of 6 

allocation. 7 

 8 

If you said under Option c the distribution as currently 9 

allocated, it would stay within the 10 percent and so I’m just 10 

trying to avoid going back to a motion if we do the third motion 11 

on the table. 12 

 13 

MR. PERRET:  I just think c gives the option that all fishermen 14 

have shared in the pain and if there’s a gain, I just think they 15 

should be treated equally and fairly and it should be 16 

distributed that way and as you say, this is an option, three 17 

options, and we’ll flesh them out as time progresses. 18 

 19 

DR. DIAGNE:  Very quickly, the motion that would shift all of 20 

the increase to the recreational sector would bring the new 21 

allocation to a 25/75.  Obviously Option b is the converse, 22 

essentially, and it will take 14 percent and give it to the 23 

commercial sector and so that will be 14 and 39, which is 53, 24 

and the difference. 25 

 26 

Option c would shift to each, basically, 7 percent and so the 27 

Option c would be nested in the other one, which would go up to 28 

10 percent.  That will be below that and that’s just to give the 29 

numbers.  Maybe that will put this in perspective. 30 

 31 

MR. BOYD:  We have a substitute motion in Action 1 that a new 32 

alternative be developed for gag grouper that the increase in 33 

ACL between 2012 and 2015 be allocated to either: Option a)the 34 

recreational sector; Option b)the commercial sector; or Option 35 

c)equal distribution between both sectors.  Any further 36 

discussion?  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion 37 

carries. 38 

 39 

We are six minutes late for lunch.  I want to remind those of 40 

you that have not checked out that check-out time is twelve and 41 

so you may be paying for an extra day and let’s be back promptly 42 

at one o’clock.  We are recessed. 43 

 44 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Come on, Mr. Chair, make it 1:30.  We’re running 45 

late.  We can’t eat in fifty-five minutes. 46 

 47 

MR. BOYD:  Let me just ask, what’s the pleasure of the group?  48 
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You all want to do 1:15 or 1:30?  We’re going to get out of here 1 

late if we don’t. 2 

 3 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t care.  Roy, what do you want to do?  He 4 

is asking you.  1:15? 5 

 6 

MR. BOYD:  All right, 1:15.  We’ll be back here at 1:15. 7 

 8 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 12:05 p.m., June 21, 2012.) 9 

 10 

- - - 11 

 12 

June 21, 2012 13 

 14 

THURSDAY AFTERNOON SESSION 15 

 16 

- - - 17 

 18 

 19 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 20 

Council reconvened at the Hilton Tampa Airport Hotel, Tampa, 21 

Florida, Thursday afternoon, June 21, 2012, and was called to 22 

order at 1:15 p.m. by Chairman Bob Gill. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If the council members would come back to their 25 

seats, please, and those having conversations in the back, 26 

please carry them outside and we can proceed. 27 

 28 

Before we get back to the Reef Fish Committee, I thought I would 29 

ask Dr. Bortone, since we’re running long and we’re probably 30 

going to run quite late and there’s questions of quorum issues 31 

and I would ask Dr. Bortone to briefly review how that’s set up 32 

in the SOPPs and that’s the way we’ll do it and then we’ll go 33 

right back to the Reef Fish Committee and so we’ll take a few 34 

minutes to do that. 35 

 36 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s very brief.  Our quorum number 37 

is eight.  Once we pass below that, votes do not count.  Any 38 

vote that we take is the majority of those present and voting, 39 

but if we do drop below eight individuals, then any votes we 40 

take will not be official. 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  I thought we had to have nine.  There’s seventeen 43 

members. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Two were not present and so it drops to eight.  46 

Dr. Shipp, back to you, sir. 47 

 48 
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DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, sir, and my recollection is the motion on 1 

the board under discussion, we did not take action on that 2 

motion, if I recall.  Did we?   3 

 4 

MR. ATRAN:  That motion was withdrawn. 5 

 6 

DR. SHIPP:  You withdrew that?  Let’s move on then.  The 7 

committee indicated that the purpose and need section could be 8 

expanded to include socioeconomic considerations. 9 

 10 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 11 

and I so move, to add to the purpose and need a discussion 12 

regarding the social consideration and economic efficiency of 13 

allocation of the resources.  We have a committee motion. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 16 

on the motion? 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Aren’t we supposed to do that, according to law, 19 

anyway in all of our documents?  It’s my understanding that we 20 

are. 21 

 22 

DR. SHIPP:  We have a purpose and need, but this motion is to 23 

expand it. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Seeing no further discussion, is there any 26 

objection to the motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries. 27 

 28 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I was mistaken.  The quorum is nine 29 

and not eight.  It’s nine. 30 

 31 

DR. SHIPP:  The committee further discussed the range of 32 

alternatives to be considered in this amendment.  33 

 34 

By a vote of five to two, the committee recommends, and I so 35 

move, to recommend to staff to include larger reallocation 36 

ranges, up to 10 percent, for red, black, and gag grouper 37 

species.  38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 40 

on the motion? 41 

 42 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The earlier motion, doesn’t that take care of 43 

that and so that’s sort of out of order, because we said give it 44 

all to commercial, give it all to recreational, and divide it 45 

up?  Wouldn’t that apply to everything that’s going to be in the 46 

document? 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  I would read that as a broadening of this one, 1 

if you will, but since it made definite motions, I guess I would 2 

ask the maker of that motion whether he was intending that we 3 

replace that or not. 4 

 5 

MR. PERRET:  My question is what’s the rationale for 10 percent?  6 

Why didn’t we do 5, 8, 20, 11?  What’s so -- There were other 7 

options that were included and I was simply trying to offer 8 

other options rather than that just one option and one of the 9 

three, I think it was c, being whatever gains would be fairly 10 

split between the sectors. 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  I thought the previous motion was gag and I’m not 13 

sure about that, but it’s going to be different for species, 14 

because the previous motion had to do with increases in TAC for 15 

the next few years and I’m not sure, but I’m not aware that we 16 

have programmed increases of TAC for red or black, but we do for 17 

gag. 18 

 19 

Now, I think you can argue that this motion, with respect to 20 

gag, is not very consistent with the previous one and that you 21 

might want to resolve. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  My read on that is that the previous one just 24 

gave a greater range to this one and so this is still consistent 25 

and so it takes the existing -- This one takes it up to 10 26 

percent and the other one gave some benchmark ends that went 27 

even further. 28 

 29 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Here’s a thought that I don’t want to get lost 30 

and I’m not sure that appropriate place for it to go and that 31 

would be in these motions that we have something to allow 32 

allocations or reallocations of TAC or increase of TAC to those 33 

participants that were in the fishery, in the commercial reef 34 

fish fishery.  Would that have to be a whole special motion 35 

somewhere else and you’re saying that yes, it would have to be? 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I believe that should be a -- Once we deal with 38 

this motion, if you would like to make such a motion, it should 39 

be a separate motion. 40 

 41 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay and for clarity, staff is going to literally 42 

have 1 percent, 2 percent, 3 percent all broken out and that’s 43 

what we need, because we don’t know what percentage we’re going 44 

to end up with.  If it’s just going to be 10 percent, and that’s 45 

what I’m being told, that wasn’t my understanding.  It was my 46 

understanding it was going to give the range from 1 to 10 and if 47 

it’s not, then I speak against that motion. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  My understanding was that it was not 1 percent 2 

increments, but it was taking the existing whatever they were, 1 3 

and 3 and 5, I think, and then adding something up to 10 percent 4 

to give a representative range at this point, but not to do 5 

exhaustive 1 percent increments.   6 

 7 

If someone disagrees with me, then speak up.  That’s the 8 

understanding of the council, by shaking of heads, and so 9 

relative to this motion, your vote will go accordingly.  Further 10 

discussion on this motion?  Seeing none, all those in favor say 11 

aye; all opposed like sign.  The motion carries with one in 12 

opposition.  I have just transferred the gavel. 13 

 14 

Before we leave that section, we heard testimony during public 15 

testimony of the concept of dealing with reallocation above a 16 

certain baseline and I’m not sure I fully understand the 17 

concept, other than it basically says when you reach some point 18 

or have reached some point in the status of the stock that you 19 

consider allocation at that point. 20 

 21 

I think that’s something worthy of consideration and I don’t 22 

know whether it’s the right place to go when we get to that 23 

point and so I would move that we request to add an alternative 24 

that considers reallocation based on increases in ACL. 25 

 26 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Second. 27 

 28 

MR. BOYD:  We have a motion and it’s been moved and seconded.  29 

Is there discussion? 30 

 31 

MR. RIECHERS:  Can you explain a little further, because 32 

obviously you have to have an increase to have any sort of new 33 

allocation of that and so explain what -- I think I understood 34 

in your discussion prior to your motion what you were trying to 35 

get at, but I don’t know that your motion gets us there. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The concept is that you establish whatever may 38 

be existing or below existing or may be in the future, but you 39 

say that allocation changes will be considered above that line, 40 

that baseline, wherever that’s drawn, and yes, that would have 41 

to be identified.  The thinking is that below that level, you 42 

wouldn’t reallocate, but above that, you would consider 43 

reallocation. 44 

 45 

MR. RIECHERS:  Maybe that considers reallocation based on 46 

increases in ACL after a predetermined baseline or something 47 

like that, Bob, just so that it captures it so that as we’re 48 
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trying to figure this out next time that we know what that 1 

motion was doing. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Phyllis, if you could add, after “ACL”, “based 4 

on an established baseline”.  Thank you, Robin. 5 

 6 

MR. BOYD:  Further discussion?  All in favor say aye; all 7 

opposed.  The motion passes. 8 

 9 

DR. DIAGNE:  I’m not clear as to in the practical terms how 10 

would something like that work?  How are we going to pick that 11 

baseline?  If we think about it really, a reallocation is 12 

reallocating the resources, but the baseline is status quo, 13 

Alternative 1, essentially, but if you are to pick another 14 

threshold, another baseline, what would be the criteria that we 15 

would use to set that? 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think that’s part of the question that needs 18 

to be asked as we develop the alternative and it’s probably 19 

different one species to the other.  We did hear testimony 20 

relative to red snapper, that there were a number of individuals 21 

that thought it ought to be where it was before the 9.12-22 

million-pound TAC went down. 23 

 24 

Whether that’s the best one to choose or not, I think we need to 25 

consider that and then the council would have to make a choice 26 

as to what that is and they may or may not agree with that 27 

assessment, but I think each species has got to be looked at for 28 

probably a range of what might be an appropriate baseline and to 29 

make that decision before you go forward. 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s not clear to me though how that’s really 32 

different from one of the alternatives that’s in the document 33 

where the allocation shift would be achieved over a period of 34 

years, which if the TAC was going up, it presumably means you 35 

would shift those increases to one sector or the other until you 36 

achieved some target allocation level. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think the difference in concept is when you 39 

start the shift in the increases.  For example, I think one way 40 

to do it differently would be you just say we’ll start it in 41 

2015 rather than starting in 2013 or something.  You could do it 42 

in a time shift. 43 

 44 

This is basically arguing that it’s in a quota shift, if you 45 

will, potentially, and the council may not choose to go that 46 

way, but that’s what the concept is. 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  So just as direction to staff, for example with 1 

red snapper, some alternative, and I think it’s already in 2 

there, that it would start immediately and then another 3 

alternative might be when the overall TAC reaches 9.12 million 4 

pounds, from that point forward, the increases shift until we 5 

achieve some target and I guess with gag you could use the 6 

current TAC and then some interval when the TAC is 5,000 pounds 7 

higher or a million pounds higher or something like that. 8 

 9 

I’m not sure with red grouper or black grouper, because they’re 10 

not in rebuilding plans and so I don’t expect there will be 11 

substantial future TAC increases there, but at least for the 12 

stocks that are rebuilding, this might apply to it. 13 

 14 

MS. WILLIAMS:  On the previous motion, Mr. Gill, were you 15 

including those that I talked about that had been perhaps left 16 

out in the reef fish fishery?  When you said to add a new 17 

alternative that considers reallocation based on an increase in 18 

ACL on an established baseline, because that’s what the industry 19 

was talking about, as far as commercial, taking some of that 20 

increase and sharing it with those that perhaps got very low 21 

allocations. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  This currently would apply based on what we did 24 

in committee to the four species that are up for consideration.  25 

That’s all we’ve moved forward with, right, the three gag and 26 

the red snapper?  That’s all it applies to at this point in 27 

time.  If the council wishes to change that, then that’s a 28 

change that could be made. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m sorry and I didn’t make myself clear.  I 31 

wasn’t talking about -- Okay, we’re talking about allocations 32 

and reallocations and we’re talking about doing so commercial 33 

and recreational and we’ve had some discussion about commercial 34 

and recreational for-hire, but what we haven’t talked about, and 35 

it was brought to us at the podium, are those people that got 36 

very low ITQs in the grouper and red snapper fishery, for 37 

whatever reason, and as the TAC increased, perhaps some of that 38 

increase could be allotted to go to those people in the 39 

commercial industry. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It would seem to me that what you’re 42 

functionally doing is changing the plan for the IFQ system and 43 

it would be a separate amendment that would address that, such 44 

as might be done under the red snapper five-year review, but not 45 

necessarily part of this, because what you’re incorporating is a 46 

change to another plan amendment. 47 

 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  Right and that’s why I thought the red snapper 1 

five-year review should have been coupled with all of this. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  I agree with Mr. Gill.  It seems to me that’s a 4 

separate amendment.  This one talks about -- Right now, we’re 5 

talking about allocation between the two sectors we’ve defined, 6 

commercial and recreational.  Now, we’ll come to the sector 7 

separation section and we may talk of adding a third sector to 8 

that, but I think what you’re talking about is going and making 9 

changes to the IFQ program and it seems to me that’s separate 10 

and would be done in a different amendment. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Before we leave that section, I thought it would 13 

be appropriate, if it’s not obvious, to mention that I think it 14 

would be helpful, in terms of the development of this document, 15 

that the discussion area consider the impacts on various issues 16 

affecting both sectors. 17 

 18 

I’m thinking, for example, recreational issues, commercial 19 

bycatch issues, new entry issues, those sorts of things.  Those 20 

things ought to be brought out and discussed in the document, so 21 

it’s clear to the readers some of the impacts of the things that 22 

we’re trying to consider and I don’t see an issue with that, 23 

unless staff does, but I think that would be helpful in terms of 24 

fleshing out this document. 25 

 26 

MR. RIECHERS:  That carries us to our next section, where we 27 

basically had an options paper on what will be termed Amendment 28 

37 on gray triggerfish.  Dr. Mike Larkin gave a presentation 29 

reviewing the recreational and commercial decision tools, 30 

respectively, for gray triggerfish.  Respectively, that’s Tabs 31 

B-5(a) and 5(b).   32 

 33 

These tools were developed to allow the council to examine a 34 

range of options for each sector that would meet the necessary 35 

reductions in the recreational and commercial annual catch 36 

limits and annual catch targets.  37 

 38 

Dr. Carrie Simmons reviewed the actions in the Amendment 37 39 

options paper, Tab B-5(c).  She stated that information about 40 

regional management was adopted from Amendment 30A and placed in 41 

the amendment for the committee’s information.  Ms. McCawley 42 

asked if this means consideration of regional management for 43 

gray triggerfish was off the table.  Dr. Bob Shipp responded 44 

that unless the options and fishing mortality reductions, as 45 

well as decision model tools, were modified, it would not be 46 

possible. 47 

 48 
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Action 1 then was Modify the Gray Triggerfish Rebuilding Plan.  1 

Amendment 30A, implemented in August 2008, initiated the 2 

rebuilding plan for gray triggerfish based on a constant fishing 3 

mortality rate that does not exceed the fishing mortality rate 4 

at optimum yield.  The committee wanted to maintain this 5 

strategy in Amendment 37 and achieve optimum yield.   6 

 7 

By a voice vote with 1 opposed, the committee recommends, and I 8 

so move, in Action 1, that Alternative 3 be the preferred 9 

alternative.  Alternative 3 is establish a rebuilding plan based 10 

on a constant fishing mortality rate that does not exceed the 11 

fishing mortality rate at optimum yield.  This is expected to 12 

rebuild the gray triggerfish stock within five years of 13 

modifying the rebuilding plan or by the end of 2016. 14 

 15 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion in front of us.  Any 16 

discussion?  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion 17 

carries. 18 

 19 

MR. RIECHERS:  That takes us to Action 2, which is Establish 20 

Annual Catch Limits and Annual Catch Targets for Gray 21 

Triggerfish.  The committee discussed Action 2 and decided to be 22 

consistent with the ACLs and ACTs that were selected for the 23 

interim rule as well as consistent with setting recent catch 24 

levels for other reef fish by using the buffers that came out of 25 

the ACL/ACT control rule developed in the 2011 Generic 26 

Amendment.  27 

 28 

By a voice vote without opposition, the Committee recommends, 29 

and I so move, in Action 2, that the preferred alternative be 30 

Alternative 4.  Alternative 4 is use Amendment 30A to determine 31 

the sector allocation and the council’s ACL/ACT control rule to 32 

determine the buffers between the ACLs and ACTs.  Based on an 33 

ABC which equals 305,300 pounds whole weight, set the commercial 34 

ACL  at 64,100 pounds whole weight, which is 21 percent of the 35 

ABC, and the recreational ACL at 241,200 pounds whole weight, 36 

which is 79 percent of the ABC, consistent with the sector 37 

allocations established in Amendment 30A.  The commercial ACT 38 

equals 60,900 pounds whole weight, which is the commercial ACL 39 

reduced by 5 percent, and the recreational ACT  equals 217,100 40 

pounds whole weight, which the recreational ACL is reduced by 10 41 

percent in that case, based on the ACL/ACT control rule buffers 42 

for each sector.  43 

 44 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion?  45 

All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 46 

 47 

MR. RIECHERS:  That takes us to Action 3, Commercial Management 48 
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Measures.  The committee reviewed the three commercial sub-1 

actions, including modifying minimum size limits, establishing 2 

fixed closed seasons, and establishing commercial trip limits.   3 

 4 

Under Action 2.3.1, which is Modify the Commercial Minimum Size 5 

Limit for Gray Triggerfish, the committee expressed concerns 6 

about the high percentage of undersized gray triggerfish under 7 

the current minimum size limit of 14 inches fork length.  8 

 9 

The committee felt fishers needed additional time to educate 10 

themselves about the change from total length to fork length and 11 

that a fourteen-inch fork length gray triggerfish is a large 12 

fish and therefore, at this time, increasing the minimum size 13 

limit is not a desirable alternative.   14 

 15 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 16 

and I so move, in Action 2.3.1 that the preferred alternative be 17 

Alternative 1.  Alternative 1 is the no action alternative, do 18 

not modify the current minimum size limit of fourteen inches 19 

fork length. 20 

 21 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  22 

We’ll vote.  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion 23 

carries. 24 

 25 

DR. SIMMONS:  Would the council consider at this time moving 26 

that alternative, that whole sub-action, to considered but 27 

rejected or would they like to see more analysis in the public 28 

hearing draft of the minimum size limits? 29 

 30 

MR. BOYD:  Any comment on that? 31 

 32 

MR. RIECHERS:  I am willing to make the motion, but I would just 33 

ask the question of if we feel like we need to get some feedback 34 

on the possibility of minimum size increases with the public. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  I was going to move it to considered but rejected, 37 

because it’s already been established that a fourteen-inch fork 38 

length is a mighty large triggerfish and we just don’t catch 39 

that much bigger.  What’s the alternative, sixteen inches?  Then 40 

we’ll have a zero harvest.  I think this is where we’re going to 41 

settle and to save analysis, I think we can take that section 42 

and move it to the considered but rejected stack. 43 

 44 

MR. BOYD:  Do we have a second?  We have a second.  Dr. Abele 45 

seconds it.  Is there discussion?  We have a motion before us to 46 

move Action 2.3.1 to the considered but rejected section.  Any 47 

further discussion?  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The 48 
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motion carries. 1 

 2 

MR. RIECHERS:  Under Action 2.3.3, Establish a Commercial Trip 3 

Limit for Gray Triggerfish, the committee discussed Action 2.3.3 4 

prior to Action 2.3.2, because it was felt that the decision on 5 

Action 2.3.3 would determine which alternative is selected in 6 

2.3.2.   7 

 8 

Mr. Bob Gill stated that the 43 percent reduction in commercial 9 

landings of gray triggerfish would be painful and that 10 

establishing a low trip limit would be a large step toward 11 

achieving the necessary reductions. 12 

 13 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 14 

and I so move, in Action 2.3.3 that the preferred alternative be 15 

Alternative 2.  Alternative 2 is establish a commercial trip 16 

limit of fifty pounds whole weight. 17 

 18 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  All in 19 

favor of the motion say aye; all opposed.  The motion passes. 20 

 21 

MR. RIECHERS:  The next action was Action 2.3.2, Establish a 22 

Commercial Fixed Closed Season for Gray Triggerfish.  The 23 

committee discussed the option of not establishing a commercial 24 

fixed closed season and simply allowing the commercial sector to 25 

fish under a fifty-pound whole weight trip limit and close the 26 

sector when the ACT is projected to be reached.   27 

 28 

The committee recommended the following alternative be added, 29 

but requested that staff create a series of alternatives for 30 

various closed seasons using the fifty-pound whole weight trip 31 

limit that would meet the necessary reduction in landings. 32 

 33 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 34 

and I so move, in Action 2.3.2 to add a new Alternative 4 that 35 

closes the commercial season April 1 through August 31. 36 

 37 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion and is there discussion?  38 

 39 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I am going to speak in opposition to this.  I 40 

thought that the TAC controlled the rebuilding period and so why 41 

do we need an additional reduction in landings if we’ve got a 42 

set ACL, set ACT, and they’re under a fifty-pound trip limit, 43 

which, to me, is not very much more than bycatch?  I don’t know 44 

why we would also need to go and tack a closed season in there 45 

on them too. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  To that point, Kay, as Dr. Crabtree pointed out 48 
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in committee, if you don’t have a closed season, then things go 1 

along until you snap the season shut and so you have an 2 

unanticipated season closure somewhere in the season, depending 3 

on the rate of landings, and it shuts and it’s done for the rest 4 

of the year. 5 

 6 

That’s in there and it’s an alternative.  That’s Alternative 1.  7 

Another way to do it would be to say we’ll have a predetermined 8 

time when we’re closed and we would hope that all the rest of 9 

the time we’re open. 10 

 11 

I’m not arguing which way to go, but if we’re considering the 12 

range of alternatives, then it would seem to me that some would 13 

find one attractive and some would find the other way attractive 14 

and I think we need to offer those. 15 

 16 

I also mentioned, as was mentioned in the committee report, that 17 

this motion is not the only way to skin this cat in offering 18 

these alternatives and hopefully staff has come up with some 19 

others that may be proffered, so that they consider them and 20 

maybe at the end of the day, the industry and the council goes 21 

with Alternative 1 and that’s fine, but in considering the range 22 

of alternatives, there are other options that may be better than 23 

Alternative 1 and I can’t tell you whether they are or they 24 

aren’t, but if you don’t consider them, you will never know. 25 

 26 

MR. BOYD:  Further discussion?   27 

 28 

MS. WILLIAMS:  If I may, Mr. Gill.  Our staff will go in and 29 

analyze the landings and how much they expect the landings to go 30 

down by month, using the fifty-pound criteria or trip limits 31 

that we’ve got, and then to come up with these closed seasons?  32 

That’s an awful lot of analysis, to me.  Maybe we need it, but 33 

it just seems like an awful lot of work. 34 

 35 

MR. BOYD:  Other comments?  All in favor of this motion say aye; 36 

all opposed.  The motion passes. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess I would ask whether staff has had time, 39 

and I regret that I have not, to consider any other alternatives 40 

or will they be considered at the next time we view this 41 

document? 42 

 43 

DR. SIMMONS:  You mean additional fixed closed seasons with the 44 

fifty pounds? 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes, correct. 47 

 48 
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DR. SIMMONS:  Only the ones that were listed in that table with 1 

the fifty-pound trip limit.  It’s Table 2.3.3.4 on page 21 of 2 

the draft options paper.  Were you more interested in 3 

potentially closing it during the spawning season or earlier in 4 

the year so you had the fishery open later in the year?  Could 5 

you give us some idea of what you might be interested in? 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  My memory of that table was it didn’t 8 

accommodate our choices in the prior actions and that was the 9 

problem, that the seasons proposed did not meet the criteria of 10 

those actions, so that we needed to look at other options. 11 

 12 

I don’t like any of them, but that’s neither here nor there and 13 

so the table wasn’t applicable, given where we are now and what 14 

we did in committee and I think that was my concern, in that we 15 

had to readdress that, and I would hope that you would do so and 16 

obviously if it’s not ready now, then we will have to address it 17 

next time, but I was just trying to clarify whether it’s up for 18 

council consideration now or would be the next time this 19 

document comes before the council. 20 

 21 

DR. SIMMONS:  Just so staff is clear, then we come back with 22 

this table expanded.  It has the correct annual catch target and 23 

annual catch limit that you recommended during committee and 24 

just passed during council, but it would just use the fifty-25 

pound trip limit with the additional fixed closed season and the 26 

status quo minimum size limit, but it may not have the 27 

additional economic and social analysis unless it’s currently 28 

listed as an alternative under the main sub-action.  If there’s 29 

a particular closed season you’re interested in, it would be 30 

nice to get an idea of that now. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Regretfully, I don’t have one.  I just whipped 33 

through the decision tool to try and pick up some ones that 34 

seemed like it fit where we needed to go and that happened to be 35 

the April 1 through August 30 and I suspect there’s other 36 

alternatives that might also work, but I didn’t have time to 37 

explore them. 38 

 39 

DR. ABELE:  I was just going to say we have the decision tool 40 

and no matter how you move things, you’re going to need -- At a 41 

fifty-pound trip limit and fourteen inches, you’re going to need 42 

roughly five months somewhere to close and the current closure 43 

encompasses the breeding season and I guess I don’t know why we 44 

need additional options on there.  We don’t have that many 45 

options, given the constraints we’re working under. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If that’s the way the council wants to go, 48 
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that’s fine.  I’m just trying to make sure that at the end of 1 

the day that we’ll get a reaction from industry as to whether we 2 

hit it or not and I’m trying to make sure that we’ve got that 3 

range enough so that we could go to where the best, quote, 4 

unquote, sweet spot is. 5 

 6 

I don’t know that this is it at all.  It’s not a very enjoyable 7 

option and it may be, as Kay said, that Alternative 1 is the 8 

better way to go and maybe so, but in terms of closed seasons, 9 

you can work other options to come up with them and they all 10 

have different ramifications. 11 

 12 

I thought it would be valuable to spread that out and look at it 13 

and if it works, then fine, but if you choose just to go with 14 

the one that we have on the board, that’s fine by me. 15 

 16 

MR. BOYD:  Any further discussion?  We will vote on this one and 17 

all in favor of the motion say aye; all opposed.  The motion 18 

carries. 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I think we had the wrong motion on the board, 21 

didn’t we? 22 

 23 

MR. BOYD:  Yes, that’s the next motion coming up.  That’s it and 24 

that’s what we just voted on.  Go ahead, Mr. Riechers. 25 

 26 

DR. SHIPP:  I’m back. 27 

 28 

MR. BOYD:  Go ahead, Dr. Shipp. 29 

 30 

DR. SHIPP:  We’re on Action 4, Recreational Management Measures.  31 

Action 2.4.1 is Modify the Recreational Minimum Size Limit for 32 

Gray Triggerfish. 33 

 34 

The committee discussed and stated that, for many of the same 35 

reasons discussed under the commercial sector at this time, they 36 

did not feel increasing the minimum size limit of gray 37 

triggerfish was a desirable alternative.   38 

 39 

Captain Johnny Greene stated that because gray triggerfish are 40 

reproductively mature by eleven inches fork length, there was no 41 

reproductive tradeoff or real biological rationale for 42 

increasing the minimum size limit. 43 

 44 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 45 

and I so move, in Action 2.4.1 that the preferred alternative be 46 

Alternative 1.  Alternative 1 is no action, do not modify the 47 

current minimum size limit of fourteen inches fork length. 48 
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 1 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  2 

Seeing none, all in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion 3 

carries. 4 

 5 

MR. FISCHER:  I move that we take, for the same reasons, Section 6 

2.4.1 to the considered but rejected section. 7 

 8 

MR. BOYD:  It’s been moved and seconded.  Any discussion?  The 9 

motion on the board is to move Action 2.4.1 to the considered 10 

but rejected section.  Any further discussion?  All in favor say 11 

aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 12 

 13 

DR. SHIPP:  As with the previous action, the committee discussed 14 

Action 2.4.3 prior to Action 2.4.2, because it was felt that the 15 

decision on Action 2.4.3 would determine which alternative is 16 

selected in 2.4.2.   17 

 18 

The committee discussed the benefits and tradeoffs of 19 

establishing a higher bag limit, such as five gray triggerfish 20 

per angler per trip compared to a longer fishing season in order 21 

to meet the necessary 46 percent reduction in recreational 22 

landings.   23 

 24 

Less than 1 percent of the recreational anglers landed more than 25 

two gray triggerfish per angler per trip and most recreational 26 

anglers voiced they would rather have the longest fishing season 27 

possible.  28 

 29 

By a voice vote with two opposed, the committee recommends, and 30 

I so move, in Action 2.4.3 that the preferred alternative be 31 

Alternative 3.  Alternative 3 is establish a one gray 32 

triggerfish per angler bag limit within the twenty reef fish 33 

aggregate bag limit. 34 

 35 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion? 36 

 37 

MR. GREENE:  I would like to offer a substitute motion to 38 

establish a four triggerfish per person bag limit for gray 39 

triggerfish. 40 

 41 

MR. BOYD:  It’s been moved and seconded and is there discussion 42 

on this? 43 

 44 

MR. FISCHER:  What’s this going to do to the closed seasons?  45 

Does anyone have an analysis of how much will be closed, Johnny? 46 

 47 

MR. GREENE:  I was confused about how to really get into that, 48 
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because it’s going to affect that section as well.  I think that 1 

until we get to that section, I don’t know that we’ll know.  I 2 

certainly think that going from a twenty fish bag limit to one 3 

is a pretty radical change, although I understand what we’re 4 

doing. 5 

 6 

I will be glad to kind of elaborate into the closed season if 7 

you would like to go there, but I certainly don’t have any idea 8 

at this point on which way to proceed. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Looking at the decision tool, if I’ve done this 11 

right this time, going to a four fish bag limit and a fourteen-12 

inch minimum size limit, you need to reduce 63,500 pounds, 13 

roughly, and looking at the projected landings, the only one 14 

that exceeds that is May and July and August are on the 40,000 15 

timeframe and everybody else is 20,000 and so you’re talking 16 

about a substantial closed season. 17 

 18 

I guess the point I was going to make earlier was you can 19 

certainly go to an increased bag limit, but the question is 20 

you’re going to pay the price in a longer closed season and so 21 

that’s the tradeoff that you’re going there and I think that’s 22 

what the rationale was for the one fish bag limit, to try and 23 

minimize the closed season.  If the druthers are to go to more 24 

fish, then the price you’re going to pay is a longer closed 25 

season. 26 

 27 

MR. GREENE:  I think it’s just that.  We had public testimony 28 

yesterday that an individual spoke that he would like to have it 29 

shut down during snapper season as well and I guess it kind of 30 

goes back to that type of thing, but with the spawning of the 31 

fish being in May and June, maybe perhaps half of May and June 32 

would get us there and I think that would be a very reasonable 33 

suggestion to do that.  I think you would get real close by 34 

shutting down June and July.   35 

 36 

However you would like to proceed is fine, but I think that we 37 

should have some alternatives that would kind of get us close to 38 

where we’re at and get some feedback and go from there, but my 39 

preference with this, being it is such a low limit of fish that 40 

we can keep as far as the total allowable catches, that we move 41 

toward a spawning-type of closure, maybe the last half of May 42 

and all of June, would be my opinion. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I apologize.  I was looking at the ACL.  The ACT 45 

on this is 87,600 pounds and so that’s going to suck up a bunch 46 

of months, unless you do just May.  The difference needed was 47 

87,600 and I was looking at the ACL and I apologize and so 48 
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there’s a bunch of months that’s going to be needed to 1 

accommodate this and it’s not just one or two. 2 

 3 

MR. BOYD:  Any further discussion?  If not, we’re going to vote. 4 

 5 

MS. LEVY:  I just wanted to say that currently, and I don’t know 6 

if you’re going to consider changing this, but when you get to 7 

the accountability measures, right now you have a preferred that 8 

closes when you’re going to project to reach the ACL. 9 

 10 

You’ve selected an ACT and now you’re trying to fit management 11 

measures that are going to manage to that ACT, but then you’ve 12 

chosen an accountability measure that manages to the ACL and so 13 

you just might want to think about that. 14 

 15 

MR. GREENE:  I had a couple other points.  I think that we 16 

should proceed with this avenue, because if we do shut it down 17 

in May and June, we’re going to get all of the biological, 18 

because of the spawn, and even if the Center has to come in and 19 

do an in-season closure later on in the year, say the month of 20 

December, I think that we can still get there. 21 

 22 

I think that we had such a poor stock assessment that came back 23 

with it.  We didn’t get the advantage of using circle hooks and 24 

we didn’t get the advantage of going from a smaller fish to a 25 

much larger fish with the increased size limit of the management 26 

actions we took with 30B. 27 

 28 

I think that with all that being said, I think we’re fairly 29 

close on that and I think at this point we’re looking for 30 

options and that’s where I would really like to go. 31 

 32 

DR. SHIPP:  Just a clarification, Johnny.  Your substitute 33 

motion, do you want this to be the preferred alternative? 34 

 35 

MR. GREENE:  Absolutely. 36 

 37 

MR. ATRAN:  For clarification and consistency with the other 38 

alternatives, should this state a four fish bag limit within the 39 

twenty reef fish aggregate limit? 40 

 41 

MR. GREENE:  I believe that’s correct, yes. 42 

 43 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Johnny, while I don’t really have a problem with 44 

it, what I do have a problem with is managing the commercial 45 

sector, who is monitored quite closely, and shutting them down 46 

at their ACT and the other sector, who we really don’t have 47 

real-time monitoring, allow them to harvest to the ACL.   48 
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 1 

I don’t know how you justify that is all, because that’s not 2 

what we have done throughout our documents and I’m not certain, 3 

but I thought in one of our documents we said we were going to 4 

be consistent and also that we were supposed to, in setting ACLs 5 

and ACTs, that that was something that was going to have to be 6 

considered or reflected on as far as real-time monitoring. 7 

 8 

MR. BOYD:  Let’s vote this up or down. 9 

 10 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to hear something from Roy about 11 

this ACT/ACL. 12 

 13 

MR. BOYD:  I think that’s a separate issue altogether.  We’re 14 

going to vote on this motion.  It’s a substitute motion to add a 15 

new alternative that would establish a four gray triggerfish per 16 

angler bag limit within the twenty reef fish aggregate bag limit 17 

and that it would be the preferred alternative.  All in favor of 18 

the motion raise your hand; all opposed.  The motion carries 19 

nine to three. 20 

 21 

DR. SHIPP:  Action 2.4.2, Establish a Recreational Fixed Closed 22 

Season for Gray Triggerfish, Ms. Jessica McCawley stated she was 23 

in favor of closing the recreational sector during the spawning 24 

season due to the unique reproductive behavior of gray 25 

triggerfish.   26 

 27 

Some committee members requested that the recreational sector 28 

remain open during the major fishing tournaments and rodeos, if 29 

possible.  They also discussed how interruptive in-season 30 

closures can be to stakeholders and that most of them preferred 31 

establishing a fixed closed season for planning purposes of 32 

tournaments and the for-hire industry.   33 

 34 

Dr. Roy Crabtree also brought up state compliance with federal 35 

closures and the possibility that if certain states don’t comply 36 

that the federal fishing season could be shortened.  The 37 

committee recommended the following alternative be added.  38 

However, with the other preferred alternatives, it doesn’t meet 39 

the necessary reductions, as projected landings are 225,839 40 

pounds whole weight.   41 

 42 

Closing the entire month of June with the one gray triggerfish 43 

per angler per trip limit would meet the necessary reductions 44 

and estimated projected landings would be 203,357 pounds whole 45 

weight.  46 

 47 

By a voice vote with 1 opposed, the committee recommends, and I 48 
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so move, in Action 2.4.2 to add a new Alternative 4 to close for 1 

the first twenty days in June. 2 

 3 

MR. BOYD:  We have a committee motion and is there discussion? 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think this is just too cumbersome and to start 6 

talking about closing it for twenty days in June, I just don’t 7 

think that’s reasonable and I think it ought to be June.  I 8 

would offer a substitute motion to add a new Alternative 4 to 9 

close the month of June. 10 

 11 

MR. BOYD:  Do we have a second to that motion?  It’s seconded by 12 

Dr. Abele.  Discussion? 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Roy, you took away my steam to correct my motion 15 

in committee.  However, given the prior motion, you won’t 16 

achieve the necessary reduction and so we have to revise if we 17 

want to have a closed season that matches the reduction. 18 

 19 

Now, I suppose you could have a closure and then an in-season 20 

closure later, but that seems kind of funky and so if the 21 

concept and intent is to close and try to keep the remainder of 22 

the season open, you’ve got to do something other than June. 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think we’re just adding an alternative here and 25 

not selecting a preferred and that’s my understanding.  Is that 26 

correct?  We have alternatives to close May and June and we have 27 

alternatives to close June and July already in the document, I 28 

believe. 29 

 30 

If you would like to offer a friendly amendment to this one, 31 

that’s fine.  My only problem with the previous motion is if 32 

we’re going to have a June closure, I think it ought to be June 33 

and not the first twenty days in June. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  While I fully acknowledge that my rapid 36 

calculation was incorrect and had to get changed anyway because 37 

it didn’t meet the objective that it was trying to do and it was 38 

short, I guess -- I think somebody from the recreational sector 39 

ought to weigh in here, but June and July do not achieve the 40 

required reduction and the May and June exceeds it. 41 

 42 

I was just trying to suggest that whatever we do in this 43 

closure, I think the intent is trying to match the necessary 44 

reduction to achieve an open season during the rest of the year, 45 

at least to try to, to avoid the in-season closure.  If that’s 46 

not the intent, then it can be anything that anybody wants. 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  I’m not sure really where the intent is with this 1 

now and I think going about this and trying to exactly match 2 

these up, you need to take into account that this is a 3 

rebuilding plan. 4 

 5 

If it works, the catch rates are going to go up and they’re 6 

going to go up quickly and so things that right now say it keeps 7 

you from having a closure aren’t going to keep you from having a 8 

closure and if your real goal is to not have a quota closure, 9 

you need to be conservative here, but that’s contrary, I 10 

believe, to the motion that we passed a few minutes ago setting 11 

the bag limit at a high enough level that it really doesn’t 12 

affect very many trips at all.  I’m not really quite sure where 13 

we are going here. 14 

 15 

MR. ANSON:  I just wanted to add that, based on our prior motion 16 

where we established a preferred bag limit of four fish, if you 17 

look at the tool, I think, according to my calculations, you’re 18 

going to need at least twenty days in May and all of June and so 19 

we might want to, so we can give direction to the public so they 20 

might understand where we’re coming from, is that we pick a 21 

preferred here and we pick it for May and June. 22 

 23 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I don’t disagree with Mr. Anson, but I think that 24 

the motion on the table is just about adding an alternative and 25 

so I would support the motion to add this alternative that only 26 

closes June and then I think we could dispense with what the 27 

preferred would be. 28 

 29 

MR. BOYD:  Let’s vote on this one.  No further discussion?  The 30 

substitute motion is to add a new Alternative 4 to close the 31 

entire month of June.  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The 32 

motion carries. 33 

 34 

MR. RIECHERS:  I make the motion that we create the preferred 35 

alternative as Alternative 2, the May/June closure. 36 

 37 

DR. SHIPP:  I second it. 38 

 39 

MR. BOYD:  I have a motion.  Any discussion?  It’s been made and 40 

seconded.  The motion is in Action 2.4.2 that the preferred 41 

alternative be Alternative 2.  All in favor say aye; all 42 

opposed.  The motion carries. 43 

 44 

DR. SHIPP:  Action 2.4.4, Recreational Accountability Measures, 45 

the committee discussed the recreational accountability measures 46 

and the current use of moving averages for comparing harvest 47 

relative to the ACL.   48 
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 1 

The interim rule implemented in-season recreational 2 

accountability measures for gray triggerfish based on the ACT.  3 

However, the committee was concerned about closing the fishery 4 

in season based on the ACT, where there could potential be 5 

additional landings available every year.   6 

 7 

Dr. Crabtree stated that because gray triggerfish is overfished 8 

and stock is not rebuilding on schedule, managing for in-season 9 

closures based on the ACT would be appropriate so that the ACL 10 

is not exceeded. 11 

 12 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 13 

and I so move, in Action 2.4.4, that the preferred alternative 14 

be Alternative 3.  Alternative 3 is add an in-season closure 15 

authority for gray triggerfish based on the recreational ACL. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 18 

on the motion? 19 

 20 

DR. ABELE:  Given our previous action, I would like to just 21 

change the “ACL” to the “ACT”. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s a different alternative.  I think it’s 24 

Alternative 2, if I remember right.  Your substitute motion 25 

would be make the preferred alternative as Alternative 2? 26 

 27 

DR. ABELE:  Yes. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That has the ACT language in it.  While we’re 30 

getting it on the board, is there further discussion on the 31 

motion?  It’s the same as Alternative 3 was, but just changing 32 

the “ACL” to “ACT”. 33 

 34 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s consistent with what was done in the 35 

interim rule that’s in place now and that’s also consistent with 36 

the accountability measure for the commercial fishery, where the 37 

quota is set at the ACT and the fishery closes when the ACT is 38 

reached. 39 

 40 

I believe we had an alternative in here that adds a payback 41 

provision, which for most overfished stocks we have put payback 42 

provisions in and by setting the ACT below the ACL, you reduce 43 

the chances that you’re going to have a payback that has to take 44 

place and so I support Dr. Abele’s motion. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have the motion on the board and the motion 47 

is in Action 2.4.4 that the preferred alternative be Alternative 48 
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2.  Alternative 2 is add an in-season closure authority for gray 1 

triggerfish based on the recreational ACT.  Seeing no further 2 

discussion, all those in favor of the motion say aye; all 3 

opposed like sign.  The motion carries. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m not quite sure -- There are some 6 

subalternatives in there and I think in our discussion that it 7 

was clear that our intent was to use the annual landings to 8 

monitor these ACLs and not the multiyear averages.  Is that 9 

correct? 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I believe that’s correct.  I thought we had 12 

removed the moving averages, but apparently not.  We’re back to 13 

you, Chairman Shipp. 14 

 15 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The committee felt that if 16 

in-season accountability measures are established for the 17 

recreational sector, that post-season accountability measures 18 

were not necessary.   19 

 20 

The committee also felt it was appropriate to remove the moving 21 

averages, which are currently in the regulations that were 22 

developed in Amendment 30A, which compares the moving average of 23 

landings to the ACL relative to that year. 24 

 25 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 26 

and I so move, to add language clarifying Alternatives 2 and 3 27 

that our intent is to add in-season closures and remove the 28 

post-season accountability measures. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion, but, Mr. Atran, you 31 

had your hand up and is that relative to the previous action or 32 

this one we’re talking about now? 33 

 34 

MR. ATRAN:  It’s relative to the previous action.  If your 35 

intent is to move from a moving average comparison of ACLs to a 36 

single year, I believe you need to adopt Option 2b as part of 37 

Alternative 2. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will dispense with the motion on the board 40 

and then we’ll go back, if you would, Mr. Chairman, to take care 41 

of that, but we’ll take care of this motion first, since we have 42 

it on the board. 43 

 44 

DR. SHIPP:  The motion that I just read? 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes, correct.  Is there discussion on the 47 

motion?  Seeing none, is there any opposition to the motion?  48 
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Seeing none, the motion carries.  Chairman Shipp, we’re going 1 

back to -- 2 

 3 

DR. SHIPP:  We are going back to the previous motion, where we 4 

voted Alternative 2 to be the preferred option, changing the ACL 5 

to ACT.  Steven, did you want to comment? 6 

 7 

MR. ATRAN:  There’s two options within here.  Option 2a says 8 

continue to evaluate recreational landings relative to the ACL 9 

based on a moving multiyear average of the landings and Option 10 

2b says evaluate relative to the ACL based on that year’s 11 

landings and so in your discussion just a few minutes ago, you 12 

indicated you wanted to move to a single year evaluation and so 13 

you should adopt Option 2b as part of Alternative 2. 14 

 15 

DR. SHIPP:  We need to clarify that and let’s revote the 16 

substitute motion and add Option b as the preferred option. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We actually need a motion to reconsider, because 19 

we passed that motion and so we’re now trying to modify it. 20 

 21 

MR. RIECHERS:  Just instead of going through a reconsider, just 22 

make a motion for 2.4.4 that you want Option b. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  You could do that, alternatively. 25 

 26 

DR. SHIPP:  You just did it, right? 27 

 28 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes, that’s fine. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  If it’s supposed to be ACT, we need to put it up 31 

there.  Roy is saying it’s ACT and he’s saying it’s ACL and we 32 

need to have the motion on the board. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  One moment please, Kay.  Go ahead, Mr. Atran. 35 

 36 

MR. ATRAN:  Carrie just pointed out to me that all this has to 37 

do with whether or not you’re triggering post-season 38 

accountability measures and since the motion you just made is to 39 

remove post-season accountability measures, the whole thing is 40 

moot. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  So carry on, Chairman Shipp. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The committee also discussed the fact that 45 

there were not payback provisions for gray triggerfish and made 46 

the following motion. 47 

 48 
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By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 1 

and I so move, to add a new Alternative 4 that would establish a 2 

payback provision whereby an ACL overage would be deducted from 3 

the next year’s ACL.  This would be in place as long as the 4 

stock is overfished. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 7 

on the motion?  8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  It seems to me that it would also be deducted 10 

from the next year’s ACT, since that’s what we’ve chosen.  Do 11 

you need me to -- How do I change that? 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Either a substitute or an amendment. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  I make a substitute motion to add a new 16 

Alternative 4 that would establish a payback provision whereby 17 

an ACL overage would be deducted from the next year’s ACT and 18 

ACL.  This would be in place as long as the stock is overfished. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think what’s on the board, Dr. Crabtree, 21 

represents your desire.  Is that correct? 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  All of my desires are right there, Bob. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Wow, you’re in trouble, young man.  We have a 26 

motion on the board and is there discussion on the motion?  The 27 

substitute motion is to add a new Alternative 4 that would 28 

establish a payback provision whereby an ACL overage would be 29 

deducted from the next year’s ACT and ACL.  This would be in 30 

place as long as the stock is overfished.  All those in favor of 31 

the motion say aye; all opposed like sign.  The motion passes 32 

without opposition. 33 

 34 

DR. SHIPP:  Framework Action, 2013 Recreational Gag Season, Mr. 35 

Steven Atran reviewed the actions and alternatives in the 36 

options paper for a framework action to set the 2013 37 

recreational gag fishing season and to modify the February-March 38 

fixed closed season, Tab B-6.   39 

 40 

Action 1 contains alternatives to modify the dates of the 41 

recreational gag season or split it into two or three sub-42 

seasons.  The starting dates for the sub-seasons were based on 43 

review of council minutes and discussions between staff and FWC 44 

representative Jessica McCawley.   45 

 46 

Analysis was not yet available to determine how long each sub-47 

season would be, but that analysis would be available by the 48 
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next council meeting.   1 

 2 

Mr. Bob Gill noted that Amendment 32 had included a split season 3 

alternative proposed by the Reef Fish AP.  He requested that the 4 

AP alternative be included in the current framework action.  The 5 

AP proposal from Amendment 32 was for a split season with 6 

starting dates of January 1 and June 1. 7 

 8 

Action 2 contains alternatives to modify or eliminate the fixed 9 

February/March closed season on shallow-water grouper.  Dr. 10 

Larry Abele noted that most gag spawning occurs in depths of 11 

around forty fathoms and asked if an alternative could be added 12 

to eliminate the closed season only in waters less than twenty 13 

fathoms.   14 

 15 

Mr. Steven Atran replied that the alternative could be added, 16 

but that according to Dr. Chris Koenig, gag form pre-spawning 17 

aggregations in shallower waters.  In addition, he suggested 18 

that the alternative might create enforcement difficulties. 19 

 20 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 21 

and I so move, that in Action 2, develop a new alternative for 22 

eliminating the February 1 to March 31 recreational closed 23 

season in waters under twenty fathoms. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 26 

of the committee motion? 27 

 28 

LT. FOOS:  Enforcement difficulties were mentioned when this 29 

came up in the committee and I apologize for not making 30 

enforcement comments specific to this, but although we have had 31 

provisions in which there were fathom rules created, having a 32 

depth contour be the dividing line between where someone may or 33 

may not possess a specific type of fish does create some 34 

enforcement difficulty, because of the difference that could be 35 

given in different fathometer reasons in places that it doesn’t 36 

create a solid line and it’s kind of a moving target. 37 

 38 

MR. ATRAN:  To that point, I think if this passes and we put 39 

this alternative in, we’ll just use the longline twenty-fathom 40 

boundary without the seasonal shift, so it stays at twenty 41 

fathoms, and that is a point-to-point line. 42 

 43 

DR. CRABTREE:  Steve is correct that we would use the existing 44 

twenty-fathom line that’s already defined in the regulations. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  Seeing no 47 

further discussion, any objection to the motion?  The motion 48 
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carries. 1 

 2 

DR. SHIPP:  Dr. Roy Crabtree noted that the council had asked 3 

for alternatives to shorten or eliminate the fixed closed 4 

season, but he did not see any support for consideration of 5 

alternatives to lengthen the season.  He suggested removing 6 

Option 2a, which would lengthen the fixed closed season from two 7 

to three months.  8 

 9 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 10 

and I so move, that in Action 2, move Option 2a to the 11 

considered but rejected section. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on 14 

the motion? 15 

 16 

MR. ATRAN:  One thing I forgot to mention during the committee 17 

is the reason that this alternative is in here is it was 18 

recommended by our NEPA specialist who felt that if we’ve got 19 

options to shorten the season, in order to provide a full scope 20 

of alternatives, we also needed something to lengthen the 21 

season. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  Is there any 24 

objection on the motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries.  25 

Before we leave this action, in Action 1, we talked about the 26 

split season and do we need to make a motion to do that?  I 27 

guess I would ask staff whether we need to make a motion to 28 

include a January 1 and June 1 split or if you understood that 29 

and you’ll carry it forth in the next issue of this document. 30 

 31 

MR. ATRAN:  My understanding is I will carry it through without 32 

a motion.  I would just point out it’s not that much different 33 

from the November and June openings. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  One could argue with that, but go ahead, 36 

Chairman Shipp. 37 

 38 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Amendment 38, Shallow-39 

Water Grouper, Mr. Steven Atran reviewed the actions and 40 

alternatives in the draft amendment to revise post-season 41 

accountability measures for recreational shallow-water grouper 42 

and to modify the framework procedure to allow changes to 43 

accountability measures to be made by a framework action, Tab B-44 

7. 45 

 46 

In Action 1, the post-season accountability measures for 47 

recreational shallow-water grouper currently require that the 48 
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following year’s recreational season for all shallow-water 1 

grouper be shortened if gag or red grouper exceeds its 2 

recreational ACL in the current year.   3 

 4 

Alternative 2 would removes the accountability measure 5 

completely, while Alternative 3 would modify the accountability 6 

measure to shorten the season only for the species that exceeded 7 

its ACL rather than all shallow-water grouper.   8 

 9 

Alternative 4 can be adopted concurrent with one of the other 10 

alternatives to eliminate the moving average method of comparing 11 

catches to the ACL in order to determine if post-season 12 

accountability measures are triggered.  Dr. Roy Crabtree 13 

questioned the need for having a post-season accountability 14 

measure, since there was an in-season accountability measure 15 

that accomplished the same thing by authorizing the Regional 16 

Administrator to close the season for a grouper species when its 17 

ACL is reached or projected to be reached.   18 

 19 

Mr. Steven Atran explained that there were two differences 20 

between the in-season and post-season accountability measures.  21 

One, the post-season accountability measure would require that 22 

the closing date be determined in advance of the season, while 23 

the in-season accountability measure would monitor catches and 24 

determine the closing sate during the season.   25 

 26 

The in-season accountability measure closes the season when the 27 

ACL is reached, while the post-season accountability measure, 28 

although triggered by exceeding the ACL, closes the season when 29 

the ACT is projected to be reached. 30 

 31 

Committee members were unclear as to exactly what would result 32 

from each of the alternatives in this section and withdrew 33 

consideration of any motions to set a preferred alternative 34 

until the results of each alternative could be cleared up.  Do 35 

you want to stop right now, Steven, and discuss how you’ve 36 

cleared it up? 37 

 38 

MR. ATRAN:  I hope this clears it up.  Charlene and I worked on 39 

this graphic and I apologize and we should have made the text a 40 

little bit larger, but it explains what happens with an in-41 

season accountability measure and a post-season under each of 42 

the three alternatives. 43 

 44 

First of all, the ACT, as it’s used here, is intended to be an 45 

accountability measure.  We’re really trying to avoid going over 46 

the ACL, but where there’s an expectation that we may go over 47 

whatever we’re setting our management target at, we set the ACT 48 
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a little bit below that for a buffer to allow for that slippage.  1 

That’s how the post-season AMs work. 2 

 3 

Every one of these alternatives has the same in-season 4 

accountability measure, which is that the Regional Administrator 5 

will close the season when the ACL is reached or when it’s 6 

projected to be reached. 7 

 8 

Under Alternative 1, which is the status quo, if there is an 9 

overage beyond the ACL -- Even though the ACL triggers the 10 

overage, the ACT is used for the target next year and so this 11 

would shorten the season for all shallow-water grouper the 12 

following season, in order to achieve the ACT of the species 13 

that went over. 14 

 15 

Alternative 2 removes the post-season accountability measure and 16 

so you don’t have any of that going.  You just have the in-17 

season closure when the ACL is reached and then Alternative 3 18 

states that when the ACL is exceeded for a given stock, that 19 

next year the season is shortened to the ACT for the species 20 

that went over, but that would only apply to that one species 21 

and not the entire shallow-water grouper.  Does that clear it up 22 

any? 23 

 24 

DR. SHIPP:  What is the pleasure?  Do you want to choose a 25 

preferred or do we just leave all three alternatives in without 26 

choosing a preferred?  I’m still a little confused. 27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think if you go with Alternative 2, this just 29 

then becomes if the ACL is hit, you close the fishery down.  30 

Alternative 3, if the ACL is hit, you would close it down, but 31 

then the next year, you would increase the length of the fixed 32 

season a little bit to try and stay at the ACT. 33 

 34 

Either way, it’s going to mean that fishermen aren’t going to 35 

know exactly what the season is until the year starts.  36 

Alternative 3 arguably gives them a little advance notice as to 37 

what the fishing season is going to be, but even with that, you 38 

still could end up hitting the ACL and triggering an in-season 39 

closure, because a lot of projection is involved in this. 40 

 41 

That’s really the difference with the two.  I think Alternative 42 

3 arguably gives a little more predictability and advance notice 43 

as to what’s coming and Alternative 2 is just when they’ve 44 

caught the ACL, you close the fishery. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I probably shouldn’t do this, but I move that 47 

the preferred alternative in Action 1 be Alternative 3.  We have 48 
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a motion on the board and is there discussion of the motion?   1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I thought it says by a voice vote without 3 

opposition, the committee recommends, and I so move, in Action 2 4 

that the preferred alternative be Alternative 2 and 4. 5 

 6 

DR. SHIPP:  We’re still on Action 1, Kay. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:   That’s Action 1, Phyllis.  Is there further 9 

discussion on the motion?   10 

 11 

MR. ATRAN:  I just wanted to ask, but there is an additional 12 

Alternative 4 here which would eliminate the multiyear moving 13 

average approach to checking the ACL and go to a single year.  14 

You could adopt Alternative 4 as a preferred alternative 15 

concurrent with Alternative 3 if you wish to do so. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The maker of the motion concurs that we amend 18 

the motion to say that the preferred alternative be Alternative 19 

3 and Alternative 4, if the seconder agrees.  Dr. Abele, do you 20 

agree?  Further discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, is there 21 

any objection to the motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries 22 

unanimously.  Go ahead, Chairman Shipp. 23 

 24 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We’re now in Action 2 and 25 

the alternatives to modify the generic framework procedure were 26 

for no action, Alternative 1, allow a broad range of 27 

accountability measures to be implemented or changed via 28 

framework, Alternative 2, or allow a narrow range of 29 

accountability measures to be implemented or changed via 30 

framework, Alternative 3.   31 

 32 

In addition, Alternative 4 could be adopted concurrently with 33 

one of the other alternatives.  Alternative 4 would revise 34 

outdated terminology in the framework by replacing “SSC, SEP or 35 

AP” with “advisory committees and panels”.  Mr. Steven Atran 36 

explained that since this modification was being done in a Reef 37 

Fish amendment, the modified framework procedure would only 38 

apply to reef fish. 39 

 40 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 41 

and I so move, that in Action 2 the preferred alternatives be 42 

Alternative 2 and Alternative 4.  Alternative 2 is modify the 43 

reef fish framework procedure to include changes to 44 

accountability measures through the standard documentation 45 

process for open framework actions.  Accountability measures 46 

that could be implemented or changed would include: In-season 47 

accountability measures; closure and closure procedures; trip 48 
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limit implementation or change; designation of an existing 1 

limited access privilege program as the accountability measure 2 

for species in the IFQ program; implementation of gear 3 

restrictions; post-season accountability measures; adjustment of 4 

season length; implementation of closed seasons/time periods; 5 

adjustment or implementation of bag, trip, or possession limit; 6 

reduction of the ACL/ACT to account for the previous year 7 

overage; revoking a scheduled increase in the ACL/ACT if the ACL 8 

was exceeded in the previous year; implementation of gear 9 

restrictions; reporting and monitoring requirements.    10 

Alternative 4 is make editorial changes to the framework 11 

procedure to reflect changes to the council advisory committees 12 

and panels. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion and is there 15 

discussion on the motion? 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Steve, will you explain to me what Alternative 4 18 

means, where it talks about the framework procedure to reflect 19 

changes to the council’s advisory committee and panels?  What 20 

changes? 21 

 22 

MR. ATRAN:  There is a spot and in fact, I think there’s two 23 

spots in the framework procedure, that state the council may 24 

convene its SSC, SEP, or AP as appropriate.  Because we no 25 

longer have an SEP and that’s been renamed, that’s been replaced 26 

with the council may convene its advisory committees and panels 27 

as appropriate and so it’s simply taking some outdated language 28 

and replacing it with some more generic language that will not 29 

become outdated. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, 32 

is there any objection to the motion?  Seeing none, the motion 33 

carries unanimously.  Go ahead, Chairman Shipp. 34 

 35 

DR. SHIPP:  The committee discussed whether to hold public 36 

hearings on Amendment 38 other than the testimony received at 37 

this council meeting and the August council meeting in New 38 

Orleans.  Mr. Steven Atran that this was a very technical 39 

amendment and would likely be non-controversial.  40 

 41 

As a result, attendance at public hearings would probably be low 42 

or none.  Ms. Kay Williams felt that it was the council’s job to 43 

hold public hearings and she would like to see what the public 44 

has to say about this.  Dr. Bob Shipp suggested that the council 45 

plan on holding public testimony only at the council meetings 46 

unless the public indicates that they prefer otherwise.  Scoping 47 

Document for Amendment 39, Sector Separation -- 48 
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 1 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I need to interrupt him for just a minute, 2 

because a motion wasn’t made.  In the paragraph that he just got 3 

through reading, about this not being controversial, I think it 4 

is now that we’ve made some changes about allocations.  Aren’t 5 

the allocations added to this? 6 

 7 

I’m looking at this document and the way we started off from the 8 

top and if you go all the way down, a lot of the motions and 9 

stuff that were made I thought is part of this or it’s not, 10 

where we’re talking about allocations?  No? 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  This is Amendment 38, the shallow-water grouper, 13 

and it’s not the allocation amendment. 14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Right, but I thought we were going to put all of 16 

that together. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  No, not this amendment. 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We’re not?  Okay.  I’m sorry. 21 

 22 

DR. SHIPP:  Scoping Document, Amendment 39, Sector Separation, 23 

Dr. Assane Diagne reviewed the scoping document for Reef Fish 24 

Amendment 39, Sector Separation, Tab B-8.   25 

 26 

The document focuses on four potential actions: the selection of 27 

species for inclusion in the amendment; the number of sectors 28 

into which to divide the recreational sector; the allocation of 29 

recreational quota among the sub-sectors; and the setting of 30 

annual catch limits and accountability measures.   31 

 32 

Committee members noted that the issue of grouper allocation is 33 

raised in both the scoping document at hand and Reef Fish 34 

Amendment 28, Grouper Allocation, Tab B-4(b).  Dr. Roy Crabtree 35 

noted that the allocation of red snapper should also be reviewed 36 

at some point and referenced NOAA’s Catch Share Policy.   37 

 38 

Following discussion, the committee passed the following motion 39 

to recommend merging the two amendments.  By a vote of six to 40 

two, the committee recommends, and I so move, that the council 41 

request that staff create a more comprehensive approach through 42 

the merging of Amendment 28 and Amendment 39 and adding red 43 

snapper to the discussion for allocation purposes. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion and is there 46 

discussion on the motion? 47 

 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  At the last council meeting, we told staff to go 1 

to scoping with that sector separation.  That was a council 2 

motion or I read it as a council motion.  If you pull up the 3 

motions made by the committee, that’s what I read that was in 4 

there, because I’ve got them on my screen. 5 

 6 

Now I’m hearing that that’s not what we did, but that’s what the 7 

motion reflected, was that that was made.  I’m not sure why we 8 

didn’t go ahead and go to scoping. 9 

 10 

If we’re going to put the sector separation and the allocations 11 

and this together, I don’t understand why or how you can do very 12 

much of any of that without also including the five-year review 13 

under red snapper.  I think they’re all tied in together and I 14 

just don’t know how you can do a couple of these things and not 15 

consider the red snapper review too. 16 

 17 

I would like to hear a little more discussion, because even the 18 

public -- They have had a lot of question on the sideboard 19 

because they don’t understand how you can do one without the 20 

other, because they’ve been waiting for this red snapper review 21 

and it hasn’t happened yet.   22 

 23 

They think if we’re going to do it, we might as well do it all 24 

and address all of the issues, especially because every one of 25 

them deals with allocation, including the red snapper IFQ.  It’s 26 

whatever the pleasure of this council is, but I think we ought 27 

to just go ahead and jump in there and address all of it. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  To your first comment, Kay, the motion at the 30 

last council meeting was to develop the scoping document so that 31 

we could go to scoping and so that’s what generated the document 32 

before us now.  Is there further discussion on the motion?  33 

Seeing none, is there any objection to the motion?  One 34 

objection and the motion carries. 35 

 36 

DR. SHIPP:  The committee directed staff that the new document 37 

should review allocations of four species, red snapper, gag, 38 

red, and black grouper, for three potential sectors, the 39 

commercial, private recreational, and for-hire.   40 

 41 

Committee members then discussed taking the document to scoping 42 

meetings.  Support for moving forward with scoping meetings 43 

concerned the length of time the council has been considering 44 

the issues of reallocation and sector separation.   45 

 46 

Other committee members, however, felt it important that the 47 

council review the new document prior to holding scoping 48 
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meetings.  Following discussion, a motion to take the amendment 1 

to scoping failed due to a tie vote. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  I move that we take this document to scoping 4 

meetings and review the comments at the August meeting. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a motion to take the combined amendment 7 

to scoping. 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  Before the August council meeting. 10 

 11 

DR. SHIPP:  A clarification.  The combined amendment plus 12 

additional information regarding red snapper, Roy? 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  The combined amendment includes red snapper. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It was seconded by, I believe, Dr. Abele.  Is 17 

there discussion on the motion? 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t recall in the past where we’ve ever done 20 

that.  Normally, this council at least looks at the options 21 

before it goes out and you’re suggesting that it goes out before 22 

this council even looks at it. 23 

 24 

That’s sort of a waste of time, in my mind, because we may want 25 

to add alternatives and we may want to hear what the public has 26 

to say about the additional alternatives, because we don’t know 27 

what’s really going to be in it, because staff is going to be 28 

adding some things.  29 

 30 

I have no idea what they’re going to add.  We’re definitely not 31 

going to go out with any preferreds and I realize it’s scoping, 32 

but still, we should be allowed to see the document and add 33 

alternatives and then take it to scoping.  I am going to speak 34 

in opposition. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  To that point, briefly. 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  Briefly, we’ve reviewed the documents at this 39 

meeting to go out to scoping and we’ve added some alternatives 40 

and made some changes.  I think it’s exactly what we would 41 

normally do. 42 

 43 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Isn’t this what we discussed yesterday, that we 44 

didn’t think we would have information?  I think it was 45 

particularly on the snapper piece, the red snapper piece, in 46 

order to go to scoping between now and August.  Wasn’t that the 47 

discussion yesterday? 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes, but that was the committee having that 2 

discussion and so the motion addresses it at the council level, 3 

to see whether the council concurs, since no motion was made. 4 

 5 

MR. PERRET:  Kay said what I was going to say.  It seems to me a 6 

little premature.  We’ve just directed staff to put these two 7 

amendments together and add red snapper into it and here we’re 8 

talking about sending it out.  I would prefer to delay it until 9 

we at least have a chance to see the single document and what’s 10 

in it. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion? 13 

 14 

MR. RIECHERS:  I kind of am like Roy.  We’ve seen the two 15 

documents and we’ve added those things.  The one thing that’s 16 

going to be added is the discussion basically regarding red 17 

snapper, of which we have those discussions in other places. 18 

 19 

I truly don’t believe this is too much to ask of staff and I 20 

also think most of us, in that generic sense of what’s going to 21 

go forward in a scoping document, have seen that enough as well 22 

and we kind of have a clue as to what that’s going to look like. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  We’ll vote on 25 

it.  The motion is to take the combined amendment to scoping 26 

before the August council meeting.  All those in favor please 27 

raise your hand, six in favor; all those opposed please raise 28 

your hand.  It’s seven to six and the motion fails.  Back to 29 

you, Chairman Shipp. 30 

 31 

DR. SHIPP:  NMFS Request for Comments on Potential Adjustments 32 

to National Standard 1, Dr. Steve Bortone presented a PowerPoint 33 

presentation prepared by Galen Trumble, Chief, NOAA Fisheries 34 

Domestic Fisheries Division, Tab B-9(a), that discussed a recent 35 

request for comments on possible revisions to the National 36 

Standard 1 Guidelines.   37 

 38 

The request seeks comments on eleven specific issues, plus any 39 

other issues, but not limited to those listed, noting real 40 

experiences that commenters have had in implementing ACLs and 41 

potential solutions: stocks in a fishery; overfishing and 42 

multiyear impacts; ACLs and optimum yield; mixed-stock fisheries 43 

and optimum yield; scientific and management uncertainty; data-44 

poor stocks; acceptable biological catch control rules; catch 45 

accounting; accountability measures; ACL exceptions; rebuilding 46 

progress. 47 

 48 
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Council staff has provided comments, which are summarized in Tab 1 

B-9(b), which will be provided to NMFS.  The deadline for 2 

submitting written comments is August 1, 2012.  However, at the 3 

recent Council Chairmen’s Committee meeting, a request was made 4 

for a six-week extension.   5 

 6 

Council members may wish to add their own comments, or comment 7 

directly to NMFS.  Anyone who wishes to comment individually may 8 

contact council staff for instructions or refer to the Federal 9 

Register notice, volume 77, number 86, dated May 3, 2012, page 10 

26239 [77 FR 26239]. 11 

 12 

Discussion on Exempted Fishing Permits Related to Reef Fish, Mr. 13 

Phil Steele reviewed two exempted fishing permits that the 14 

Regional Office had received.  One, from Florida Sea Grant, Tab 15 

J-1, requested an exemption from the requirement to use venting 16 

tools in order to evaluate the use of alternative fish release 17 

devices and methods.   18 

 19 

The other exempted fishing permit, from Dr. Chris Koenig at 20 

Florida State University and Dr. Christopher D. Stallings at the 21 

University of South Florida, Tab J-2, requested an exemption to 22 

temporarily possess goliath grouper in order to collect tissue 23 

samples, fin clips, in a non-lethal manner and to collect 24 

otoliths and fin rays from goliath grouper that have suffered 25 

mortalities from other causes, for instance, red tide or 26 

bycatch, in order to increase knowledge of goliath grouper 27 

biology.   28 

 29 

Dr. Luiz Barbieri reviewed SSC discussions on barotrauma and 30 

release of fish in the Reef Fish SSC summary, Tab H-4.  He noted 31 

that a recent workshop on this subject had been held by 32 

FishSmart, an industry initiative focusing on ways to improve 33 

survival of released fish.   34 

 35 

Based on the current state of knowledge about the impacts of 36 

rapid decompression and new technologies for releasing fish and 37 

returning them to depth, he noted that the SSC had recommended 38 

that the current venting requirement be modified to allow 39 

venting as necessary and/or use of descent devices to minimize 40 

barotrauma mortality. 41 

 42 

Dr. Barbieri also reviewed the SSC’s re-evaluation of vermilion 43 

snapper ABC.  The Science Center had discovered an error in 44 

their original estimate of the value for the fishing mortality 45 

rate at 30 percent SPR, FSPR 30 percent, the proxy used for the 46 

fishing mortality rate that produced MSY.   47 

 48 
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The Science Center corrected their estimates and reran the yield 1 

projections for OFL and ABC.  The SSC, upon reviewing the 2 

revised analysis, felt that the value FMAX was a better proxy 3 

for FMSY on the directed yield for vermilion snapper than FSPR 4 

30 percent.   5 

 6 

FMAX is the fishing mortality rate that produced the maximum 7 

yield from a fish, and is usually slightly higher than FMSY and 8 

is the proxy used with gag.  Steven Atran noted that the new 9 

analysis produced lower OFL and ABC values than the previous 10 

analysis, but they were still higher than any observed annual 11 

catches.  Do you want me to stop, Jessica? 12 

 13 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  My item was back on the barotrauma stuff.  I had 14 

a question about that and so do you want me to go ahead and ask 15 

it now or wait? 16 

 17 

DR. SHIPP:  Let me go ahead and finish this section and then 18 

we’ll back up to that.  The new ABCs were as follows: 2012 is 19 

4.68 million pounds, previously 6.48; 2013 is 4.41, previously 20 

5.37; 2014 is 4.34, previously 4.78; 2015 is 4.33. 21 

 22 

Dr. Larry Abele noted that the buffers between OFL and ABC were 23 

still very narrow, about 2.7 to 5.5 percent.  Mr. Steven Atran 24 

responded that the SSC had evaluated a different method of 25 

setting ABC used by the Pacific Council which also resulted in 26 

narrow buffers at a given P*.   27 

 28 

The SSC felt that those corroborated the results that they got 29 

with their method, but Dr. Roy Crabtree suggested it might mean 30 

that both methods were producing too narrow a buffer.   31 

 32 

Dr. Luiz Barbieri responded that the SSC was evaluating 33 

different methods of calculating the probability distribution 34 

function and the P* value it’s applied to.  By combining the 35 

results from multiple runs, more of the uncertainty could be 36 

accounted for in the PDF.   37 

 38 

However, the SSC could not yet agree on the best method for 39 

combining the results.  This is part of the work in progress for 40 

revising the ABC control rule.  Following Dr. Luiz Barbieri’s 41 

discussion, the committee returned to a consideration of the two 42 

exempted fishing permits. 43 

 44 

By a voice vote without opposition, the committee recommends, 45 

and I so move, that the council recommends approving the EFPs 46 

for both Doctors Koenig and Stallings and for Florida Sea Grant 47 

for their recompression studies. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 2 

on the motion?  Seeing none, any opposition to the motion?  3 

Seeing none, the motion carries unanimously.  We’ll go back to 4 

Jessica. 5 

 6 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Back on the barotrauma stuff, I was just curious.  7 

I thought last time we said we were going to start a framework 8 

action to change the venting requirements and all that.  Is that 9 

still moving forward or do we need a motion for that? 10 

 11 

MR. ATRAN:  Yes, we did proceed and we are proceeding with an 12 

accelerated framework or I guess it’s called an abbreviated 13 

framework procedure to change the venting requirement that says 14 

venting devices must be possessed and used as necessary, so that 15 

it’s no longer necessary to vent a fish that doesn’t need it. 16 

 17 

However, that’s not all that’s covered in the recommendations 18 

that came out of the barotrauma workshop and from the SSC.  19 

There’s also suggestions that we revise the venting tool 20 

requirement to require the possession and use of venting tools 21 

or an alternative release device.  If you want to do more, than 22 

we still need to do more.  There were a couple of motions made 23 

by the SSC on that that did not get into the verbal SSC report, 24 

but they’re on page 8 of the SSC summary. 25 

 26 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Do I need to make a motion to add those 27 

additional things that Steve just mentioned to the framework 28 

action? 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Let me get to Mara first, before we get to that. 31 

 32 

MS. LEVY:  As I understood it, we’re looking over the 33 

abbreviated framework and trying to figure out exactly how to 34 

implement that.  When we looked at what happened at the last 35 

council meeting in the Reef Fish Committee, it looked like, from 36 

the discussion, that you all asked for the abbreviated framework 37 

and from what Shep had said, it seems to me that we were going 38 

to develop the abbreviated framework and the analysis that goes 39 

with it and it was going to come back to you to look at. 40 

 41 

It wasn’t so clear in full council whether the full council 42 

adopted that or expected something else.  At this point, 43 

obviously there’s no document to bring back to you and so I 44 

believe we’re going to be meeting as an IPT to go over exactly 45 

how to implement this abbreviated framework and if we have to 46 

come back with a document at the next meeting, we will. 47 

 48 
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In terms of adding things, this was just a slight change to the 1 

regulation, which is why it fell under that category.  I don’t 2 

know exactly what the extent of the additions would be, but then 3 

it might just expand it into beyond whatever this would be able 4 

to cover. 5 

 6 

MR. ATRAN:  The comment that Mara was talking about, actually I 7 

had made that comment during the committee.  We had talked about 8 

whether or not we could use the abbreviated framework and I made 9 

a comment that we could perhaps put something together and bring 10 

it back to the council, but there was never any motion or any 11 

discussion on that. 12 

 13 

Our approach, in putting together the materials after the 14 

council meeting was over, we felt that the purpose of the 15 

abbreviated process is to try to get a very small item done as 16 

quickly as possible and in a situation such as this where the 17 

council was absolutely clear on what it wanted, we could go 18 

ahead and draw up the paperwork and just submit it directly to 19 

NMFS. 20 

 21 

On a standard framework or a full plan amendment, we have a 22 

final action step where we do take the amendment back to the 23 

council to make sure that what we put in it is what the council 24 

intended us to put in there, but, again, the abbreviated 25 

framework is for small items, for very narrowly-focused items, 26 

and its purpose is to try to get things done as fast as 27 

possible. 28 

 29 

If you want us to bring it back, this might be something where 30 

we need to get guidance from the council.  On these abbreviated 31 

document processes, do you want us to bring back the final 32 

product before we submit it or once you make a decision, let us 33 

just go ahead and so the paperwork and submit it directly to the 34 

Regional Office? 35 

 36 

MS. LEVY:  Regardless of whether it’s an abbreviated framework 37 

or the regular framework, the way that it’s set out in the 38 

amendment is that either way requires public discussion at at 39 

least one council meeting and that means notice. 40 

 41 

This came up last time, just sort of in discussion.  It was 42 

like, oh, we can prepare a framework.  That’s fine, but that 43 

required notice and something then to be heard at this meeting 44 

or at whatever meeting and so even the procedure that’s written 45 

out requires that one council meeting that you discuss it. 46 

 47 

The way I would envision it was you said we should do this by 48 
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framework and staff would develop whatever limited analysis was 1 

needed for that framework and you would agenda it for the next 2 

meeting and you could have the discussion then and then you 3 

would direct -- You would vote and say you want NMFS to 4 

implement it.  Again, that isn’t exactly what happened here, 5 

which is why there’s been some confusion. 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  I looked back at the committee minutes and we 8 

didn’t even pass a motion officially requesting this and so I 9 

think at this stage we are going to have to put this on the 10 

agenda for August and come in and pass a motion to request it 11 

and give the public a chance to comment on it.  I think this is 12 

just the pains of figuring out how this works. 13 

 14 

MR. ATRAN:  As you can tell, this is a new process and so we’re 15 

still trying to go through the appropriate steps.  The two 16 

accelerated framework decisions that the council made, the 17 

venting took requirement was not noticed previously.  That came 18 

up during the discussion, but I believe the other one, which had 19 

to do with redefining what constitutes charterboat fishing, I 20 

believe that was on the agenda right from the beginning and so 21 

there was a chance for public input. 22 

 23 

MS. LEVY:  Again, and I think this was something that we were 24 

going to flesh out, is that during the committee meeting on that 25 

particular one, the discussion was fairly clear that staff was 26 

going to develop a document for you to then look at and so that 27 

hasn’t happened. 28 

 29 

I think that the discussion was fairly clear in the committee 30 

meeting and the council discussion was very brief and the motion 31 

wasn’t specific as to whether they were bringing something back 32 

or not, but I read it as though staff was going to develop this 33 

and you were going to look at it and then it was going to get 34 

implemented. 35 

 36 

Either way, I think we’re going to have to have discussions 37 

after this meeting and figure out what the right course is and 38 

go from there. 39 

 40 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Just to clarify, since I know we’re using this 41 

new process, the other items other than just that very simple 42 

single tweak, because there were other items from that SSC 43 

report, would those be handled separately or could they be 44 

discussed if we’re going to notice this for the next council 45 

meeting?  How would we get those other pieces with this or do we 46 

not? 47 

 48 
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MR. ATRAN:  Maybe it would be best to let counsel and NMFS staff 1 

decide whether or not we could add those to the existing process 2 

or that we needed a separate framework, but if you want to put 3 

it on the next agenda item -- I’m not sure if we’re scheduling a 4 

Reef Fish AP or not between now and August, but if we are, we 5 

can also bring barotrauma issues to that AP and get their input. 6 

 7 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Mr. Chairman, would you like a motion that we 8 

bring this item to the Reef Fish AP and then it come back to 9 

council?  Is that what you would be looking for? 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s a question of whether or not the Reef 12 

Fish AP will be scheduled before or after.  The Reef Fish AP 13 

needs to get involved somewhere, but August is coming upon us 14 

pretty rapidly and so it may not be able to be possible prior to 15 

August and so maybe if the council considers it first and then 16 

the Reef Fish AP weighs in after. 17 

 18 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  According to the schedule that Mara just talked 19 

about, it doesn’t seem like, if we use this abbreviated 20 

procedure, that it would come back to us again and that we would 21 

just see it that one time. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We’re not going to be able to address it at this 24 

meeting and so I think staff and the agency and GC can get 25 

together and flesh this thing out and see how we can best 26 

accommodate all needs and at this point, it’s not clear and I 27 

don’t see us getting it resolved at this meeting.  It would be 28 

nice, but -- 29 

 30 

DR. ABELE:  I really apologize to hold us up, but with the new 31 

ACL and ACT for vermilion, in January, we looked at one set of 32 

options with a set of numbers and these are completely different 33 

and so where do we go from here on those numbers? 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  You heard that the Center came back and revised 36 

the assessment and the SSC got that and revised the ABC and the 37 

yield stream and so at the August meeting, you all have to go 38 

back and reconsider what to do with that yield stream. 39 

 40 

DR. ABELE:  One last question on that.  If I’m reading the other 41 

documents right, these numbers are still considerably higher 42 

than any harvest from the Gulf of Mexico in the past and is that 43 

correct? 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  No, that’s not correct.  It’s higher than the 46 

current landings, but there was one year of four-something, 47 

four-two, and so it’s clear that the trajectory is up and you 48 
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can see where exceeding the ACL is a potential possibility, 1 

whereas the previous assessment, you’re absolutely right and so 2 

things have changed since then.  Chairman Riechers, I believe 3 

that concludes your report? 4 

 5 

MR. RIECHERS:  That concludes Dr. Shipp’s and my report, yes. 6 

 7 

MACKEREL COMMITTEE REPORT 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I stand corrected.  Let’s talk a little bit 10 

about where we are and how to proceed.  As you can see, time is 11 

running out and it’s three o’clock and I suspect we’re going to 12 

have some folks departing the scene shortly to catch planes, et 13 

cetera. 14 

 15 

We have left the Mackerel Committee Report, plus Other Business.  16 

I would propose, given the structure of and duration that we’ve 17 

got in front of us with the Mackerel Committee -- Recall that 18 

we’re talking about a Joint Mackerel Committee meeting with the 19 

South Atlantic and they don’t discuss this until September and 20 

how we handle the Mackerel Committee Report would be to read it 21 

so it’s on the record, but agree to treat it as a consent agenda 22 

and not address the issues the committee already addressed, 23 

because they’re going to be further refined, but that we do 24 

consider addressing those issues that the committee did not get 25 

to. 26 

 27 

That should save a whole bunch of time, it seems to me, and 28 

allow us to give some direction on three more or four more 29 

actions, something like that.  If the council is in agreement 30 

with that, that will allow us to expeditiously get through the 31 

Mackerel Committee and have direction for the August meeting and 32 

the Joint Mackerel Committee meeting and it will require 33 

Chairman Fischer to do some rather extensive reading and then 34 

can go through Other Business and proceed as far as we can 35 

before we potentially lose a quorum.  Do I see any problems from 36 

the council in terms of that approach? 37 

 38 

I see none and so, Chairman Fischer, if you would read the 39 

committee report and then guide us through the -- I see some 40 

objection, but once we get through the objections from the 41 

attorney, then if you would read through the committee report, 42 

straight through, and then proceed to the actions not addressed 43 

in committee in Amendment 20, that should wrap us up and, Mara, 44 

you had your hand up and I hope it was for a good thing. 45 

 46 

MS. LEVY:  It is.  I just wanted to say it was a pleasure 47 

serving with you and I’m going to turn it over to my colleague, 48 
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Monica, who sat in on your Mackerel Committee, and so you’ll 1 

have some consistency there and thank you. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The only consistency is inconsistency and I’m 4 

sorry to see you leave so quickly, but thank you for helping us 5 

out during this week.  I appreciate it and, Monica, welcome back 6 

to the table.  7 

 8 

MR. RIECHERS:  Just a quick question, Mr. Chairman.  If we’re 9 

going to just, by consensus or by consent, agree that we’re not 10 

going to make any of these changes, could we just not append the 11 

report and say we’ve covered this through X section and then 12 

take up the business of the rest of the committee business that 13 

didn’t get covered and just append it into the transcript, so 14 

that we don’t have to read it into the record? 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If that’s possible, I would agree.  I think the 17 

important thing here is that the public, when they look at what 18 

we’re doing, have that and that was my intent, to make sure that 19 

this didn’t get lost to them, so that they know where we are.  20 

If staff can do it that way, that’s fine with me. 21 

 22 

MR. RIECHERS:  I don’t know if they can or not.  I’m just asking 23 

the question. 24 

 25 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, the report we have is eight pages 26 

long and the bulk of it is motions.  If we’re not going to be 27 

working on the motions, I don’t know the need to read them in if 28 

we’re going to be taking these up again at our August meeting.  29 

Could we suspend this and work on it again in August and take up 30 

where we left off on 20? 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  My only concern is that the public doesn’t 33 

understand what the council has agreed to and not agreed to and 34 

if we can do that, and I would ask for advice from staff, by 35 

some other mechanism other than reading them in, I’m fine, but I 36 

don’t think we ought to mislead the public as to what the 37 

council has agreed to thus far and I agree with the intent.  I 38 

just don’t know that we can do it and can someone advise me from 39 

staff? 40 

 41 

MR. FISCHER:  We may get legal to do that, but, Mr. Chair, the 42 

council hasn’t agreed to anything.  You meant what the committee 43 

has done so far. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  What I’m suggesting is rather than discuss each 46 

of those actions and the committee motions, the council agrees 47 

in advance to accept them as a consent agenda and they’re read 48 
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for the record, so that the public understands it, and then we 1 

address the others to shorten it. 2 

 3 

DR. LEARD:  I was going to say since this is basically a 4 

committee report and we have the South Atlantic Council’s 5 

committee report and their actions, I presume that what you want 6 

to do at the joint committee meeting is to have basically what 7 

the South Atlantic has as a decision document, where you’ll have 8 

the actions of the Gulf and the actions of the South Atlantic. 9 

 10 

You’ll have those basically side-by-side and each committee will 11 

then vote on which ones that they want and so I guess what I’m 12 

asking for is direction from the council as to is that the way 13 

you would want us to proceed in taking this information and 14 

developing a separate document so that you’ll be able to see the 15 

actions that your committee took and the actions that the South 16 

Atlantic took at that meeting in August or September or 17 

whatever? 18 

 19 

In which case, I don’t see where you would really need it into 20 

the council’s record, because it’s still a committee product and 21 

it will still be a committee product when it goes to the August 22 

or September meeting. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If the council concurs with that, then, Chairman 25 

Fischer, if you would go and address the actions in Amendment 20 26 

that the committee did not and we will address those. 27 

 28 

MR. FISCHER:  We’ll give everyone a chance to get to 20 instead 29 

of 19.  We can start with Action 1, although we did some 30 

modifications to Action 1. 31 

 32 

We are going to start on Amendment 20 of the Coastal Migratory 33 

Pelagic Plan, commonly known as the mackerel document.  I will 34 

myself get to the same document.  Dr. Leard, do you have the 35 

location where we left off after discussions during the 36 

committee? 37 

 38 

We did some verbiage wording, some changes, on Action 2 and 39 

possibly Action 1 and I don’t know if you want to start -- I 40 

could start reading on those, but I’m just trying to figure 41 

procedurally where we are, picking up in the middle of the 42 

committee report. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Chairman, I think we got through Action 4 in 45 

Amendment 20 and we are now addressing Action 5.  Action 4 was 46 

the transit provision in southwest Florida and Action 5 is the 47 

restrictions on fishing in multiple zones.  I am getting some 48 
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nodding of heads that concur with that conclusion. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Action 5 was restrictions of fishing king mackerel 3 

in multiple zones and this was accomplished and so Action 6 is 4 

to modify the -- 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Chairman, that’s not true.  We did not 7 

address Action 5. 8 

 9 

MR. FISCHER:  Okay.  I thought that’s what you just said.  We’ll 10 

go to Action 5, which is restrictions on fishing for king 11 

mackerel in multiple zones.  Dr. Leard, do you want to have the 12 

pleasure of going through the document as we did or do you want 13 

me to take over? 14 

 15 

DR. LEARD:  Whatever your pleasure, Mr. Chairman. 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  In multiple zones, we have a few alternatives and, 18 

of course, Alternative 1 being the no action alternative, where 19 

vessels with king mackerel commercial vessel permits can fish in 20 

any zone in the Gulf or South Atlantic. 21 

 22 

The second alternative was to require that prior to the 23 

beginning of the fishing year, each owner of a permitted 24 

commercial king mackerel hook and line vessel must identify the 25 

zone or subzone in which the vessel will fish during the 26 

upcoming fishing year. 27 

 28 

Currently, it would be the western zone, the Florida east coast 29 

subzone, Florida west coast subzone, or Florida west coast 30 

northern subzone.  There were suboptions where there’s Option a, 31 

only one zone might be identified, or Option b, two zones may be 32 

identified. 33 

 34 

Alternative 3 was to require an endorsement to fish in a 35 

particular zone or subzone, where Option a was only one 36 

endorsement is allowed at any time and it’s not transferable 37 

during that year.  Suboption i is permanent and Suboption ii is 38 

annual or Option b, no more than two endorsements are allowed at 39 

any one time and they are not transferable during that year.  40 

Suboption i is permanent and Suboption ii is annual.  This is 41 

issues commercial fishermen have brought to us and do we have 42 

further discussion on these subjects? 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If I remember correctly from public testimony, 45 

this did not receive favorable comment from most, if not all, or 46 

close to it.  It seems to me that what we’re creating here is a 47 

bit of a monster from virtually every perspective.  Given that, 48 
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I would move that we move Action 5 to the considered but 1 

rejected section. 2 

 3 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion.  Do we have a second? 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  Second. 6 

 7 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s seconded by Dr. Crabtree and do we have 8 

further discussion? 9 

 10 

DR. DANA:  Only a comment to say that I did hear in public 11 

testimony and also when we went out and held public scoping 12 

meetings that there were a lot of opinions that the zone should 13 

be chosen at the beginning of the year and so I’ve heard it.  I 14 

don’t know if that’s the right thing to do or not, but I’ve 15 

heard a lot of those comments in public testimony in the past 16 

and in the field. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Pam, and I concur.  The public comments 19 

we’ve heard, both at the podium, but also out in the field, I 20 

thought there was quite a few people indicating this would be a 21 

possible option and so I would hate to remove it from the 22 

document. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess I understand and hear that sentiment and 25 

I apologize if I misspoke, but it seems to me the devil is in 26 

the details of this one and we try and figure out how we 27 

actually accomplish it and meaningfully enforce it and all that 28 

and then it gets a whole lot more hazy and are we creating a 29 

monster here to accommodate something that might be helpful, but 30 

the burden of doing so far exceeds it?  I retain my motion. 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  I tend to agree with Mr. Gill.  This is how 33 

complicated regional management becomes and I think this is 34 

becoming really complicated.  Mackerel are migratory and the 35 

guys follow the fish. 36 

 37 

I think most of the people who come over that would be affected 38 

by this are probably from the east coast, but it’s going to 39 

create a lot of burden and a lot of confusion, I think, to do 40 

this. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you and I understand your points, but one of 43 

the reasons we created these zones was to allow access for the 44 

local residents when the fish pass through and now that boats 45 

are following the fish, it has taken away from that. 46 

 47 

It’s whatever the pleasure of the committee is, but this did 48 
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come to us from the general public fishing this species.  Do we 1 

have any further discussion?  Seeing no discussion, are we ready 2 

to vote?  All in favor of this motion raise your hand; 3 

opposition.  It appears the motion has passed.  We shall move 4 

the zones to the -- Did you say just to remove it from the 5 

document? 6 

 7 

DR. LEARD:  I guess it would go to considered but rejected. 8 

 9 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you.  We shall move on to I believe it’s 10 

page 23 for the Action Item 6, to modify the Gulf and Atlantic 11 

migratory group cobia annual catch limits.  Alternative 1 is no 12 

action, the Gulf migratory group cobia ACL would be equal to the 13 

ABC and be set as a single stock ACL. 14 

 15 

The Atlantic migratory group cobia ACL equals OY equals ABC and 16 

the C would be the entire Gulf migratory group cobia ACL applies 17 

to the Gulf Council jurisdictional area and the South Atlantic 18 

migratory group cobia applies to the South Atlantic 19 

jurisdictional area.  That was Alternative 1. 20 

 21 

Alternative 2 has four options.  The Gulf migratory group cobia 22 

ACL equals ABC based on the SSC control rule and latest stock 23 

assessment.  The ABC/ACL for the Gulf migratory group cobia 24 

would be divided between the Gulf jurisdictional area and the 25 

east coast of Florida based on the options below.   26 

 27 

The ACL for the Atlantic migratory group cobia equals OY equals 28 

ABC from the SSC, based on the most recent stock assessment, 29 

plus the ABC/ACL from the Gulf for the east coast of Florida and 30 

Option a would be to use the time series of 2000 to 2009 31 

landings to establish a percentage by split subzone.  Option b 32 

would be to use the 2005 to 2009 landings and Option c would be 33 

the 2007 to 2009 and Option d would be other years.  That’s for 34 

discussion, council. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I would ask a question of David.  It looks like 37 

in Alternatives 2 and 3 that you added Boyles Law, but you 38 

didn’t describe the years that you wanted to utilize.  Was that 39 

intentional or just in the -- I’ve forgotten how that went. 40 

 41 

MR. CUPKA:  It was probably an oversight.  We’ve used different 42 

time series with Boyles Law, but it’s the way historically we’ve 43 

looked at allocations, which considers historical landings and 44 

then the most recent landings, but our SSC -- I guess there’s 45 

been some concern expressed about Boyles Law and our SSC is 46 

going to review that, but you’re right that we didn’t pick any 47 

set time series to go along with that and it can vary.  It’s not 48 
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set. 1 

 2 

DR. LEARD:  Our Amendment 18 was just implemented at the first 3 

of the year and in that, we established our ACLs and ABCs and 4 

whatnot for cobia. 5 

 6 

We’re right in the middle of a stock assessment, a benchmark 7 

stock assessment, for cobia and Spanish mackerel and I haven’t 8 

heard much sentiment from the Gulf side -- We put Gulf in here, 9 

in the document, just for your review, but I haven’t heard much 10 

sentiment from anybody to really try to make modifications to 11 

the annual catch limits for cobia in the Gulf, at least until 12 

such time as we get the results of that assessment, which would 13 

be supposedly around October or at least before the end of the 14 

year. 15 

 16 

I just throw that out for your consideration, is that you may 17 

want to wait until you get the results of that assessment and 18 

then address possible changes to your ABC, ACL, et cetera, once 19 

you get that and you can do that through a framework. 20 

 21 

MR. FISCHER:  In light of what Dr. Leard has just presented, Mr. 22 

Gill, do you have something to add to this? 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That kind of goes where I was given, that given 25 

that we had no years for Boyles Law and both committees are 26 

going to meet, perhaps it would be best addressed then and we 27 

let them do their thing and that’s not quite consistent with the 28 

cobia timeframe, but, again, they can get a sense of direction 29 

whenever they do meet and go from there and so I think that 30 

makes sense relative to that, but there is another issue that I 31 

think needs to be raised, unless Dr. Crabtree is raising it. 32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think there’s the allocation issue between the 34 

Gulf and South Atlantic, because it’s my understanding that the 35 

SEDAR is using a different boundary than we’ve used in the past 36 

and I don’t think we can set that allocation through a 37 

framework, can we? 38 

 39 

DR. LEARD:  No, Sue just reminded me that as part of the data 40 

workshop, what they did was they proposed to set the dividing 41 

line between the Gulf and Atlantic group cobia at the 42 

Georgia/Florida border and so I’m not so sure if the way this is 43 

worded is right, but what we’re actually trying to do is 44 

determine some percentage of that allocation of the east coast 45 

of Florida that’s in the Atlantic jurisdiction, what percentage 46 

of that is going to be managed by the South Atlantic Council, 47 

but it would be considered Gulf group cobia. 48 
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 1 

That’s the way the assessment is currently going, but we don’t 2 

know what that percentage is until we get the results of the 3 

assessment. 4 

 5 

MS. MONICA SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Given that, you may just want to 6 

leave this as a placeholder and come back to it later, when the 7 

assessment is done.  I do think that given the SEDAR difference 8 

in boundary division, as opposed to what you established in 9 

Amendment, you will have to address allocation in some fashion, 10 

but, again, you don’t know -- You don’t have enough information 11 

now to do it. 12 

 13 

MR. FISCHER:  Right and thank you and I was hoping that was what 14 

was coming from the other side.  Is that what you all were going 15 

to address? 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  In addition to that, I think there is one other 18 

option that makes a significance here and that is in Alternative 19 

2 and Alternative 3, Option c is a very short timeframe to use 20 

as a basis and so I think we ought to consider deleting that and 21 

moving those to the considered but rejected, since it seems 22 

awfully unreasonable to pick the short timeframe and luck of the 23 

draw as to who hits well and who hits poorly.  With that in 24 

mind, in Alternatives 2 and 3, I move that Option c be moved to 25 

considered but rejected. 26 

 27 

MR. ANSON:  Second. 28 

 29 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion to remove Option c from 30 

Alternative 2 and 3 that was seconded and do we have further 31 

discussion?  It’s to eliminate the shortest timeframe. 32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think I agree with that, but why are we 34 

stopping the time series at 2009?  Why aren’t we using any more 35 

recent years, 2010 and 2011?  We certainly have 2010 and I think 36 

we have 2011 now. 37 

 38 

MR. FISCHER:  Rick, do we have advice in that area? 39 

 40 

DR. LEARD:  I really don’t know.  This action, I think, 41 

originated from the South Atlantic and so I don’t know.  At the 42 

time that we were drafting this, it was probably two or three 43 

years ago, which is when we probably only had numbers through 44 

2009, but I think you’re right that we probably could get 45 

numbers for at least 2010 and probably 2011 as well. 46 

 47 

DR. CRABTREE:  To Mr. Gill’s motion, Mr. Gill, if we came in and 48 
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added 2010 and 2011 to it, then that would no longer be as short 1 

a time series and so maybe a better motion would be to add 2010 2 

and 2011 landings. 3 

 4 

I would make a substitute motion that in Alternatives 2 and 3 5 

that in Options a, b, and c that we include 2010 and 2011 6 

landings as well. 7 

 8 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a substitute motion and do we have a 9 

second for it? 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Second. 12 

 13 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s been seconded.  Is there further discussion? 14 

 15 

MR. GREENE:  I speak in opposition to this due to the oil spill 16 

in 2010. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  The entire northern Gulf of Mexico was impacted 19 

and shut down, the latter part, through that whole time series 20 

and so it would definitely affect that area in a biased manner.  21 

Any further discussion?  Are we ready to vote? 22 

 23 

This would be to include the oil spill years into the substitute 24 

motion.  Do we have support for this?  All in favor; all 25 

opposed.  The motion failed. 26 

 27 

DR. CRABTREE:  If I could, that’s a good point and maybe that’s 28 

a good reason not to add 2010 and 2011 to it.  I hadn’t really 29 

thought of that when I made my motion. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Given that misstep by the agency, I move that in 32 

Alternatives 2 and 3 that we move Option c to the considered but 33 

rejected section. 34 

 35 

MR. FISCHER:  We have our original motion, which was by Mr. 36 

Gill, which was to remove Option c from Alternatives 2 and 3 to 37 

considered but rejected.  We had a second for this and are we 38 

ready to vote?  Do we need further discussion?  Seeing no 39 

further discussion, we’ll vote.  All in favor say aye; opposed.  40 

The motion carries. 41 

 42 

I would bring one quick thing up for discussion.  If we’re 43 

worried about a short time series, where do we stand with Option 44 

d that says other years? 45 

 46 

MR. RIECHERS:  That was the Boyles Law and if I’m remembering 47 

right, what they did was took the whole time series and weighted 48 
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it times like 50 percent and then took the last three years or 1 

five years and weighted them by 50 percent and came up with a 2 

landings figure that way.  I don’t know that I have the years or 3 

the percents right, but you were trying to weight the last years 4 

to give them more credit. 5 

 6 

MR. CUPKA:  That’s correct. 7 

 8 

MR. FISCHER:  Okay.  Are we ready to move on?  We appear to be.  9 

Moving on will take us to Action 7, which is a South Atlantic 10 

action.  It’s establish state-by-state or regional quotas for 11 

Atlantic mackerel in group king mackerel, Spanish mackerel, and 12 

cobia.  Dr. Leard, what do we have to do here? 13 

 14 

DR. LEARD:  Mr. Chairman, I don’t think we have to really do 15 

anything.  The South Atlantic Council has taken some actions to 16 

remove Action 2 and 3 and modify Alternative 4 and so they all 17 

they’ve got is the no action alternative and Alternative 4 is 18 

modified to establish commercial quotas for two regions, North 19 

Carolina and the rest of the Atlantic migratory groups of king 20 

mackerel and Spanish mackerel and they took out cobia.  21 

Basically, we can either concur now with what they want to do or 22 

concur later.  It really doesn’t matter. 23 

 24 

MR. FISCHER:  This is from their document.  This is a South 25 

Atlantic action and it’s the pleasure of the council.  We can do 26 

it now or we can wait until the committee meets in the next few 27 

months.  Do we have any action, any movement, towards this? 28 

 29 

MR. RIECHERS:  I would go ahead and move that we frame this 30 

action the same as it’s framed in our handout CMP 20.  If I get 31 

a second, I will explain the rationale. 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion and a second. 34 

 35 

MR. RIECHERS:  The only reason I’m doing that is so that when 36 

we’re reviewing the documents together, we’re not setting there 37 

with alternatives that if someone is speaking to Alternative 2, 38 

which we haven’t deleted yet and they have it deleted in their 39 

copy -- This is really their action and I’m just trying to 40 

mirror it up right now and so that’s all. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  Do we have any further discussion? 43 

 44 

DR. DANA:  What you’re saying is just to make it consistent with 45 

the South Atlantic by taking the Alternative 2 and the 46 

Alternative 3 off the table? 47 

 48 
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MR. RIECHERS:  Yes and then modifying Alternative 4 with the 1 

language that they’ve added or deleted there.  They’ve both 2 

added some language and deleted language. 3 

 4 

MR. FISCHER:  Is everyone clear on Robin’s motion?  Any further 5 

discussion?  Seeing no discussion, we’ll vote.  All in favor say 6 

aye; opposed the same.  No opposition and the motion carries.   7 

 8 

We shall go to Action Item 8, which is another South Atlantic 9 

item.  It’s set annual catch target, ACT, for by subzones for 10 

Atlantic migratory group cobia.  Dr. Leard, what is required of 11 

us for this Atlantic item? 12 

 13 

DR. LEARD:  The South Atlantic, from the original document that 14 

we submitted, which was, I believe, C-4, the South Atlantic 15 

Council didn’t make any changes to these two alternatives. 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  That would be these two alternatives and so we 18 

could just move on like they are and is there any reason to vote 19 

or we’ll just move on? 20 

 21 

We’ll move on to Action 9, which is another South Atlantic item.  22 

It’s to specify accountability measures by subzones for Atlantic 23 

migratory group cobia. 24 

 25 

DR. LEARD:  This is the same thing, Mr. Chairman.  These 26 

alternatives were not modified by the South Atlantic Council at 27 

their last meeting and so they retained them as they are 28 

written. 29 

 30 

MR. FISCHER:  Our last item, I believe, is Action 10, which is 31 

modify the framework procedures.  Could you get us up to where 32 

we are with the framework procedures?  I thought we had a lot of 33 

highlighted text here, but evidently not. 34 

 35 

DR. LEARD:  Again, there were no changes made to this and I’m 36 

not sure if we’re ready to go looking at preferred alternatives, 37 

but, in essence, I think Alternative 2, and correct me if I’m 38 

wrong, Sue Gerhart, but this is basically the exact same wording 39 

that you just went through with reef fish far as the framework 40 

modifications that are needed to account for the accountability 41 

measures. 42 

 43 

Whenever it gets time to vote on something, you could basically 44 

just copy that motion over, because it’s the exact same thing.  45 

The frameworks are the same for coastal pelagics and for reef 46 

fish at this time. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s precisely what I wanted to do.  In Action 1 

10, I move that the preferred alternatives be Alternative 2 and 2 

Alternative 4. 3 

 4 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion on the board for Action Item 10 5 

and the preferreds being Alternative 2 and Alternative 4 and do 6 

we have a second? 7 

 8 

MR. RIECHERS:  I think you meant to do Alternative 2 and 9 

Alternative 5.  There’s a 5 on this one. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I stand corrected.  I’m not even sure I 12 

understand what Alternative 4 is. 13 

 14 

MR. FISCHER:  The motion is in Action Item 10 that the preferred 15 

be Alternative 2 and Alternative 5 and do we have a second? 16 

 17 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’ll second it. 18 

 19 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s been seconded.  Any further discussion?   20 

 21 

DR. DANA:  When Mr. Leard was just presenting the overview of 22 

this, he had said that he felt that it perhaps is not ready for 23 

a preferred alternative and maybe he can readdress that and 24 

what’s the rationale behind that, because I’m not sure I’m 25 

prepared to go preferred at this point. 26 

 27 

DR. LEARD:  You certainly don’t have to go with preferred 28 

alternatives.  I think there’s only one other action in here, or 29 

maybe two, that the South Atlantic Council actually picked a 30 

preferred alternative, but you’re right.  This is at the very 31 

early stages and this is still an options paper and it’s not 32 

even an amendment yet and so usually -- Typically, we don’t pick 33 

preferred alternatives until we get to at least a draft 34 

amendment and possibly even a public hearing draft, which 35 

certainly won’t be until later in the year. 36 

 37 

MR. FISCHER:  Any further discussion?  Seeing no discussion, we 38 

do have a motion that was seconded on the board for Action Item 39 

10 that Alternative 2 and Alternative 5 be preferred.  With no 40 

further discussion, we’ll vote.  All in support of this, all in 41 

favor, say aye; opposed.  The motion carries.  Mr. Chair, I 42 

think I am through with business. 43 

 44 

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Would you tidy up for me, and for the 45 

record, just what this council did with the committee’s report 46 

on Amendment 19 and the first four actions of Amendment 20? 47 

 48 
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MR. FISCHER:  I was fumbling through the pages myself, but we’re 1 

leaving the committee actions as committee actions and not 2 

taking them forward, being the next thing we do is, once again, 3 

meet as a committee and then meet with the South Atlantic 4 

committee.  Then we will bring them as a package to the council 5 

for council approval. 6 

 7 

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  The council didn’t approve the committee 8 

report? 9 

 10 

MR. FISCHER:  That is correct. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Given the mackerel discussions and the other 13 

discussions we’ve had on allocations, it seems to me that king 14 

mackerel are a prime candidate for relooking at how we handle 15 

the allocations. 16 

 17 

Typically, every year for a fair number of years, there’s been a 18 

large number of fish that have not been caught, left in the 19 

water, and so it’s difficult for me to understand how we’re 20 

achieving optimum yield in this fishery. 21 

 22 

I don’t have the solutions, but there’s many and I would hope 23 

that we would be innovative in how we might consider that, but I 24 

think we need to consider, on this fishery, a reallocation 25 

mechanism and we could do all sorts of innovative things, given 26 

the amount of fish that are there, that work, but I think we 27 

need to do it, just to be compliant with National Standard 1.  28 

With that in mind, I move that we initiate a plan amendment to 29 

reallocate king mackerel.  30 

 31 

MR. BOYD:  Do we have a second?  Harlon seconds.  Is there 32 

discussion? 33 

 34 

DR. CRABTREE:  As part of this, are you going to request, or I 35 

assume you would request, a net benefits economic analysis from 36 

the Science Center? 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Exactly and I don’t know if that needs to be 39 

part of the motion or not, but I thought that was pretty much 40 

SOP, that given our principles and guidelines for allocation, at 41 

any time reallocation is considered, that that is probably the 42 

first step. 43 

 44 

MR. BOYD:  Any further discussion?  We have a motion on the 45 

board and it’s been made and seconded to initiate a plan 46 

amendment to reallocate king mackerel.  Any further discussion?  47 

 48 
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DR. ABELE:  I have a question.  What would be the effect of 1 

upping the bag limit on king?  If I’m reading the NMFS website, 2 

the recreational allocation is eight-million pounds and they get 3 

about 5.2 million and so there’s about three-million pounds and 4 

what about a desire -- Would this include upping the bag limit, 5 

which would also, I assume, move toward a great optimum yield, 6 

if that’s the right word? 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think that ought to be considered.  My 9 

understanding is that, by and large, folks don’t want two kings 10 

and many don’t want the one king and so I think that ought to be 11 

considered. 12 

 13 

I think, for example, one of the potentials with some of these 14 

fish is to adopt a research set-aside with those fish and 15 

utilize those funds for some research in some fashion, not 16 

necessarily on mackerel. 17 

 18 

I think there’s a chance here for the council to be innovative 19 

and proactive and yes, some will probably go to commercial, but 20 

I think it’s important that we take whatever efforts seem 21 

appropriate to achieve optimum yield in this fishery.  If you’re 22 

talking a dollar a pound and the quota is going up, you’re 23 

talking $3 million left over. 24 

 25 

DR. ABELE:  As I read this, it doesn’t sound like it includes 26 

the possibility of raising the bag limit and is that correct? 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We certainly could. 29 

 30 

MR. BOYD:  Do I hear a motion? 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  In my view, that’s a separate issue.  I think 33 

what we’re talking about here is getting an economic analysis to 34 

indicate to us what sort of allocation might maximize benefits 35 

to the nation.  That’s what we’ve done for grouper and that’s 36 

what we’ve done for red snapper and I think it’s entirely 37 

reasonable to do it here. 38 

 39 

Whether it shows more fish should go to the recreational side or 40 

the commercial side, I don’t know, but let’s see what that shows 41 

and see what adjustments to the allocation might be made.  You 42 

can certainly come in through a framework and increase the bag 43 

limit and that would be relatively easy to do and given that 44 

they’re not coming close to catching the quota, you could 45 

probably justify doing that. 46 

 47 

Just remember if their catches go up, then there’s always the 48 
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potential that they will catch the quota and they’ll hit it, but 1 

I think it would be reasonable to ask staff to take a look at 2 

bag limit adjustments to see, but to me, that’s kind of like the 3 

red snapper discussion we had and about getting into the details 4 

of the IFQ and making changes there.  That’s fine, but that’s a 5 

separate issue from the allocation. 6 

 7 

MR. PEARCE:  I think this is a perfect fishery that we can begin 8 

to talk about set-asides for data collection.  I really like the 9 

idea of having a percentage of an allocation that has a steady 10 

stream of data coming in so we can guarantee that we’ve got some 11 

data all the time coming in.  I think one of the discussions 12 

should be a data set-aside and there’s no doubt about it, to me. 13 

 14 

MR. RIECHERS:  To Roy, do we need to make it in a formal motion 15 

then to ask the Center for that analysis or is the initiation of 16 

this enough to warrant them to do that for us? 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t know if you need a motion or not, but you 19 

need to direct Dr. Bortone to send a letter to Bonnie requesting 20 

that analysis. 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  My comment wasn’t germane to this, but it had to 23 

do with why do you need a set-aside for data collection?  24 

 25 

DR. ABELE:  Is there an economic analysis relevant to bag limit 26 

on fish?  Would that be part of an economic analysis? 27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  If you start work on a bag limit change, there 29 

would have to be an economic analysis done on it, but I think 30 

that’s an entirely separate thing from the allocation analysis.  31 

Now, presumably the allocation analysis is going to look at 32 

willingness to pay and I guess it will look at, as the bag limit 33 

increases, how does that change and that might give you some 34 

information that would be useful to know when you look at a bag 35 

limit analysis. 36 

 37 

DR. LEARD:  Just a comment and then a question.  In the 38 

committee yesterday, we looked at Action 1 to Amendment 20, 39 

which would look at three options under Alternative 3 for 40 

potentially reallocating, on a temporary basis, 2 percent from 41 

the recreational sector to the commercial sector and based on 42 

some of your requests to modify that language, on page 6 of the 43 

committee report, you see where we have put some of that in 44 

there. 45 

 46 

Basically, we’re noting that we’re going to do this, but we’re 47 

going to monitor the recreational catches and if the catch 48 
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reaches some percentage, 75, 85, or 90 percent, and I just kind 1 

of brought those up, then the recreational sector or the 2 2 

percent would be reallocated back to the recreational sector 3 

from the commercial sector. 4 

 5 

That’s just a comment, that you’ve already moved forward with at 6 

least some reallocation if this ultimately becomes a preferred 7 

alternative.  The question is that in doing this, do we need a 8 

similar economic analysis? 9 

 10 

MR. BOYD:  Any other comments?  Let’s vote this one up or down.  11 

The motion is to initiate a plan amendment to reallocate king 12 

mackerel.  All in favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion 13 

carries unanimously. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess, for the record, I would like to request 16 

staff to send a letter to the Science Center.  Have you already 17 

got it?  You’re covered?  Very good and thank you. 18 

 19 

MR. CUPKA:  I was wondering if staff had had an opportunity to 20 

give any thought to a time and place where this joint Mackerel 21 

Committee meeting might occur.   22 

 23 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We were aware there might be one 24 

and the next place could be New Orleans, but that doesn’t help 25 

you out very much.  I can work with you on where we might want 26 

to do that, unless you’ve got a suggestion now. 27 

 28 

MR. CUPKA:  I think we had some suggestions in the material we 29 

provided and it was basically looking at meeting with you all in 30 

New Orleans or I think Roy had offered his facility here if we 31 

wanted to meet in this area or you would have to wait for our 32 

September meeting if you’re going to meet with us, which would 33 

be in Charleston.  We can get back with you, but we just need to 34 

decide, for planning purposes. 35 

 36 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I’ll take Roy up on his offer and 37 

we’ll work out a date when we can make that happen. 38 

 39 

MR. PERRET:  A suggestion for you, Dr. Bortone.  It seems to me 40 

it would be wise if we were able to meet before our New Orleans 41 

meeting.  Now, I know -- Even if we were able to meet the week 42 

before, it would be tough for staff to get the material for us 43 

for the following week, but if we’re able to meet before, at 44 

least we would have an opportunity, both council committees, to 45 

flesh out this stuff and hopefully come up with some consensus 46 

that we can agree on and move forward with. 47 

 48 
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I would suggest we meet here in Tampa, either at the council 1 

office, if there’s room, or here or whatever, or Dr. Crabtree 2 

may have a spot, but, David, is Tampa a reasonably easy place 3 

for you guys to get into? 4 

 5 

MR. CUPKA:  Yes and I only mentioned it because I think Roy 6 

indicated that his conference facility might be available if we 7 

wanted to us it, but it doesn’t matter.  We can use the 8 

council’s facility or Roy’s or whatever. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  It doesn’t matter to me at all and we can talk to 11 

Steve about that.  We would probably want to talk about how many 12 

committee members are we talking and how many members of the 13 

public do we think are going to show up, but either place is 14 

equal, to me. 15 

 16 

MR. BOYD:  Any other discussion?   17 

 18 

DR. LEARD:  I was just looking at the South Atlantic Council 19 

report and they suggested either at the Gulf August meeting or 20 

at the South Atlantic September meeting or a separate meeting in 21 

Tampa. 22 

 23 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you and I’m going to turn the gavel back over 24 

to Mr. Gill for the Other Business. 25 

 26 

OTHER BUSINESS 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you.  What’s left is Other Business and 29 

you recollect that when we set the agenda, there was a 30 

considerable number of items added.   31 

 32 

I would like to suggest, given the lateness of the hour and 33 

proclivity of some of you folks to depart, that when we get to 34 

each one if there’s a way to expedite in your minds, let’s do 35 

that and if the council is in agreement, then we can move on 36 

expeditiously and proceed to adjournment.  The first one on 37 

Other Business is Report of the Council Coordination Committee, 38 

CCC, Meeting and Dr. Bortone. 39 

 40 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill, I’m going to be able to 41 

expedite all of these items.  I’ve got three here, the Council 42 

Coordinating Committee, the Report on Living Marine Resources, 43 

and the SEDAR Steering Committee, which basically we already 44 

covered, because that was mainly the scheduling. 45 

 46 

I had three other items, the letter to Senator Snowe, the 47 

External Affairs Office Notice of Appeals, and External Affairs 48 
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Electronic Logbook.  With your permission, I will forward those 1 

materials to you.  I think some of them already have been and 2 

when necessary, ask for comments, because some of them do 3 

require comments.  If anybody has an objection to that, I can go 4 

ahead and do that. 5 

 6 

MR. PERRET:  I agree with all but one.  We’ve got a request from 7 

a United States Senator and I think we should, as a group, 8 

discuss it to respond.  I have been working with other United 9 

States Senators on this particular piece of legislation and I 10 

have my own opinion and I would like to share it with the 11 

council and I have a suggestion that when we respond that we 12 

definitely copy our ten Gulf senators, so they’re aware of our 13 

position.  I would like that discussed here at the meeting, if 14 

possible. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Given that that one was further down on the 17 

list, is there any concern about the other items that Dr. 18 

Bortone mentioned?  We’ll proceed down the list and when we get 19 

to Senator Snowe’s request, we can address it at that time.  If 20 

you’re all okay with that, we’ll move down.  The next one is the 21 

Discussion of Stock Assessments. 22 

 23 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I have one announcement.  That’s 24 

where I was going to make an announcement. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Dr. Bortone has something before we get further 27 

down the list. 28 

 29 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Some of you may have noticed my 30 

wife is in the back of the room and she’s here to remind me to 31 

remind you that a year from now I plan to retire and so I give 32 

you that year notice because I know it takes a long time to go 33 

through this process, but I’ve appreciated the staff and all of 34 

your work, but I’ll be close to sixty-seven and it’s not an old 35 

man’s sport, as they say.  I just wanted to make sure that 36 

announcement was out at this time, a year ahead of time, and 37 

thank you. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Given that, I will discuss with Vice Chair Boyd 40 

some thoughts and bring it back to the August meeting about how 41 

you want to proceed in choosing a new Executive Director.   42 

 43 

The next item under Other Business was the Discussion of Stock 44 

Assessments.  If I remember correctly, I included this as part 45 

of the briefing book and given the lateness of the hour and the 46 

lateness in the week, I would suggest we defer that one and you 47 

all can look at it. 48 
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 1 

I would strongly suggest you consider it at your August meeting.  2 

I will likely not be there to discuss it with you, but I think 3 

it’s a concept that you all need to consider and hoist aboard a 4 

way to do it. 5 

 6 

We have a real problem with stock assessments and going willy-7 

nilly and picking the hottest fire at the moment and shifting 8 

everything around.  We had some discussion on that today and 9 

hopefully this concept would allow some focus on that process by 10 

establishing goals of where you want to go.  The next item is 11 

FishSmart and Dr. Abele. 12 

 13 

DR. ABELE:  The document is there for anyone who wishes to read 14 

it.  I really like the process.  Dr. Crabtree, I believe, is 15 

familiar with it as well.  It’s a very different process.  It’s 16 

very similar to SEDAR, but it makes a great effort to involve 17 

all of the stakeholders from data collection, data analysis, and 18 

through the recommendations. 19 

 20 

It was done in 2008, I believe, and brought to the Southeast 21 

Council and I believe it was received well, but Mr. Cupka can 22 

outline that.  The down side is it’s very time consuming and 23 

expensive, but in terms of involving the public and creating a 24 

transparent process and making sure that everyone is involved in 25 

every step -- I really liked it and I would just hope that you 26 

all would read it and maybe in a different financial 27 

environment, we could discuss it further. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Dr. Abele.  The next one, I believe, 30 

is Senator Snowe’s letter and Dr. Bortone. 31 

 32 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The letter, Corky, I believe was to 33 

Mr. Gill and what I suggest is -- 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Ex-officio. 36 

 37 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Not by the time I send the letter.  38 

What my plan was, it was to send it out like we’ve done for a 39 

lot of things, send it out for comment, and then collate those 40 

comments and prepare a letter for Mr. Gill’s signature.  Any 41 

input that you have now or at time before we send it in -- I 42 

would like to send it in within about a week, because I think 43 

this requires a fast turnaround. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think that’s appropriate.  I think on this one 46 

-- Corky, I think we need to get your input, but I think one of 47 

the things the council needs to do is ensure there’s a consensus 48 
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on whether it’s for it or against it in some fashion and the 1 

comments can then be directed that way.  If there’s a split on 2 

the council, the letter can be couched with the intent of the 3 

council in mind. 4 

 5 

MR. PERRET:  Do you want to hear my concerns? 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Absolutely. 8 

 9 

MR. PERRET:  Everybody at the table should be supportive of it, 10 

other than our NOAA friends, probably, because I assume 11 

everybody knows a little bit about S-K, but in the old days, we 12 

had regional S-K panels, which some of us here served on.  The 13 

Region got X number of dollars and that money was for research 14 

and development-type projects and so on. 15 

 16 

I know in the last two years, in talking to grants people in the 17 

Region, we got zero S-K dollars and I think that may even be 18 

true for three years.  This does provide funding for research if 19 

this thing passes. 20 

 21 

I am going to use the 2013 estimate of $124 million.  70 percent 22 

is split half by the councils and so half of 70 percent of $124 23 

goes to the councils.  One thing I don’t necessarily like, but 24 

can live with, is this stakeholder’s committee that reviews 25 

research, a panel of no more than thirteen by each council.  The 26 

council would appoint the members, five from the states, 27 

academia, charter, commercial, recreational.  28 

 29 

Then the council would approve or not approve the proposals that 30 

they suggest for funding.  My main problem with the legislation 31 

is this.  The other half of that 70 percent is based on economic 32 

value of commercial landings and recreational fishing and that’s 33 

great for us.  We’re going to get our fair share there. 34 

 35 

However, that goes to the council, based on that formula of 36 

landings and recreational trips.  I know what’s going to happen 37 

if the money gets to the councils.  It will be for federally-38 

managed species and we’re going to get very little for state-39 

managed species, even though the formula is on landings. 40 

 41 

State-managed species like menhaden, oysters, blue crabs, as an 42 

example, and recreational trips over -- Since 2000, according to 43 

NMFS, the lowest number of recreational fishing trips in the 44 

Gulf was in the year 2005 and 90 percent were made in state 45 

waters and not federal waters.  The highest is in the last two 46 

years, where 95 percent were made in state waters. 47 

 48 
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My suggestion is that we include language in the letter for a 1 

change that would at least allow for part of the money to come 2 

to state resource agencies for management of state-managed 3 

fisheries.  That’s a suggestion to add in our response. 4 

 5 

I think we should support it, but I would hope that I could get 6 

concurrence that the states should get some of this money also 7 

and I would like to copy our ten Gulf senators. 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Let me address our attorney.  We 10 

are prohibited from lobbying and if a Senator asks us to write a 11 

letter, we can do that, but I wonder if copying the others would 12 

be construed as lobbying. 13 

 14 

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Since I was having a sidebar, would you just 15 

frame the question again for me? 16 

 17 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It was brought up that we were 18 

asked by Senator Snowe to respond to some legislation of the 19 

council opinion on this, or Mr. Gill was, and Mr. Perret 20 

indicated that we should copy that letter to other legislators.  21 

We are prohibited from lobbying.  If we are asked, like Senator 22 

Snowe has, a response is not lobbying.  However, unsolicited to 23 

other legislators might be construed as lobbying. 24 

 25 

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I think that’s a good point.  I think that 26 

you should probably not unsolicited send it to others.  I think 27 

that’s a really good point. 28 

 29 

MR. PERRET:  Have we not responded oftentimes before and copied 30 

our governors and our legislative delegation? 31 

 32 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The only time I’ve written letters 33 

that have gone to others is when they have signed a joint 34 

request to us. 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  Just copy council members and I’ll make sure they 37 

get to my two. 38 

 39 

MR. ANSON:  Can the council post it to its website? 40 

 41 

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I will tell you what.  I will look into it 42 

and if you can, I will let Dr. Bortone know and so if you want 43 

him to do that, let me check it out first and then I’ll get with 44 

him. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would just advise you to be very cautious with 47 

this one.  Remember it’s a lot of money and it’s going to come 48 
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out of other things and you may find that programs now that you 1 

have that are very important to the work of this council aren’t 2 

funded anymore because that money is going somewhere else now 3 

and being used in a different way.  It’s not like this is new 4 

money that hasn’t been used in the past. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Dr. Crabtree, you stole my thunder again.  That 7 

was the comment I was going to make.  Of course, the whole 8 

reason this got there, and the agency can address that side of 9 

it, is they put in other parts of the budget and so that says if 10 

this occurs, then those things come out of the budget, one of 11 

which may be council funds and who knows?  I have no idea, but 12 

it’s not new money and it’s a zero-sum game and so yes, there’s 13 

going to be some exacerbation of the budget decline that we’ve 14 

got and that’s part of the consideration. 15 

 16 

What I would like to do is at the end of this discussion is 17 

request a vote for support or lack thereof for this bill, so we 18 

can couch the letter with the council’s intent, properly noting 19 

the comments being supplied by council members. 20 

 21 

MR. PERRET:  Can I make a motion? 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  You can do whatever you want. 24 

 25 

MR. PERRET:  I think the first thing I said was I can understand 26 

and if I was sitting in Roy’s chair, I would have probably said 27 

the same thing, because it’s going to come out of somebody’s 28 

hide. 29 

 30 

Since we were asked to respond on this piece of legislation, I 31 

would move that we offer our support for the legislation, 32 

pointing out the importance though of recreational fishing in 33 

state waters, commercial fishing and volume of landings in 34 

state-managed species, and suggest the formula be modified in 35 

some sort of way to ensure that states get a certain percentage 36 

of the funds. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Would you help Phyllis with that wordiness of 39 

prose? 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  Offer our support for legislation and you can cite 42 

the NOAA annual publications on landings.  That’s not for the 43 

letter.  Staff can have editorial license to do it, but I just 44 

think we need to point out the importance of state recreational 45 

fishing and state commercial fishing and that we need to modify 46 

the bill to include some funding for state-managed species.  47 

That’s not helping you much. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Does that reflect your motion, Corky? 2 

 3 

MR. PERRET:  Our support for the legislation, pointing out the 4 

importance of recreational and commercial fishing from state 5 

waters or in state waters and suggest, and we don’t want to tell 6 

them, the formula be modified -- 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  You are dragging, Mr. Perret. 9 

 10 

MR. PERRET:  I want to give Dr. Bortone editorial license.  He 11 

can do a lot better than me, but basically support the bill and 12 

point out the importance of state-managed fisheries and we 13 

suggest modifying the formula to include a portion of the 14 

funding for the state. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Does the motion on the board reflect your 17 

intent?  We have a motion and do we have a second?  Johnny 18 

seconds it.  The motion is made and seconded. 19 

 20 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would think before you would jump into this and 21 

support this legislation that you would spend some time finding 22 

out what the repercussions of this budget shift would be, 23 

because you may find out that you’re much worse off than where 24 

you started in terms of our ability to do the science and manage 25 

these programs and count recreational fish and all these other 26 

things.  I understand politics, but it still seems to me that 27 

you would want to get some information on that sort of thing. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Dr. Crabtree, in spite of your normally cogent 30 

remarks, that one seems way off base.  There’s no way that we 31 

know what the budget changes are going to be and the agency 32 

won’t provide those implications and so for us to make that 33 

evaluation just is not possible and so yes, in theory it’s nice, 34 

but if you would come back in a week with what those 35 

implications might be, we might have an assessment, but you 36 

can’t get it. 37 

 38 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a couple of things.  While I understand 39 

the position, I thought it was my understanding that all the 40 

states just got or were going to get $100 million, each state.  41 

I thought I heard that the other day.  I don’t know how much 42 

money the states need.  I’m sure they need every dime they can 43 

get, but $100 million, to me, is an awful lot of money to do 44 

research and stuff with. 45 

 46 

Two, I know that this money is coming about because of the 47 

Saltonstall-Kennedy Fund, the way that’s been handled and where 48 



235 

 

it’s been trickled down and stuff, and we were told at the 1 

council orientation -- They gave us a little stick and I’ve 2 

still got mine and it’s about what we are allowed to do and not 3 

allowed to do. 4 

 5 

I don’t think we are allowed to do what we’re attempting to do 6 

with this motion.  It may be perfectly okay and I don’t know.  I 7 

know that Monica is supposed to get back and let us know, but 8 

the instructions that I got at my orientation says you can’t do 9 

that and so I’m going to be afraid to vote for it. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t really understand your last comment, Bob.  12 

I don’t recall being asked or the council asking the agency to 13 

tell where is the S-K money that’s now coming in, this $100 14 

million, where is it going and what programs is it being used 15 

for and I don’t think anybody has asked that.  Maybe you have 16 

and I don’t know? 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess that remark stems from the CCC 19 

conference. 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  I wasn’t there and so -- 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I understand that, but where this issue was 24 

addressed and Sam said we’re currently using and he talked about 25 

where that money was, but we don’t know what the budget going 26 

forward is going to be or where that’s coming from and how the 27 

agency chooses to make that allocation of funds. 28 

 29 

It may or may not be simply removal from where it’s currently 30 

being utilized, but we don’t know that and I suspect Gary 31 

Reisner doesn’t know that either.  I see Dr. Ponwith wagging her 32 

head no. 33 

 34 

DR. PONWITH:  Mr. Gill, the President’s budget is our FY13 35 

budget and the plan for what the administration is proposing to 36 

do in FY13 is presented there.  The thing that we can’t discuss 37 

with the council are plans for FY14, because that gets out ahead 38 

of the administration.  It’s the administration’s prerogative to 39 

roll out the FY14 budget. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  But the S-K bill goes beyond 2013. 42 

 43 

MR. ANSON:  I just wanted to respond to Ms. Williams’s comment 44 

regarding the $100 million that each of the states have received 45 

as far as the NRDA process and the early restoration activities 46 

associated with the Deepwater Horizon. 47 

 48 
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That $100 million can be utilized for a lot of different things.  1 

Monitoring and fishery recovery certainly are some of those 2 

projects.  However, it also can be used for loss of human use of 3 

the resource and those things are not directly tied with any of 4 

the resources that we manage either at the council or the state 5 

level, for that matter.  There’s lots of discretion in there and 6 

just because the state is getting $100 million, it’s not for 7 

fisheries.  I just wanted to make sure that was clear. 8 

 9 

MR. PERRET:  I would just like to say formerly S-K monies was 10 

coming to the Region and we were able to utilize them for needed 11 

research and development activities and we don’t get them 12 

anymore.  This is an opportunity to get funds and, Kay, NMFS has 13 

also gotten $100 million and Fish and Wildlife has got $100 14 

million, but like Kevin says, that money is going to be used for 15 

all sort of things and with that, I would like to call the 16 

question. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The question has been called.  I have no hands 19 

on the list and all in favor of calling the question say aye; 20 

all opposed like sign.  The question is called. 21 

 22 

The motion is to offer our support for the legislation, pointing 23 

out the importance of recreational and commercial fishing in 24 

state waters and modify the formula in the bill to include 25 

funding for state fisheries management.  All those in favor 26 

please raise your hand, six; all those opposed raise your hand.  27 

We have one abstention and the motion passes.  The next item 28 

under Other Business, Dr. Bortone, is -- I’m a little unclear as 29 

to where we are on the list. 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I will make it real quick and I won’t keep you 32 

all too long.  I have a couple of issues.  Law enforcement is 33 

wanting to meet.  We tried to piggyback it on to a meeting that 34 

they’re having in Grand Isle and since then, I found out that we 35 

don’t have time to piggyback it on to their meeting, because, 36 

one, it’s not open to the public and, two, they’ve got a lot of 37 

work to cover and they don’t know if they’re going to have 38 

enough time to cover their work at their meeting. 39 

 40 

They had offered to do some kind of a webinar and if we didn’t 41 

want to set it up, they would try and find the time to set it up 42 

for us.  43 

 44 

The law enforcement has been wanting to meet and they haven’t 45 

met outside of this council in years, as far as I can remember, 46 

and I suggested that they have a meeting perhaps maybe at the 47 

council office.  They want to discuss what happened during their 48 
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ITQ investigation and they want to discuss things that they have 1 

concerns with about the ITQ program. 2 

 3 

There’s other law enforcement issues that they wanted to discuss 4 

as far as they pertain to our amendments and stuff that they 5 

have not been involved in and so it’s more than just one thing 6 

and this just took place as far as we don’t have the time and 7 

you can’t piggyback it on top of us while we were at this 8 

meeting. 9 

 10 

I would like permission for law enforcement to at least have a 11 

one-day meeting at the council office so that they can discuss 12 

these issues. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Kay, I know Dr. Leard has been working on this 15 

problem this week and there are some, and I don’t know if you’re 16 

aware of it, greater complications than you mentioned and so, 17 

Dr. Leard, could you bring us up to date as to where you are and 18 

where we’re headed and what your recommendation would be? 19 

 20 

DR. LEARD:  Right now, and I got an email from Steve VanderKooy, 21 

but what we’re trying to do is we had one day scheduled for them 22 

to have a workshop to review and come up with new documents for 23 

their strategic plans and their operation plans. 24 

 25 

Steve VanderKooy felt like that would take a full day and so 26 

then we were going to look at the IFQ program and the law 27 

enforcement considerations there through a webinar and then I 28 

found out from Andy Strelcheck, who is also looking at some 29 

administrative changes to the way the IFQ program operates, and 30 

he indicated to me that that would probably take about two to 31 

three hours, which is pretty lengthy to have a webinar and have 32 

discussion of those items. 33 

 34 

What I ask, in order to save time and money for those people and 35 

for us and for Gulf States, who is splitting the cost, is to 36 

look at adding an additional day onto the meeting in New Orleans 37 

and Federal Register noticing that meeting in Grand Isle and add 38 

a day on to that. 39 

 40 

I am supposed to call Steve tomorrow to see what progress he’s 41 

made in seeing if we can utilize the lab facilities there for an 42 

additional day and just extend the meeting for an additional day 43 

to cover these other agenda items that Andy wants to discuss and 44 

that Florida law enforcement wants to provide what issues they 45 

have. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  To clarify, you originally said New Orleans, but 48 
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you’re talking about extending an additional day at the Grand 1 

Isle LEAP meeting currently scheduled and is that correct? 2 

 3 

DR. LEARD:  Correct.  I misspoke.  We want to stay at the same 4 

place, so everybody has the same travel arrangements and just 5 

extend it for a day. 6 

 7 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Grand Isle is not the easiest place to get to.  8 

You’ve got to fly in there and then you’ve got to rent a car.  9 

I’ve already checked out about where the building is and what 10 

the facilities are and stuff and even they said and didn’t 11 

recommend it in these emails that are going back and forth that 12 

I’ve seen, because Steve has also been copying me on them. 13 

 14 

How much are we going to save by doing it there, since we’ve got 15 

to go there rather than having it at the council office?  Have 16 

you looked at that? 17 

 18 

DR. LEARD:  I think a pretty good bit, because they will already 19 

be there and at least three, if not more, of the state people 20 

will just be able to drive in.  Alabama, Mississippi, and 21 

Louisiana will just drive in and possibly Texas and Florida may 22 

drive in.  Most of those state people do that. 23 

 24 

I do know that Otha Easley is planning on attending and Steve 25 

VanderKooy is trying to arrange shuttle from the New Orleans 26 

airport for any of the other people that may be coming or flying 27 

into New Orleans, so that he can pick them up in the 28 

commission’s van or whatever and take them down there.  Really, 29 

the cost is very minimal and it would just be for an additional 30 

day’s per diem. 31 

 32 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It’s not my choice of place, but if that’s where 33 

you all want to have it, because every time I’ve suggested that 34 

we have one in Tampa, I’m told that no, we can’t have one.  No 35 

one calls me and no one tells me anything as far as law 36 

enforcement and I’m the Law Enforcement Chairman.  I have yet to 37 

hear from you, Rick, on any of this.  If Steve had not been 38 

copying me, I wouldn’t know anything about it. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Kay, let’s move on to your other item if you’re 41 

done with this one. 42 

 43 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m done with this one as far as the law 44 

enforcement, but I’m still going to say I do not want to have it 45 

in Grand Isle.  I want to have our own council committee meeting 46 

and not a Gulf States meeting. 47 

 48 
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As far as the travel and stuff, what I was getting to is we 1 

travel from place to place and I have been knocked off my 2 

computer about every ten minutes since I’ve been in here and 3 

it’s not the computer, because it’s brand new. 4 

 5 

David Cupka, he has even gotten his own card because he’s so 6 

tired of the stuff not working or halfway working and not being 7 

able to connect.  We work with the internet when we’re here and 8 

we’ve got to make some kind of arrangements to where we can all 9 

have decent internet in this room.  Our staff has decent 10 

internet, but we don’t and we need to do something about that.  11 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  My comment is I’m not aware that I’ve had any 14 

disconnect whatsoever and so it may be unique to individuals.  15 

Has anyone else had a serious problem with that?  Jessica is 16 

saying yes and Johnny is saying yes and so there seems to be 17 

some issues and some say no.  Dr. Bortone, are there any other 18 

issues under Other Business that we haven’t covered? 19 

 20 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  No, sir, we’ve covered them all. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess that brings us to the end and I know 23 

everybody is itching to go and I just wanted to say I will cut 24 

short my prepared half-hour remarks, but I want to say that I 25 

have enjoyed it and I am going to miss it and I’m going to miss 26 

you all.   27 

 28 

I am actually going to miss the process, in contrast to Duane’s 29 

comments.  Most people don’t miss the process, but I’m going to, 30 

because it’s a challenge to get anything done and I don’t know 31 

how we ever do, but we do and so I wish you all well and I think 32 

our paths will cross in the future and I don’t know where, but 33 

goodbye and thank you for all the memories and the friendship.  34 

Thank you very much.  If there’s no further business, this 35 

council is adjourned. 36 

 37 

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m., June 21, 2012.) 38 

 39 

- - -40 
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TABLE OF MOTIONS 1 

 2 

PAGE 90:  Motion that staff be requested to prepare a white 3 

paper to evaluate a broad range of options for funding the 4 

electronic logbook program.  The motion carried on page 92. 5 

 6 

PAGE 93:  Motion to send a letter to Eric Schwaab with copy to 7 

Sam Rauch endorsing the Southern Shrimp Association’s TED 8 

proposal.  The motion carried on page 93. 9 

 10 

PAGE 98:  Motion to change the priority of the Fixed Petroleum 11 

Platforms and Artificial Reefs as Essential Fish Habitat 12 

amendment from B to A on the Council Action Schedule.  The 13 

motion was tabled on page 98.  The motion was untabled on page 14 

100.  The motion carried on page 102. 15 

 16 

PAGE 103:  Motion to request that the council reconvene the Ad 17 

Hoc Private Recreational Data Collection Advisory Panel to 18 

pursue and make additional recommendations to the council on the 19 

subjects of web-based phone apps and other means of public 20 

outreach to improve the fishing public’s understanding of the 21 

MRIP process.  In addition, to further explore boat permits and 22 

electronic-based reporting programs to characterize catch.  The 23 

motion carried on page 103. 24 

 25 

PAGE 103:  Motion to add additional members to the Ad Hoc 26 

Private Recreational Data Collection Advisory Panel who have 27 

expertise in data collection to assist them in furthering some 28 

of these concepts.  The motion failed on page 115. 29 

 30 

PAGE 116:  Motion that the council accept the new Purpose for 31 

Action and the Need for Action as reflected in the Summary of 32 

the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council Data Collection 33 

Committee from June 13, 2012.  The motion carried on page 116. 34 

 35 

PAGE 116:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Alternative 36 

2, Option 2b.  The motion carried on page 120. 37 

 38 

PAGE 120:  Motion to request that the council remove Gulf of 39 

Mexico Coral and Coral Reefs from the list of FMPs for which 40 

reporting is required in Action 1.  The motion carried on page 41 

120. 42 

 43 

PAGE 120:  Motion to request to change “Thursday” to “Tuesday” 44 

throughout the entire document.  The motion carried on page 120. 45 

 46 

PAGE 120:  Motion to request to include the language that was 47 

updated by the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council as 48 
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follows and that staff make the changes to Alternatives 2, 3, 1 

and 4 throughout the document, Alternative 3 is to require forms 2 

be submitted electronically, via computer or internet.  The 3 

motion carried on page 121. 4 

 5 

PAGE 121:  Motion to request that in Action 2 that the preferred 6 

alternative be Alternative 3, Option 3b, to coincide with that 7 

chosen by the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council.  8 

Alternative 3 is require forms be submitted electronically and 9 

Option 3b is weekly.  Forms from trips landing between Sunday 10 

and Saturday must be submitted to the SRD by 11:59 P.M. on the 11 

following Tuesday.  The motion carried on page 122. 12 

 13 

PAGE 122:  Motion to request to keep the following wording: 14 

Note:  Any selected Preferred Alternative will include “Dealers 15 

reporting purchases of king mackerel landed by the gillnet 16 

sector for the Gulf West Coast Florida Southern Sub Zone must 17 

submit forms daily by 6:00 A.M.”  The motion carried on page 18 

122. 19 

 20 

PAGE 122:  In Action 2, that the preferred alternative be 21 

Alternative 5.  Alternative 5 is during catastrophic conditions 22 

only, the ACL monitoring program provides for use of paper-based 23 

components for basic required functions as a backup.  The 24 

Regional Administrator will determine when catastrophic 25 

conditions exist, the duration of the catastrophic conditions, 26 

and which participants or geographic areas are deemed affected 27 

by the catastrophic conditions.  The RA will provide timely 28 

notice to affected participants via publication of notification 29 

in the Federal Register, NOAA weather radio, fishery bulletins, 30 

and other appropriate means and will authorize the affected 31 

participants’ use of paper-based components for the duration of 32 

the catastrophic conditions.  The paper forms will be available 33 

from NMFS.  The RA has the authority to waive or modify 34 

reporting time requirements.  The motion carried on page 126. 35 

 36 

PAGE 126:  Motion to request in Action 3, to move Alternatives 37 

2, 3, and 4 to the considered but rejected section.  The motion 38 

carried on page 126. 39 

 40 

PAGE 126:  Motion to request to accept Action 3 and the modified 41 

alternatives consistent with the action of the South Atlantic 42 

Fishery Management Council.  The motion carried on page 127. 43 

 44 

PAGE 127:  Motion to request to approve the modified 45 

Modifications to Federally-Permitted Seafood Dealer Reporting 46 

Requirements and to send it to public hearing.  The motion 47 

carried on page 127. 48 
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 1 

PAGE 127:  Motion to adopt the permits plan to implement generic 2 

dealer permits as proposed by the SERO Permits Office.  The 3 

motion carried on page 128. 4 

 5 

PAGE 128:  Motion to request to recommend to the council to 6 

indicate support of the Permits in Limbo issue.  The motion 7 

carried on page 128. 8 

 9 

PAGE 128:  Motion that public hearings be held in following 10 

locations: Brownsville, Texas area; Corpus Christi, Texas; 11 

Galveston, Texas; Houma, Louisiana area; Panama City, Florida 12 

area; Tampa, Florida; Key West, Florida; Mobile, Alabama; and 13 

Biloxi, Mississippi area.  The motion carried on page 132. 14 

 15 

PAGE 134:  Motion that the council accept the recommendations as 16 

detailed in Tab H-3(b) as a starting point for further analysis.  17 

The motion carried on page 134. 18 

 19 

PAGE 140:  Motion to move the vermilion snapper benchmark to 20 

2014 and move the 2014 yellowedge grouper update and scamp 21 

benchmark to 2015 and beyond.  The motion carried on page 143. 22 

 23 

PAGE 145:  Motion to endorse the concept for multiple webinars 24 

for the SEDAR-33 assessment workshop.  The motion carried on 25 

page 151.  26 

 27 

PAGE 153:  Motion to request Louisiana to provide the council 28 

with the details of their proposed regional management plan for 29 

red snapper.  The motion carried on page 157. 30 

 31 

PAGE 157:  Motion to develop a plan amendment with alternatives 32 

for regional management of recreational harvest of red snapper.  33 

The motion carried on page 162. 34 

 35 

PAGE 162:  Motion to request staff develop a letter to Secretary 36 

Barham requesting that appropriate personnel, legal and others, 37 

come and explain the expansion of their jurisdiction in the 38 

total of 10.3 miles for fishery management purposes.  The motion 39 

carried on page 163. 40 

 41 

PAGE 163:  Motion for the red snapper regional management motion 42 

just passed that the priority be a C.  The motion carried on 43 

page 165. 44 

 45 

PAGE 166:  Motion in Action 1 that a new alternative be 46 

developed for gag grouper that the increase in ACL between 2012 47 

and 2015 be allocated to either: Option a)the recreational 48 
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sector; Option b)the commercial sector; or Option c)equal 1 

distribution between both sectors.  The motion carried on page 2 

172. 3 

 4 

PAGE 174:  Motion to add to the purpose and need a discussion 5 

regarding the social consideration and economic efficiency of 6 

allocation of the resources.  The motion carried on page 174. 7 

 8 

PAGE 174:  Motion to recommend to staff to include larger 9 

reallocation ranges, up to 10 percent, for red, black, and gag 10 

grouper species.  The motion carried on page 176. 11 

 12 

PAGE 176:  Motion request to add an alternative that considers 13 

reallocation based on increases in ACL based on an established 14 

baseline.  The motion carried on page 177. 15 

 16 

PAGE 180:  Motion in Action 1 that Alternative 3 be the 17 

preferred alternative.  Alternative 3 is establish a rebuilding 18 

plan based on a constant fishing mortality rate that does not 19 

exceed the fishing mortality rate at optimum yield.  This is 20 

expected to rebuild the gray triggerfish stock within five years 21 

of modifying the rebuilding plan or by the end of 2016.  The 22 

motion carried on page 180. 23 

 24 

PAGE 180:  Motion in Action 2 that the preferred alternative be 25 

Alternative 4.  Alternative 4 is use Amendment 30A to determine 26 

the sector allocation and the council’s ACL/ACT control rule to 27 

determine the buffers between the ACLs and ACTs.  Based on an 28 

ABC which equals 305,300 pounds whole weight, set the commercial 29 

ACL at 64,100 pounds whole weight, which is 21 percent of the 30 

ABC, and the recreational ACL at 241,200 pounds whole weight, 31 

which is 79 percent of the ABC, consistent with the sector 32 

allocations established in Amendment 30A.  The commercial ACT 33 

equals 60,900 pounds whole weight, which is the commercial ACL 34 

reduced by 5 percent, and the recreational ACT  equals 217,100 35 

pounds whole weight, which the recreational ACL is reduced by 10 36 

percent in that case, based on the ACL/ACT control rule buffers 37 

for each sector.  The motion carried on page 180. 38 

 39 

PAGE 181:  Motion in Action 2.3.1 that the preferred alternative 40 

be Alternative 1.  Alternative 1 is the no action alternative, 41 

do not modify the current minimum size limit of fourteen inches 42 

fork length.  The motion carried on page 181. 43 

 44 

PAGE 181:  Motion to move Action 2.3.1 to the considered but 45 

rejected section.  The motion carried on page 181. 46 

 47 

PAGE 182:  Motion in Action 2.3.3 that the preferred alternative 48 
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be Alternative 2.  Alternative 2 is establish a commercial trip 1 

limit of fifty pounds whole weight.  The motion carried on page 2 

182. 3 

 4 

PAGE 182:  Motion in Action 2.3.2 to add a new Alternative 4 5 

that closes the commercial season April 1 through August 31.  6 

The motion carried on page 183. 7 

 8 

PAGE 185:  Motion in Action 2.4.1 that the preferred alternative 9 

be Alternative 1.  Alternative 1 is no action, do not modify the 10 

current minimum size limit of fourteen inches fork length.  The 11 

motion carried on page 186. 12 

 13 

PAGE 186:  Motion to move Action 2.4.1 to the considered but 14 

rejected section.  The motion carried on page 186. 15 

 16 

PAGE 186:  Motion to add a new alternative that would establish 17 

a four gray triggerfish per angler bag limit within the twenty 18 

reef fish aggregate bag limit and that it would be the preferred 19 

alternative.  The motion carried on page 188. 20 

 21 

PAGE 189:  Motion to add a new Alternative 4 to close the entire 22 

month of June.  The motion carried on page 191. 23 

 24 

PAGE 191:  Motion in Action 2.4.2 that the preferred alternative 25 

be Alternative 2.  The motion carried on page 191. 26 

 27 

PAGE 192:  Motion in Action 2.4.4 that the preferred alternative 28 

be Alternative 2.  Alternative 2 is add an in-season closure 29 

authority for gray triggerfish based on the recreational ACT.  30 

The motion carried on page 193. 31 

 32 

PAGE 193:  Motion to add language clarifying Alternatives 2 and 33 

3 that our intent is to add in-season closures and remove the 34 

post-season accountability measures.  The motion carried on page 35 

194. 36 

 37 

PAGE 195:  Motion to add a new Alternative 4 that would 38 

establish a payback provision whereby an ACL overage would be 39 

deducted from the next year’s ACT and ACL.  This would be in 40 

place as long as the stock is overfished.  The motion carried on 41 

page 195. 42 

 43 

PAGE 196:  Motion in Action 2 to develop a new alternative for 44 

eliminating the February 1 to March 31 recreational closed 45 

season in waters under twenty fathoms.  The motion carried on 46 

page 196. 47 

 48 
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PAGE 197:  Motion in Action 2 to move Option 2a to the 1 

considered but rejected section.  The motion carried on page 2 

197. 3 

 4 

PAGE 199:  Motion that the preferred alternative in Action 1 be 5 

Alternative 3 and Alternative 4.  The motion carried on page 6 

200. 7 

 8 

PAGE 200:  Motion that in Action 2 the preferred alternatives be 9 

Alternative 2 and Alternative 4.  Alternative 2 is modify the 10 

reef fish framework procedure to include changes to 11 

accountability measures through the standard documentation 12 

process for open framework actions.  Accountability measures 13 

that could be implemented or changed would include: In-season 14 

accountability measures; closure and closure procedures; trip 15 

limit implementation or change; designation of an existing 16 

limited access privilege program as the accountability measure 17 

for species in the IFQ program; implementation of gear 18 

restrictions; post-season accountability measures; adjustment of 19 

season length; implementation of closed seasons/time periods; 20 

adjustment or implementation of bag, trip, or possession limit; 21 

reduction of the ACL/ACT to account for the previous year 22 

overage; revoking a scheduled increase in the ACL/ACT if the ACL 23 

was exceeded in the previous year; implementation of gear 24 

restrictions; reporting and monitoring requirements.    25 

Alternative 4 is make editorial changes to the framework 26 

procedure to reflect changes to the council advisory committees 27 

and panels.  The motion carried on page 201. 28 

 29 

PAGE 202:  Motion that the council request that staff create a 30 

more comprehensive approach through the merging of Amendment 28 31 

and Amendment 39 and adding red snapper to the discussion for 32 

allocation purposes.  The motion carried on page 203. 33 

 34 

PAGE 204:  Motion to take the combined amendment to scoping 35 

before the August council meeting.  The motion failed on page 36 

205. 37 

 38 

PAGE 207:  Motion that the council recommends approving the EFPs 39 

for both Doctors Koenig and Stallings and for Florida Sea Grant 40 

for their recompression studies.  The motion carried on page 41 

208. 42 

 43 

PAGE 215:  Motion to move Action 5 to the considered but 44 

rejected section.  The motion carried on page 217. 45 

 46 

PAGE 219:  Motion that in Alternatives 2 and 3 that we move 47 

Option c to the considered but rejected section.  The motion 48 
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carried on page 220. 1 

 2 

PAGE 221:  Motion to frame Action 7 the same as it’s framed in 3 

the handout CMP 20.  The motion carried on page 222. 4 

 5 

PAGE 223:  Motion in Action Item 10 that the preferred be 6 

Alternative 2 and Alternative 5.  The motion carried on page 7 

223. 8 

 9 

PAGE 224:  Motion to initiate a plan amendment to reallocate 10 

king mackerel.  The motion carried on page 227. 11 

 12 

PAGE 233:  Motion to offer council support for the legislation, 13 

pointing out the importance of recreational and commercial 14 

fishing in state waters and modify the formula in the bill to 15 

include funding for state fisheries management.  The motion 16 

carried on page 236. 17 

 18 
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